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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 26 MARCH 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Kennedy,  good  

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.   We are  ready to  

p roceed Cha i r  w i th  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes good morn ing  Mr  Mantsha.   Thank 

you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You are  ready to  p roceed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you My Lo rd .   May I  ind ica te  10 

tha t  Mr  Mantsha  is  today ass is ted  by  h is  a t to rney Mr  

Bhenga.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   You  can p lace yourse l f  on  

record  f rom where  you a re  i f  your  m ic  i s  work ing .   I f  i t  i s  

no t  work ing  they w i l l  san i t i se  the  pod ium.    

MR BHENGA:   As  per  the  hear ing  I  am Mr  Bhenga hear ing  

on  beha l f  o f  Dan Mantsha.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you ve ry  much.   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Good morn ing  Mr  

Mantsha.   Mr  Mantsha I  wou ld  l i ke  to  p ick  up  on the  po in t  20 

… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on Mr  Mantsha a re  you go ing  to  

p re fe r  to  have your  mask on today?  Okay a l r i gh t .   Okay.   

Thank you.   Yes Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you  Cha i r.   Mr  Man tsha we 



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 4 of 301 
 

were  dea l ing  las t  t ime w i th  the  s i tua t ion  concern ing  the  

te rm inat ion  o f  employment  o f  the  then Group CEO Mr  

Sa loo jee ,  the  Group CFO Chie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer  Mr  

Mhlont lo  and the  Company Secre tary  Ms A f r i ca  and you 

reca l l  we s tar ted  dea l ing  w i th  the  process tha t  was 

fo l lowed in  tha t  regard .    

And we were  look ing  spec i f i ca l l y  a t  the  s teps tha t  

were  taken in  re la t ion  to  the  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry  tha t  they 

had been to ld  they wou ld  be  fac ing  and we were  exp lor ing  

why i t  took  so  long and u l t imate ly  i t  never  took p lace a t  a l l  10 

because the  –  t he  te rm inat ion  o f  employment  was then  

done by  se t t lement .  

 Now Mr  Mantsha  I  wou ld  l i ke  you p lease jus t  to  

conf i rm you have  before  you a  bund le  hopefu l l y  what  you 

have in  f ron t  o f  you is  Exh ib i t  W4B.   Do you have tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:   I  do  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you and we looked a t  par t  o f  

the  annexures to  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  s ta tement  las t  t ime.   I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you p lease to  Bund le  –  th is  bund le  and i t  

has  go t  d i f fe ren t  page number ing  sys tem than some o f  the  20 

o ther  bund les  so  i t  i s  –  jus t  bear  in  m ind in  th is  –  in  th is  

f i l e  we have to  look  a t  the  numbers  on  the  r igh t  hand – top  

r igh t  hand corne r  and I  wou ld  l i ke  you p lease to  tu rn  to  

page RS405.  

MR MANTSHA:   Page?  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   RS405.   When I  am dea l ing  w i th  th is  

bund le  I  am go ing  to  omi t  re fe rence to  the  RS un less  we 

run  i n to  d i f f i cu l t ies .   R igh t  do  you have tha t?   That  i s  a  

le t te r  f rom Zar ina  Wale le  a t to rney.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  do  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And we looked a t  par t  o f  tha t  le t te r  on  

the  las t  occas ion .   That  i s  the  le t te r  f rom Ms Wale le  who a t  

the  t ime was ac t ing  as  the  a t to rney fo r  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  Mr  

Mhlont lo  and Ms A f r i ca ,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i t  i s  –  i t  i s  da ted  the  18 t h  o f  

February  2016.   Now by th i s  s tage Mr  Sa loo jee ,  Mr  

Mhlont lo  and Ms A f r i ca  had been on suspens ion  s ince  

September,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And they had rece ived a  charge sheet  

–  I  th ink  i t  was in  December  o f  2016 and we dea l t  las t  t ime 

w i th  the  process  in  wh ich  i t  was  tha t  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry  

was meant  to  p roceed in  January  ins tead i t  d id  no t  p roceed  

ins tead a  med ia t i on  process was a t tempted and there  was  20 

var ious cor respondence between  the  a t to rneys.   C l i f fe  

Decker  Hofmeyr  to  whom th is  le t te r  i s  addressed were  

ac t ing  a t  the  t ime fo r  Dene l .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now we a l ready dea l t  I  be l ieve  
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on  the  l as t  occas ion  w i th  the  f i rs t  par t  o f  the  le t te r  on  page  

405 where  Ms Wale le  re fe r red  to  your  appear ing  as  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Dene l  be fore  a  se lec t  commi t tee  o f  

Par l iament  where  you had made s ta tements  tha t  and she  

quotes  the re  

“These o f f i c ia ls  were  in  b reach o f  the  law 

and they fa i led  to  observe  the  lega l  

requ i rements  o f  the  PFMA. ”  

You reca l l  we dea l t  w i th  tha t  in  your  ev idence las t  t ime? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  reca l l  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you reca l l  say ing  yes you sa id  

someth ing  a long those l ines  in  Par l iament .  

MR MANTSHA:   Cha i rperson i f  I  were  to  repeat  myse l f  

aga in  I  sa id  I  am not  go ing  to  take  th is  s ta tement  because 

i t  i s  a l leged ly  repor ted  by  the  paper  and I  to ld  the  

Cha i rperson tha t  Par l iamentary  presenta t ions are  in  a  

documenta ry  fo rm.   So i f  tha t  s ta tement  wh ich  I  made f rom 

Par l iament  was to  be  quoted then  I  wou ld  e i the r  agree or  

d isagree.    

But  I  cannot  comment  on  s ta tements  wh ich  a re  20 

a l leged ly  coming f rom the  paper  and a re  then sa id  to  your  

Cha i rperson I  wou ld  be  very  consc ious as  in  te rms o f  my  

own t ra in ing  no t  to  pu t  the  word  a l l ege.   Ja  so  tha t  was my  

answer.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  thank you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Can I  take  tha t  to  mean tha t  you are  

say ing  you do not  want  to  commi t  yourse l f  as  to  whethe r  

you were  co r rec t l y  repor ted  to  say  you have –  you accept  

th is?   But  you  say there  wou ld  be  some document  

somewhere  wh ich  re f lec ts  what  you  sa id .  

MR MANTSHA:   Indeed Cha i rpe rson tha t  i s  what  I  am 

say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  what  you are  say ing .   Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now what  Ms Wale le  says  on  the  10 

fo l low ing page i s  tha t  th is  i s  un for tunate  because i t  

ind ica tes  a  v iew on your  par t  and on the  par t  o f  Dene l  tha t  

her  c l ien t s  –  the  th ree  i nd i v idua ls  have a l ready been found  

gu i l t y  be fore  even hav ing  a  hear ing .   What  do  you say to  

tha t?    

There  was no response tha t  we are  aware  o f  f rom 

Dene l ’s  cor respondence to  tha t  le t te r  to  say no  in  fac t  Mr  

Mantsha  d id  no t  say  tha t  in  Par l iament  o r  to  say no  there  is  

no  dec i s ion  a l ready taken by  Dene l  as  to  your  gu i l t .  

MR MANTSHA:   Cha i rperson w i th  respect  th is  le t te r  i s  20 

addressed to  the  then a t to rney o f  the  Dene l  a t  the  t ime  

whom I  have no  doubt  was competent  to  dea l  w i th  the  

mat te r.   And I  had no doubt  tha t  where  necessary  he  

responded to  cor respondences.   So … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  come c loser  to  the  m ic  so  I  can hear  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 8 of 301 
 

you.  

MR MANTSHA:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MANTSHA:   A l l  I  am say ing  is  the  le t te r  was addressed 

to  the  then a t to rney o f  Dene l  so  no t  e i ther  to  my board  or  

to  myse l f .   So what  –  whether  there  was a  rep l y  o r  no  rep ly  

i s  no t  a  mat te r  w i th in  my knowledge.   And whethe r  there  i s  

a  compla in t  tha t  these th ree  employees were  found gu i l t y  

be fore  the  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  took p lace – l i s ten  she was 

ent i t led  to  represent  these peop le  and she was ent i t led  to  10 

say whatever  she  sa id  bu t  a l l  I  can  say to  you is  th is  was  

never  b rought  to  my board ,  i t  was not  addressed to  my 

board  so  I  am not  go ing  to  comment .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   What  she then says in  her  le t te r  and  

you may have the  same answer  to  th is  tha t  i s  up  to  you 

whethe r  you want  to  comment  on  th is  bu t  I  be l ieve  fa i rness 

requ i res  tha t  I  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  what  she then records in  

parag raphs 4 ,  5  and 6  i s  a  concern  tha t  there  – her  c l ien ts  

had not  ye t  been  heard  and tha t  they were  requ i r i ng  she  

sa id  we ins i s t  tha t  the  d isc ip l ina ry  process tha t  your  c l ien t  20 

c la imed in  the  same fo rum tha t  was Par l iament  i s  underway 

is  convened or  a t  the  very  least  a  da te  i s  agreed upon fo r  

i t  so  tha t  the  mat te r  can be f ina l i sed.    

Were  you aware  tha t  the  th ree  o f f i c ia ls  who were  

s t i l l  on  suspens ion  on fu l l  pay  th rough the i r  a t to rney were  
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repeated ly  th rough the i r  a t to rney  in  the  cor respondence  

say ing  we have  not  been heard ,  we want  to  be  heard  

p lease wou ld  you get  on  and convene the  inqu i ry.   Were  

you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Cha i rperson aga in  I  th ink  we must  

d is t ingu ish  the  ro le  o f  the  board  and the  ro le  o f  the 

execut ives  inc lud ing  the  lega l  depar tment  o f  Dene l .   The  

lega l  depar tment  o f  the  company  w i th  the  execut ive  they  

were  in  communica t ion  w i th  the i r  a t to rneys who were  

rep resent ing  Dene l  a t  the  t ime and I  do  no t  th ink  the  10 

a t to rneys o f  Dene l  a t  the  t ime were  no t  respond ing  to  the  

cor respondence.   

But  what  you do  not  have Cha i rperson you do not  

have a  cor respondence f rom Dene l  a t to rneys a t  the  t ime  

address in  rep ly  to  th is  wh ich  o f  course  have g i ven the  

reasons.   But  be  tha t  as  i t  may Cha i rperson o f  course  is  –  I  

am not  t ry ing  to  say –  to  suggest  anyth ing  bu t  i t  i s  one 

th ing  to  p resent  cor respondences  f rom one par ty  and you 

do not  p resent  cor respondences f rom the  o ther  pa r ty.  And 

the  co r respondences tha t  we dea l ing  w i th  here  is  20 

cor respondence to  the  a t to rneys o f  the  company.    

I  am sure  the  company wou ld  p robab ly  maybe have  

the  records or  maybe the  a t to rney in  quest ion  have the  

record .   But  repeatab le  as  they are  I  do  no t  th ink  they were  

no t  respond ing  to  cor respondence.   Whatever  answers  they 
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have g i ven I  cannot  say  because I  do  no t  have tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  bu t  the  quest ion  is  i r respec t ive  o f  

whethe r  Dene l ’s  a t to rneys d id  or  d id  no t  respond  to  the  

execut ives ’ a t to rneys the  quest ion  is  whether  you were  

aware  on  the  bas is  o f  whatever  source  wh ich  cou ld  we l l  be  

the  lega l  depar tment  o f  Dene l  te l l ing  you as  Cha i rperson o f  

the  board  o r  the  a t to rneys i f  they  had d i rec t  communica t ion  

w i th  you as  Cha i rperson o f  the  board  00 :12:18 whether  you  

were  aware  tha t  the  execut ives ,  the  suspended execut ives ’ 

pos i t ion  was repeated ly  conveyed as  be ing  tha t  they 10 

wanted the  d i sc ip l inary  hear ing  to  take  p lace.    

MR MANTSHA:   Cha i rperson what  I  knew a t  the  t ime was 

the  mat te rs  was not  conc luded.   The a t tempt  fo r  med ia t ion  

fa i led  and these d isc ip l ina ry  proceed ings were  s t i l l  

pend ing .   I  was not  p r ivy  to  the  to  and f ro  communica t ion  

be tween the  respect ive  lawyers  o f  the  par t ies  concerned.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   I s  tha t  answer  to  say you were  no t  

aware  tha t  the  suspended execut ives  repeated ly  sa id  

th rough the i r  a t to rneys we wan t  a –  the  d isc ip l inary  

hear ing  to  take  p lace tak ing  tha t  pos i t ion  and convey ing  20 

tha t  pos i t ion  over  … 

MR MANTSHA:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A number  o f  months .  

MR MANTSHA:   I  –  I  –  i f  I  can  t ry  to  reca l l  o f  course  there  

were  communica t ion  f rom probab ly  the  lega l  team to  the  
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execut ive  –  execut ive  to  the  board  about  these processes  

but  what  I  cannot  te l l  you  is  what  was sa id  a t  the  t ime.   But  

what  I  can te l l  you  now is  tha t  I  do  no t  remember  be ing  

to ld  tha t  they –  are  these co r respondences were  they  

ins is tence p lease  do  th is ,  p lease do th is .   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Maybe –  maybe th is  i s  the  r igh t  t ime 

fo r  me to  say th is .   I  wou ld  have expected tha t  in  the  l igh t  

o f  the  sen ior i t y  o f  the  execut ives  who were  suspended  tha t  

the  board  wou ld  be  qu i te  invo lved  in  te rms o f  the  process 

fo r  the  d isc ip l ina ry  process and the  prepara t ions fo r  the 10 

d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing  and the  suspens ion  tha t  i s  what  I  

wou ld  expect  s imp ly  because o f  the  sen ior i t y  o f  the  peop le  

invo l ved inc lud ing  the  execut ives .    

I t  wou ld  have been d i f fe ren t  i f  one was ta lk ing  

about  lower  management  and so  on .   But  the  – the  fa te  o f  

the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  o f  any organ isa t ion  wou ld  be  in  the 

hands o f  the  board  I  wou ld  imag ine  and there fore  I  wou ld  

expect  tha t  even the  in te rna l  lega l  depar tment  i f  they  were  

hand l ing  tha t  they wou ld  be  repor t ing  to  –  to  the  board  and  

tak ing  i ns t ruc t ions in  quotes  as  a t to rneys wou ld  do  f rom 20 

dec l ine  because  they shou ld  no t  do  anyth ing  tha t  i s  

cont rary  to  what  the  board  maybe want ing  to  be  done.  And 

they wou ld  be  –  I  wou ld  be  expect ing  tha t  they  ac t  as  

adv isors  to  the  board  bu t  they a re  no t  –  they wou ld  no t  be  

the  dec is ion  makers .    
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The dec is ion  makers  wou ld  be  the  board .   They  

wou ld  jus t  adv i se .   Would  th is  approach be  lega l l y  

de fens ib le ,  wou ld  tha t  approach be tenab le  in  law but  in  

the  end the  dec i s ion  makers  wou ld  be  the  board .   That  i s  

what  I  wou ld  have expected.    

But  f rom what  you sa id  las t  t ime and maybe tha t  is  

what  you s t i l l  say  today tha t  i s  no t  how i t  happened.   In  

th is  case the  lega l  depar tment  d id  no t  so  to  speak take  

ins t ruc t ions f rom the  board  or  f rom you in  regard  to  the  

hand l ing  o f  the  d i sc ip l inary  process.  10 

MR MANTSHA:   Okay Cha i rperson maybe le t  me put  th is  in  

p roper  contex t .   The –  the  board  has taken a  dec i s ion  

wh ich  i t  had to  be  imp lemented.   In  te rms o f  –  o f  course  

governance the  dec is ions o f  the  board  they are  

imp lemented by  var ious funct ions and th is  spec i f i c  dec is ion  

the  funct ionar ies  invo lved the  HR depar tment ,  the  lega l  

depar tment  and o f  cou rse  in  te rms o f  the  p ro toco l  they 

repor t  to  whoever  i s  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive .   So the  dec is ion  

was Cha i r  the  imp lementa t ion  is  done by  those 

funct ionar ies .    20 

Those funct ionar ies  w i l l  repor t  as  they execute  or  

imp lement  the  dec is ion .   But  aga in  what  you do not  have is  

any o f  the  repor ts  f rom those funct ionar ies  th rough the  

board  tha t  says th is  i s  what  happened,  th is  i s  what  no t  

happened.   So to  then ask me a lmost  four  yea rs  down the  
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l i ne  –  f i ve  years  down the  l ine  o f  course  I  wou ld  no t  have 

you know tha t  in fo rmat ion  in  te rms  o f  what  was i t  fo r.   And 

maybe to  c rea te  the  impress ion  as  you were  t ry ing  to  re la te  

to  me the  board  d id  no t  jus t  –  took a  dec i s ion  and wa lked  

away.    

The board  du ly  expected the  management  to  

p rocess in  te rms  o f  the  governance o f  the  company and  

there  were  in te rac t ions be tween the  board  and the  peop le  

who were  invo lved.   There  were  d i sp leasure  as  I  ind ica ted  

prev ious l y  tha t  the  board  expressed about  th is  p rocess bu t  10 

o f  cou rse  he do not  have you know tha t  in fo rmat ion .    

That  in fo rmat ion  is  no t  w i th in  my cont ro l  i t  i s  w i th in  

the  company tha t  i s  fo r  sure  because aga in  the  ac t ions o f  

the  board  a re  th rough the  m inutes  and the  m inutes  wou ld  

say exact ly  there  was a  repor t  by  Group Lega l ,  there  was a  

repor t  by  th is  one,  HR and these o ther  00 :18 :50.   So those 

repor ts  wou ld  be  there  and aga in  I  repeat  what  I  kept  on  

emphas ise  th roughout  f rom the  beg inn ing  o f  my ev idence 

the  board  was overwhe lmed by  the  b igger  i ssue.    

I  unders tand the  pos i t ion  o f  a  Ch ie f  Execut ive  20 

Off i cer  bu t  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime the  board  was overwhe lmed  

by  the  s i tua t ion  where  the  count ry  cou ld  f ind  i t se l f  in  the 

ser ious cr i s is  because there  wou ld  have been a  de fau l t  by  

the  s ta te  owned company and tha t  wou ld  have meant  tha t  

o ther  learners  to  o ther  compan ies  s ta te  owned compan ies  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 14 of 301 
 

m igh t  reca l l  there fore .   So tha t  was an issue o f  marg ina l  

impor tance wh ich  the  board  was p reoccup ied .    

But  I  am not  say ing  the  board  was  not  ser ious abou t  

th is  mat te r.   Yes there  were  repor ts  wh ich  were  g i ven and I  

am sure  the  records  o f  the  company w i l l  revea l  in  every  

e i ther  meet ing  o f  Aud i t  and R isk .   What  were  the  repor ts  

g iven as  00 :20:05 o f  these suspens ions? What  the  lawyers  

were  say ing .   I  am sure  those repor ts  a re  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Le t  me say  10 

immedia te ly  Mr  Mantsha  I  do  unders tand i t  i s  some years  

a f te rwards and I  cannot  reasonab ly  expect  you to  reca l l  

every  las t  de ta i l  and tha t  i s  why I  th ink  most  o f  my 

quest ions in  the  l as t  few minutes  have been –  have s tar ted  

w i th  do  you reca l l  whether  there  was a  response – do  you 

reca l l  why there  was a  de lay  e tce te ra  and tha t  i s  rea l l y  

what  we a re  a f te r.   And i f  you cannot  remember  you must  

say  I  cannot  remember.    

What  I  can take  and so r ry  jus t  the  o ther  po in t  tha t  I  

jus t  want  to  d raw your  a t ten t ion  in  response to  one  o f  the  20 

comments  you made.   You sa id  a l l  tha t  has been presented  

to  you are  the  le t te rs  f rom the  execut ives ,  a t to rneys and  

there  a re  no  –  there  a re  no  le t te rs  tha t  we have p roduced  

f rom the  a t to rneys ac t ing  fo r  Dene l  a t  the  t ime –  C l i f fe  

Decker.    
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In  fac t  th is  bund le  inc ludes var ious le t te rs  f rom 

Cl i f fe  Decker  f rom Mr  Ade l  Pa te l  some o f  wh ich  are  

re levant  to  what  we have –  what  we are  dea l ing  w i th .   

Some were  in  fac t  ra ised on the  las t  occas ion  I  be l ieve  but  

we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  a  few o f  –  o f  the  cruc ia l  le t te rs  in  

tha t  regard  f rom Cl i f fe  Decker.    

So there  is  no  se lec t i v i t y  cer ta in l y  no t  on  the  pa r t  o f  

the  commiss ion  and i t s  invest iga tors  and lega l  teams we 

have repeated ly  asked Dene l  fo r  a l l  the  documenta t ion  and  

we have p roduced to  the  commiss ion  in  the  fo rm  o f  the  10 

bund les  tha t  have admi t ted  by  the  Cha i rperson  a l l  the 

re levant  documents  tha t  seemed to  be  mater ia l .  

 But  may I  now take you Mr  Mantsha to  a  le t te r  

wh ich  in  fac t  came f rom the  board  and in  fac t  came f rom 

yourse l f .   I f  I  can  ask  you in  the  same bund le  to  look  a t  

page 412 p lease?    That  i s  a  l e t te r  f rom Dene l  i t  i s  on 

Dene l  Group le t te rhead you have i t?  

MR MANTSHA:   I  do  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And on the  top  r igh t  hand s ide  jus t  

under  the  head ing  Dene l  Group  i t  i s  da ted  the  17 t h  o f  20 

March 2016.   You see tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:   I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And we see your  name and what  

appears  to  be  your  s ignature  on  page 413.   I s  tha t  your  

s ignature?  
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MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t  thank you.   Do you reca l l  tha t  

you sent  th is  le t te r  i f  I  can  jus t  remind you we are  go ing  to  

look  a t  the  de ta i l  in  a  moment  bu t  th is  le t te r  e f fec t i ve ly  was  

say ing  the  board  has dec ided not  to  renew Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  

f i xed  te rm cont rac t  when i t  exp i red .   You remember  tha t  

dec is ion  was taken by  your  board?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do  remember.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   And th is  i s  the  le t te r  i n  wh ich 

you reco rded th i s  and jus t  –  jus t  i f  you  go back to  your  10 

s ignature  and name on page 413 we see tha t  i t  i s  t yped cc  

Zar ina  Wale le  A t to rneys so  she was cc ’d  –  she was  cop ied  

in  on  th is  le t te r.  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And wh ich  was –  wh ich  was 

addressed to  Mr  Sa loo jee  persona l ly  on  page 412 but  qu i te  

cor rec t l y  you or  the  peop le  who were  prepar ing  th is  le t te r  

and adv i s ing  you  qu i te  cor rec t l y  as  a  mat te r  o f  cour tesy  

addressed a  copy  a lso  to  Ms Wale le .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  20 

REGISTRAR:   R igh t  thank you.   Now le t  us  jus t  look  a t  a  

coup le  o f  the  paragraphs o f  your  le t te r.   I t  i s  headed 

Terminat ion  o f  Employment  Re la t ionsh ip  Group  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Off i cer  Pos i t ion  a t  Dene l .   Now i f  we can jus t  

remind ourse lves  where  we are  in  the  sequence.    Th i s  i s  
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the  17 t h  o f  March  2016 Mr  Sa loo jee  had as  we have heard  

much ev idence on be ing  suspended about  s ix  months  

be fore  tha t  in  September,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   September  2015 and they had then  

rece ived a  charge sheet  say ing  they were  go ing  to  be 

d isc ip l ined.   They were  suspended pend ing  tha t  

d isc ip l ina ry  process and we have seen le t te rs  where  there  

is  a  compla in t  tha t  there  i s  a  de lay  in  the  d isc ip l inary  why  

are  you not  conven ing  i t?   And why are  you not  send ing  us  10 

documents?   You have dea l t  w i th  a l l  o f  tha t .   Now your  

le t te r  does not  say  we are  go ing  to  now ho ld  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  i t  i s  –  i t  dea ls  w i th  anothe r  mat te r.  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And tha t  i s  the  te rm inat ion  o f  the  

employment  re la t ionsh ip  no t  th rough the  d i sc ip l ina ry  

process,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You cou ld  have p roceeded w i th  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  p rocess a t  leas t  in  theory,  he ld  i t  i f  you  had 20 

substance –  i f  Dene l  had substance to  the  charges and  

persuaded the  independent  Cha i rperson tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  

was gu i l t y  he  m ight  have been d ismissed a t  the  end o f  that  

p rocess bu t  here  you were  say ing  tha t  you are  te rm inat ing  

the  re la t ionsh ip  on  a  d i f fe ren t  bas i s  –  on  a  con t rac tua l  
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bas is .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now you say in  pa ragraph 1   

“The above mat te r  re fe rs  to :   The board  is  

o f  the  v iew –  th is  i s  Mr  Sa loo jee  tha t  –  

sor ry  tha t  you r  –  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  cont rac t  o f  

employment  was not  va l id  ex tended as  per  

the  PFMA.   Never the less  your  a l leged  

cur ren t  f i xed  te rm cont rac t  o f  employment  

te rm inates  on  31 January  2017  10 

notw i ths tand ing  your  cur ren t  suspens ion  as  

the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  wh ich  

was e f fec t i ve  f rom the  23 r d  o f  September  

2015. ”  

 Now th is  conta ins  qu i te  a  number  o f  e lements  to  i t  

bu t  jus t  to  unpack i t  essent ia l l y  what  you are  say ing  is  

there  is  doubt  as  to  whether  in  fac t  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  cur ren t  

cont rac t  had been va l id ly  ex tended but  desp i te  that  

reserva t ion  you had dec ided as  board  tha t  i f  there  was a  

cont rac t  a t  a l l  s t i l l  i n  ex is tence i t  was go ing  to  exp i re  on  20 

the  31 s t  o f  January  2017 and i t  wou ld  no t  be  ex tended.   I s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And then you say th is : :  

“The a l leged ac ts  o f  m isconduct  a re  v iewed  
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in  a  ser ious l igh t  and as  a  resu l t  the  t rus t  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  board  and yourse l f  

has i r re t r ievab ly  b roken down. ”  

 Now as I  unders tand i t  in  contex t  you re fer r i ng  

there  bu t  co r rec t  me i f  I  am wrong the  a l leged ac ts  o f  

m isconduct  a re  the  a l leged ac ts  o f  m isconduct  accord ing  to  

the  charge sheet  wh ich  was a l ready issued to  them for  a  

d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  tha t  was pend ing .   I s  tha t  r igh t?   

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You not  re fe r r ing  to  o the r  a l leged 10 

ac ts .   Cor rec t .   Now I  jus t  want  to  ask  you and  le t  me 

exp la in  the  re levance upf ron t  so  tha t  we know where  we 

go ing .    

I  am ra is ing  the  next  se r ies  o f  quest ions rea l l y  t o  

dea l  w i th  the  ev idence tha t  the  commiss ion  has heard  f rom 

Mr  Sa loo jee  and a  commiss ioned Cha i rperson w i l l  

obv ious ly  w i th  respect  have to  we igh  up a l l  the  ev idence  

f rom Mr  Sa loo jee  and f rom yourse l f  and anybody e l se  who 

may tes t i f y  in  th is  regard .    

Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  vers ion  is  one tha t  pa in ts  a  very  20 

negat ive  p ic tu re  about  the  board  and you in  par t i cu la r  in  

re la t ion  to  why he was suspended and why and  how h is  

employment  was te rm inated.   And  you w i l l  reca l l  because  

as  you have con f i rmed prev ious ly  you have seen a t  leas t  

par t s  o f  the  ev idence tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  p rov ided  to  the  
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commiss ion  prev ious ly.    

You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  ev idence and I  

hope I  do  jus t i ce  by  way o f  summary is  tha t  there  was a  

s in is te r  pu rpose  to  the  suspens ion ,  the  d isc ip l inary  

charges,  the  fa i lu re  to  ho ld  a  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  and 

u l t imate ly  to  te rm inate  the  re la t ionsh ip  in te r  a l ia  in  te rms  

o f  th is  le t te r.    

And the  –  a  tex t  tha t  he  has rea l l y  p roposed as  i t  

were  a  mot ion  tha t  he  has posed – proposed  to  the 

Cha i rperson is  tha t  what  you were  rea l l y  do ing ,  you Mr  10 

Mantsha as  Cha i rperson and those  who ac ted  w i th  you was 

rea l l y  to  ge t  h im  out  o f  the  organ isa t ion  on  a  p re tex t  tha t  

the  charges aga ins t  h im were  a  pre tex t ,  cha rges about  

m is lead ing  the  board  a t  the  f i rs t  board  meet ing  e tce te ra  

was a l l  a  p re tex t  and tha t  in  fac t  you were  t r y ing  to  

cont r i ve  a  fa lse  bas i s  to  ge t  r id  o f  h im and the  rea l  purpose  

was because he  was perce ived as  be ing  somebody who 

wou ld  no t  fac i l i ta te  the  award ing  o f  cont rac ts  to  the  Gupta  

bus iness cong lomera te .    

You reca l l  tha t  tha t  was essent ia l l y  I  hope I  d id  20 

jus t i ce  to  h is  ve rs ion  bu t  I  am t ry ing  to  g ive  as  br ie f  as  I  

can.   So tha t  i s  h is  theory  tha t  he  has pu t  be fore  or  v iew or  

op in ion  tha t  he  has pu t  be fo re  the  Cha i rperson.   Now you  

f inuous ly  [? ]  d isagree w i th  tha t  you have a l ready sa id  tha t  

on  the  prev ious occas ion .   Cor rec t?  
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MR MANTSHA:   Ja  Cha i rperson shou ld  I  jus t  say  

someth ing?  Look I  am go ing  to  repeat  myse l f .   Mr  

Sa loo jee  had  no prob lem wi th  Mr  Essa because Mr  

Sa loo jee  negot ia ted  tha t  Mr  Essa buys th ree  00:29:30 th is  

i s  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  te l l  –  I  to ld  h im before  tha t  I  had 

reason.    

Mr  Sa loo jee  was  work ing  w i th  Mr  Essa and I  sa id  to  the 

commiss ion  I  am not  say ing  anyth ing  beyond tha t .   The 

repor ts  wh ich  are  tab led  be fore  th is  commiss ion  the  BBO 

repor t  they d id  in fo rm th is  commiss ion  tha t  the  10 

invest iga t ion  was  tha t  the  en t ry  o f  VR Laser  and to  Dene l  

was not  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [Speaker ’s  vo ice  d rops –  unc lear ]  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Was not?  

MR MANTSHA :    Was not  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

[Speaker ’s  vo ice  drops –  unc lea r ]  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    And there fo re ,  tha t  tak ing  ac t i ons and 

those execut ives  who were  invo lved w i th .   And i t  i s  be fore  

th is  Commiss ion ,  the  ev idence f rom the  so-ca l led  peop le  

imp l ica ted  in  s ign ing  the  f i rs t ,  I  th ink  they ca l l  i t  20 

memorandum o r  whatever  the  case is .   Wesse l  to ld  th is  

Commiss ion  tha t  he  was to ld  by  Mr  Sa loo jee  tha t  we need  

to  work  w i th  VR Laser (?)   He gave h is  reasons what  he  was 

ca l led  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

[Speaker ’s  vo ice  drops –  unc lea r ]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  we need to  work  w i th . . .?  

MR MANTSHA :    They need to  work  w i th  VR Laser.   Yes.   

Mr  Burger  the  same.   Mr  Ntshepe  the  same.   So I  do  no t  

th ink  i t  i s  go ing  to  he lp  us  tha t  I  must  keep on repeat ing  

my answers  because quest ions a re  asked . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   Mr  Mantsha,  no .  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Kennedy ’s  quest ion  i s  no t  the  one  

you are  address ing .   H is  quest ion  is :   What  do  you say to  

Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  ev idence tha t  you  or  the  board  o f  Dene l  10 

suspended h im,  no t  because o f  any proper  g rounds but  

because o f  some o ther  agenda because you suspended h im 

on the  bas i s  o f  a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  in  September.   

He was ready fo r  a  long t ime fo r  a  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry.    

 You made approaches to  h im to t ry  and reso lve  

the  mat te r  by  pay ing  h im money –  by  pay ing  them money.   

They re jec ted  tha t .   They sa id :   We wanted a  d isc ip l ina ry  

inqu i ry  because we want  to  c lea r  our  names.   When the re  

was supposed to  be  an  inqu i ry,  you,  Dene l ,  p roposed  

media t ion  and he sa id  a t  the  med ia t ion  they took the  20 

pos i t ion  tha t  they want  a  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry  to  c lear  the i r  

names.    

 And tha t  i s  why  the  med ia t ion  fa i led  because 

tha t  i s  what  -  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .   And i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  they 

asked fo r  some documents  as  we l l .   Now you w i l l  remember  
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f rom las t  t ime tha t  the  ev idence revea led  tha t  somet ime in  

December  you had made –  the re  was –  Dene l  made an  

o f fe r.   I  do  no t  know whether  i t  was fo r  th ree  months ’ 

payment ,  jus t  be fore  he  charges were  –  the  charge sheet  

was se t .   I f  I  am not  m is taken.    

 And then now we have a  le t te r,  a  number  o f  

months ,  th ree  months  a f te r  tha t  in  March f rom –  ja ,  in  

March f rom you .   The le t te r  tha t  we are  look ing  a t ,  

17  March.   Where ,  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  you sa id ,  r igh t  f rom 

the  beg inn ing  when you suspended,  Dene l  had  s t rong 10 

ev idence in  March 2016.    

 You s t i l l  do  no t  want  to  use tha t  s t rong ev idence  

and  have a  d isc ip l inary  hear ing .   And i f  he  i s  as  gu i l t y  as  

you say you thought  he  was in  te rms o f  the  ev idence,  ge t  

h im d ismissed w i thout  h im be ing  pa id  fo r  so  many  months  

bu t  you a re  o f fe r i ng  to  le t  h im be pa id  fo r  maybe someth ing  

l i ke  e igh t ,  n ine  months .   Somebody tha t  you be l ieve  i s  

gu i l t y  o f  most  ser ious m isconduct .    

 So  I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  in  your  in te res t  to  address 

tha t  i ssue proper ly  because I  am very  in te res ted  to  hear  20 

your  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  on  tha t .   Because to  me,  on  the  face  

o f  i t ,  there  seems to  be  a  prob lem when the  employer  says:   

I  have s t rong ev idence showing misconduct ,  ser ious 

m isconduct  by  th is  employee.   So I  suspend h im in  o rde r  to  

fo r  a  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry.    
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 And s ix  months  la te r,  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  there  

is  s t rong ev idence,  there  is  no  inqu i ry.   And on the  

ev idence tha t  I  have been to ld ,  the  employee  or  the  

employees keep on say ing :   B r ing  i t  on .   Le t  us  have the  

hear ing .   You know.   They do not  seem to  ask  fo r  any 

se t t lement  bu t  i t  i s  the  employer  tha t  keeps on come –  

approach ing  them for  a  se t t lement .    

 There  is  an  a l legat ion .   They say:   Accord ing  to  

the  ev idence,  we  want  a  hear ing .   In  March 2016,  you now 

say:   Yes,  your  contac t  –  t he  a l legat ions aga ins t  you are  10 

very  se r ious bu t  want  to  pay fo r  about  10-months.   Where  

you cou ld  say:   Come next  week fo r  a  hear ing .   We have go 

the  ev idence.   We be l ieve  tha t  you wou ld  be  found  gu i l t y.   

And then you do not  have to  pay h im fo r  10-months.    

 So I  jus t  want  to  say.   I t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  you 

address tha t  because on the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  ca l l s  fo r  an  

exp lanat ion  to  say:   I f  you  have got  ev idence and you  

be l ieve  i t  i s  s t rong ev idence,  why do you –  have  you not  

have an inqu i ry  fo r  so  long?   

 So I  am ment ion ing  th is  you because i t  i s  20 

impor tan t  tha t  you know some o f  the  th ings tha t  a re  

caus ing  me concern  so  tha t  you can address them head on.   

That  i s  the  pu rpose.  

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  thank you very  much.   

A l l  I  am t ry ing  to  do  be fore  you is  to  ac tua l l y  g ive  you the  
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con tex t  because  the  po in t ,  the  ev idence is  d r iv ing  to ,  i s  

tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  wou ld  be  an obstac le  in  te rms  o f  the  

Dene l  As ia .    

 I  am say ing  th i s  because when I  g ive  you tha t  

background,  i t  i s  s imp ly  because he was not  an  obs tac le  to  

VR Laser  because he got  VR Laser  to  Dene l .   So one  

cannot  say  tha t  the  charges had someth ing  to  do  w i th  VR 

Laser  because he  brought  i t .    

 So  to  then suggest  tha t  the  charges had to  do  

w i th  Dene l  As ia ,  I  am then t ry ing  to  g ive  you tha t  10 

background.   Tha t  i s  nonsense.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no .   I f  you  put  i t  l i ke  tha t ,  I  

unders tand the  background.    

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So . . . so . . .   You must  ca r ry  on .   Ja .  

MR MANTSHA :    So  a l l  I  am t ry ing  to  say . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You w i l l  have to  dea l  w i th  tha t .   So but  

tha t  background is  good.  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  u l t imate ly,  I  must  l i s ten  to  eve ry th ing  20 

you have to  say.  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.   So a l l  wha t  I  am say ing  is .   To  say 

these charges have anyth ing  to  do  w i th  the  dec is ion  wh ich  

was ended up tak ing  o f  –  tak ing  Mr  Essa as  a  pa r tner  to  

Dene l  As ia .   You know,  th is  i s  what  I  want  to  address,  to  
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say  he  had a  longstand ing  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Essa.   He 

made a  lo t  o f  e f fo r ts  to  ge t  Mr  Essa to  Dene l .   I  reca l l  when 

we were  i n  London,  he  d id  p leaded  w i th  me when he  was in  

conf idence,  te l l ing  me some o f  the  e f fo r ts  he  had made to  

ass is t  Mr  Essa.    

 But  he  has a lways sa id  to  me:   We l l ,  th is  i s  what  

I  have done.   But  in  te rms o f  the  unders tand ing  o f  us  as  a  

board  and my unders tand ing ,  the  de fence in  th i s  count ry  i s  

an  indust ry  where  there  are  no  b lack  p layers  and  par t  o f  

the  mandate  f rom the  shareho lder  whose government  to  10 

Dene l  i s  tha t :   P lease t ransform the  indust ry.   We want  to 

see b lack  supp l ie rs  on  the  main  bus iness o f  Dene l .   Not  to  

supp ly  to i le t  paper  and what  have you.    

 So VR Laser,  acco rd ing  to  what  has been  

presented and accord ing  to  what  Mr  Sa loo jee  sa id ,  i t  was  

tha t  b lack  empowerment  par tner  wh ich  p lays  in  the  space 

o f  Dene l ’s  ma in  bus iness and i t  was the  on ly  b lack  

company as  i t  was presented to  us .    

 So in  shor t .   A l l  I  am t ry ing  to  d r ive  to  i s  tha t ,  

there  was no any  o ther  mot ive  to  pu t  these charges aga ins t  20 

Mr  Sa loo jee  and  h is  two co-employees.   The on ly  mot ive  

was the  m isconduct  commi t ted .   I  reca l l ,  I  th ink  my dea l ing  

w i th  h im in  London,  a f te r  the  emai l  he  came to  me,  he  

came to  my room and he rea l l y  p leaded w i th  me tha t  he  

shou ld  no t  be  f i red .    
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 And tha t  was the  very  same day when the re  was 

a  ca l l  f rom the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  to  say:   We are  

no t  g i ven  access to  the  commi t tee  rooms to  have our  

meet ing  to  d iscuss the  invest i ga t ion  about  tha t  LLS 

t ransact ion .   So he p leaded w i th  me to  say:   Cha i r,  p lease  

pro tec t  me.   I  shou ld  no t  be  f i red .    

 And w i th  respect ,  I  was very  t roub led  to  see h im 

cry ing  and to  see h im p lead ing  because a t  tha t  t ime,  he  

rea l i sed tha t  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween h imse l f  and the  

board ,  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  LLS t ransact ion  was b roken.   And 10 

the  on ly  th ing  he  cou ld  do  was to  p lead tha t  I  t ry  to  f ind  a  

m idd le -ground be tween h im and the  board .    

 And someth ing ,  as  I  sa id  to  you when I  s ta r ted  

th is  ev idence,  I  had a  very  good  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  h im.   I  

th ink  we l i ked  one anothe r.   So i t  t roub led  me.   I  d id  no t  

s leep tha t  n igh t .    

 So  when I  go t  back home,  I  t r ied  to  see i f  there  

i s  any o ther  way we can avo id  suspens ions and con f l i c t  but  

the  ev idence was such  tha t  i t  was d i f f i cu l t  because 

Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Mkhonth lo ,  they went  to  conc lude a  6-20 

months  or  5 -months  a  b r idg ing  f inance cont rac t  w i th  

Nedbank wh i le  the  Min i s te r  o f  F inance and the  Min is te r  o f  

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses  had approved a  fac i l i t y  fo r  f i ve  years .    

 And what  compl ica ted  the  mat te r  fu r ther  was  

tha t .   We d id  no t  have the  money.  We d id  no t  have the  450 
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to  pay.   So i t  was imposs ib le  to  then t ry  t o  s tay  o f f  the  

eminent  d isc ip l inary  p roceed ings aga ins t  h im.   So the  on ly  

reason,  the  on ly  reason why he was suspended.   I t  was  

s imp ly  because  o f  the  m isconduct  in  regard  to  tha t  

t ransact ion .    

 He d id  no t  comply  w i th  in  te rms o f  the  approva l  

o f  the  Min i s te r  o f  F inance and f rom the  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises .   No one,  be tween those two o f f i ces ,  knew tha t  

Dene l  had to  pay 450 w i th in  6 -months .    

 When the  mat te r  was repor ted  to  the  Execut ive  10 

Author i t y.   The  Execut ive  Author i t y  then imp lo red the  

board :   P lease f ind  a  so lu t ion  because i f  you do no t  then i t  

i s  go ing  to  be  ca tas t roph ic  because o the r  bond ho lders  w i l l  

pu l l  and w i l l  demand the i r  money and the re  w i l l  be  a  c ross-

defau l t .   So tha t  was a  c lear  ins t ruc t ion  to  say reso lve  th is .    

 And I  can te l l  you ,  a t  tha t  po in t ,  most  members  

o f  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  and some members  o f  the  

board ,  they wanted to  res ign  because they fe l t  tha t  they 

were  be ing ,  so  to  speak,  under  the  bus.   That  the 

appo in tments  fo r  the  board ,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  an  appo in tment  o f  20 

a  s ink ing  sh ip .    

 So I  had to  t ry  to  ge t  board  members  there .   To  

ge t  board  members  to  work  ve ry  hard  w i th  the  Execut ive .   

To  t ry  and conv ince Nedbank wh ich  was very  angry.   As  I  

have ind ica ted  before .   Immedia te ly  they rea l i sed tha t  
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apa r t  f rom the  fac t  there  were  the  t ransact iona l  adv isor  to  

Dene l  when Dene l  was acqu i r ing  th is  asset .   Dene l  gave 

ABSA Bank R 400 mi l l ion  in  case,  as  a  secur i t y,  and they  

were  g i ven noth ing .    

 So a t  tha t  po in t ,  they  d id  no t  want  to  hear  

anyth ing  because  they fe l t  they  were  doomed.   And a t  tha t  

po in t ,  the  Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises  c lear l y  se t  the  

cond i t ion :   P lease do not  conf l i c t  the  two banks because  

you are  go ing  to  ask  th is  money f rom the  two banks .    

 So i t  was a  d i f f i cu l t  s i tua t ion  fo r  me as  the  10 

leader  o f  the  organ isa t ion  to  t ry  to  see how I  can get  a  

m idd le -ground be tween Mr  Sa loo jee  and the  board  and a lso  

to  ge t  the  board  members  to  s tay  and not  to  res ign .   And 

get  the  board  to  t ry  to  ge t  some reso lu t ion  w i th  Nedbank.   

So i t  was qu i te  a  very  d i f f i cu l t  cha l lenge.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  what  you  have sa id  up  to  now 

Mr  Mantsha migh t  exp la in  cer ta in  th ings,  cer ta in ly,  sub jec t  

to  what  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  ev idence is  in  th is  regard  and  maybe 

o ther  peop le  i n  regard  to  h is  work ing  w i th  Mr  Essa,  as  you 

say.   That  m ight  be  one th ing .    20 

 But  no th ing  you have sa id  so  fa r  exp la ins  why 

the  board  when i t  had s t rong ev idence aga ins t  Mr  Sa loo jee  

and the  o ther  execut ives  in  September  2015 s t i l l  d id  no t  

have –  had not  pu t  togethe r  a  hear ing  by  March 2016.   So 

tha t . . .   I  hear  what  you say bu t  tha t  is  the  par t  I  am a lso  
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in te res ted  in .    

 I  am not  say ing  what  you have sa id  i s  i r re levant .   

Cer ta in ly,  the  par t  tha t  dea ls  w i th  Messrs  Essa and 

Sa loo jee  work ing  w i th  Essa is  qu i te  impor tan t .   And the  

o ther  pa r t  tha t  you sa id  a lso  m ight  exp la in  cer ta in  th ings 

bu t  I  jus t  want  to  make sure ,  do  no t  fo rge t  tha t  I  am 

in te res ted  on th is  aspect  as  we l l .  

MR MANTSHA :    Cha i rperson,  I  am actua l l y  happy  in  the 

sense tha t  I  am ta lk ing  to  someone who,  in  a  sense ,  a  very  

exper ienced and autho r i t y  on  the  labour  re la ted  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  am rus ted  on tha t .  

MR MANTSHA :    In  the  name o f  a  cha i rperson  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  I  am rus ted  on i t .   [ laughs ]  

MR MANTSHA :    So  Cha i rperson,  there  are ,  o f  course ,  two  

issues here  tha t  Cha i rperson has de l i vered severa l  t imes. . .  

in  te rms o f  the  substance.   Substant ive  i ssues and 

procedura l  i ssues.   I  do  unders tand the  Cha i rperson ’s  

concern  and to  sum up the  Cha i rperson ’s  concern  is :   20 

Look,  you say you have got  a  s t rong case but  you  do not  

p roceed to  f ina l i se  i t .    

 And I  th ink  a t  the  s ta r t ing  po in t ,  I  then sa id :   

Look,  we were  very  ove rwhe lmed.   We were  busy w i th  

o ther  mat te rs  o f  de fau l t .   We were  no t  happy w i th  the  
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Execut ive .   I  mean,  the  depar tment  concern  who was 

hand l ing  th i s  mat te r.    

 So .   But  the  fac t  tha t  the  procedura l  i ssues and  

substant ive  i ssues. . .  The substant ive  i ssues,  as  I  am 

say ing  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  tha t  there  was a  case – the 

ev idence –  I  mean,  the  ob jec t i ve  ev idence before  th i s  

Commiss ion ,  no t  f rom me and not  f rom Mr  Sa loo jee  but  

ob jec t i ve  ev idence f rom peop le  who had noth ing  to  do  w i th  

th is ,  who jus t  invest iga te  the  mat te r.    

 The ob jec t i ve  ev idence before  the  Commiss ion  is  10 

tha t :   Look,  where  we are  a t  the  moment ,  we are  t ry ing  

even to  work  the  in te res t  ra te  tha t  we had pa id  fo r  6 -

months  ve rsa  v ie  the  f i ve  year ’s  fee .   So the  ob jec t i ve  

ev idence before  the  Commiss ion  is  tha t ,  there  was  indeed  

a  se r ious m isconduct  by  th is  employee.    

 So the  issue tha t  the  Cha i rperson is  ra is ing  w i th  

me re la t ing  to  say:   You sa id  there  was a  ser ious breach  

but  the  d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing  is  no t  f ina l i sed . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  ac t  l i ke  somebody who 

be l ieves you have got  a  s t rong case.  20 

MR MANTSHA :    You do not  ac t .   Yes,  you do not  ac t  l i ke  

somebody who be l ieves tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA :    Bu t  Cha i rpe rson  is  we l l -aware  tha t  tha t  

does not  mean tha t  the  breaches  are  no t  se r ious because  
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there  was a  de lay  in  p rosecut ing  the  de lays .   I  th ink  we 

can c i te  a  lo t  o f  case law where  there  has been de lay  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no .   I  accept .   I  accept  tha t  you can 

have a  s i tua t ion  where  you have a  s t rong case  tha t  an 

employee is  gu i l t y  o f  m isconduct  bu t  you might  no t  fo l low 

procedura l  s teps  tha t  you are  supposed to  fo l low.   And I  

accept  tha t  jus t  because you do not  o r  you d id  no t  fo l low 

proper  p rocedure  does not  necessar i l y  mean tha t  on  

substance you do  not  have a  s t rong case.    10 

 But  what  I  am say ing  to  you,  as  you have a l so  

ind ica ted ,  i s  tha t ,  I  am say ing  what  one expects  f rom an 

employer  who be l ieves he  has a  s t rong case is  to  ac t  

p re t ty  fas t ,  you see?   

 Par t i cu la r ly  when you are  dea l ing  w i th  h igh  

execut ives .   Execut ive  who are  be ing  pa id  a  lo t  o f  money  

wh i le  s i t t ing  a t  home,  you know.   You do not  wan t  to  be  

pay ing  a  lo t  o f  money fo r  over  months  when you  do have 

the  ev idence.   You do not  have -  to  be  invest iga t ion .    

 I  mean,  i t  i s  d i f fe ren t  i f  you  must  s t i l l  20 

invest iga te .   When you do have the  ev idence,  once expects  

tha t  you wou ld  ac t  exped i t ious ly.   When you do  not  ac t  

exped i t ious ly,  one s ta r ts  look ing  fo r  insp i ra t ion ,  why?   

MR MANTSHA :    Exact ly  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because i f  there  i s  no  exp lana t ion ,  i t  
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may we l l  be  tha t  one s ta r ts  to  say :   D id  you rea l l y  have a  

s t rong case?  You see?  You w i l l  see  tha t  I  am not  say ing  

one w i l l  s ta r t  say ing  you do not  have a  case.  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  one wou ld  s ta r t  quest ion ing  because 

you are  no t  ac t ing  l i ke  somebody who be l ieved they had a  

s t rong case.   So.    

MR MANTSHA :    I  th ink ,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA :    . . . I  fu l l y  agree w i th  Cha i rperson on  tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA :    Bu t  Cha i rperson,  as  I  have ind ica ted  

ear l ie r.   I  am sure  the  board  m inutes  wou ld  ind ica te  the  

na ture  o f  repor ts  g iven about  th is  mat te r  and how the  

board  ac ted  in  those mat te rs . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MANTSHA :    I  th ink  you wou ld  see tha t  -  I  th ink  the  

person who was ac t ing  as  the  Company Secre tary  and a l so  

a  Group Lega l ,  a lso  had to  leave and in  the  process  

because o f  the  p ressure  f rom the  board ,  there  was some 20 

medica l  cond i t ion  because the  board  was not  happy.    

 And the  o ther  th ing  wh ich ,  o f  course ,  t r iggered 

the  –  apar t  f rom tha t  the  fac t  –  the  p rocess was dra in ing  

f rom our  po in t  o f  v iew but  there  was leak ing  o f  le t te rs .   The 

le t te r  tha t  we dea l t  w i th  las t  week,  the  le t te r  wh ich  was 
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add ressed to  the  ac t ing  Company Secre tary  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Company Secre tary.  

MR MANTSHA :    . . .and the  lega l  whatever.   That  le t te r  was 

leaked to  the  suspended employees.   That  i s  how they go t  

i t  because the  le t te r  was addressed to  her.   So.   And when 

an inc ident  l i ke  tha t  happens –  so  there  was a  ser ious 

rup tu re  w i th in  the  organ isa t ion  be tween her  and the  

Execut ive  and o ther  peop le  who  were  invo lved and the  

board .   How cou ld  a  communica t ion  be tween you end up  

w i th  the  suspended employees?   10 

 So the  impress ion  tha t  we fo rmed a t  the  t ime 

was tha t ,  o f  course ,  she was work ing  w i th  the  suspended 

employees.   We fe l t  tha t  a t  the  t ime she was de l ibera te ly  

d ragg ing  the  process because she probab ly  had a l l iance or  

a l leg iance to  the  suspended employees.   So tha t  was our  

impress ion  ou t  o f  a l l  the  dragg ing  and the  mat te r  no t  

a r r i v i ng  speed i l y  as  we thought .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA :    So  eventua l l y,  we  removed he r  f rom be ing 

Company Secre tary.   We got  somebody to  ac t  in  that  20 

pos i t ion  and la te r,  I  th ink ,  we go t  somebody to  ac t  as  a 

Group Lega l .   But  yes ,  there  was dragg ing  f rom wi th in .   

And as  fa r  as  we –  I  can remember  we d id  ac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 35 of 301 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Wel l ,  I  do  no t  th ink  f rom tha t  I  go t  

an  exp lanat ion  as  to  why w i th  t h is  s t rong ev idence the  

board  d id  no t  ac t  exped i t ious ly,  o ther  than tha t  you have 

sa id  tha t :   Wel l ,  the  board  was under  p ressure  because o f  

o ther  cha l lenges  and what  you  have jus t  about  the 

Company Secre ta ry.   I  do  no t  wan t  to  take  i t  fu r ther  bu t  I  

am jus t  say ing  tha t  i s  the  impress ion  I  ge t .  

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  i t  mat te rs  to  me Cha i rpe rson 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    How so?  10 

MR MANTSHA :    . . . the  impress ion  you have because what  I  

am t ry ing  to  say to  you.   In  te rms  o f  the  governance,  the  

board  cannot  p rocess i t .   These th ings are  processed by  

re levant  sec t ions. . .    

 And I  am say ing  to  you:   Yes,  cor rec t l y,  there  

was d ragg ing  but  tha t  d ragg ing  was not  by  the  board .   That  

d ragg ing  was by  the  o f f i c ia ls ,  as  I  ment ioned,  ac t ing  Group 

Company Secre ta ry  and the  ac t ing  Head o f  Lega l  and s teps 

were  taken aga ins t  tha t  person.   The person was removed.    

 And I  sa id  to  you .   I f  you  are  hav ing  the  m inutes  20 

o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  the  board  meet ings.  

MR MANTSHA :    . . .o f  the  board  meet ings.   Because 

remember,  th roughout  tha t  p rocess,  the  suspens ion  in  

many board  meet ings,  i t  was  a  s tand ing  issue fo r  
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repor t ing (?) .   What  i s  happen ing?  How far?   So the  mat te r  

was be ing  repor ted .   But  you know,  fo r  me to  ac tua l l y  make 

deta i led  exp lanat ion  to  say:   No,  you know,  th is  month ,  th is  

i s  what  happened .   That  month ,  th is  i s  what  happened.    

 The person who was fu l l - t ime dea l ing  w i th  tha t  

mat te r  wou ld  be  ab le  to  exp la in .   How d id  he  do th i s?   Why 

th is  was not  done  in  t ime?  But  the  dec is ion  we took ,  i t  had 

to  be  imp lemented by  those peop le .   So I  do  no t  th ink  I  can 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Take i t  fu r ther.  10 

MR MANTSHA :    . . . say  more  than tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   No,  no .   That  i s  f ine .   I  jus t  want  

to  say th i s  because you have ment ioned the  issue o f  

m inutes  o f  board  meet ings.   P r io r  to  Mr  Kennedy coming  

in to  th is  work  s t ream,  fo r  qu i te  some t ime I  had spoken to  

the  team tha t  was work ing  a t  the  Dene l  work  s t ream and  

sa id  they must  ob ta in  a  lo t  o f  documents  and minutes  o f  

board  meet ings and they had g iven me repor t s  tha t  they  

were  no t  f ind ing  coopera t ion .    

 I  th ink  I  was to ld ,  th is  wou ld  have been in ,  20 

maybe ea r ly  2020 or  p robab ly  no t  o r  even 2019,  a t  some 

s tage tha t  the  Company Secre tary  was somebody f rom 

outs ide  Dene l .   I  do  no t  know whether  i t  was an account ing  

f i rm or  lega l  f i rm and tha t  –  I  th ink  I  was to ld  i t  was  a  she.   

She was not  coopera t ing .    
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 A t  some s tage,  I  even sa id  they must  approach 

the  cha i rperson o f  the  board  to  t ry  and get  ass i s tance but  

fo r  qu i te  some t ime there  were  ser ious d i f f i cu l t ies  as :   

Those a re  the  repor ts  tha t  were  g iven to  me in  ge t t ing 

var ious document  bu t  the  reso lu t i ons and minutes  o f  the 

board .    

 So to  the  ex ten t  tha t  there  m ight  no t  be  cer ta in  

documents  here .   I t  may be tha t  par t l y  tha t  was the  

prob lem but  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  the  prob lem was so l ved a t  

some s tage.   But  I  thought  I  wou ld  jus t  ment ion  tha t  fo r  10 

what  i t  i s  wor th .   Mr  Kennedy migh t  know bet te r.  

MR MANTSHA :    May I  say  someth ing  on  tha t  Cha i rperson? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  

MR MANTSHA :    I  am here  p r imar i l y  to  exp la in  the  ac t ions  

o f  the  board  tha t  I  led .   And the  ac t ion  o f  the  board  tha t  I  

led  are  captured  in  var ious board  meet ings.   And s ince  I  

am ca l led  to  do  tha t  here ,  i t  wou ld  be  more  than fa i r  tha t  I  

am ass i s ted  by  those minutes  because . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA :    Cha i r,  you wou ld  reca l l  you  warned  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  fa i r  enough.  

MR MANTSHA :    . . . the  prev ious board  m inutes ,  some o f  i t ,  

you  fo rge t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no .   That  i s  a  fa i r  po in t .  
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MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  a  fa i r  po in t .  

MR MANTSHA :    So  to  a  po in t  where  I  m ight  no t  ass is t  you  

because I  m ight  no t  have ce r ta in  reco l lec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You might  no t  reca l l .  

MR MANTSHA :    I  th ink ,  accept  my  good fa i th  in  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA :    I  wou ld  have loved to  exp la in  every th ing  

as  per  the  ac t ions o f  the  board  as  captu red by  the  board  

m inutes .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Wel l ,  o f  cou rse ,  the  quest ion  wh ich  I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  pose to  you in  tha t  regard  is ,  whether  f rom 

your  s ide  you made any approach to  Dene l  to  say:   Look,  I  

am requ i red  to  g i ve  ev idence.   I  am the  fo rmer  cha i rpe rson 

o f  the  board .   I  need documents  f rom Dene l  tha t  wou ld  

ass is t  me.   And i f  you d id ,  what  was the  response? 

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  Cha i rpe rson,  there  is  so  much  

host i l i t y.   There  is  so  much host i l i ty  there  and there  is ,  w i th  20 

respect  you know condemning  and sentenc ing  peop le  

w i thout  g iv ing  them a  hear ing .   So there  is  so  much 

host i l i t y  tha t  you cannot  even break the  a i r.   So,  you know,  

those th ings,  you know,  I  wou ld  love  i t  in  another  idea l  

wor ld .   That  wou ld  be  …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Kennedy,  do  you want  to  say 

someth ing  about  the  board  meet ing  m inutes  or  someth ing? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  we have i t  a t  var ious  s tages 

s ince  I  became invo lved a t  a  fa i r ly  la te  s tage in  the  emai l  

s t ream,  we have  been engaged in  a t tempts  to  ge t  fu r ther  

m inutes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And some minutes  have in  fac t  been  

produced fo r  us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And are  inc luded in  a  bund le  tha t  i s  

be ing  made ava i l ab le .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  we do  not  be l ieve  tha t  there  is  

anyth ing  the re  tha t  seems to  ac tua l l y  shed any l igh t  

o therw ise  we wou ld  have re l ied  on  i t  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  I  am de l ibera te l y  t ry ing  to  l im i t  my 

quest ions to  th ings tha t  a re  fa i r  to  pu t  to  Mr  Mantsha and 

par t i cu la r l y  where  we have a  le t te r  f rom h im he can e i the r  20 

exp la in  i t  o r  he  can say,  i f  he  w ishes,  I  cannot  remember,  I  

cannot  g ive  an  exp lanat ion  because I  cannot  remember  

why I  sa id  tha t  bu t  a t  leas t  we can ask  h im tha t  and  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  whatever  m inutes  are  the re ,  i f  they  
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re la te  to  par t i cu la r ly  the  per iod  September  to  the  depar tu re  

o f  the  execut ives .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  they shou ld  be  shared w i th  h im i f  

they  have not  been shared.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  h im sa t is fy  about  what  we have.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i f  he  takes a  d i f fe ren t  v iew he might  

say  no ,  th is  one  jogs my memory  on  someth ing  tha t  i s  10 

re levant .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then he can take  i t  f rom there .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  thank you,  we w i l l  do  so .   May I  

then proceed to  re turn  to  th is  le t te r,  Cha i r,  in  ask ing  jus t  a  

few more  quest ions on  i t  f rom Mr  Mantsha.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The Cha i r  ask  you ea r l ie r  tha t  –  or  

he  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  th is  –  tha t  i f  you  were  –  i f  you  dec ided  

not  to  renew h i s  cont rac t ,  he  wou ld  no t  be  employed a f te r  20 

h is  cont rac t  exp i red ,  tha t  was in  January  2017,  co r rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And so  tha t  was the  ten  months  tha t  

Cha i r  re fe r red  to ,  n ine  or  ten  months ,  in  fac t  ten  months  

f rom March to  January  bu t  he  wou ld  be  ent i t led  to  be  pa id  
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ou t  fo r  the  res t  o f  h is  cont rac t ,  so  tha t  wou ld  be  ten  

months  he  wou ld  s t i l l  rece ived,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  wou ld ,  o f  course ,  be  in  

add i t ion  to  the  seven months tha t  he  had a l ready been  

s i t t ing  a t  home on suspens ion  s ince  September  the  

prev ious year,  co r rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now I  jus t  want  to  d raw your  

a t ten t ion  to  paragraph 4  and I  jus t  want  you to  see i f  you  10 

are  in  a  pos i t ion  based on your  memory  to  exp la in  what  I  

am go ing  to  ask  you to  exp la in .   You say in  pa ragraph 4 :  

“The a l leged ac ts  o f  m isconduct…”  

Which  you have  a l ready ind i ca ted  re la ted  to  what  they 

were  suspended fo r.  

“…are  v iewed in  a  ser ious l igh t  as  a  resu l t  the  t rus t  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  board  and yourse l f  has  

i r re t r ievab ly  b roken down.   The quest ion  o f  whether  

they were  gu i l t y  o f  m isconduct  and the  quest ion  o f  

whethe r  t rus t  re la t ionsh ip  had broken down 20 

i r re t r ievab ly  o r  o therw ise  sure ly  was someth ing  tha t  

cou ld  have been dea l  w i th  in  a  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry. ”  

What  you were  say ing  he re  was a  v iew as to  the  a l leged  

ac ts  o f  m isconduct  hav ing  broken  down are  ve ry  ser ious  

and hav ing  broken down i r re t r ievab ly  the  e lement  o f  t rus t .   
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That  was sa id  to  Mr  Sa loo jee  in  your  le t te r  to  h im wi thout  

hav ing  a f fo rded h im ye t  an  oppor tun i ty  to  be  heard ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he says  –  no t  what  I  am say ing ,  

he  says,  I  am jus t  pu t t ing  to  you h is  ve rs ion ,  he  says tha t  

shows tha t  you  in  fac t  had a  c losed mind,  you were  

de termined to  ge t  r id  o f  h im w i thout  a  hear ing .   Any 

comment  on  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  Cha i rpe rson,  Mr  Sa loo jee  knew 10 

h imse l f  tha t  the  a l legat ions aga ins t  h im are  so  ser ious and  

tha t  i s  why,  as  I  sa id ,  he  p leaded w i th  me tha t  I  shou ld  t ry  

to  avo id  tha t  he  ge ts  suspended  and expe l led .   So,  as  I  

ind ica ted ,  what  the  board  or  the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee 

was dea l ing  w i th  was an ob jec t i ve  ev idence before  the  

board  tha t  says p lease pay in  two weeks an amount  o f  450 

mi l l ion  wh ich  we d id  no t  have.   How d id  tha t  come about?   

I t  came about  because Mr  Sa loo jee  and h is  CFO went  

aga ins t  the  ins t ruc t ion  g iven to  them as an  approva l  fo r  the  

PFMA app l ica t ion .    20 

 The PFMA app l ica t ion  sa id  yes,  you can d ie ,  LSSA 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Mantsha,  I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t  

you,  I  do  no t  mean any d is respec t  bu t  th is  i s  the  th i rd  day  

on  wh ich  we a re  hear ing  ev idence  and on the  las t  occas ion  
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you  compla ined tha t  the  ev idence  was tak ing  a  long t ime.   

Wi th  respect ,  we  do need to  t ry  and keep some sor t  o f  

focus on  th is .   My quest ion  was  very  l im i ted .   I t  was not  

was he gu i l t y  o f  m isconduct ,  my quest ion  was not  was he 

gu i l t y  o f  m isconduct  tha t  had resu l ted  in  i r re t r ievab le  

breakdown o f  t rus t ,  my quest ion  is  very  focused and i t  i s  

s imp ly  th is .   When you reached tha t  conc lus ion  tha t  you  

express in  the  le t te r  tha t  was a t  a  s tage when he  had,  as  

ye t ,  s t i l l  no t  been sub jec ted  to  a  d isc ip l ina ry  or  any o ther  

hear ing .  10 

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     Bu t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  th ink  i t  i s  a lso  

impor tan t  fo r  me to  g ive  contex t  to  a  cor respondence 

because i f  you see the  le t te r  tha t  he  is  re fe r r i ng  to ,  the  

le t te r  s ta r ts  w i th :  

“The board  is  o f  the  v iew…” 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  20 

MR MANTSHA:     So  wh ich  means there  was a  repor t  

be fore  the  board  look ing  a t  th is  ma t te r  and the  repor t  cou ld  

be  say ing  look,  depend ing  on what  they have repor ted 

about  th is  hear ing ,  the  hear ing  is  d ragg ing ,  there  is  

p ressure  to  f ina l i se  the  fund ing  s t ruc tu re  w i th  Nedbank and  
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there  i s  a  p ressure  tha t  the  lenders  and the  par tners  ou t  

there ,  they want  to  dea l  w i th  peop le  who a re  permanent ly  

in  the  pos i t ion .   So there  was a  con tex t  to  the  le t te r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  the  po in t  i s  tha t  there  may have 

been reason –  there  may be reasons apparent  f rom board  

m inutes  tha t  a re  no t  be fore  us  now but  the  po in t  is  tha t  i t  

was done w i thou t  a  hear ing .   That  i s  a l l  I  am a l l  I  am 

ask ing  fo r,  okay?  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes bu t  a t  tha t  the  same token,  

Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  fo r  me to  exp la in  shou ld  no t  be  seen  10 

as  I  am de lay ing  the  hear ing  because I  th ink  I  am the  on ly  

person here  who has got  the  background and the  

in fo rmat ion  o f  dec i s ions taken and some o f  the  th ings 

taken.   So when I  am o f  the  v iew tha t  perhaps an  

exp lanat ion  i s  needed,  a  contex t  i s  needed to  be  g iven,  so  

I  shou ld  no t  be  pena l i sed fo r  t ry ing  to  d rag the  hear ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no ,  obv ious ly  we have got  to  

s t r i ke  a  ba lance between be ing  fa i r  to  you but  a lso  u t i l i s ing  

the  t ime proper ly,  a lso  fo r  you r  own sake because  you are  

pay ing .  20 

MR MANTSHA:     Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    For  –  so  bu t  I  th ink  what  you have  

conceded is  yes ,  there  was –  the  board  reached tha t  

conc lus ion  about  g iv ing  h im a  hear ing ,  ja .   The one th ing  I  

wanted to  pu t  to  you,  you sa id  Mr  Sa loo jee  knew,  I  th ink  
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what  you sa id  he  knew in  e f fec t  how gu i l t y  he  was.   In  

e f fec t  how gu i l t y  he  was,  you d id  no t  pu t  i t  l i ke  tha t  bu t  I  

am say ing  bu t  you came across as  say ing  ja ,  bu t  Mr  

Sa loo jee  knew,  tha t  he  knew wha t  he  had done,  he  knew 

we had ev idence.   D id  I  unders tand your  ev idence  

cor rec t l y?  

MR MANTSHA:     I  th ink  Mr  Sa loo jee  knew tha t  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  there  was a  s t rong case aga ins t  case 

aga ins t  h im.  10 

MR MANTSHA:     That  there  was a  s t rong case aga ins t  h im 

and i t  was wrong fo r  them to  have approved s ix  months  

br idg ing  f inance w i thout  the  perm iss ion  o f  the  Min is te r  o f  

F inance and Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises ,  tha t  he  knew i t  

was …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   What  do  you  

say to  the  propos i t ion  tha t  be tween September  2015 when 

he was suspended and March when he wro te  th is  le t te r  he  

never  ac ted  or  conducted h imse l f  l i ke  somebody who was  

scared o f  the  d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing .   On the  cont rary,  he  was  20 

say ing  br ing  i t  on ,  ac t ing  l i ke  somebody who was conf ident  

tha t  he  wou ld  no t  be  found gu i l t y  o f  anyth ing  and he never  

made,  un l i ke  the  board ,  un l i ke  Dene l ,  he  never  made any 

o f fe r  to  se t t le  the  mat te r.  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  w i th  respect  aga in ,  Cha i rperson,  I  
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am speak ing  w i th  a  very  exper ienced Cha i rperson on  

th ings l i ke  th is ,  tha t  the  bravado tha t  accused persons and 

a l l  sor t s  o f  peop le  do  in  cour t ,  somet imes they f igh t  fo r  s ix  

years  and go up  and down and c la im ing innocence but  i t  

does not  mean the  bravado tha t  you do shou ld  mean tha t  

you are  no t  gu i l t y  o f  anyth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Kennedy,  maybe we shou ld  t ake  the  

tea  break.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  le t  us  tea  break and resume a t  10 

quar te r  to  twe lve .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   Mr  Man tsha so  

you and your  board  adopted the  pos i t ion  then,  as  we have 

seen in  the  le t te r,  tha t  there  was a  b reakdown o f  the 

re la t ionsh ip  and there fo re  the  cont rac t  wh ich  was  due to  

exp i re  the  fo l low ing January  wou ld  no t  be  renewed and 

tha t  i t  was proposed –  tha t  i t  had been dec ided  tha t  he 20 

shou ld  no t  cont inue to  work  the  res t  o f  h i s  cont rac t  un t i l  

January  bu t  he  wou ld  be  pa id  ou t  fo r  tha t  per iod ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:     That  i s  what  the  le t te r  say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Kennedy,  I  have jus t  consu l ted  w i th  
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my reg is t ra r  because …[ in tervenes ]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry,  I  cannot  hear  you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  jus t  consu l ted  w i th  my reg i s t ra r  

because I  seemed not  to  remember  the  oa th  be ing  

admin is te red to  Mr  Mantsha th is  morn ing  and she conf i rms  

tha t  no ,  i t  was no t  admin is te red.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry.   I  take  i t  tha t  w i l l  be  

done.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So i t  i s  no t  your  fau l t ,  Mr  Mantsha,  i t  i s  

my fau l t ,  so  I  th ink  we shou ld  have  i t  admin is te red now and  10 

I  th ink  you can then ask  Mr  Mantsha whether  the  ev idence 

tha t  he  has g iven  up to  now i s  t rue  and cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then tha t  shou ld  cover  i t .   Okay,  le t  us  

have tha t  done.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

REGISTRAR :   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

MR MANTSHA:     Lug isan i  Dan ie l  Mantsha.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  mak ing  the  

prescr ibed a f f i rmat ion?  20 

MR MANTSHA:     No ob jec t ion .  

REGISTRAR :   Do you a f f i rm tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  

w i l l  be  the  t ru th  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  bu t  the  t ru th , .   

I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

LUGISANI  DANIEL MANTSHA:   I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   I f  we d id  no t  d iscover  i t  and 

somebody e lse  d iscovered i t  they  wou ld  wonder  how a  

judge and so  many lawyers  inc lud ing  a  lawyer  w i tness d id  

no t  remember  th i s .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  you may cont inue .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   So,  Mr  Mantsha,  

you have g i ven ev idence on two p rev ious occas ions under  

oa th  and you have g i ven ev idence aga in  th is  morn ing  so  

fa r,  under  the  a f f i rmat ion .   Do  you conf i rm tha t  they 

ev idence you gave a l ready th is  morn ing  is  covered  by  the  

a f f i rmat ion  tha t  you have jus t  taken,  tha t  i s  was t rue  and 10 

cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:     I t  i s  t rue  and cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you.   Now,  Mr  Mantsha,  

so  there  i s  fu r ther  cor respondence in  the  f i le .   I  do  no t  

need to  take  you  th rough i t  a l l  bu t  e f fec t i ve ly  i t  says  tha t  

Ms Wale le  says we are  no t  happy  tha t  he  shou ld  jus t  s tay  

a t  home unt i l  the  end o f  h i s  cont rac t  and we demand tha t  

you convene the  hear ing  and then what  we have is  a  

response f rom Dene l ’s  a t to rneys,  C l i f fe  Dekker,  CDH at  20 

page …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Kennedy,  Ms Wale le ’s  

le t te r  tha t  you are  re fer r i ng  to ,  what  page is  i t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  I  m igh t  have a  moment?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  i s  tha t  the  one we looked a t  ea r l ie r?  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  so  we have jus t  been  look ing  

be fore  the  tea  ad journment  a t  page 412 wh ich  was Mr  

Mantsha ’s  own le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then  there  was subsequent ly  

cor respondence a t  page 415 and  417,  i s  an  example  o f  

where  she has ind ica ted  tha t  they  want  a  hear ing ,  no t  fo r  

the  f i rs t  t ime such a  request .   I f  I  can  take  you,  Cha i r,  to  

page 418,  parag raph 6 :  

“Our  c l ien t  ho lds  the  v iew tha t  your  c l ien t ’s  10 

res i s tance and fa i lu re  to  fo l low a  fa i r  p rocedure  to  

de termine any wrongdo ing  is  per t inent  to  the  

a foresa id  and i t  i s  an  oppor tun i ty  to  be  heard  by  the  

shareho lder  o f  your  in ten t ion  is  requ i red .   We 

fu r ther  be l ieve  s ince  no fa i r  p rocedure  has been  

fo l lowed to  da te  tha t  there  i s  no  grounds fo r  ear l y  

te rm inat ion  o f  employment  o f  our  c l ien t . ”  

7 :  

“We there fore  urge your  c l ien t  to  convene a  

d isc ip l ina ry  p rocess as  a  mat te r  o f  u rgency. ”  20 

So are  you aware  tha t  tha t  le t te r  was sent  o r  i s  tha t  jus t  

someth ing  tha t  happened beh ind  the  scenes? 

MR MANTSHA:     I  am not  aware ,  Cha i rpe rson ,  o f  the  

le t te r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   A l r igh t ,  thank you.   And then 
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we get  to  the  le t te r  I  ment ioned a t  420 f rom Cl i f fe  Dekker  

f rom your  a t to rney Mr  Aad i l  Pate l  and he says,  paragraph  

1 :  

“We do not  in tend  dea l ing  w i th  a l l  the  a l legat ions. ”  

And they rese rve  r igh ts .   Then pa ragraph 2 :  

“Your  request  fo r  a  hear ing  is  m isp laced,  you r  

c l ien t ’s  employment  i s  no t  te rm inated due to  

m isconduct .   We re i te ra te  what  i s  s ta ted  in  our  

c l ien t ’s  le t te r  to  you dated 17 March 2016. ”  

That  was in  fac t  your  own le t te r  o f  17  March,  le t  me jus t  10 

pu t  to  you,  Mr  Mantsha.   And then he says:  

“Your  c l ien t ’s  cont rac t  i s  s imp ly  no t  renewed.   Our  

c l ien t  does not  requ i re  your  c l ien t  to  work  the  

remain ing  par t  o f  the  cont rac t . ”  

So tha t  i s  the  answer  to  the  request  fo r  a  hear ing .   He is  

say ing  i t  i s  no t  needed because your  c l ien t ’s  employment  

has now been te rm inated,  i t  i s  no t  go ing  to  be  renewed 

f rom next  January,  in  the  meant ime,  he  does not  have to  

come to  work .   A re  you aware  tha t  tha t  was taken  

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  20 

MR MANTSHA:     Abso lu te ly  I  am shocked,  I  am not  aware .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You are  shocked?  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  la te r  happened though was a  

le t te r  …[ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  I  am sor ry,  what  shocks you,  

Mr  Mantsha?  

MR MANTSHA:     No,  tha t  th is  was never  b rought  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  to  you,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then we came to  page 422 ,  another  

le t te r  f rom Dene l ’s  a t to rneys and  th is  re la tes  to  –  I  am 

go ing  to  t ry  and  go th rough th i s  qu i te  qu ick ly  now,  the 

cor respondence,  i t  in  fac t  re la tes  to  a  fu r ther  p roposa l  to  

t ry  and se t t le  the  mat te r  and i t  re fe rs  what  wou ld  be  pa id  10 

out  to  Mr  Sa loo jee .   Then i f  I  may take  you p lease to  – i f  I  

m igh t  have a  moment  Cha i r  –  page 490.   490 is  ye t  another  

le t te r  f rom Cl i f fe  Dekker,  th is  t ime i t  i s  da ted  the  23  May  

2016.   I t  i s  ra ther  faded,  the  qua l i t y  o f  the  copy,  bu t  i t  says  

–  i t  re fe rs  to  ear l ie r  cor respondence and then says in  

parag raph 2 :  

“We conf i rm tha t  Bafana Ncube or  Ncube 

Inco rpo ra ted  A t to rneys has been appo in ted  as  a  

Cha i rperson fo r  the  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry. ”  

So i t  seems a t  th is  s tage …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  page is  tha t ,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    490.  

CHAIRPERSON :    490,  okay.  

MR MANTSHA:     490?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you see tha t?  
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MR MANTSHA:     Yes,  Cha i rperson .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  i t  seems tha t  hav ing  p rev ious l y  

to ld  Ms Wale le  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  a t to rney in  ear l ie r  

cor respondence tha t  there  is  go ing  to  be  no  d isc ip l inary  

inqu i ry,  there  does not  need to  be  because h i s  employment  

i s  now te rminated  w i th  e f fec t  f rom the  next  January  and he  

is  no t  go ing  to  come in  the  meant ime.   I t  appears  t ha t  tha t  

was rev i s i ted  and now back on  course  i s  the  proposa l  o r  

the  in ten t ion  to  ho ld  the  d i sc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  and in  fac t  the  

a t to rneys have gone so  fa r  as  to  appo in t  Mr  Ncube,  an  10 

a t to rney to  cha i r  the  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry.   Were  you aware  

tha t  tha t  was done?  

MR MANTSHA:     No,  bu t  Cha i rpe rson,  le t  me speak under  

cor rec t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     As  I  sa id  be fore  tha t  o rd inar i l y  th is  

mat te r,  as  long as  i t  was s t i l l  pend ing ,  i t  wou ld  have  se rved 

before  the  board  and as  I  ind ica ted  before ,  o f  course  the  

board  was not  happy w i th  the  in te rna l  peop le  who were  

work ing  on  the  mat te r,  I  have exp la ined the  reasons and 20 

what  happened.   So the  appo in tment  o f  the  Cha i r  o r  

whatever  in  te rms  as  th is  le t te r  say  is  no t  someth ing  tha t  i s  

w i th in  my knowledge,  so  as  I  i nd ica ted ,  we were  no t  

dea l ing  w i th  the  a t to rneys ourse l ves,  the  respect ive  

o f f i c ia ls  were  dea l ing  w i th  the  a t to rneys on  the  mat te r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you.   Now there  i s  a  

response to  the  las t  le t te r  f rom Cl i f fe  Dekker  tha t  I  have 

jus t  taken you to  and i t  i s  a  few pages ear l ie r  in  the  same 

bund le  a t  page 487.   By  th is  s tage i t  i s  apparent  tha t  Mr  

Sa loo jee  was no longer  represented by  Ms Wale le  and he  

had moved to  Mr  Shaheed Do l l ie .   For  the  t ranscr iber ’s  

benef i t ,  i t  i s  D-o- l - l - i -e ,  and Mr  Do l l ie  responded to  Mr  

Pate l ’s  le t te r,  the  one we have jus t  looked a t  where  he  sa id  

a t to rney Ncube wou ld  be  appo in ted  as  the  Cha i rperson and  

so  Mr  Do l l ie  says  in  paragraph 2 :  10 

“On the  23  May…” 

I  am sor ry,  be fore  I  ge t  there ,  I  jus t  no te  the  da te  o f  Mr  

Shaheed Do l l ie ’s  le t te r  to  Mr  Pate l ,  i t  i s  the  1  June 2016 

and he says in  pa rag raph 2 :  

“On the  23  May 2016 you in fo rmed us  tha t  a t to rney 

Ncube wou ld  be  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  d isc ip l inary  

proceed ings.   You fu r ther  in fo rmed us  tha t  you 

wou ld  le t  us  know when  the  d isc ip l inary  

proceed ings wou ld  commence and tha t  you wou ld  

a lso  fu rn i sh  us  w i th  a  bund le  o f  documents  your  20 

c l ien t  in tended  u t i l i s ing  fo r  purposes o f  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  p roceed ings.   The charges have been 

pend ing  s ince  22 September  2015. ”  

And then he proceeds to  exp la in  why h is  c l ien t  fee ls  

p re jud iced because o f  th is  de lay  and then in  paragraph 6  
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there  i s  a  th rea t  tha t  i f  Mr  Pate l  does not  fu rn ish  a  da te  

when the  d isc ip l i nary  proceed ings  w i l l  ac tua l l y  commence,  

wh ich  must  be  w i th in  a  reasonab le  per iod ,  there  is  an  

ind ica t ion  tha t  they wou ld  br i ng  an  app l i ca t ion  –  a  lega l  

p roceed ings to  se t  as ide  h i s  suspens ion  and an o rder  

en t i t l i ng  h im to  re turn  to  work  and  resume dut ies .   A re  you 

aware  tha t  tha t  was sa id  on  beha l f  o f  Mr  Sa loo jee  to  your  

a t to rney?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  I  do  no t  reca l l ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Can reca l l  and I  apprec ia te  10 

tha t  you do not  have –  we do not  have in  f ron t  o f  us  a l l  the  

m inutes  and so  fo r th  bu t  can you f rom your  memory  reca l l  

a t  th is  s tage –  I  a lso  apprec ia te  tha t  a t  th is  s tage Dene l  

was s t i l l  i n  a  s ta te  o f  ser ious d i f f i cu l t ies  and your  focus on  

the  board  was la rge ly  on  t ry ing  to  ge t  ou t ,  ge t  Dene l  ou t  o f  

the  f inanc ia l  and  o ther  d i f f i cu l t ies ,  bu t  can you reca l l  –  th is  

i s  now June 2016,  about  n ine  months  s ince  you had taken 

a  dec i s ion  to  suspend Mr  Sa loo jee  and the  o thers ,  can you  

reca l l  whether  you eve r  fe l t  concern  tha t  these execut ives  

were  no  longer  do ing  the i r  job  because they have been  20 

suspended,  they  were  s t i l l  rece iv ing  pay,  substan t ia l  pay  

and tha t  n ine  months  or  so  down the  l ine  they s t i l l  had not  

go t  to  the  beg inn ing  o f  a  d isc ip l inary  i nqu i ry,  le t  a lone the  

end o f  i t?   Was tha t  no t  a  concern  to  you bear ing  in  m ind,  

fo r  example ,  you  were  accus ing  them o f  b reaches  o f  the 
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PFMA,  tha t  under  the  PFMA you,  as  execut ive  au thor i t y,  

had the  ob l iga t ion  to  ensure  tha t  d isc ip l ine  was taken and  

to  avo id  f ru i t less  and waste fu l  expend i tu re?  

MR MANTSHA:     Jus t  cor rec t ion ,  Cha i rperson,  the  board  

is  no t  an  execut ive  au thor i t y  in  te rms o f  the  PFMA,  the  

board  is  an  account ing  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  beg your  pardon,  you are  qu i te  

r igh t .  

MR MANTSHA:     I t  i s  an  account ing  au thor i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  you s t i l l  had tha t  ob l iga t i on ,  no t  10 

so?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  le t  me say,  Cha i rperson,  we were  

ex t remely  concerned about  the  de lays  in  th is  mat te r  and as  

I  a l luded before ,  there  was peop le  in te rna l l y,  as  I  have  

ident i f ied  the  fo rmer  ac t ing  company secre tary  who was a t  

the  same t ime the  head o f  lega l .   So there  was  in  the 

op in ion  o f  the  board  a t  the  t ime  a  de l ibe ra te  s t ra tegy to  

f rus t ra te  the  p rocess,  to  move i t  s low and,  o f  cou rse ,  we  

were  concerned and we t r ied  to  push tha t  pe rson  out .   I  

cannot  te l l  you  when the  pe rson  was pushed out ,  bu t  we 20 

were  concerned about  i t .   I t  was a  b ig  concern  because we 

wanted c lause on  the  mat te r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  jus t  want  to  go  back to  what  you and I  

had an  exchange  on w i th  regard  to  the  de lay.   Of  course  i s  
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i t  no t  t rue  tha t  i f  a  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry  was he ld  there  

wou ld  be  the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  the  execut ives  o r  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  

the  execut ives  cou ld  be  found no t  gu i l t y  and i f  they  were  

found not  gu i l t y  the  board  wou ld  have no opt ion  bu t  to  

a l low them back  in to  the i r  jobs?   Would  you accept  tha t  

p ropos i t ion?  

MR MANTSHA:     No,  there  was no poss ib i l i t y  o f  them not  

be ing  found gu i l t y,  i t  was not  poss ib le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  am not  sure  why you say tha t  i f  

you  were  no t  go ing  to  cha i r  the  …[ in tervenes]  10 

MR MANTSHA:     I  can  te l l  you  the  reason why.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  are  no t  go ing  to  cha i r  the  inqu i ry,  

I  mean… 

MR MANTSHA:     Look,  Cha i rperson,  I  can te l l  you  why I  

am say ing  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:     Because,  you see,  f i rs t l y,  when you take  

a  dec is ion  to  suspend,  when you take  a  dec i s ion  to  

suspend,  I  th ink  as  the  ev idence showed you,  i t  was not  

l i ke  one morn ing  peop le  wake up and [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  20 

vo i ce ] .   There  were  severa l  meet ings there  were  

invest iga t ions and members  o f  the  aud i t  commi t tee ,  some 

o f  them were  de legated to  meet  the  bankers ,  Nedbank and 

Absa,  I  t r ied  to  f ind  ou t  what  rea l l y  happened and they go t  

the  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  f rom Nedbank because Nedbank were  
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he lp ing  f rom the  t ransact ion ,  so  there  was an inves t iga t ion  

wh ich  was conducted in  the  bank and,  Cha i rperson ,  you ac t  

on  the  bas i s  o f  the  approva l  tha t  you were  g i ven by  the  two  

execut ives  au tho r i t ies  wh ich  is  Min is te r  o f  F inance and 

Min is te r  o f  Pub l i c  Enterp r ises and on the  documents  you 

were  g iven an approva l  o f  f i ve  years  to  pay the  l oan and 

you go and change tha t  to  s i x  months  or  f i ve  months  to  pay 

tha t  loan.   C lear l y  on  the  face  o f  the  document  you have  

cont ravened the  approva l .   There  was no approva l  fo r  s ix  

months  so  wh ich  means in  e f fec t  tha t  t ransact ion  was not  10 

approved and th i s  i s  the  ev idence tha t  i t  i s  conven ien t ly  

now serv ing  be fo re  th is  Commiss ion .   There  was no proper  

approva l  fo r  tha t  t ransact ion  because when the  te rms – so ,  

Cha i rperson,  when you enter  t ransact ions l i ke  th is ,  I  know 

you know th is  ve ry  we l l  in  your  p rev ious l i fe ,  you prepare  a  

te rm sheet  where  the  te rm sheet  records  the  ag reement  

be tween the  lender,  in  th is  ins tance these two banks and  

Dene l  and tha t  te rm sheet  i s  subm i t ted  fo r  the  purposes o f  

the  PFMA approva l  to  the  re levant  execut ive  au tho r i t y.   In  

7 th is  ins tance i t  i s  Min i s te r  o f  F inance and Min is te r  o f  20 

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses .   They look …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  s top  you there?  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  le t  us  pu t  i t  th is  way,  I  th ink  your  

answer  to  my quest ion  is  the  ev idence aga ins t  the  
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execut ives  was so  s t rong tha t  you  are  say ing  there  was no  

chance o f  them be ing  found not  gu i l t y.  

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  o f  cou rse  tha t  s t rengthens the  

d i f f i cu l t y  about  de lay ing  when you  are  so  cer ta in  tha t ,  you  

know,  these peop le ,  you know,  the re  is  no  chance o f  them 

not  be ing  found gu i l t y.   But  we have dea l t  w i th  tha t ,  I  am 

not  want ing  us  to  go  back there ,  ja .  

MR MANTSHA:     Ja  bu t  jus t  to  add on tha t ,  Cha i rperson.   

P rec i se l y  the  de lay  was not  on  the  par t  o f  the  board .   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:     The board  ac t  th rough funct ionar ies  

be ing  HR,  be ing  company secre tary  be ing  the  head o f  

lega l ,  they  have appo in ted  reputab le  law f i rm.   So i t  was  

not  on  the  par t  o f  the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  see,  fo r  me –  or  le t  me ask 

th is  quest ion ,  a re  there  any spec i f i c  s teps tha t  the  board  

took aga ins t  peop le  in  the  management  who,  acco rd ing  to  

the  board ,  were  fa i l ing  to  do  the i r  job  p roper l y  because  

the i r  job  was to  make sure  tha t  th is  p rocess was exped i ted .  20 

MR MANTSHA:     Yes,  we d id ,  Cha i rpe rson,  the  ac t ing  

company secre ta ry  a t  the  t ime and the  head o f  lega l  who  

took s teps,  we had to  remove tha t  person.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR MANTSHA:     And,  as  I  sa id  ear l ie r,  there  was a lso  

c lea r  ev idence o f  leak ing  communica t ion  be tween  herse l f  

and the  board  to  these execut ives  and i t  was c lear  to  us  

tha t  she i s  de l ibera te l y  a id ing  them maybe because they  

were  work ing  together  fo r  a  long t ime,  they deve loped 

some a l leg iance to  one another  bu t  she was de l ibera te l y  

a id ing  them and we took ac t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And when was  tha t  i f  you  are  ab le  to  

remember?  

MR MANTSHA:     I  th ink  as  I  sa id ,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  mean 10 

when th is  mat te r,  as  a  s tand ing  mat te r  to  the  board  comes 

to  the  board ,  so  the  m inutes  wou ld  have captured lo t  o f  our  

d isp leasure  and a  lo t  o f  our  d iscuss ion  about  th is  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  have you got  a  reco l lec t ion  whethe r  

i t  m igh t  have been 2015 o f  2016 or  you do not  remember?  

MR MANTSHA:     No,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  -   I  am not  rea l l y  

sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:     Bu t  I  am not  rea l l y  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  20 

MR MANTSHA:     Bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you say you removed the  head o f  

lega l?  

MR MANTSHA:     The company secre tary .   Eventua l l y,  I  

th ink  –  I  am speak ing  under  co r rec t ion  because there  were  
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a  lo t  o f  p ressure  we put  to  the  Act ing  CEO and the  Act ing  

CFO because the  two o f  them were  a lso  ge t t ing  pressure  

f rom the  lenders  to  say …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  happen ing?  

MR MANTSHA:     Ja ,  what  i s  your  s tand ing  ta l k ing  to  us  

because you a re  ac t ing  and  I  they  pu t  a  lo t  o f  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  to  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MANTSHA:     Sor ry,  Cha i rperson,  so r ry?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  jus t  wanted to  have the  names o f  10 

the  peop le  you say you took ac t ion  aga ins t ,  was i t  the  

company secre ta ry  and the  head  o f  lega l  o r  was  i t  the 

company secre tary  on l y?   I  wanted the  names o f  the  peop le  

o f  the i r  pos i t ions  aga ins t  whom you took ac t ion  because  

you be l ieve  as  the  board  tha t  they  were  de lay ing  o r  fa i l ing  

to  exped i te  the  process.   You  sa id  i t  was the  ac t ing  

company secre tary ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes and head o f  lega l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was there  somebody e l se?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  she  was the  on ly  one who was 20 

so le l y  respons ib le  w i th  the  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes,  tha t  i s  the  on ly  person  tha t  ac t ion  

was taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The head o f  lega l?  
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MR MANTSHA:     Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  was her  name,  do  you remember?  

MR MANTSHA:     I t  was Legoabe.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Legoabe?  

MR MANTSHA:     Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you ,  Cha i r.   So a f te r  th is  

cor respondence between the  a t to rneys,  Mr  Mantsha,  we 

know tha t  f rom the  documents  –  I  do  no t  know i f  you reca l l  

o r  have knowledge o f  i t ,  Mr  Sa loo jee  then lodged a  d ispute  10 

w i th  the  CCMA.   You are  aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:     I  see  the  re fer ra l  ( ind is t inc t  –  record ing  

d is to r ted)  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   I  am not  sure  why we have got  

a  feedback –  in  fac t  the  re fe r ra l  i s  r igh t  here  as  you po in t  

ou t ,  i t  i s  f rom page 492.   We do not  need to  go  i n to  the  

content  o f  tha t .   That  was re fer red  and the  d ispute  was 

then reso lved.   A re  you aware  then tha t  there  was a  

se t t lement  w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  eventua l l y  the re  was a  se t t lement  20 

w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     Which  was,  I  th ink  fac i l i ta ted  by  the  

fo rmer  CFO.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   I f  I  can  jus t  have a  moment?   
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Yes,  i t  i s  page 513,  in  fac t  i t  s ta r ts  a  b i t  ear l ie r.   Sor ry,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  5 .3 ,  i s  tha t  a  parag raph o f  a  

document?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry,  I  am jus t  speak ing ,  Cha i r,  

I  thought  i t  was 513.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  ac tua l l y  s ta r ts  a t  page 499.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  th ink  we touched on th is  on  a  10 

prev ious occas ion  but  there  are  j us t  a  few aspects  I  need 

to  ask  you some quest ions on .   Were  you the  s igna tory  on  

beha l f  o f  Dene l  to  tha t  se t t lement  agreement?   I f  I  can  take  

you to  page 513,  i t  seems tha t  i t  was s igned not  by  you but  

someone e lse .   Mr  –  I  cannot  ac tua l l y  qu i te  read the  

wr i t ing  o f  h is  name,  he  was Act ing  Group F inanc ia l  

D i rec to r.   Can you he lp  me wi th  the  name,  i s  i t  Mr  

Mhlwana?   

MR MANTSHA:     Ja ,  I  see here  i t  i s  the  fo rmer  CFO of  

Dene l ,  Mr  Mhlwana.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  he  was ac t ing  a t  tha t  s tage and 

we see tha t  tha t  se t t lement  agreement  was s igned on the  8  

November  2016.   So tha t  was some 14 months  or  so  a f te r  

they had been suspended,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And jus t  a  coup le  o f  po in ts  I  need to  

ra ise  w i th  you here .   What  he  was –  the  te rms  o f  the 

se t t lement  re f lec t  tha t  he  was g iven an ex gra t ia  payment  

on  the  bas i s  tha t  h is  employment  was te rm inated,  an  ex  

gra t ia  was the  amount  o f  R2 362 492.   Were  you aware  tha t  

there  was th is  se t t lement?   You w i l l  f ind  tha t  a t  page 505,  

c lause 6 .   P resumably  th is  must  have come to  you or  your  

board  fo r  approva l  to  se t t le  w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee .  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  i t  was deba ted in  the  board .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And d id  you g i ve  your  10 

approva l?   You d id  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MANTSHA:     The board  approved i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And so  tha t ,  as  i t  says ,  the 

R2.36-odd mi l l ion  i s  an  amount  equ iva len t  to  50% of  h i s  

annua l  remunera t ion  so  he  got  e f fec t i ve ly  a  payout  o f  s ix  

month  sa la ry  –  an  amount  equ iva len t  to  s ix  months ’ sa la ry.   

Were  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   And tha t  was –  in  add i t ion  

there  were  ce r ta in  o ther  amounts  such as  accrued leave in  20 

c lause 5  and so  fo r th .   Now was in  add i t ion  to  the  payment  

tha t  had a l ready been made pursuant  to  your  le t te r  ear l ie r  

tha t  year  where  you had sa id  we have dec ided not  to  renew 

your  cont rac t  bu t  w i l l  pay  the  res t  o f  the  year  ou t  and tha t  

was du ly  pa id  long before  he  re fer red  the  d i spute  to  the 
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CCMA.   A re  you w i th  me? 

MR MANTSHA:     I  do  no t  remember  tha t  payment ,  

Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   So on the  bas is  o f  h is  –  and  

tha t  we know was about  ten  months  f rom the  t ime o f  your  

le t te r  and tha t  was in  add i t ion  to  the  seven months  tha t  he  

had been suspended.   So i f  we take  a l l  o f  these per iods 

together  he  was on pa id  suspens ion  fo r  seven mon ths  un t i l  

you  te rm inated h i s  cont rac t  by  say ing  we are  no t  go ing  to  

renew i t  and we a re  no t  requ i r ing  you – we do not  want  you 10 

back.   Then the re  was anothe r  ten  months  to  the  end o f  the  

per iod  o f  cont rac t  so  tha t  was 17  months  and in  add i t ion  

you were  now –  you,  Dene l ,  I  mean,  were  now pay ing  h im 

out  ex gra t ia  another  s i x  months  o f  sa la ry  to  reso lve  the  

d ispute ,  co r rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  jus t  to  g ive  some 

background,  the  le t te r  …[ in tervenes]    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am jus t  ask ing  you fo r  the  fac ts  and  

then I  w i l l  ask  you fo r  the  background.  

MR MANTSHA:     No but  you made a  s ta tement  tha t  I  do  20 

not  know where  you are  ge t t ing  the  fac ts  f rom.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  is  i t  request  fo r  c la r i f i ca t ion?  

MR MANTSHA:     The le t te r  wh ich  ind ica ted  –  as  was read,  

we are  te rm inat ing  your  cont rac t ,  I  do  no t  remember  tha t  

there  was payment  a f te r  tha t .   So i f  …[ in te rvenes]  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 65 of 301 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    A f te r  when?  

MR MANTSHA:     There  is  a  le t te r  wh ich  he  has read.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The one about  ten  months ’ payment?  

MR MANTSHA:     The one o f  –  yes ,  i t  p roposed te rm inat ion  

and a l l  the  th ings .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .  

MR MANTSHA:     I  do  no t  remember  there  was payment  

made a t  tha t  s tage,  I  remember  the re  was payment  made a t  

the  end o f  th is  se t t lement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MR MANTSHA:     Ja .   But  aga in ,  I  mean,  I  wou ld  re ly  on  

the  f igures  wh ich  are  sa id  on  the  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now the  le t te r  wh ich  the  payment  tha t  

you say you do not  know whether  i t  was made,  tha t  wou ld  

be  the  payment  in  te rms o f  the  le t te r  wh ich  I  am under  the  

impress ion  you s igned.  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  17  March.  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  one.   That  le t te r  d id  say to  20 

h im he was go ing  to  be  pa id  fo r  the  res t  o f  h is  –  ba lance o f  

h is  cont rac t  pe r iod .  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  tha t  i t  sa id  tha t  you know but  what  

you say you do not  know is  whether  i t  was imp lemented.  
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MR MANTSHA:     Indeed,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MANTSHA:     I  have not  seen any ev idence to  show 

tha t  tha t  was accepted and imp lemented.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  fa i r  enough,  Mr  Mantsha,  

thank you,  and I  ra ther  sk ipped over  a  few le t te rs  in  the  

hope tha t  we cou ld  make some p rogress bu t  I  am happy to  

take  you back to  page 422.  

MR MANTSHA:     Page?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    422.   422 is  another  le t te r  f rom Cl i f fe  

Dekker,  CDH,  da ted the  13  Apr i l  2016.   That  was  shor t l y  

a f te r  the  le t te r  t ha t  the  Cha i rperson has j us t  re fe r red  you 

to  tha t  you conf i rmed tha t  you s igned and he says:  

“We record  tha t  in  re la t ion  to  th is  d ispute  your  

c l ien t ’s  employment  has been te rm inated and your  

c l ien t…”  

And tha t  i s  Mr  Sa loo jee .  

“…has been pa id  ou t  fo r  the  rema inder  o f  the  te rm  

o f  the  f i xed  te rm  cont rac t  o f  employment  up  to  and 20 

inc lud ing  31  January  2017. ”  

So tha t  was what  Dene l ’s  a t to rneys conf i rmed Mr  

Sa loo jee ’s  a t to rneys conf i rm we rece ived i t  bu t  we  do not  

accept  tha t  tha t  i s  su f f i c ien t ,  we want  a  d i sc ip l inary  inqu i ry.   

We a re  no t  sa t is f ied  tha t  you a re  en t i t led  to  te rm inate  and  
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Mr  Sa loo jee  has  a lso  g iven ev idence tha t  he  d id  rece ive  

tha t  payment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  tha t  i s  what  I  wanted to  conf i rm 

a lso ,  tha t  in  h is  o ra l  ev idence he conf i rmed tha t  the  money 

was pa id  in to  h is  account .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  thank you Cha i r.   So I  apprec ia te  

your  pos i t ion  Mr  Mantsha.   You do not  know,  you cannot  

remember.    

MR MANTSHA:   I  do  no t  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  I  jus t  thought  in  fa i rness I  need to  10 

show you the  m iss ing  ev idence as  you suggested.   

MR MANTSHA:   Thank you Mr  Kennedy,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Le t  me ask you  about  the  payment  tha t  

you know about  a t  the  end.   You  sa id  the  board  debated  

the  mat te r  and approved the  f ina l  se t t lement .   Why  d id  the  

board  in  November  2016 g ive  Mr  Sa loo jee  who had not  

been work ing ,  who had not  rendered any serv i ces  to  Dene l  

fo r  ove r  a  year,  why d id  you dec ide  i t  shou ld  g ive  h im any 

money o ther  than what  was due to  h im because h is  

cont rac t  was go ing  to  exp i re  in  January?  20 

MR MANTSHA:   Cha i rperson,  as  I  ind ica ted  ea r l ie r,  there  

was a  l ong d iscuss ion  wh ich  in  th is  ins tance was the  

company was rep resented by  the  then CFO.  

CHAIRPERSON:   By?  

MR MANTSHA:   By  the  then CFO.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

WITNESS:   Ta lk ing  d i rec t l y  to  the  suspended employee.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  N jebe,  tha t  was Mr  N jebe.  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes,  and a t  tha t  s tage we were  under  

t remendous pressure .   We were  under  t remendous 

pressure  to  s tab i l i se  i t .   S tab i l i se  the  company by  hav ing  

permanent  [ ind is t inc t ] .   In  o rder  to  g ive  assurance  to our  

learners ,  to  our  bus iness par tners ,  tha t  whatever  dec is ions 

we ar r i ved a t ,  whatever  negot ia t ions  we are  busy w i th ,  

these o f f i c ia ls  a re  permanent ly  employed and they w i l l  be  10 

there  to  see th is  dec is ion  th rough.   

 So the  se t t lemen t  was g i ven pr imar i l y  we igh ing  the  

in te res t  o f  the  company a t  the  t ime,  what  the  company was 

los ing  a t  the  t ime because o f  the  vacuum at  the  top  and o f  

course  the re  was submiss ion  by  the  re levant  o f f i c ia l s  to  the 

board ,  to  say look,  th is  i s  where  we f ind  ourse l ves and in  

v iew o f  a l l  these prob lems tha t  we have,  in  te rms o f  

s tab i l i s ing  the  company,  s tab i l i s i ng  the  bus iness  o f  the 

company,  we are  o f  the  v iew tha t  th is  k ind  o f  se t t lement  

wou ld  be  in  the  best  in te res t  o f  the  company.  20 

 A f te r  the  board  has cons idered the  issue and 

cons ider ing  the  p ressure  a t  the  t ime,  the  board  was o f  the 

v iew tha t  i t  was  in  the  in te res t  o f  the  company tha t  th is  

mat te r  must  be  c losed so  tha t  we can then move on to  have 

permanent  appo in tments  wh ich  wou ld  then g ive  conf idence  
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to   our  par tners ,  g ive  conf idence to  our  learners .   

 So i t  was jus t  the  in te res t  o f  the  company tha t  has  

g iven us  to  accep t  the  submiss ions  made.   F i rs t l y  o f  course  

there  was submiss ions made by  the  execut ive  to  say look,  

can we ta lk  to  these peop le .   I f  I  remember  I  th ink  the  CFO 

was approached.   

 I  am not  su re  whether  by  the  fo rmer,  the  suspended  

CFO at  the  t ime and they s ta r ted  to  exp lore  these issues 

and o f  course  he came to  the  board  to  say look ,  th is  i s  

what  we th ink  i s  in  the  best  in te res t  o f  the  company,  can 10 

we p roceed to  ta lk .    

 He was g iven the  go  ahead to  ta lk ,  and when the  . . .  

he  has reached th is  k ind  o f  conc lus ion ,  he  came back to  

the  board  and sa id  look,  we request  tha t  you approve th is  

fo r  these reasons  and the  board  took a  dec i s ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  must  jus t  say  Mr  Mantsha i t  does 

not  make sense to  me.   

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Cha i rpe rson ,  i t  i s  no t  go ing  to ,  sor ry  

to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   20 

MR MANTSHA:   I t  i s  no t  go ing  to  make sense to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   Because you have no benef i t  o f  the 

d iscuss ions.   The ra t iona l  o f  a r r i v ing  a t  th is  i s  no t  be fore  

you.   So I  do  no t  accept  th is  to  make sense to  you  and as  
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much as  you shou ld  no t  expect  me  to  then rep r in t  what  was  

d iscussed when  these d iscuss ions was tak ing  p lace 

because I  do  no t  have i t  in  my [ ind is t inc t ] .  

 But  there  is  a  contex t ,  there  i s  fu l l  d iscuss ion  abou t  

th is  and aga in  Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld ,  I  am ta lk ing  to  

somebody who has pres ided over  se t t lements ,  many years  

o f  you r  t ime and Mr  Kennedy as  we l l .   We s i t  here  as  the  

commiss ion ,  look ing  back to  f i ve  years  ago.  

 As  the  commiss ion  as  we s i t  here  today we do not  

have the  submiss ions made to  mot iva te  ce r ta in  dec i s ions 10 

and i f  we then expect  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  commiss ion  to  

come to  more  or  l ess  same conc lus ion  w i th  those who were  

g iven the  submiss ions or  expect  the  Cha i rperson  o f  the 

commiss ion  to  say th is  i s  reasonab le ,  th is  i s  no t  

unreasonab le ,  in  the  absence o f  those submiss ions,  I  th ink  

i t  i s  a  d i f f i cu l t  dec is ion .  

 I t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me as  I  represent  the  board  to  then 

go po in t  by  po in t  on  those submiss ions I  do  no t  have and 

t ry  to  exp la in  submiss ion  by  submiss ion  and the  reasons 

fo r  i t .   So  I  th ink  i t  i s  un fa i r  to  expect  tha t  k ind  o f  a  th ing .   20 

I  th ink  the  na ture  o f  th is  p rocess Cha i rperson,  we must  

accept  tha t  cer ta in  th ings we  might  no t  unders tand 

proper ly  because  we were  no t  there  f i ve  years  ago.  

 We were  no t  se ized w i th  the  moment  because apar t  

f rom i f  you look a t  the  se t t lement ,  th is  se t t lement  i s  no t  in  
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i so la t ion  o f  the  to ta l  i ssues tha t  the  company was fac ing  a t  

the  t ime.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   So  those who took the  dec is ion ,  they had  

to  look  a t  the  b igger  p i c tu re  and sa t is fy  the i r  f iduc ia ry  du ty  

to  say look,  we can pay th is  amount  bu t  fo r  the  greate r  

good.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  you see I  wanted to  say in   

par t i cu la r  what  does not ,  what  makes th is  no t  to  make  

sense to  me,  i s  tha t  in  March Dene l  i s  aware  tha t  Mr  10 

Sa loo jee 's  cont rac t  i s  go ing  to  come to  an  end by  a  

f rac t ion  o f  t ime in  January  2017.  

 I t  i s  even aware  tha t  tha t  wou ld  no t  be  seen as a  

d ismissa l ,  i t  wou ld  jus t  be  the  coming to  an  end o f  a  f i xed  

te rm cont rac t .   I t  has  taken the  dec i s ion  i t  w i l l  no t  renew.   

Var ious th ings happened in  the  meant ime a f te r  tha t .   Now 

in  November,  Mr  Sa loo jee  is  le f t  wi th  November,  December,  

January  fo r  h is  cont rac t  to  end.   

 He has been on suspens ion  fo r  more  than a  year.   

A l l  tha t  one wou ld  expect  i s  tha t  a t  tha t  s tage,  Dene l  wou ld  20 

s imp ly  a l low the  cont rac t  to  come to  an  end by  a  f rac t ion  o f  

t ime.   i f  Dene l  wanted to  appo in t  a  permanent  CO,  CEO in  

order  to  address the  concerns o f  the  investors  or  whatever,  

i f  i t  made an announcement  tha t  i t  appo in ted  a  CEO but  he  

wou ld  s ta r t  w i th  e f fec t  f rom,  you know February  a f te r  the 
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exp i ry  o f  th is  cont rac t ,  a t  leas t  the  investors  wou ld  know 

tha t  a t  leas t  now there  is  go ing  to  be  a  permanent  CEO.   

 So,  so  you have a  s i tua t ion  where  as  fa r  as  Dene l  i s  

concerned,  as  fa r  as  the  board  is  concerned,  fo r  over  a  

year  i t  i s  s i t t ing  w i th  on  i t s  vers ion ,  very  s t rong ev idence 

tha t  these execut ives  are  gu i l t y   o f  ser ious m isconduct .   No 

hear ing  takes p lace.   

 C loser  to  the  end o f  the  cont rac t  per iod ,  th ree  

months ,  when the  . . .  i f  they  jus t  a l lowed the  con t rac t  to  

exp i re  they wou ld  no t  pay anyth ing  ex t ra .   They pay h im  10 

more .   I  do  no t  know whethe r  i t  i s  th ree  months  more  or  s ix  

months  more  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  was s i x  months  more ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  they pay h im more .   Th is  i s ,  th is  

person tha t  they  say has pu t  the  f inanc ia l  pos i t ion  o f  the  

company in  a  ve ry  d i f f i cu l t  pos i t ion ,  they g ive  h im some 

more  money tha t  he  is  no t  en t i t led  to ,  so  bu t  I  do  no t  want  

us  to  go  back.   

 I  jus t  want  you to  unders tand what  i s  go ing  on  in  my  

mind.   20 

MR MANTSHA:   I  rea l l y  apprec ia te  tha t  Cha i rperson .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   Le t  me jus t  say  one th ing .   What  a re  we 

se t t l ing?  What  a re  we se t t l ing?  We are  se t t l ing  

[ ind is t inc t ] .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   What?  

MR MANTSHA:   We a re  se t t l ing  a  case,  we are  se t t l ing  a  

l i t iga t ion  and Cha i rperson,  you wou ld  know tha t  whether  we 

have got  a  case or  no t ,  i s  a  mat te r  fo r  another  day.   A t  th is  

s tage we concede w i th in  the  best  in te res t  o f  the  company,  

tha t  the  l i t iga t ion  must  and th is  i s  the  pr imary  reason o f  

the  se t t lement .   

 Wou ld  be  reasons tha t  I  have  g iven,  because 

whethe r  the  cont rac t  i s  f in ish ing  in  th ree  months  or  

whatever  the  case,  there  was d ispute  in  eve ry  board  and 10 

we d id  no t  want  to  s i t  in  tha t  d ispute  because  i t  was 

harming us  fo r  the  greater  par t .   

 That  i s  how fa r  I  can g ive  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Jus t  to  comple te  

the  fac tua l  s i tua t ion  as  to  the  se t t lement .   We have dea l t  

w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  se t t lement  in  re la t ion  to  how much he  

was pa id  and you  have exp la ined why.   On the  same page,  

505 C lause 4 .2 ,  says i t  i s  recorded tha t  a l l  d isc ip l inary  

proceed ings aga ins t  the  Employee  have been te rm inated.   20 

 Were  you aware  tha t  one o f  the  ob jec t i ves  and  

te rms o f  the  se t t lement  ag reement  was to  abor t  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  tha t  was s t i l l  to  take  p lace?  

MR MANTSHA:   I t  was to  te rm inate  a l l  the  lega l  [ ind is t inc t ]  

–  00 :12 :15] .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  we l l  I  am re fer r ing  no t  to  a  lega l  

ac t ion  in  genera l .   

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am re fer r i ng  spec i f i ca l l y  to  

d isc ip l ina ry  p roceed ings.   

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  to  conf i rm a lso ,  there  was no  

l i t iga t ion  a t  tha t  s tage between the  execut ives  and  Dene l ,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  there  i s  a  l e t te r  where  there  was a  

th rea t  fo r  some app l i ca t ions and a l l  o f  tha t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  jus t  he lp  you Mr  Mantsha,  I  am 

sor ry  to  cu t  you shor t ,  bu t  i t  seems to  me tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Noth ing  came o f  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  there  was l i t iga t ion  in  th is  

sense,  apar t  f rom tha t  th rea t  o f  an  urgent  app l i ca t ion  wh ich  

presumably  they  were  th rea ten ing  to  b r ing  in  the  labour  

cour t  a l though they d id  no t  say  i t ,  there  was l i t iga t ion  in  20 

the  looser  sense,  in  the  sense tha t  he  has a l ready re fer red  

h is  d ispute  to  the  CCMA.   

 So i t  was a  lega l  d ispute  tha t  was pend ing  before  

the  CCMA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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MR MANTSHA:   And we saw the  re fer ra l  tha t  you  in  fac t  

po in ted  out  there  was a  re fer ra l  document  there .   So in  

tha t  sense there  was l i t iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sor ry  to  have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  he lp fu l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   P re-empted  the  w i tness to  answer  

your  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  tha t  i s  he lp fu l ,  ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  tha t  seems to  me Mr  Mantsha to  10 

have been present  in  your  m ind w i th  the  board  tha t  you  

want  to  te rm inate  any d i spute .   

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  there  is  a  d ispute  about  whether  

they were  gu i l t y  and so  fo r th ,  wh ich  cou ld  have been the  

sub jec t  o f  a  d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry.   He was ra i s ing  d isputes ,  

th rea ts  o f  u rgent  app l i ca t ions wh ich  he  does not  seem to  

have car r i ed  ou t .   

 But  what  he  d id  car ry  ou t  was the  th rea t  to  b r i ng  a  

CCMA d ispute  be fore  the  CCMA and tha t  was then pend ing .   20 

So th is  was a l l  comple te l y  reso lved,  inc lud ing  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  p roceed ings.   

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t ,  thank  you.   Thank you Cha i r,  I  

am sor ry  i f  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   S tepped on h is  toes,  bu t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  tha t  i s  he lp fu l .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr  Man tsha,  we have touched 

prev ious l y  in  an  ear l ie r  sess ion  be fore  today on the  fac t  

tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Kennedy,  I  jus t  rea l i sed  

tha t  fo r  some reason I  do  no t  have  the  second page  o f  the 

le t te r  a t  422.    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sor ry,  522.  

CHAIRPERSON:   422.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   422.   

CHAIRPERSON:   One page on ly,  bu t  your  jun io r  cou ld  

a t tend to  i t  wh i le  you . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  see  we have  the  same prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We have the  same prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  tha t  can be addressed.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  perhaps  w i th  your  leave may we 20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  dur ing  lunch.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Get  tha t  page  and have i t  inser ted?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you  Cha i r.   Apar t  f rom Mr  
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Sa loo jee  Mr  Man tsha,  you a lso  o f  course  had two o the r  

employees then on suspens ion ,  Mr  Mhlonh lo  and Ms A f r i ca  

and the  ev idence f rom Mr  Mhlonh lo  has been tha t  he  

s igned a  se t t lement  agreement  and he was pa id  an  ex  

grac ia  6 .6  m i l l i on  rand wh ich  was equ iva len t  to  24  months  

o f  h is  sa la ry  p lus  a  bonus o f  1 .6  m i l l ion  rand.   

 D id  you a lso  have tha t  b rough t  to  the  board ’s  

a t ten t ion  fo r  your  cons idera t ion  and approva l?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And he o f  course  had not  l i t i ga ted  10 

a l though the  a t to rneys who were  ac t ing  on  h i s  beha l f ,  

express ing  concern  i f  there  were  de lays  w i th  the 

d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  e tce tera .  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  a l l  o f  tha t  i ssue was se t t led  w i th  

Mr  Mhlonh lo  to  the  tune o f  6 .6  m i l l ion  rand p lus  the  bonus,  

and then we a lso  know tha t  Ms A f r i ca  a lso  had a  se t t lement  

conc luded w i th  her.   Were  you made aware  o f  tha t  a t  board  

leve l  as  we l l?  

 There  was a  se t t lement  on  the  bas is  tha t  Dene l  and  20 

she agreed tha t  she wou ld  then take  ear l y  re t i rement  and  

then apar t  f rom whatever  benef i t  she may have had under  

her  re t i rement  o r  pens ion  fund,  she was pa id  a  se t t lement  

amount  o f  1 .6  m i l l ion  rand equ iva len t  to  12  months ’ 

remunera t ion  in  her  case,  p lus  accrued leave,  p lus  75% of  
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an  incent ive  bonus.   

 Were  you aware  o f  tha t  se t t lement  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA:    Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   On those te rms?  

MR MANTSHA:   Approved by  the  board .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   I  am not  go ing  to  take  you to  

those se t t lement  agreements .   You a re  comfor tab le  w i th  

the  po in t  tha t  I  am put t ing  to  you.   So the re  were  very  

substant ia l  amounts  tha t  were  pa id  to  these  var ious 

execut ives .   10 

 Mr  Mhlonh lo  appears  to  have got  perhaps the  most ,  

bu t  bear ing  in  m ind,  h is  sen ior  pos i t ion  and a lso  the  fac t  

tha t  he  was a  permanent  employee whereas Mr  Sa loo jee  

was not ,  he  was  on a  f i xed  te rm  cont rac t .   So i t  was 6 .6  

m i l l ion  p lus  another  1 .6  m i l l i on  fo r  Mr  Mhlonh lo ,  you  know.    

 I t  was about  2 .4  m i l l ion  in  the  case o f  Mr  Sa loo jee  

in  add i t ion  to  what  he  had a l ready been pa id  fo r  about  17  

months ,  and then  Ms A f r i ca  was 1 .6  m i l l ion  in  add i t ion  to  

accrued leave,  e tce tera .   In  re la t ion  to  those two o ther  

execut ives ,  w i th  whom there  were  se t t lement  ag reements ,  20 

is  the  reason why the  jus t i f i ca t ion  why they,  the  board  

approved those se t t lements ,  i s  the  jus t i f i ca t ion  e f fec t i ve ly  

the  same as the  jus t i f i ca t ion  you  have a l ready g iven in  

re la t ion  to  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  se t t lement  o r  were  the re  any 

d i f fe ren t  fac to rs?  
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MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Cha i rperson,  as  I  sa id  the re  were  

proper  p resenta t ions.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   To  mot iva te  the  se t t lement  o f  the  two 

execut ives .    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  jus t  s ta r t  a f resh ja .   

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  the  to  s ta r t  w i th  I  d id  no t  g ive  the  

de ta i l s  o f  the  mot iva t ion  he re .   I  jus t  h igh l igh ted  cer ta in  

po in ts  wh ich  were  pr imary  d r ive rs  to  those se t t lements ,  bu t  

I  am say ing  the  documents  wh ich  have been submi t ted  to  10 

mot iva te  those se t t lements ,  and  o f  course  the ,  those  

documents  wou ld  have g i ven reasons fo r  bo th  Mr  Sa loo jee  

and both  Mr  Mhlonh lo  on  those amounts  tha t  were  f ina l l y  

agreed and the  submiss ion  wou ld  have g iven reasons why  

Ms A f r i ca  there  must  be  se t t lement  the  way i t  was.   

 Yes,  i t  wou ld  con ta in  a l l  those reasons.   I  m igh t  no t  

say  a l l  o f  them here .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Oh,  o f  course .   I  accept  tha t .   

MR MANTSHA:   Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Accept  tha t .   Now may I  jus t  go  and I  20 

want  to  be  very  br i e f  on  th is ,  because i t  has  been  

t raversed in  some deta i l  a l ready,  par t i cu la r l y  in  quest ion ing  

f rom the  learned  Cha i rperson.   I  jus t  want  to  g ive  you a  

f ina l  oppor tun i ty  to  re f lec t  on  th is  quest ion  and g ive  an  

answer.   
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 I f  we accept  your  log ic ,  i f  we accept  your  fac ts  and  

your  log ic ,  then there  were  ve ry  ser ious charges aga ins t  a l l  

th ree  o f  these ind iv idua ls .   You have suspended them you 

say fo r  good reason tha t  you have exp la ined.   You had 

them charged fo r  good reason tha t  you have exp la ined.   

 You had an unanswerab le  case as  you have  

exp la ined.   They  shou ld  have been,  they cou ld  have been 

f i red  on  the  spot ,  because your  ev idence is  a  few weeks 

back,  and i f  you have done tha t ,  you cou ld  have te rm inated  

the i r  employment .   10 

 You are  very  conf ident  about  tha t  resu l t  and you  

wou ld  have then not  needed to  se t t le  anyth ing .   The  

se t t lement  appears  to  have been o f  the  order  o f  a lmost  ten  

m i l l ion  rand.   We are  ta lk ing  he re  no t  o f  Mr  Mantsha ’s  

persona l  money  but  o f  Dene l  wh ich  was a  pub l i c  

corpo ra t ion ,  a  s ta te  owned ent i t y  hav ing  pub l i c  funds tha t  

a re  now be ing  spent  in  te rms o f  se t t lement  agreements  and  

pub l i c  funds he ld  by  a  s ta te  co rpora t ion  tha t  was  in  d i re  

s t ra i t s  as  you and many o ther  w i tnesses were  g iven .   

 I  jus t  want  to  g i ve  you a  las t  oppor tun i ty  to  t ry  to  20 

exp la in  what  I  pe rce i ve  as  a  log i ca l  p rob lem,  because i f  we 

accept  a l l  o f  you r  log ic ,  a t  the  beg inn ing  you had a  per fec t  

case,  you had g reat  ev idence,  you had the  law on your  

s ide .  

 You suspended them for  good reason,  you were  
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d isc ip l in ing  them for  good reason and you cou ld  have done  

i t  and i t  was not  done.   Ins tead you pa id  them out  

se t t lement  amoun ts  tha t  you d id  no t  even need to  pay.   In  

Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  case you sa id  we want  to  f i re  you now and  

you d id  no t  d i sc ip l ine  h im.  

 You then sa id  v ia  Mr  Pate l ,  the  a t to rney,  you sa id  

we do not  have to  employ  you past  January  next  year  so  

we do not  need to  d isc ip l ine  you  in  the  meant ime ,  so  we 

pa id  you  ou t  un t i l  the  end o f  tha t .   Mr  Sa loo jee  then cou ld  

have been le f t  on  the  bas i s  your  cont rac t  has come to  an 10 

end.  

 Ins tead he i s  pa id  anothe r  s ix  months  and so  I  can 

go on w i th  Mr  Mhlonh lo  and Ms A f r i ca .   You  unders tand  

the  log ica l  d i f f i cu l t y  tha t  I  have when  I  were  to  inv i te  you  

to  exp la in ,  i f  you  cou ld  have done  i t  and you shou ld  have  

done i t  a t  the  beg inn ing ,  why d id  you not  when i t  ac tua l l y  

meant  tha t  you were  pay ing  approx imate l y  ten  m i l l ion  rand 

in  tha t  sor t  o f  ba l l  pa rk ,  the  pub l i c  funds tha t  Dene l  

despera te l y  needed.   

MR MANTSHA:   Okay.   Le t  me dea l  w i th  what  you te rm 20 

your  log ica l  d i f f i cu l t ies .   I  am ca l led  here  as  a  w i tness i n  

my capac i ty  as  the  Cha i rperson,  the  then Cha i rpe rson o f  

Dene l .   There  are  i ssues ra ised about  dec is ions o f  Dene l .   

I  mean the  dec i s ions o f  the  board .   

 But  there  is  no  a t tempt  to  b r ing  the  documents  upon 
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wh ich  those dec is ions a re  made .   You are  g i ven the  

in fo rmat ion  as  you are  g iven today.   You have l i s tened to  

my ev idence and you have l i s tened to  the  ev idence o f  

many o f  Dene l  w i tnesses,  and some o f  them Mr  Kennedy 

you cross-examined them.    

 You quest ioned them.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   To  g ive  you the  in fo rmat ion ,  the  past  and  

the  cu r ren t ,  bu t  c lea r ly  the  ev idence tha t  they have to ld  

you,  tha t  they  have to ld  you,  ob jec t i ve  ev idence tha t  they 10 

have to ld  you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   You shou ld  no t  have tha t  d i f f i cu l t y  tha t  you 

are  ra is ing  to  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Why is  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:   For  the  s imp le  reason because your  

d i f f i cu l t y  i s  based on confus ing  the  substant ive  na ture  o f  

the  process and the  s teps wh ich  were  taken to  p rosecute  

the  substant ive  par t  o f  i t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   How am I  con fus ing  them? 20 

MR MANTSHA:   I  have a l ready to ld  the  Cha i rperson tha t  

we d id  in  fac t  ac t  as  the  board .   We were  no t  impressed  

w i th  the  de lay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   We changed  the  person who was  
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respons ib le .   I  even to ld  you tha t  the  le t te r  tha t  you have 

read to  me the  las t  t ime was in  fac t  leaked  to  the  

suspended employee,  wh ich  to  us  as  a  board ,  seek now 

tha t  th is  person is  de l ibera te ly  f rus t ra t ing  th is  p rocess,  no t  

to  move.  

 Not  to  move.   So when you say hav ing  such a  

s t rong case wh ich  we cou ld  have d ismissed them.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   And eventua l l y  tha t  d id  no t  happen,  they  

wou ld  have been  sav ing  i f  tha t  p rocess wou ld  have been 10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   Taken fo rward ,  bu t  what  you a l so  do  not  

say,  i t  i s  how fa r  the  l i t iga t ion  wou ld  have gone and a t  what  

cos t  to  the  company in  te rms o f  the  money we pa id  to  the 

lawyers  and I  th ink  you wou ld  apprec ia te  tha t  the  law f i rm 

tha t  we were  us ing ,  i s  one o f  the  b iggest  law f i rm in  the 

count ry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Undoubted ly.  

MR MANTSHA:   So  i t  does not  come cheap.   So there  i s  a  20 

cost  here .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   To  the  lawyers .   There  is  a  cost  to  

whatever  we were  go ing  to  pay.   We d id  no t  know,  as  you 

know the ,  I  mean you know i t  be t te r  than  me,  tha t  th i s  
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l i t i ga t ion  can drag a  very  long t ime.   So there  wou ld  have 

been money to  be  pa id  there .    

 But  there  is  a lso  oppor tun i ty  cos t  tha t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  

quant i f y  tha t  we wanted to  have s tab i l i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   We wanted to  ensure  the  investors ,  the  

lenders ,  tha t  yes ,  there  i s  permanent  leadersh ip .   When  

you ta lk  to  them,  the  dec i s ion  tha t  you made wi th  them,  

they have got  f i ve  years  to  see them through.   We were  

t ry ing  a t  tha t  t ime,  to  renegot ia te  the  Nedbank loan ,  and i t  10 

was d i f f i cu l t .   

 I  remember  I  have a t tended,  there  was a  h igh  leve l  

meet ing  wh ich  was ca l led  a t ,  a t  Absa where  they requested 

me as a  Cha i rperson.   They have ra ised the  issue o f  

s tab i l i t y  a t  the  t ime,  and I  th ink  there  was anothe r  meet ing  

where  Nedbank representa t i ve  invo lved in  the  mat te r,  came 

to  the  company and they have ra ised th is  i ssue.   

 So the  oppor tun i ty  cos t  and the  cost  to  l i t i ga t ion  

and o ther  re la ted  costs ,  where  they were  go ing  to  do  a  

d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing ,  there  were  costs  invo lved.    20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Even ten  m i l l ion  costs  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA:   I t  cou ld  have been more .   I  mean,  you 

know in  th i s  p ro fess ion  depend ing  on who you employ.   

Some wou ld  charge you a  lo t  o f  money pe r  day.   So we do 

not  know.   
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you be l ieve  tha t  you had an  

unanswerab le  de fence to  those?  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.   The case is  a  s t rong case,  no t  on l y  

by  my ev idence.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   Bu t  by  ob jec t i ve  ev idence tha t  you were  

to ld  in  th is  commiss ion ,  tha t  in  fac t  we a re  tak ing  s teps to  

t ry  to  recover  the  money.   So tha t  ev idence you were  to ld .   

So tha t  i s  the  ob jec t i ve  ev idence.   So i t  does not  mean the  

fac t  tha t  there  was a  se t t lement  i t  was waste  o f  money.  10 

 What  I  am say ing  to  you,  you  were  no t  in  the  

pos i t ion  o f  the  board .   You were  no t  in  the  pos i t ions  o f  

those execut ives .   Those execut ives  and the  board  had to  

take  a  dec i s ion ,  g iven the  mate r ia l  cond i t ion  a t  the  t ime  

and tha t  dec i s ion  was taken in fo rmed by  a  lo t  o f  dynamics .   

 Cons ider ing  the  cost  o f  ten  m i l l ion  tha t  you are  

read ing  to  me,  we cou ld  have l i t iga ted  more  than ten  

m i l l ion .   The oppor tun i ty  cos t  more  than ten  m i l l ion  and 

o ther  re la ted  cons ide ra t ion  tha t  the  board  has cons idered.   

I  do  no t  expect  you w i th  the  l im i ted  in fo rmat ion  tha t  you  20 

have,  and not  hav ing  the  s igh t  o f  de l ibera t ion  and 

submiss ions,  wh ich  were  g i ven to  the  board  to  mot iva te  

se t t lement  on  those amounts ,  to  f ind  i t  reasonab le .   

 I t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  you to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR MANTSHA:   Because even the  ev idence tha t  you are  

go ing  th rough here ,  omi t  the  ev idence wh ich  was presented 

to  the  board .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Ja ,  bu t  tha t  i s  why I  am debat ing  i t  

w i th  you.   You say you are  no t  surpr i sed I  cannot  

unders tand.   

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am s imply  say ing  to  you,  I  am not  

pu t t ing  what  I  wou ld  want  wr i t ten  in  a  repor t  o r  a  judgment  

o r  anyth ing ,  I  am s imply  say ing  there  seems to  be  a  log ica l  10 

d is junctu re .   I f  there  i s  no t ,  p lease  te l l  us  why there  is  no t .  

MR MANTSHA:   In  the  absence o f  these documents  tha t  I  

am te l l ing  you,  o f  course  you wou ld  no t  unders tand.   I t  i s  

log ica l ,  bu t  i f  you  were  to  take  me th rough ja ,  th is  i s  what  

was presented to  the  board  as  fa r  as  the  ra t iona l i t y  o f  th is  

se t t lement  and th is  and th is  and th is ,  th is  to  you does not  

make sense.   

 I t  i s  one th ing  to  s tand here  today and go back f i ve  

years ,  and t ry  to  dec ide  tha t  no ,  no  tha t  was wrong.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   20 

MR MANTSHA:   And we were  never  in  the  shoes o f  those 

peop le  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   Who were  mak ing  dec is ions a t  the  t ime,  

and tha t  was the  t ime o f  a  se r ious  po l i t i ca l  t ime out  in  th is  
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count ry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .    

WITNESS:   There  were  lo ts  o f  th ings happen ing  in  th is  

count ry,  we were  preoccup ied  to  save the  count ry.   We 

were  preoccup ied  to  sa t is fy  the  lenders  and the  investors ,  

to  say we are  s tampled[? ] ,  you can dea l  w i th  us .   You are ,  

the  agreements  we make w i th  you w i l l  be  honoured,  

because th is  execut ive  have got  f ive  years  te rm.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t ,  thank  you Mr  Mantsha.   Cha i r,  

I  am about  to ,  I  am go ing  to  move away f rom tha t  who le  10 

top ic  and move to  another  one.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am happy to  s ta r t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  Mr  Kennedy you s t i l l  have about  

f i ve  m inutes  or  so .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank  you ve ry  much,  I  am 

abso lu te l y  happy to  –  you know however  long you want  me  

to  go  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  I  wan t  now Mr  Mantsha  to  ge t  20 

to  the  issue o f  benef i t s  you may poss ib ly  have rece ived 

f rom the  Gupta  fami ly  and the i r  bus iness assoc ia tes .  

 Now le t  me jus t  unders tand i f  I  –  i f  I  go t  your  

ev idence prev ious ly.   As  I  unders tood your  ev idence in  an  

ear l ie r  sess ion  w i th  us ,  some weeks ago,  you ind ica ted  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 88 of 301 
 

tha t  you somet imes t rave l led  overseas dur ing  th is  pe r iod  

tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  look ing  a t ,  and somet imes we wou ld  

t rave l  on  o f f i c ia l  bus iness fo r  Dene l  in  wh ich  case you ’ re  

t rave l l ing  costs  wou ld  be  pa id  fo r  by  Dene l ,  and we have 

no d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  tha t .   

But  you a l so  ind ica ted  tha t  there  were  some t r ips  

tha t  you wou ld  take  tha t  were  no t  fo r  o f f i c ia l  bus iness o f  

Dene l  and tha t  you a lways pa id  fo r  tha t  yourse l f ,  

persona l ly.  Remember,  you gave tha t  ev idence.  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed Cha i rpe rson,   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And I  am do ing  jus t i ce  in  my 

summary to  your  ev idence?  

MR MANTSHA:    Indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And does tha t  mean tha t  whenever  

you t rave l led  o ther  than fo r  o f f i c i a l  Dene l  bus iness,  wh ich  

Dene l  wou ld  have pa id  fo r,  whenever  you went  overseas 

fo r  o ther  reasons ,  fo r  a  persona l  reason you wou ld  pay fo r  

the  a i r  t rave l  and the  accommodat ion  and  re la ted  

expenses?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now there  are  some 

documents  in  the  bund le  Cha i r  may I  take  you Cha i r  and 

the  w i tness to  the  bund le  spec i f i c  to  Mr  Mantsha.   I t  i s  

bund le  8  and i t  i s  exh ib i t  W22.   

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  we go ing  to  go  back to  th is  o ther  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 89 of 301 
 

bund le  o r  can they take  i t  away?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    No,  they can take  i t  away fo r  the  t ime  

be ing .   I  do  no t  th ink  we are  go ing  to  -  come back to  i t  

la te r,  bu t  pe rhaps  i f  i t  i s  jus t  kept  somewhere  fa i r l y  c lose .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

MR MANTSHA:    You sa id  bund le?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  i t  i s  bund le  8 ,  i t  shou ld  have  

on the  sp ine  to  Dene l  bund le  08 .  

MR MANTSHA:    I  have got  W4.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry ;  Mr  Mantsha I  d id  no t  hear  10 

you.   I f  you  have  tha t  f i l e ,  you w i l l  f ind  exh ib i t  W22 s tar ts  

a t  page 319,  and  i f  I  can  remind you jus t  look  a t  the  top  

le f t  hand corner  fo r  those page numbers .   I t  i s  exh ib i t  W22,  

Mr  Mantsha.   Jus t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi l l  your  jun io r  ass is t  h im to  f ind  the  

f i le .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  perhaps we shou ld ,  can 

someone approach the  w i tness and  ass i s ts  h im.  

MR MANTSHA:    Okay,  I  see 22 th i s  one?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Have you got  i t?  20 

MR MANTSHA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  and i f  I  can  take  you jus t  

to  make sure  we ta lk ing  on  the  same bund le .   I f  you  look a t  

the  top  le f t  hand corne r  o f  each page fo r  the  page numbers  

go  to  page 330,  i t  was your  f i rs t  s ta tement  tha t  we went  
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th rough on a  prev ious occas ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  page number?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Three,  th ree  zero ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Three,  th ree  ze ro ,  okay.   

MR MANTSHA:    Three,  th ree  zero? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  in  your  vers ion  i s  tha t  the  f i rs t  

page o f  a  s ta tement  tha t  you s igned? 

MR MANTSHA:    Maybe i f  someone can he lp  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May my learned jun io r  approach the  

w i tness to  ass i s t  and ensure?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  I  am to ld  by  my  learned 

jun io r  tha t  Mr  Mantsha had ind ica ted  pr i va te l y  to  her  tha t  

he  wou ld  l i ke  a  comfor t  b reak.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  ja ,  then maybe we may as  we l l  take  

the  lunch break.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  le t  us  take  the  lunch break and  

we w i l l  resume a t  2  o 'c lock .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    2  o ’c lock  thank you Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r,  Mr  Mantsha may I  
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jus t  make a  request  to  you tha t  has been passed on to  me  

by the  techn ica l  peop le  who a re  do ing  the  te lev is ing  fo r  the 

s t reaming o f  the  ev idence.   Apparent ly,  somet imes  you s i t  

back qu i te  a  b i t  o r  somet imes tu rn  and I  have no doubt  

what  your  t ry ing  to  do  is  jus t  engage me in  eye contac t ,  

wh ich  is  a  cour teous th ing  in  a  way,  bu t  i t  means tha t  

somet imes the  -  par t i cu la r l y  the  vo ice  does not  ge t  p icked  

up.   

So i f  you  do not  m ind t ry  and –  and I  know i t  i s  

d i f f i cu l t ,  ra ther  than look ing  a t  me t ry  and look ra the r  in  the  10 

d i rec t ion  o f  the  Cha i r,  because o f  course ,  you are  g iv ing  

ev idence to  h im,  u l t imate ly,  ra ther  than me,  i f  you  can t ry  

and do tha t  and then hopefu l l y,  tha t  w i l l  d i rec t  your  vo i ce  

towards the  m ic rophone.   I  know i t  i s  a  b i t  o f  a  bore  to  

have to  sor t  o f  remind yourse l f  on  tha t  bu t  i f  you  wou ld  no t  

m ind jus t  do ing  tha t  tha t  w i l l  he lp .   

MR MANTSHA:    Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Mantsha you ind ica ted  tha t  we 

were  go ing  to  look  in to  i ssues  re la t ing  to  your  t rave l  

overseas and who pa id  them,  we  have had jus t  over  an  20 

hour  fo r  you to  re f lec t  over  lunch .   I s  there  anyth ing  you  

want  to  s ta r t  w i th  be fore  I  take  you to  ind iv idua l  

documents ,  in  re la t ion  to  your  ev idence jus t  a  shor t  wh i le  

back,  tha t  when you t rave l led  overseas,  i f  i t  was  o f f i c ia l  

bus iness fo r  Dene l  i t  wou ld  be  pa id  fo r  by  Dene l ,  i f  i t  was  
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any  o ther  bus iness o f  your  own tha t  wou ld  be  -  tha t  was  

pa id  fo r  by  yourse l f?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I  th ink  w i thout  t ry ing  to  waste  t ime  

we can answer  document  by  document .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You want  to  do  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    As  we move -  so  I  w i l l  exp la in  the  contex t  

o f  what  I  am tak ing  about .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sure .   Le t  us  s ta r t  p lease and Cha i r  

we s t i l l  i n  bund le  8  f rom page 465.  

MR MANTSHA:    Sor ry  wh ich  bund le  are  we in?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bund le  8 ,  page 465 i t  i s  the  one tha t  

inc ludes your  s ta tement  tha t  we were  look ing  a t  jus t  be fore  

lunch.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The one tha t  we were  look ing  a t  jus t  

be fore  we ad journed.   

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  Cha i r  I  do  have.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you 465 p lease.  

MR MANTSHA:    I  do  have Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank you and you see th is  i s  

an  invo i ce  i ssued  by  Trave l  Exce l l ence.   They are  a  f i rm o f  20 

t rave l  agents  and  i t  i s  an  invo ice  tha t  re f lec ts  some t rave l  

de ta i l s  and in  par t i cu la r  f l i gh ts  and  v isas .   Now,  i f  you  look 

a t  the  tab le  in  the  m idd le ,  i t  i s  headed Emi ra tes/SAA,  you 

see tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  do .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then i t  re fe rs  to  passenger,  there  

are  th ree  passengers  re fer red  to  i n  the  f i rs t  co lumn under  

tha t  head ing  passenger.    

MR MANTSHA:    I  can  see.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The f i rs t  i s  t he  name o f  Mr  Duduzane 

Zuma,  I  th ink  i t  may have been misspe l t ,  bu t  tha t  i s  Mr  

Duduzane Zuma,  no t  so?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  rou te  i s  ind ica ted  as  a 

par t i cu la r  f l i gh t  on  a  par t i cu la r  da te ,  the  da tes  i t  appears  10 

was the  7 t h  o f  October  and we see f rom the  date  o f  the 

invo i ce  i t se l f  near  the  top  r igh t  jus t  be low the  p ic tu re  o r  

the  logo ra ther  o f  Trave l  Exce l lence.   I t  says  da te  10 t h  o f  

the  10 t h  2015,  do  you see tha t?   

MR MANTSHA:    I  do .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And so  we are  ta lk ing  about  October  

2015 and then the  second passenger  i s  Ms Shan ice ,  i s  i t?   

I  am not  sure  how to  pronounce tha t ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  Shan ice  

Zuma.   

MR MANTSHA:    I  can  see tha t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  the  cor rec t  p ronunc ia t ion  to  

your  knowledge?  

MR MANTSHA:    No I  -  o f  cou rse  I  su f fe r  f rom the  same as 

you do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  do  you  not  know her?   I  do  no t  
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know her  so  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  i t…[ in te rvene]  

MR MANTSHA:    Look,  I  wou ld  assume f rom th is ,  i t  wou ld  

be  Mr  Zuma’s  w i fe .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  my unders tand ing  to .  

MR MANTSHA:     Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  in  fac t ,  I  th ink  they were  marr i ed  

jus t  a  b i t  ear l ie r  in  2015 and the  f l igh t  de ta i l s  a re  exact ly  

the  same and then the  th i rd  passenger  i s  your  own name,  

i s  tha t  r igh t ,  Lug isan i  Dan ie l  Mantsha?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ,  the  same f l igh t  de ta i l s  

aga in ,  except  tha t  the  da tes  is  d i f fe ren t ,  fo r  Mr  and Mrs  

Duduzane Zuma the  da te  i s  the  7 t h  o f  October  and in  your  

case,  i t  i s  the  6 t h  o f  October,  cor rec t?   

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then i t  says  Duba i  v isas  t imes 

two,  and there  i s  a  charge fo r  t ha t  and a  t i cke t ing  fee  

charge fo r  tha t .   Now,  th is  appears  to  then re f lec t  tha t  a  

t rave l  agent  made book ings fo r  a i r  t rave l  by  yourse l f ,  as  

we l l  as  Mr  and Mrs  Duduzane Zuma,  on  the  6 t h  o r  7 t h  o f  20 

October  and a lso  ar range th ings l i ke ,  v isas .   Do you reca l l  

hav ing  a  t r ip ,  tak ing  a  t r ip  to  Duba i?   

MR MANTSHA:    I  do  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  was a t  the  same t ime 

rough ly  as  Mr  and Mrs  Duduzane Zuma.  
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MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and we see tha t  the  invo ice  is  

made out  by  the  t rave l  agents  to  Westdawn Inves tments  

P ty  L td ,  you see tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  can  see tha t  Cha i rperson.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And are  you aware  o f  the  fac t  tha t  

Westdawn Investments  was a  shareho lder  in  VR Laser?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  th ink  jus t  ge t t ing  back to  my ev idence I  

ind ica ted  tha t  yes ,  I  knew around  the  t ime when we were  

do ing  due d i l igence in  VR As ia ,  as  a  pa r tner  o f  Dene l  and 10 

th is  i s  a round 2016,  November,  December  somewhere  and 

then I  knew then they a re .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You knew then and you conf i rm now 

tha t  Westdawn was one o f  the  shareho lde rs  in  VR Laser?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  Mr  Duduzane 

Zuma h imse l f  pe rsona l ly,  was a t  leas t  a t  tha t  s tage,  I  do  

no t  know about  now,  bu t  a t  tha t  s tage was a  shareho lde r  in  

West  Dawn Investments?  

MR MANTSHA:    That  Mr  Zuma was a  shareho lde r?  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  in  2016,  when i t  appeared he  was a  

shareho lde r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and Mr  Sa l im Essa was a lso  a  

shareho lde r,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  my reco l lec t ion  is  Mr  Duduzane 

Zuma and Mr  Tony Gupta  were  the  shareho lde r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Tony Gupta ,  h imse l f?  

MR MANTSHA:    Ja ,  I  am not  aware  o f  Mr  Sa l im Essa  

be ing  a  shareho lder  o f  West  Dawn.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  a l r igh t  thank you and what  was  

the  purpose o f  th is  t r ip  to  Duba i?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  as  I  ind i ca ted ,  th is  was a  persona l  

t r ip .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Persona l  as  in  a  ho l iday  or  i s  i t  10 

persona l  as  in  you were  do ing  bus iness bu t  no t  Dene l  

bus iness,  you were  do ing  persona l  bus iness?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  was not  do ing  Dene l  bus iness i t  was my  

persona l  bus iness.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Were  you do ing  any o ther  bus iness,  

was i t  a  ho l iday  o r  were  you do ing  any o the r  bus iness?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I  was do ing  my own persona l  

bus iness a t  the  t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  i t  was fo r  bus iness reasons? 

MR MANTSHA:    I t  was fo r  my persona l  bus iness.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  run ,  non-Dene l  bus iness 

reasons?  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  no t  Dene l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    And may  I  add th i s  Cha i rpe rson?  I  have a 
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fami ly,  b ro the r,  d i rec t  a f te r  me,  who l i ves  in  tha t  count ry  

p robab ly  10  years  now or  more .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Your  own b ro ther?  

MR MANTSHA:    My own b ro ther  who comes a f te r  me.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    And we have been ta lk ing  about  a  lo t  o f  

th ings and th is  t r ip  was under taken in  pursuant  o f  some o f  

the  th ings tha t  I  have been ta lk ing  to  h im about .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  in  pursu i t  o f?  

MR MANTSHA:    Th i s  t r ip  has been under taken,  in  10 

pursuance o f  a  lo t  o f  oppor tun i t ies  tha t  myse l f  and my 

younger  b ro ther  have been ta lk ing  about .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bus iness oppor tun i t ies?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  bus iness oppor tun i t ies .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see ,  so  those were  bus iness 

oppor tun i t ies  tha t  you en joy  younger  b ro the r  were  pursu ing  

tha t  those bus iness oppor tun i t ies  a lso  invo l ved Mr  

Duduzane Zuma? 

MR MANTSHA:    Not  a t  a l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Not  a t  a l l ,  so  why is  i t  tha t  Westdawn 20 

were  invo ic ing  sor ry,  why is  i t  tha t  the  Trave l  Exce l lence,  

t rave l  agents  were  invo ic ing  Westdawn Investments  fo r  

t i cke ts  tha t  were  bought  fo r  f i rs t l y  Mr  Duduzane  Zuma,  

second ly,  h is  w i fe  and th i rd l y  yourse l f?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  th ink  I  exp la ined myse l f  Cha i rperson,  I  
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used Mr  Ashu ar range a  t r ip .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You used Mr?  

MR MANTSHA:    Mr  Ashu.   

CHAIRPERSON:    You used Mr  Ashu Chawla?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  have got  d i f f i cu l t ies  to  p ronounce  

proper ly.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MANTSHA:    So  I  have used h im to  ar range th is  and I  10 

have g i ven the  background before ,  why I  used h im.   So of  

course ,  when you engage a  pe rson to  a r range th is ,  I  d id  

no t  know wh ich  account  he  was us ing  to  pay to  t rave l .   But  

the  ar rangement  be tween me and h im,  he  ar ranged,  and he 

te l l s  me how much i t  i s ,  and then I  se t t le ,  so  th is  was the  

ar rangement  he re .   

He d id  ind ica te  to  me tha t  Mr  Zuma wou ld  be  

under tak ing  the  t r ip ,  more  o r  less  the  same t ime as  ou rs .   

So I  knew tha t  Mr  Zuma wou ld  be  go ing  to  tha t  p lace ,  I  

th ink  we a l l  know tha t  Mr  Zuma is  ac tua l l y  based  in  tha t  20 

par t  o f  the  wor ld .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and d id…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  you sa id  you d id  exp la in  

p rev ious l y  I  th ink  tha t  i s  why you used Mr  Chawla ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  
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MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease re f resh  my memory  because I  

cannot  remember.  

MR MANTSHA:    What  I  d id  say Cha i rperson was tha t  the  

f i rs t  engagement  I  had w i th  h im  is  when I  t rave l led  to  

Ind ia .   

CHAIRPERSON:    When you found? 

MR MANTSHA:    When I  t rave l led  to  Ind ia .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR MANTSHA:    He was do ing  some sor t  o f  a  s ide  10 

bus iness or  s ide  show to  t ry  to  fac i l i ta te  th is  k ind  o f  

a r rangement .   So fo r  conven ience sake,  so  I  used h im  

here ,  and I  used h im in  o ther  th ings as  we l l ,  as  to  a r range  

fo r  the  t r ip .   That  i s  why th is  happened.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now le t  us  jus t ,  Cha i r  I  can take  the  

w i tness to  exact ly  tha t  i f  you  are  ask ing  who is  Mr  Chawla?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  jus t  want  to  ge t  th is  ou t  o f  the  way.  

He was not  a  t rave l  agent ,  he  was not  own ing a  t rave l  

agency,  i s  tha t  co r rec t  o r  d id  he  Chawla?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  own ing  a  t rave l l ing  agency i n  wh ich  20 

sense?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  am jus t  -  when you say,  you asked 

h im to  organ ise  as  I  unders tand your  t rave l l ing .  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  am jus t  t r y ing  to  f ind  ou t  whethe r  
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the  reason you asked h im may be  connected w i th  the  fac t  

tha t  he  had the  runn ing ,  he  had a  t rave l  agency anyway,  so  

apar t  f rom o ther  reasons.  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  no  Cha i rperson,  the  f i rs t  engagement  

was when I  went  to  Ind ia ,  and he sa id ,  look in  fu tu re  i f  you  

have got  th is  k ind  o f  th ings,  contac t  me I  w i l l  a r range your  

v isa ,  whatever  you need to  save,  to  be  conven ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You ta lk ing  about  i f  you  were  t rave l l ing?  

MR MANTSHA:    I f  I  am persona l ly  t rave l l ing ,  I  can ask  h im  

to  ar range because I  am sure  he  was do ing  a  lo t  o f  these 10 

th ings fo r  a  number  o f  peop le ,  and he was ab le  to  secure  

whatever…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    D iscounts ,  bene f i t s .  

MR MANTSHA:    …discounts  fo r  o thers .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  A l r igh t ,  Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Now Mr  Chawla  was in  

fac t  a t  tha t  t ime the  ch ie f  execut ive  o f f i cer  o f  Sahara  

Computers ,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  am not  sure  whether  h is  pos i t ion  was 

ch ie f  execut ive  bu t  what  I  am su re  o f  he  was work ing  in  20 

one o f  the  en t i t ies  where  the  Gupta  fami l ies  were  the  

owners  o r  shareho lde rs .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  he  was a  very  impor tan t  par t  o f  

the  Gupta  fami ly  bus iness s t ruc tures ,  co r rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  i t  seems so .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and he o f  course ,  has a lso  been  

imp l ica ted  in  o ther  i ssues re la t ing  to  the  Est ina  Da i ry  

Farm,  the  way in  wh ich  the  Gupta ’s  ob ta ins  na tura l isa t ion  

f rom the  Home Affa i rs  when Min is te r  G igaba was in  o f f i ce .   

And yeah,  so  h is  name has come up in  th is  Commiss ion  a  

number  o f  t imes prev ious ly.   

Now,  I  jus t  l i ke  to  exp lore  w i th  you why you  

cons idered i t  app ropr ia te  to  take  up Mr  Chawla ’s  

suggest ion  tha t  when you do ing  t rave l ,  t rave l  t r ips  

overseas fo r  your  own persona l  bus iness e i the r  fami ly,  10 

rec reat ion ,  ho l idays,  whatever  o r  fami ly  bus iness l i ke  you 

were  go ing  to  do  w i th  your  w i th  your  younger  b ro the r,  why  

wou ld  you use the  CEO of  a  majo r  company in  the  Gupta  

Empi re  to  a r range your  t rave l?    

I f  you  wanted -   i f  you  cou ld  no t  do  your  own  

book ings on l ine ,  o r  you cou ld  no t  ge t  a  secre ta ry  to  do  

tha t ,  o r  somebody l i ke  tha t ,  wou ld  no t  the  obv ious th ing  

have been to  go  to  a  t rave l  agent?   Ins tead you go to  Mr  

Chawla  who presumably  i s  –  and cer ta in ly  my in fo rmat ion  

is  tha t  he  was a t  the  t ime group CEO of  Sahara .   In  any 20 

event ,  he  was a  prominent  bus inessman.   Why wou ld  you  

be us ing  h im  to  make your  own persona l  t rave l  

a r rangements?   Why not ,  why d id  you not  go  to  a  t rave l  

agent  l i ke  Trave l  Exce l lence?  We know he d id  no t  do  i t  

h imse l f ,  he  d id  no t  s i t  la te  a t  n igh t ,  on  h is  compute r  go ing  
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in to  Emi ra tes  webs i tes  and make  the  book ings,  he  used 

t rave l  Exce l lence .  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  we are  en t i t led  to  

a r range your  own a f fa i rs  and whatever  in fo rmat ion  you 

have about  Mr  Chawla  who he is ,  how he is  imp l ica ted  on 

o ther  th ings,  I  am not  here  to  ta lk  about .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:    Bu t  there  was noth ing  wrong and I  do  no t  

see anyth ing  wrong fo r  an  ind i v idua l  l i ke  myse l f  a t  the  t ime 

when the re  was conven ience,  and I  took  the  conven ience.   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I ,  see .  

MR MANTSHA:    So  I  am not  go ing  to  ge t  in to  who he is  o r  

who h is  a l l  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Very  we l l .  

MR MANTSHA:    I t  was conven ien t  fo r  me a t  the  t ime to 

ac tua l l y  take  the  o f fe r,  he  has done i t  be fore  and there  was  

no reason fo r  me to  say I  canno t  dea l  w i th  h im,  I  do  no t  

have.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can I  suggest  a  reason why i t  may 

have been cons idered inappropr ia te ,  no t  p rudent ,  no t  20 

sens ib le  and tha t  i s  you had recent ly  taken over  

Cha i rperson o f  Dene l  wh ich  is  g rea t  dea l  o f  th is  en tered 

in to  Dene l  as  Cha i rperson.   D id  you not  a t  leas t  fee l  o r  

w i th  a  b i t  o f  h inds igh t ,  do  you not  fee l  now tha t  perhaps i t  

was a  b i t  un for tunate .   I  take  your  po in t  tha t  a t  leas t  
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peop le  run  the i r  l i ves  to  see f i t  bu t  when you are  occupy ing  

a  ve ry  prominent  ab le  pos i t ion ,  a  person o f  the  Board  saw 

potent ia l l y  o f  Dene l  we are  ta lk ing  hundreds in  te rms o f  

tha t  were  rewarded to  VR Laser.  

D id  you know a t  leas t  tha t  used to  be  showing tha t  

he  was l inked to  the  Gupta ’s  ra ther  than p ick ing  up  the  

phone and chat t ing  to  when I  have to  go  to  Duba i  w i l l  you  

sought  ou t  the  t rave l  a r rangements .   Do you not  

unders tand or  do  no t  apprec ia te  now,  a t  leas t  fo r  the 

benef i t  o f  h inds igh t ,  tha t  the  pe rcept ion  i s  no t  a  fo r tunate  10 

one,  i t  does not  te l l  the  na t ion  ou t  the i r  good th ings ,  i f  you  

beh ind  the  scenes,  o r  mak ing  pr iva te  ar rangements  w i th  

Gupta  execut ives .  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l  w i th  respect ,  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  le t  

me put  the  contex t  cor rec t .   VR Laser  go t  the  cont rac t  w i th  

Dene l  way before  my Board  and myse l f  were  appo in ted  as  

non-execut ive  d i rec to rs  o f  Dene l .   A l ready there  were  in  

the  so  ca l led  West  S tar  Pro jec t ,  wh ich  I  th ink  ev idence  

before  you es t imated how much they were  go ing  to  ge t  ou t  

o f  i t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  wh ich  pro jec t ,  the  Hoefys te r?  

MR MANTSHA:    The Hoefys te r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sor ry  I  d id  no t  hear  you.  

MR MANTSHA:    And I  th ink  there  was another  one  

P la t fo rm ha l l s  o r  whatever.  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 104 of 301 
 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    P la t fo rm Hu l l s ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR MANTSHA:    So  those cont rac ts  were  en tered  before  

we were  even appo in ted .   So the  quest ion  tha t  you are  

t ry ing  to  say tha t  does not  dawn on me tha t  ask ing  such a  

person to  a r range th is  wh i le  th is  person is  l inked w i th  the  

Gupta ’s  fami l y  who were  a  shareho lde r  o f  VR,  tha t  i s  what  

you are  say ing  to  me.  

Le t  me exp la in  th is  to  you.   I  have a lways known VR 

as Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  bus iness un t i l…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  you have a lways known who?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    I  have a lways known VR as owned by  Mr  

Essa,  a t  no  s tage unt i l  the  due  d i l igence on VR SA in  

p repara t ion  o f  the  Dene l  As ia ,  then revea l  some,  I  th ink  

was 15% whatever,  tha t  Tony Gupta  and Duduzane Zuma 

has/  

So I  was surp r ised and I  remember  I  d id  ask ,  I  d id  

ask  Mr  Tony Gup ta  I  sa id  Wel l ,  I  d id  no t  know you  par t  o f  

VR South  A f r i ca .   Mr  Tony Gupta  to ld  me and jus t  sa id  to  

me look,  we are  no t  in te res ted  in  the  de fence bus iness bu t  

happened Sa l im Essa bor rowed money f rom them and when 20 

he bo r rowed money f rom them as he  was s t rugg l ing ,  then 

there  was an agreement  to  take  some shareho ld ing .   

And they sa id ,  look ,  we d id  no t  even want  to  ta lk  to  

you about  th is  because we do not  want  to  in te r fe re  w i th  

what  you do.   So,  jus t  in  shor t ,  I  d id  no t  even know tha t  
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they  had some percentage in  VR SA,  I  d id  no t  know unt i l  

the  due d i l igence  revea led  tha t ,  and I  d id  ask  a  quest ion  

and I  was g i ven an exp lanat ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  jus t  ask  aga in ,  I  am speak ing  

on beha l f  the  techn ic ians who have asked me to  ask  th i s  

one,  qu i te  o f ten  you keep mov ing  your  face  away f rom the  

mic ,  and I  see you a lso  tapp ing  someth ing  a  l i t t le ,  I  do  no t  

know i f  i t  i s  the  desk or  the  or  the  book o r  whatever,  i f  you  

can t ry  no t  to  tap .  

MR MANTSHA:    My apo log ies  Cha i rperson,  in  my 10 

upbr ing ing ,  I  am to ld  when a  pe rson is  ta lk ing  to  you must  

look  a t  h im to  show respec t .   So I  am very  

sor ry…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:    …but  when I  tu rn  my back on  you and you 

are  ta lk ing  i t  i s  d is respect .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Mantsha I  ac tua l l y  c red i ted  you  

w i th  good manners  ear l ie r  fo r  do ing  tha t  and tha t  i s  a  

na tura l  human ins t inc t  as  we l l .   But  may I  jus t  suggest  in  

your…[ in te rvene]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  keep on t ry ing .  

MR MANTSHA:    I  w i l l  t ry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  I  jus t  want  to  suggest  the  

Pres ident  here  i s  no t  me i t  i s  the  Cha i rperson  o f  the 

inqu i ry  who has to  be  addressed,  bu t  thank you fo r  tha t .   
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Bu t  in  fac t  you  r igh t  tha t  there  were  cer ta in  cont rac ts  

be tween VR Laser  and Dene l  be fore  you took up  the  

pos i t ion  o f  Cha i rperson o f  the  Board  bu t  there  were  a lso  a  

number  o f  ma jor  cont rac ts  tha t  were  awarded to  VR Laser  

a f te r  you took up  the  Cha i rpersonsh ip ,  no t  so?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  do  no t  have reco l lec t ion  or  knowledge o f  

those cont rac ts .  I  see on the  papers ,  you know,  be fore  th is  

Commiss ion ,  they  were  cont rac ts  be tween DLS and VR and 

those cont rac ts ,  they serve  in  the  DLS board ,  they  do  not  

serve  in  the  main  Board .    10 

So I  was not  even aware  tha t  there  were  those 

cont rac ts  un t i l  I  see these documents  and I  have read Mr  

S tephan Burger,  the  then CEO of  Dene l  L ine  System haw 

he exp la ined those cont rac ts .   I  have read var ious 

s ta tements ,  how peop le  were  invo lved,  exp la in  those 

cont rac ts  bu t  none o f  those cont rac t s  se rved before  the  

main  Board ,  wh ich  I  was Cha i r ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  d id  you not  g ive  approva l  fo r  one 

o f  those cont rac ts  where  Mr  Mlambo the  head o f  

p rocu rement  a t  the  Dene l  g roup leve l  tha t  re fused to  s ign  i t  20 

o f f?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  w i th  respect  Cha i rperson ,  I  have 

never  dea l t  w i th  p rocu rement  peop le .   My Board  has never  

dea l t  w i th  p rocurement  peop le .   We have never  dea l t  w i th  

any cont rac t  be tween VR SA to  any en t i t y  o f  Dene l ,  the  
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on ly  mat te r  tha t  we have dea l t  w i th  VR re la ted ,  i s  VR As ia 

in  par tnersh ip  w i th  Dene l .   That  i s  the  on ly  VR mat te r  

wh ich  served before  the  Board .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now,  dur ing  your  t r ip  to  Duba i ,  on  

th is  occas ion  we are  ta lk ing  about  ear l y  October  2015.   D id  

you soc ia l i se  w i th  o r  have any meet ings or  encounters  w i th  

Mr  Duduzane and  w i fe?  

MR MANTSHA:    O f  cou rse ,  o f  course ,  yes  I  d id  soc ia l i se  

w i th  them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am not  suggest ing  i t  i s  necessar i l y  10 

wrong,  I  am jus t  ask ing  about  the  fac t .   So why were  you  

soc ia l i s i ng  w i th  h im,  i f  I  may ask ,  were  you f r iends f rom 

before  th is?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Mr  Duduzane Zuma,  i s  we l l  known 

to  me.   I t  i s  somebody tha t  I  have known fo r  qu i te  some 

t ime.  We were  in  the  same p lace o f  cou rse  we d id  

soc ia l i se ,  I  do  no t  remember  how many t imes,  how many  

minutes  we met  bu t  we d id  soc ia l i se  because I  th ink  we 

were  even s tay ing  in  the  same p lace i f  I  may remember.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t…[ in te rvene]  20 

MR MANTSHA:    So  I  d id  soc ia l i se  w i th  h im.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry  to  have in te r rup ted ,  sor ry  

a re  you f in ished?  

CHAIRPERSON:    He say a t  some s tage they s tayed in  the  

same p lace.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  I  heard  tha t  I  in te r rup ted  h im 

and I  jus t  wanted  to  make sure  I  comple ted  h i s  sentence.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  no  I  have comple ted  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You have comple ted  i t  thank you,  and  

what  was tha t  same p lace was tha t  a  ho te l  o r  h is  p r iva te  

res idence o r  somebody e l se 's  p r iva te  res idence,  your  

b ro thers  pe rhaps? 

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l  look ,  I  am speak ing  under  

cor rec t ion ,  bu t  I  was s tay ing  in  a  ho te l ,  I  th ink  I  am 10 

speak ing  under  cor rec t ion ,  tha t  he  was a lso  s tay ing  the  

same hote l  bu t  I  am speak ing  under  cor rec t ion  because i t  

i s  qu i te  a  wh i le  ago.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He a t  leas t  a t  a  cer ta in  s tage,  owned  

h is  own p roper t y  res ident ia l  p roper ty  in  Duba i ,  no t  so?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson w i th  respect ,  I  do  no t  

know whether  Mr  Duduzane Zuma owns a  p lace in  

Duba i…[ in tervene ]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You do not  know.  

MR MANTSHA:    …or  he  does not .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you.   I f  you  do no t  know,  

you jus t  s imp ly  have to  say tha t ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He has g iven ev idence about  p roper ty  

tha t  he  l i ves  in ,  in  Duba i .   I  am say ing  Mr  Duduzane Zuma 

has g i ven ev idence before  the  Commiss ion about  p roper ty  
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in  wh ich  he  l i ves  in  Duba i ,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  I  was re fer r ing  to  

bu t  the  w i tness  as  I  unders tand tha t  you do not  have 

persona l  knowledge o f  tha t ,  yourse l f?  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  I  am not  aware .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  now d id  you say tha t  your  

a r rangement  w i th  Mr  Chawla  was tha t  he  wou ld  do  the  

ar rangements ,  make the  ar rangements  and  then 

presumably  send you the  t rave l  t i cke ts  and so  fo r th ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    Ja ,  he  wou ld  he  wou ld  do  the  

ar rangement  and te l l s  me how much i t  i s  go ing  to  cost  and 

then I  se t t le .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  wou ld  he  contac t  you each t ime to 

say,  I  can get  you a  f l igh t  on  the  6 t h  as  you want  and  the  

cost  i s  go ing  to  be  X ,  number  o f  rand ’s ,  i s  tha t  okay can I  

go  ahead,  how d id  he  do i t?  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  o f  cou rse  he wou ld ,  I  wou ld  speak to  

h im and he wou ld  go  around and  he wou ld  come back to  

me wi th  some ar rangement  and i f  we agree,  and then we 20 

pursue i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay now,  I  see tha t  you r  t rave l  

t i cke ts  the  a i r fa re  was R28 860 w i th  a i rpor t  taxes o f  jus t  

over  R4 000 wh ich  then gave jus t  fo r  your  a i r  t i cke t ,  

p resumably  a  re turn  R33 280.  
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I  am go ing  to  leave out  o f  account  fo r  a  moment ,  

the  v isas  and the  t i cke t ing  fee ,  because i t  i s  no t  c lear  

exact ly  wh ich  o f  the  two ind i v idua ls  whether  you are  one o f  

them,  le t  us  s imp ly  look  a t  the  a i r fa re .   So he wou ld  have  

got  conf i rmat ion  f rom you tha t  he  cou ld  proceed to  make 

th is  book ing?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  o f  cou rse .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  he  make  those inqu i r ies  w i th  you 

or  d id  he  ge t  the  t rave l  agency to  do  so?  

MR MANTSHA:     The inqu i r i es  about  cos t  and every th ing?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:    No remember,  I  had asked h im tha t  was  

h is  respons ib i l i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  you see what  I  f ind  

in te res t ing ,  and  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  g ive  you a  chance to  

comment  on  i t ,  i s  tha t  when the  ar rangements  were  made,  

and an invo ice  was made out ,  i t  was made out  by the  t rave l  

agents  no t  to  you ,  no t  to  Mr  Duduzane Zuma,  e i the r.   

I t  was made out  to  Westdawn Investments .   Why 

were  you not  invo iced?  I t  was go ing  to  be  your  t rave l ;  i t  20 

was your  persona l  bus iness w i th  your  b ro the r.   You were  

no t  go ing  on  a  bus iness t r ip  w i th  Mr  Duduzane Zuma,  

cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I  th ink  the  log ic  i s  ve ry  s imp le  the  

invo i ces d i rec ted  to  the  par ty  tha t  Mr  Chawla  ind i ca ted  to  
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the  -  whoever  was ar rang ing  these .   These a re  the  de ta i l s  

and tha t  i s  someth ing  no t  w i th in  my knowledge.   Whoever  

he  was ask ing  where  the  invo i ce  shou ld  go  tha t  was h i s  

own ar rangement .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    But  i s  i t  no t ,  sure ly  aga in ,  w i th  the  

benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  now tha t  you know tha t  the  Gupta  

Empi re  and the i r  dea l ings have become mat te rs  o f  huge  

pub l i c  and media  in te res t  and con t roversy,  and have been 

the  sub jec t  o f  many days o f  very  lengthy  ev idence before  

the  learned Cha i rperson who is  the  Commiss ioner.  10 

Wi th  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  do  you not  apprec ia te  

tha t  i t  may be regarded by  the  pub l i c  when they see  

ev idence l i ke  th is  tha t  you were  t rave l l ing  a t  about  the 

same t ime as  Mr  Duduzane Zuma and h is  w i fe  to  the  same 

c i t y.   You have now sa id  you were  s tay ing  in  the  same 

p lace;  you th ink  i t  was a  ho te l  where  you s tayed w i th  h im.   

And the  ar rangements  were  no t  on ly  made by  Mr  Chawla ,  

CEO of  Sahara ,  wh ich  is  a  par t  we l l  you may not  be  sure  

about  tha t ,  bu t  he  was an execut ive  o f  the  Gupta  Empi re .   

And tha t ,  no t  on ly  the  a r rangements ,  bu t  ac tua l l y  invo i c ing  20 

and payment  has  been done by  West  Dawn Investments .   

Do you not  unders tand tha t ,  i t  i s  no t  exact ly  the Gupta ’s 

and thei r  empire.  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  -  look wi th respect  Mr Kennedy I  – i t  of  

course depends where you stand.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   I t  depends where you stand and where I  

stood then at  the t ime of  arrangement there was nothing 

sinister to make this arrangement.   I  th ink I  have explained 

what I  knew at  the t ime and what I  d id not  know.   

 Where we s i t  today there are many al legat ions 

against  th is fami ly  and thei r  associated businesses.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  am certa in ly not  here to ta lk about  the 

meri ts or the meri ts of  those.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Absolutely.  

MR MANTSHA:   A l l  I  can say is  th is arrangement was made 

and there was nothing wrong that  says to me in my pr ivate 

capaci ty as a non-execut ive chai rperson of  Denel  by then 

wi th the knowledge that  I  knew with the knowledge I  had 

there was nothing wrong to do this.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am asking you wi th the knowledge you 

have now.  

MR MANTSHA:   And whether the percept ion – I  th ink again 

when you in a decision of  author i ty and when you are – when 20 

you are in a posi t ion of  author i ty  and when you are in a 

posi t ion where you have to decide certain matters before you 

yes you can consider to set t le but  you do not  necessari ly  

have to make a decision on this.    

 As I  am saying to you what percept ion would these 
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made that  as you said I  am not  act ing in I  am 00:01:56  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   And what I  am saying to you is as far  as I  s i t  

here that  percept ion whereas and where I  am i t  has to be 

based on certain factors and certain  knowledge.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  d id not  have the facts to base that  

percept ion,  I  d id not  have the knowledge to raise this.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  that  you have the facts and 

knowledge now.   Where – let  us assume in  your favour that  10 

at  that  t ime you were not  aware that  the Gupta ’s and Sal im 

Essa were act ively involved in  a company cal led VR Laser in  

doing business wi th Denel .   Let  us assume that  that  is r ight .    

 But  that  is  what you knew at  the t ime.  You d id not  

know at  the t ime on your  version.   Now you do know.   That  is  

why I  am asking for  you wi th  your current  knowledge not  just  

s imply your knowledge at  the t ime.   

 So I  can ful ly understand i f  you said to us yes at  the 

t ime I  am – I  had no reason to feel  that  th is might  be 

regarded inappropr iately but  wi th  the benef i t  of  h indsight  20 

now that  what has come out  is that  VR Laser actual ly was 

very much involved in doing business wi th Denel  not  just  

before but  very much af ter as wel l  and there have been huge 

al legat ions before the learned Deputy Chief  Just ice and the 

commission that  the procurement regulat ions and so forth  
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were f louted and where procurement off ic ia ls lef t  in  despai r  

that  their  advice to t ry and keep the – the Denel  procurement 

process legal .   A l l  of  that  has led to a number of  

controvers ial  aspects.  

 Do you not  feel  say wel l  at  the t ime I  th ink i t  was f ine 

based on my knowledge then but  wi th the knowledge I  now 

have I  do accept  that  i t  could be perceived by reasonable 

people as – as having a – a disturbing connotat ion.  

 You know the expression that  just ice must  be done, i t  

must  be seen to be done.  Wel l  independence object iv i ty,  a  10 

lack of  bias by a chairperson of  an inquiry  must  not  only be 

done but  a lso be seen to be done.  

 And that  is why surely  as a chai rperson of  a major  

corporat ion you should be keeping i t  absolutely at  arm’s 

length.   You not  agree wi th that? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  absolutely I  do not  agree f rom the 

premise you knew. 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   Because I  see contradict ion in what you 

were asking me ear l ier and what you saying now.  What you 20 

are saying to me now is then as the former chai r  th is VR 

which I  knew i t  was owned by Mr Sal im Essa was i r regular ly  

appointed into Denel  in var ious forms before and af ter I  was 

aware.   I  have answered you.    

I  said as far as af ter my appointment the cont ract  
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wi th DLS the only t ime I  saw that  i t  was when I  received the 

papers of  the commission.   And the cont ract  wi th the 

00:05:15 cont ract  and the whole plat form contract  those 

contracts were made before my appointment and I  th ink I  

have ind icated ear l ier Chai r  that  in terms of  the 

t ransformat ion in  00:05:36 and Denel  being a defence 

company where in that  space we were of  course told that  

there was no company,  a black owned company that  is  

get t ing business f rom Denel  on the core business therefore 

the VR Laser which was by the way owned before Mr Essa 10 

was owned by some white people and then Mr Essa bought  

th is company f rom these whi te people.   When he bought th is  

company the company of  course became a black owned 

company.    

When the company become a black owned company 

we were told of  course in terms of  what Denel  was expected 

to do to t ransform the defence industry in the country that  

VR helps Denel  to  achieve that .    

So i t  has been a plus f rom the informat ion we 

received that  the re lat ionship between Denel  and VR was 20 

founded on the basis that  VR is  black owned, VR does 

supply Denel  on the main business because they were 

bui ld ing some 00:07:17.   So – so that  was the case of  VR.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes I  understand Mr Mantsha I  am sorry 

to interrupt  but  you asking a di f ferent  quest ion that  you 
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would l ike me to ask perhaps and that  is was i t  – was i t  a  

good idea for Denel  to do business wi th VR Laser and you 

suggest ing that  wel l  because of  black economic 

empowerment object ives which obviously are not  just  good 

object ives but  in fact  part  of  government pol icy and 

legislat ion al l  of  that  is te l l ing us what you have al ready told  

us a number of  t imes which is that  i t  was important  that  

Denel  should t ransform and give business to black people 

wi thin the economy not  just  s imply whi te people.   Al l  of  that  

you have said a number of  t imes and – and that  obviously 10 

does answer the quest ion.    

Was i t  a good idea for Denel  to do business wi th VR 

Laser?  That  is s imply not  the quest ion.   The quest ion  was 

simply th is when the company was doing business wi th VR 

Laser which is related to – connected to the Gupta ’s  and Mr 

Duduzane Zuma and Mr Sal im Essa who is – was part  of  –  

very much of  the Gupta Empire – was i t  not  – was i t  not  

perhaps inappropr iate for you to be taking the assistance of  

Mr Chawla of  the Gupta Corporate st ructure because that  

could g ive r ise to  wrong – in your  view wrong percept ions.   20 

Mr Saloojee of  course has said you were basical ly  far too 

closely al igned with the Gupta interests and you in terfered 

and that  is why you got  r id of  him.   

 Now I  am not  expect ing you to admit  that  he is being 

t ruthful  there but  the Chairperson has had that  ev idence.   
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With respect  the Chairperson wi l l  probably want to consider 

whether there is any substance in  Mr Saloojee’s evidence 

and this is your chance to show why there is no substance.  

 And I  just  want to invi te you again to focus your  

answer on the speci f ic s imply quest ion.  

MR MANTSHA:   Ja look Chai rperson I  am focussing my 

answer.   When I  started to answer I  said I  d isagree wi th the 

premises upon which you based the assumpt ion of  th is 

al legat ion.   And I  then went further to say what you tel l ing 

me is cont radict ion f rom what you were asking me before.   10 

Because I  would – I  would expect  the commission to probe 

certain things wi thout  cont radict ing i tsel f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Mantsha I  am sorry to interrupt  you 

but  may I  just  ask you to exert  a l i t t le discipl ine on your own 

evidence.   With respect  you are here to give evidence not  to 

cr i t ic ise the commission or i ts ev idence leader in how we 

may or may not  arguably have been cont radicted.   With 

respect  that  is –  we are not  at  a  stage of  legal  argument 

here and perhaps one you must just  forget for a moment that   

you are an at torney and maybe your inst inct  maybe as many 20 

lawyers is to t ry and f ind the contradict ions and so forth.   Al l  

I  am asking you for is a simple answer to the simple 

quest ion.   Not  to be cr i t ic is ing how I  have put  the quest ion.   

You would not  mind.  

MR MANTSHA:    Without  offending you Mr Kennedy al l  I  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 118 of 301 
 

was… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And maybe… 

MR MANTSHA:    I  was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  hang on Mr Mantsha.   Just  repeat  

your quest ion Mr Kennedy I  just  want to fo l low the answer.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  repeat  the quest ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Leave aside the issue of  whether i t  was 

a good idea for Denel  to  do business wi th VR Laser the fact  

was that  i t  was doing and cont inue to do major business wi th 10 

VR Laser.   Would i t  not  have been bet ter wi th  the benef i t  of  

h indsight  to not  accept  the assistance of  Mr Chawla of  the 

Gupta ’s in relat ion to your personal  deal ings because 

otherwise i t  could give r ise to the reasonable impression of  

people out  there that  you were not  at  arms’ length that  there 

was a cosy relat ionship between you and the Gupta’s and 

their  associates.   That  is the quest ion.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  d isagree wi th that  Chai rperson.   I  repeat  

my answer is no.   Mr Chawla was an employee yes I  agree 

but  whether – you see a percept ion Chai rperson depends 20 

where you stand and I  am not  here to t ry to ta lk about  what 

someone should have perceived.   I  am just  here to  explain 

the basis of  my arrangement and my knowledge and the 

basis upon which Mr Kennedy says percept ion can be formed 

here that  there is a cosy relat ionship.    
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Wel l  I  d isagree wi th that .   I  mean my arrangement 

wi th Mr Chawla does not  mean any cosy re lat ionship wi th the 

Gupta fami ly.   Here I  am as a chai rperson of  the Denel  he 

then was al ready at  that  t ime given I  th ink over R200 mi l l ion 

contracts to VR Laser.   So what I  have done with Mr Chawla 

had nothing to do wi th ei ther VR or anything else.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  he. . .  

MR MANTSHA:   Mr Chawla – sorry Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm – ja cont inue.  

MR MANTSHA:   Mr Chawla was doing this in his personal  10 

capaci ty not  as an employee of  the Gupta Company.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay hang on one second.  Mr Kennedy 

has put  a proposi t ion that  at  that  t ime Denel  was cont inu ing 

to do business wi th ent i t ies associated wi th the Gupta fami ly.   

You accept  that? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  I  th ink let  us be speci f ic was doing 

business wi th VR Laser.  

CHAIRPERSON:   VR Laser.  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  -  yes that  one.   Are you saying you as 20 

you s i t  there see nothing wrong with the chairperson of  an – 

of  the board of  an SOE which is  doing business wi th a 

certain ent i ty having what Mr Kennedy cal ls  a cosy 

re lat ionship wi th  let  us say somebody closely associated 

wi th that  ent i ty le t  us start  just  there then we – I  just  – just  
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test ing the – the general  proposi t ion.  

 As – i f  somebody said to you let  us say now you are 

being interviewed for a posi t ion to take the posi t ion of  

chairperson of  one of  – of  the SOE’s now you are asked is i t  

proper for the chai rperson of  a board of  an SOE to have a 

cosy relat ionship wi th somebody c losely associated wi th an 

ent i ty that  is  doing business wi th  the SOE.  Would your  

answer be there is nothing wrong with that  or would your  

answer be there is something wrong with that? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  my answer wi l l  be there is  nothing 10 

wrong.   Because that  person that  we talk ing about I  am 

speci f ic on … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja genera l .  

MR MANTSHA:   I  am not  ta lk ing in general .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  am speci f ic on my matter.   He is not  a  

shareholder of  the company.    He is  not  the company 

himsel f .   He does that  in his own personal  capaci ty.   So i f  we 

then see i t  and say i f  you relate to somebody in his personal  

capaci ty who works for XYZ you might  be perceived to be 20 

having a cosy relat ionship.   Yes I  understand somebody can 

come with that  percept ion but  another  person might  say wel l  

what  is the basis of  that  percept ion?  I  do not  agree wi th that  

percept ion.   So what I  am saying as I  answer now I  do not  

see anything wrong with that  arrangement because i t  had no 
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bearing wi th my work,  i t  had not  bearing wi th… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  hang on.  

MR MANTSHA:   With which I  wi th… 

CHAIRPERSON:   At  th is stage I  am not  ta lk ing about the 

speci f ic s i tuat ion you were involved in.   I  am just  test ing the 

general  proposi t ion because as a di rector of  a board and as 

chairperson of  a board i t  would be important  to understand 

what you understand as acceptable relat ionships for board 

members to  be involved in as wel l  as for management,  

CEO’s of  your company.    10 

So are you saying i f  you were – i f  you were the 

chairperson of  the board of  Denel  today and VR Laser 

cont inued to have – to do business wi th Denel  you would 

have – you would see nothing wrong with you having a cosy 

re lat ionship even i f  in your personal  capaci ty wi th somebody 

closely associated wi th VR Laser? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  a correct ion point  here Chai rperson.   I  

never had cosy re lat ionship wi th him.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  you – but  you… 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You talk about  your  case I  am talk ing about 

the general .  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  I  th ink … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us not  say you let  us say Mr X,  let  us 

say Mr X.  
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MR MANTSHA:   Yes.   Chai rperson I  appreciate that  

int imat ion f rom the Chai rperson.   But  again Chairperson I  am 

talking to a Chai rperson who comes f rom a background that  

i ts case depends on i ts own meri ts.    

So i t  is one thing for me here to si t  and talk in  

general  terms.  I  th ink Chai rperson I  would refra in f rom 

talking in general  terms.  I  would only speak to explain what  

I  knew at  the t ime, what were my reasons at  the t ime and 

how I  conducted my affai rs in certa in areas.    

But  in general  terms Chai rperson I  would not  want to  10 

si t  here and say because when we get t ing to the area of  

percept ion there are so many percept ions about everything 

that  we do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you see Mr Mantsha talk ing in general  

terms to test  – ta lk ing in general  terms is – has an important  

place because i t  enables me to know what values you 

subscr ibe to.   I f  for example I  am looking for the chairperson 

of  an SOE board I  must  be looking for  somebody who has 

certain values and those values you start  test ing by in 

general  then you can – when you have a speci f ic s i tuat ion 20 

you test  that  speci f ic s i tuat ion against  the genera l  values to  

say wel l  i f  somebody subscr ibes to  these values then they 

wi l l  not  do ABCD when such a s i tuat ion ar ises because they 

bel ieve in these values.    

So that  is why I  am put t ing the general  because when 
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you put  the general  that  is when i t  is going to be easy to say 

okay let  us go to a speci f ic s i tuat ion.   You might  say in terms 

of  the general  – you might  say the one I  put  to you.    

As long as I  am act ing in my personal  capaci ty wi th  

somebody closely related to – or associated VR Laser I  see 

nothing wrong but  i f  I  am act ing in my capaci ty as 

chairperson of  Denel  and Denel  is having businesses wi th  – 

business deal ings wi th VR Laser I  can see a problem.  Or 

you might  say wel l  whether I  am act ing in my personal  

capaci ty or in my capaci ty as chairman of  Denel  i t  is 10 

problemat ic to have that  cosy relat ionship wi th that  person.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  real ly appreciate that  quest ion 

Chairperson and of  course my values are you cannot place 

yoursel f  as the non-execut ive in a posi t ion of  conf l ict .   I  

subscr ibe to those values and I  subscr ibe to the va lues that  

exercise your f iduciary responsibi l i ty in a t ransparent  and for  

the interest  of  the company.    

Those are the values that  I  subscr ibe to.   And that  is  

in general  terms what I  subscr ibe to and what I  conducted 

my affai rs as the chairperson at  the t ime did not  p lace mysel f  20 

in a conf l ict  s i tuat ion where I  had to decide about certain 

t ransact ions wi th the people that  I  have one way or the other  

an associat ion wi th.   That  I  subscr ibe to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Kennedy you want to take i t  f rom there? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chair  I  th ink – I  th ink I  
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would l ike to just  take the wi tness i f  I  may to a couple of  

more page references.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  can you ask you please to  turn to 

page 434.   That  is  the act… 

MR MANTSHA:   4? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   434 that  is the actual  t ravel  i t inerary 

f rom Travel  Excel lence i t  seems for  the same tr ip speci f ic to  

you,  is that  r ight? 

MR MANTSHA:   434? 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   434 yes Mr Mantsha.    

MR MANTSHA:   Just  bear wi th me Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes i f  you can f ind 434 that  is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is f ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is al l  I  am asking you.    

MR MANTSHA:   Yes I  do have 434.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  so that  is the t ravel  i t inerary for 

your own t r ip,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And now 449.    20 

MR MANTSHA:   449.  

MR MANTSHA:   That  is an emai l  f rom Mr Chawla to Gal iema 

Malana at  Travel  Excel lence.   You see that? 

MR MANTSHA:   449? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  
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MR MANTSHA:   Ja I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And i t  is headed under the subject  

Mr Mantsha’s passport  and then he says:  

“Please buy Dubai  Visa”  

And then we see at tached i t  seems that  what may have been 

at tached to that  was your passport  copy f rom the previous 

page.  Is that  r ight? 

MR MANTSHA:   I t  appears so.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Right .   And then i f  we can go to 

453.   There is an emai l  f rom Travel  Excel lence the t ravel  10 

agents to Mr Chawla in fact  we see his emai l  address is  

ashu@sahara.co.za and the at tachments refers to your name 

and then i t  says:  

“Dear Ashu please see at tached t ickets.”  

So al l  of  th is seems to have been part  of  the t ransact ions 

re lat ing to that  00:23:59,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   I t  appears so.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Now you said your 

arrangement wi th Mr Chawla was that  you – that  he would – 

he would make the arrangements,  he would do so in  h is  20 

personal  capaci ty and then you would pay him back.  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  r ight?  Why then is the invoice 

not  in his name, Mr Chawla’s name?  Why was i t  in the name 

of  Westdawn Investment? 

mailto:ashu@sahara.co.za


26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 126 of 301 
 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  I  th ink that  is  for Mr Chawla to explain.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes obviously I  mean what – do you 

know why? 

MR MANTSHA:   Of  course I  do not  know why.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You do not  know why?  Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:   When you – sorry can I  explain th is? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes sure.  

MR MANTSHA:   When you ask a t ravel l ing agent or 

somebody to arrange the t ravel  you of  course do not  know 

from you know the pre-exist ing or the prearrangement 10 

t ravels.   You do not  know from which account they wi l l  pay 

the people they are deal ing wi th.   So I  do not  know Mr 

Chawla can explain that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Did you actual ly pay back the… 

MR MANTSHA:   I  d id pay back.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The R38 000.00 ( talk ing over one 

another).  

MR MANTSHA:   I  d id pay him.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did you pay him? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay because i t  was invoiced not  to  

him but  to Westdawn – did you pay back Westdawn or did  

you pay back Mr Chawla? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  would assume that  he would not  use the 

money that  was not  his and not  pay i t .   So I  would assume 
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when he received the money he paid whoever he was 

supposed to pay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you recal l  how you paid him back?  

Was i t  in cash or an EFT or what did you do? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  paid him in cash.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In cash? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R38 000.00 in  cash that  you had ly ing 

around? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  am not  sure exact ly whether i t  was 28 that  10 

but  I  th ink there were some l i t t le bi t  – maybe just  l i t t le bi t  

over that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes that  is r ight .   We have seen I  am 

rounding i t  off  for convenience.   I  do not  want to have to  

repeat  the ful l  -  last  – down to the last  rand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was – I  am sorry Mr Kennedy.   Was any 

invoice sent  to you and i f  so by whom?  Westdawn or Mr 

Chawla? 

MR MANTSHA:   No,  no invoice was sent  to me.  He would 

then say to me th is is the cost  and then I  would set t le him.   20 

So that  was the arrangement.    

CHAIRPERSON:   He would tel l  you over the phone or 

something or you could be meet ing or something? 

MR MANTSHA:   We would somet imes talk face to face.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR MANTSHA:   I  do not  know in this instance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   How d id we communicated i t  could have 

been face to face.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MANTSHA:   So I  – I  do not  have recol lect ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay but  what you conf i rm is that  you 

never received any invoice? 

MR MANTSHA:   No i t  was al l  verbal  f rom him.  This is how 

much i t  costs and then I  would g ive him the money.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So because i t  was in cash i f  I  asked 

you to produce proof  that  you made payment for example a 

bank statement for an EFT or  whatever  you could not  come 

up wi th that  presumably? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Chairperson I  do not  understand what 

the quest ion is supposed to mean.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry just  answer the quest ion rather 

than puzzle over what i t  is supposed to mean unless you say 

i t  is not  c lear in which case I  am qui te happy to expla in what 20 

I  th ink was a very clear quest ion but  I  am happy to repeat  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The quest ion is do you have proof  that  you 

paid him? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  I  have the proof  that  I  have paid him as 

I  am tel l ing to you I  have paid him.  And i f  you then asking 



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 129 of 301 
 

me how I  pa id I  to ld you that  I  have paid him in cash.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   I f  you then ask me produce where you got  

that  cash.   I  mean we do business we do receive cash.   And 

– so at  any given t ime then there is  the cash that  I  have and 

I  used that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  make him sign any receipt  of  

that  money? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Chai rperson these personal  

arrangements and… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no I  … 

MR MANTSHA:   And th is is – th is  is not  anybody to crook 

you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MANTSHA:   So you know when we act  as ordinary 

people out  there i f  I  come to you as a f r iend and say look I  

am short  wi th R5000.00 to pay the school  fees.   You said my 

f r iend here is R5000.00 you are not  going to get  me to sign a 

loan agreement that  I  wi l l  pay you at  the end of  the month 

when I  get  paid.   That  is not  how you know loosely we relate 20 

to one another.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  in th is type of  s i tuat ion i t  d id not  

just  involve Mr Chawla i t  a lso involved the Westdawn.  So 

what would have happened i f  Westdawn’s accountants or 
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audi tors had come to you and said we see that  our company 

Westdawn has paid R28 000.00 odd for a business t icket  for 

you to Dubai  and we have been told wi thin Westdawn that  i t  

has nothing to do wi th Westdawn business i t  was just  a  

pr ivate arrangement between Mr Chawla and you can you 

pay i t  back?  You would not  have anything to show him not  

so – the audi tor? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  of  course I  would have rel ied on the 

bona f ide of  Mr Chawla.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr Chawla.  10 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i f  he was run over by a bus or  

immigrated?  You would have nothing to prove that  is my 

simple point .  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  a l l  I  am try ing to say to you wi th the 

example that  I  have given to you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  borrow money for school  fees f rom you.   I  

get  run by the bus,  no agreement.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  understand your logic.  20 

MR MANTSHA:   So of  course i t  is your loss.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  understand your logic yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   May I  now look at  another t ravel  

arrangement that  appears to have been made by Mr Chawla 
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on your behal f?  Can I  take you please to page 429.   You 

have tha t?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  do .   Ja? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    On th is  page 429 and the  next  few  

pages,  there  are  number  o f  emai ls  tha t  re la te  to  a  f l igh t  

tha t  was been ar ranged on the  a i r  serv i ce  ca l led  Freedom 

A i r  Serv i ces .   Now I  unders tand,  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  

bu t  th is  i s  a  p r iva te  char te r  company tha t  p rov ides  char te r  

p lanes to  those who can a f fo rd  i t .   I s  tha t  you r  

unders tand ing  too?  10 

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R igh t .   And i t  appears  f rom th i s ,  i f  we 

look,  fo r  example ,  ha l fway down on page 429.   I t  i s  an  

emai l  f rom Ashu Chawla .   Now Ashu,  we know is  the  f i rs t  

name o f  Mr  Chawla .   And h is  emai l  address,  we see i s  

ashu@sahara .co .za .   So ha l fway down,  you see there  is  a  

–  i t  says :   Thanks,  Ashu.   And then i t  says :   From Ashu,  

sent  05  August  2015.   Do you see tha t?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  can  see.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  i s  addressed to  Freedom Ops.   20 

Sub jec t :   Updated passenger  l i s t  fo r  owner.    

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am not  sure  how to  pronounce the  

name.   Mi t ten(? )  G.    

“Here  is  the  f ina l  passenger  l i s t  a r r i v ing  
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tomorrow wi th  ZSOK. . . ”  

 Which  p resumable  i s  a  f l igh t  number  or  a  f l igh t  –  

o r  ra ther,   a  p lane reg i s t ra t ion  number.  

“Ms Angoor i  Gupta ,  Mr  Ra jesh Gup ta . . . ”  

 Now I  unders tand Mr  Ra jesh Gupta  is  known,  

genera l l y,  as  Mr  Tony Gupta .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

“ . . .and togethe r  w i th  h im,  Ms A t i (? )  Gupta ,  

Mr  Shashank(?)  [00 :01 :51]  S inga la . . . ”  10 

 And the re  has been ev idence tha t  S inga la  i s  

ac tua l l y  par t  o f  t he  w ider  Gupta  fami ly.   Do you conf i rm 

tha t  o r  do  you not  know? 

MR MANTSHA :    I  d id  no t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The S inga la ’s  a re  par t  o f  the  Gupta  

fami ly.  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja ,  I  th ink  the  pe rson you are  re fe r r ing  to  

i s  the  son o f  one o f  the  Gupta  b ro thers .   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R igh t .  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then there  is  another  person,  

a lso  w i th  the  surname S inga la .   That  i s  Mr  Amand-Khand(?)  

S inga la .   And then a lso  Mr  Sa l im Essa.   And then a lso  

yourse l f ,  Mr  Lung isan i  Dan ie l  Mantsha.   And then  a lso  Mr  

Gysber t  van den  Bergh.   So are  you –  do  you  reca l l  
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ac tua l l y  go ing  on  a  p lane t r ip  opera ted  by  a  p r iva te  char te r  

company?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Organ ised by  the  Gupta ’s?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And w i th  the  Gupta ’s?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And ar ranged by  Mr  Chawla ,  the  very  

same Chawla  we have jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R igh t .   And tha t  was where  to?  

MR MANTSHA :    Th is  was to  Ind ia .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    To  Ind ia?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R igh t .   And what  was th is  t r ip  fo r,  

persona l  o r  bus iness?  

MR MANTSHA :    Persona l  t r ip .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Persona l  t r ip?  

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  they pa id  fo r  20 

your  t i cke t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cha i rperson,  th is  was a  l i f t  tha t  I  go t  f rom 

them because th i s  was,  in  my unders tand ing ,  the i r  f l i gh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The i r  f l i gh t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   When you say you mean the i r  

f l i gh t ,  do  you mean tha t  they owned the  p lane or  tha t  they  

organ ised th is  f l i gh t  on  a  p lane tha t  they  char te r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA :    No,  my unders tand ing  is  they owned th is  

f l i gh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see .   And so ,  why were  you get t ing  

a  l i f t  f rom them?  I t  i s  no t  tha t  common tha t  one accepts  a  

l i f t  f rom somebody w i th  a  char te r  je t  to  take  on to  Ind ia .   

Why were  you favoured by  th is  a r rangement?  10 

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  f i rs t l y,  as  I  sa id .   Th is  was  not  a  

char te r  p lane.   Th is  was,  accord ing  to  my knowledge,  a  

p lane they own.   And in  the  course  o f  in te rac t ion ,  as  I  sa id ,  

I  have in te rac ted  w i th  them.   I  expressed the  des i re  to  v is i t  

th is  pa r t  o f  the  wor ld  jus t  to  exp lore  fo r  myse l f  and then  

they sa id  to  me:   Look,  we w i l l  be  go ing  the re  somet ime  

and we can g ive  you a  l i f t .    

 So ,  o f  course ,  I  was f ine  w i th  tha t .   And I  th ink  i f  

you  jus t  look  a t  the  documents ,  I  th ink  the  bus iness was 

made somet ime  fo r  the  t r ip  kept  on ,  I  th ink ,  be ing  20 

postponed fo r  one reason o r  the  o ther  bu t  th is  was the  

f l igh t  they owned.   And the  background o f  i t .   We had 

d iscuss ion  somet ime.    

 I  expressed in te res t  to  v is i t  th is  p lace  fo r  my 

own and there  was a  l i f t .   They sa id :   When we go there ,  
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we w i l l  inv i te  you .   And the  oppor tun i ty  came and I  took  i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    When you say i t  was a  l i f t .   My  

unders tand ing  o f  a  l i f t  i s  tha t  you do not  pay.   I t  i s  f ree .   I s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MANTSHA :    Th i s  was a  l i f t .   The ar rangement  was 

tha t :   Look,  when we t rave l led  tha t  s ide ,  we w i l l  le t  you  

know and g i ve  you a  l i f t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.  10 

MR MANTSHA :    And indeed when  they t rave l led  tha t  s ide ,  

they ind ica ted  to  me:   We are  t rave l l ing  tha t  s ide .   The l i f t  

i s  here .   So I  took  i t  and then I  went .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you have a  reco l lec t ion  o f  how long 

before  tha t  t r ip  you might  have ind ica ted  to  them you had a  

des i re  to  go  to  tha t  par t  o f  the  wor ld?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Was i t  2015?  Was i t  ear l ie r?  

MR MANTSHA :    No I  th ink  i t  i s  as  ear ly  as  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  as  ea r ly  as  2014?  20 

MR MANTSHA :    Ja ,  as  ear l y  as  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Before  or  a f te r  you became 

cha i rperson o f  the  board?  

MR MANTSHA :    Be fore  I  became the  cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  you. . .   Yes.   I  am might  have 
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fo rgo t ten  someth ing  you might  have to ld  me prev ious ly.   

How long have you known the  Gupta ’s  o r  Mr  Sa l im Essa 

pr io r  to  be ing  par t  o f  the  Board  o f  Dene l?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  have known them as f rom 2014.   I  mean,  

we had d i rec t  con tac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.    

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ear ly  par t  o f  2014?  

MR MANTSHA :    I t  shou ld  have been around May/June.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A round May/June 2014?  10 

MR MANTSHA :    Ja ,  somewhere  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And who in  par t i cu la r  were  you 

dea l ing  w i th  a t  tha t  t ime tha t  you  had met  o r  had contac t  

w i th  in  the  Gupta  fami ly  o r. . .?  

MR MANTSHA :    A t  tha t  t ime,  the  person who was  main ly  

o f  –  in  the  med ia  bus iness was Mr  Tony Gupta .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA :    And o f  course ,  my in te rac t ion  s ta r ted  w i th  

h im be ing  a  s takeho lder  in  the  por t fo l io  where  I  was. . .  a  

Min is te r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   I t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA :    And you know,  in te rac ted  w i th  i ssues  

re la t ing  to ,  you know,  the  med ia  landscape.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you,  Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   And when you  

went  to  tha t  –  on  tha t  t r ip  to  Ind ia ,  thanks to  f ree  l i f t  tha t  

you have got  f rom the  Gupta ’s  in  the i r  p r iva te ly  owned  

p lane,  d id  you in  fac t  t rave l  a round  as  a  tour i s t  in  Ind ia?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes,  when I  go t  there ,  I  moved around to 

see.   I  th ink  I  have v is i ted  a  lo t  o f  p laces,  you know,  

around the  c i t ies  where  I  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    I  was in  Mumbai .   I  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  do  no t  th ink  we need a l l  the  de ta i l s .  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am jus t  ask ing  gener ica l l y.  

MR MANTSHA :    I  v is i ted  the  p lace.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And were  you taken a round by  the  

Gupta ’s  to  show you the  tou r is t  spots  o r  d id  you go  w i thout  

them? 

MR MANTSHA :    No,  I  went  on  my own.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    On your  own? 

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You see,  i t  i s  s ign i f i can t  tha t ,  i t  

seems,  tha t  on  th is  passenger  l i s t  there  is  a  who le  la rge  

number  o f  Gupta ’s  and S inga la ’s ,  a l l  par t  o f  tha t  –  o f  the  

overa l l  Gupta  fami ly  and then somebody ca l led  Mr  Mantsha 

and you do not  have fami ly  w i th  you.   Was i t  your  hab i t  to  
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t rave l  on  your  own,  as  a  person  comple te l y  on  h is  own 

t rave l l ing  a  fo re ign  count ry?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  th ink  on  one o f  the  occas ions,  I  th ink  

probab ly  we were  in  De lh i .   I  th ink  two o f  the i r  youngste rs ,  

I  th ink  accompan ied me to  some p lace.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Two o f  the  Gupta  youngsters .  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see .  

MR MANTSHA :    They were  t ry ing  to  g i ve  me 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    . . .because i t  i s  qu i te  a  ve ry  –  a  very  

congested p lace.   I t  i s  very  h igh l y  dense ly  popu la ted .   I  

th ink  on  one occas ion ,  yes ,  they wa lked around w i th  me.   

But  more  o f ten ,  you get  your  own movement .   I  moved  

a lone.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see .   And d id  you dec lare  to  Dene l?   

Because by  th i s  s tage,  o f  course ,  you were  recent ly  –  you  

had recent ly  assumed o f f i ce  as  the  Cha i rperson o f  Dene l .   

D id  you d i sc lose  to  Dene l  as  a  benef i t ,  the  fac t  tha t  you  20 

have rece ived a  f ree  f l igh t  f rom the  Gupta ’s?  

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  f i rs t l y,  i t  depends on where  you s i t .   

I  d id  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sor ry,  where  who s i t s?   I  am ask ing  

you.   You sa t  as  t he  Cha i rpe rson o f  Dene l .  
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MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  I  am say ing  th is  was a  persona l  t r ip .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  I  am so r ry  Mr  Mantsha.   Rea l ly.   

I  do  no t  want  to  go  in to  another  day o f  ev idence,  p lease.  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    We rea l l y  need to  t ry  and focus on  

the  quest ions.   S imply. . .   I  d id  no t  ask  you where  you sa t  

o r  where  anybody sa t .   I  sa id ,  you,  by  th is  s tage,  had  

recent ly  taken up  o f f i ce  as  Cha i rperson o f  Dene l .   D id  you 

dec lare  i t  as  a  benef i t?   The answer  wou ld  be  e i the r :   Yes,  

I  d id .   Or :   No,  I  d id  no t .  10 

MR MANTSHA :    No,  o f  course ,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sor ry,  p lease  le t  me f in ish .   And then  

i f  you say no ,  one can accept  o r  shou ld  no t  as  w i tness be  

t ry  to  an t ic ipa te  every th ing  bu t  you can know what  I  wou ld  

then ask  is :   Why not?   D id  you not  th ink  i t  appropr ia te?   

And you might  say :   Wel l ,  no ,  I  d id  no t  th ink  i t  appropr ia te .   

That  i s  why I  d id  no t  and th is  i s  the  reason.  

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  to  s ta r t  w i th .   Th is  was someth ing  

under taken in  my  pr iva te  capac i ty  as  a  non-execut ive .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    D id  you dec lare  i t  Mr  Mantsha? 20 

MR MANTSHA :    O f  cou rse  I  d id  no t .   I t  was not  necessary  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . I  do  no t  know.   That  i s  why I  am 

ask ing .   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   I  am sor ry.   I  am so r ry.   He 
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d id  say ear l ie r  on  bu t  I  th ink  the  two o f  you were  ta lk ing  a t  

the  same t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He d id  no t  dec la re  i t .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sor ry  I  d id  no t  hear  you,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    He d id  say ear l ie r  on .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  th ink  a t  tha t  t ime,  you might  no t  10 

have heard  h im because the  two o f  you were  ta lk ing  a t  the  

same t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He d id  say he  d id  no t  dec la re  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    He d id  no t  dec la re  i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Then I  m issed i t .   I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  apo log ise .   But  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  

keep answers  a  l i t t le  shor te r  i f  you  wou ld  no t  m ind.   You 20 

w i l l  be  aware  tha t  the  Cha i rpe rson  is  under  huge pressure  

to  f in ish  the  huge  work  o f  the  Commiss ion  and we cannot  –  

we rea l l y  cannot  have ye t  another  day hav ing  to  hear  your  

ev idence.    

 So you d id  no t .   Now in  a  sen tence or  two,  
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p lease t ry  and keep your  answers  br ie f .   Why d id  you fee l  

tha t  you d id  no t  need  to?   You s tar ted  by  say ing  and then I  

in te r rup ted  you.   You s tar ted  by  say ing :   Because th is  was  

a  persona l  th ing .   Jus t  p lease f in ish  the  answer.  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja ,  bu t  Cha i rperson,  can I  a lso  say th is?   

I  unders tand the  urgency o f  the  Commiss ion  to  f in ish .   I  

a lso  do  not  want  to  keep on coming but  a t  the  same t ime,  I  

th ink  I  must  be  g i ven an oppor tun i ty  to  exp la in  what  I  th ink  

i t  i s  appropr ia te  as  I  am g iv ing  the  answers .   I t  i s  up  to  you  

to  dec ide  o therwise .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    Whethe r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe I  cou ld  say th is .   What  does he lp  

Mr  Mantsha is  when a  quest ion  requ i res  a  yes or  no ,  i s  to  

s ta r t  by  say ing  yes.   Or  i f  you  say  no ,  you say no .   Even i f  

you might  have an exp lanat ion  because when you s tar t  w i th  

an  exp lanat ion  be fore  you can say yes or  no ,  i t  does  crea te  

a  prob lem.   But  p re fe rab le ,  i f  you  can jus t  say  yes,  i t  i s  

yes .   I f  you  wou ld  l i ke  to  exp la in ,  you can say:   I  wou ld  l i ke  

to  exp la in .    20 

MR MANTSHA :    Cha i rperson,  what  I  am exp la in ing  he re  

is .   I  d id  no t  dec la re  because I  d id  no t  see any conf l i c t  o r  

poss ib le  conf l i c t  o f  i t .   I  d id  no t  dec la re  i t .   And my  

unders tand ing  is ,  you dec la re  where  there  is  con f l i c t  o f  

in te res t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Wel l ,  we  cou ld  debate  tha t ,  the  

lega l i t y  and the  bus iness e th ics  and so  fo r th .   I  am not  

p ropos ing  to  tha t  th is  a f te rnoon.   We are  here  to  jus t  dea l  

w i th  fac ts .   The next  page I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  go  to ,  p lease.   

Sor ry,  Cha i r.   I t  is  page 478.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We have an ind i ca t ion  somewhere  

Mr  Kennedy or  a re  you go ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t  a t  some s tage  

what  the  monetary  va lue  o f  tha t  l i f t  was?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  have not  dea l t  w i th  tha t  bu t  perhaps  

I  shou ld  do  tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    On your  gu idance.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr  Mantsha,  i t  wou ld  cost  –  i f  you  

have not  taken tha t  l i f t  w i th  –  on  the  pr i va te  owned je t  o f  

the  Gupta  fami ly,  how much wou ld  you had to  have  pa id  i f  

you  pa id  l i ke  the  res t  o f  us  normal  a i r fa re  w i th  a  normal  

commerc ia l  a i r l ine?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  do  no t  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Wel l ,  we know tha t  your  t i cke t  to  20 

Duba i ,  i t  i s  very  rough ly  the  same sor t  o f  d is tance f rom 

South  A f r i ca  to  Duba i  as  i t  i s  to  Ind ia .   Do you know tha t  

cos t  about  R 28 000,00?  Do you agree tha t  i t  wou ld  be  in  

tha t  sor t  o f  ba l lpa rk ,  no t  p rec i se l y?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cha i rperson,  I  w i l l  no t  specu la te .   I  do  no t  
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know.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Can I  take  you now,  p lease,  to  page  

478?  

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Th is ,  aga in ,  i s  a  ser ies  o f  emai ls  in  

wh ich  Mr  Chawla  is  an  ac t ive  pa r t i c ipant  and th is  re fe rs ,  as  

I  unders tand i t ,  to  a  rese rva t ion  a t  the  Obero i  Hote l  in  

Duba i .   You see the  sub jec t  about  f i ve  l ines  f rom the  top .   

You see tha t?  10 

MR MANTSHA :    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The date  o f  tha t  emai l  was the  

2 n d  o f  January  2016 and th is  appears  to  be ,  i f  one looks a t  

the  tex t  –  I  am not  go ing  to  read i t  a l l  ou t  –  bu t  i t  seems to  

be  an emai l  f rom or  be tween Mr  Chawla  and the  ho te l  in  

quest ion  to  conf i rm the  book ing  fo r  you to  s tay  a t  the 

Obero i  Hote l  in  Duba i .   Do you reca l l?   D id  you have a  t r ip  

to  Duba i  in  January  2016 and d id  you s tay  a t  the  Obero i  

Hote l?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  th ink  I  d id ,  ja .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You th ink  you  d id?  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  re fe rs  to ,  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  

page. . .   In  fac t ,  the  bo t tom emai l ,  there  are  a  who le  lo t  o f  

d i f fe ren t  l ines  wh ich  do  not  a lways  makes sense.   They are  
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sor t  o f  e lec t ron ic  ja rgon,  as  i t  were .   But  there  is  an  emai l  

about  th ree -quar te rs  o f  the  way down.   I t  says :  

“Dear  Mr  Mantsha.   Thank you fo r  choos ing  the  

Obero i  Hote l  in  Duba i .    

We are  p leased  to conf i rm your  reserva t ion  

and look fo rward  to  we lcome you to  the  Obero i  

Hote l  in  Duba i .  

From Room Reserva t ions. . . ”  

 And then a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  i t  g ives  ar r i va l  

da te ,  Sunday,  the  3 r d  o f  January  2016.   Transfe r,  p lease 10 

adv ise .   And then  depar tu re  da te ,  the  6 t h  o f  January.   So i t  

was a  th ree  or  four  day t r ip  tha t  you took to  Duba i  o r  a t  

leas t  s tayed a t  the  Obero i  Hote l  dur ing  the  t r ip  to  Duba i .   

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And aga in ,  these ar rangements  were  

made by  Mr  Chawla  on  your  beha l f .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As  a  persona l  favour  to  you?  

MR MANTSHA :    No,  no t  as  a  favour.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    No?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  pa id  fo r  the  ar rangements .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You pa id  fo r  th is?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Bu t  I  mean the  ac tua l  mak ing  o f  
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a r rangements  was done as  a  persona l  favour  to  you? 

MR MANTSHA :    No,  i t  was not  a  persona l  favour.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So  why d id  Mr  Chawla  do  i t  a t  a l l?   

He was not  do ing  i t  in  h is  capac i ty,  you to ld  us  ear l ie r,  

mak ing  a r rangements  fo r  you as  an  execut ive  in  the  Gupta  

fami ly  bus iness empi re .  

MR MANTSHA :    I  th ink  to  repea t  myse l f ,  Cha i rpe rson.  I  

sa id  he  was runn ing  a  s ide-show,  a  s ide -bus iness fo r  

h imse l f .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    S ide-show? 10 

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Even though,  t rave l  exce l lence  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA :    So  i t  i s  no t  l i ke  he  was do ing  favour  to  

me.   He was not  on ly  a r rang ing  th i s  th ings on ly  fo r  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    D id  you not  te l l  h im we re imburse  

h im but  a lso  reward  h im fo r  h is  t roub les?  In  o ther  words:   

I  w i l l  pay  you back the  twenty-odd thousand or  whatever  i t  

m igh t  be  and I  w i l l  pu t  in  an  ex t ra  f i ve  thousand to  pay you 

fo r  your  t roub le?  20 

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  there  was a  smal le r  ex t ra  fee  to  

h im.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see .   And so  you pa id  fo r  th i s?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  pa id  fo r  th is .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And how d id  you –  d id  you re imburse  
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h im?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  re imbursed h im? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Persona l ly?  

MR MANTSHA :    Persona l ly,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Why d id  he  pay the  ho te l  fo r  you to  

re imburse?  Why  d id  he  no t  jus t  make the  ar rangements  

and when you get  to  the  ho te l  or  be fo re  you get  to  the  

ho te l ,  l i ke  the  res t  o f  us  in  no rma l  book ings,  we pay?  We 

are  the  t rave l le r.   We a re  the  person who is  go ing  to  res ide  

in  the  ho te l .   We pay the  ho te l ,  e i ther  be fore  o r  a t  the  end  10 

o f  the  s tay.   Why d id  you have to  pay Mr  Chawla  to  do  

tha t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Because he was mak ing  ar rangements  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    . . .as  good as  your  t rave l l ing  agency do,  

a l l  the  ar rangements ,  and pay whatever  has to  be  pa id  fo r  

you and they g ive  you the  invo ice  and you pay them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see.   And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you pay cash . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MANTSHA :    I  d id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .aga in?  

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.    
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    And so ,  p resumable ,  you  cannot  

p rove tha t  you have pa id  h im back? 

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  unders tand when you say 

prove?  I  can prove.   I  pa id .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Wel l ,  you  –  w i th  your  o ra l  tes t imony,  

I  unders tand you are  g i v ing  ev idence,  bu t  i s  there  any 

o ther  ev idence tha t  you can put  fo rward  to  show tha t  the  

Cha i rperson can p lace t rus t  in  you r  word?  

MR MANTSHA :    Except  tha t  he  can conf i rm i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    He cou ld  con f i rm i t?  10 

MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    O f  cou rse ,  he  is  overseas.   We know 

tha t  Par l iament  t r ied  to  have h im  g ive  ev idence and he  

seems to  have been overseas fo r  some cons ide rab le  t ime.   

So the  suggest ion  tha t  you make. . .   Thank you very  much 

fo r  the  suggest ion .   We had thought  about  tha t  bu t ,  o f  

course ,  we wou ld  l i ke  to  have the  ev idence o f  Mr  Chawla .   

And i f  he  i s  watch ing  th i s  on l ine .   P lease,  Mr  Chawla ,  you  

know where  to  contac t  us .   We wou ld  l i ke  to  hear  your  

ev idence in te r  a l ia  on  whe ther  you rece ived the  20 

re imbursement .    

 And then we see on the  fo l low ing pages 482 and 

483 fu r the r  emai ls .   I t  appears  t ha t  Mr  Chawla ,  ac tua l l y,  

o rgan ised fo r  a  veh ic le ,  a  chauf feur  veh ic le  to  p i ck  you up  

to  –  a t  the  a i rpo r t  to  take  you to  th is  ho te l  in  Duba i .   I s  tha t  
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cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And d id  he  pay fo r  the  t rave l  cos t  o f  

tha t  as  we l l  and you re imbursed h im? 

MR MANTSHA :    I  d id .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lso  in  cash?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    What  these document  show is  very  10 

deta i led .   Emai l  came back and fo r th ,  back and fo r th  about  

a l l  o f  these ar rangements .   Nowhere  in  these emai l s  have I  

found any re fe rence to  the  amount  tha t  was – tha t  you 

were  expected to  re imburse  Mr  Chawla ,  how you wou ld  do  

i t ,  when you wou ld  do  i t  and whether  you d id  i t ,  and i f  so ,  

any de ta i l .    

MR MANTSHA :    Can I  answer  tha t  Mr  Cha i r?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  we l l ,  I  am put t ing  i t  to  you.  

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  f i rs t l y,  I  do  no t  know where  these  

emai ls  come f rom.   I  have exp la ined how I  t ransacted w i th  20 

h im,  how we have  dea l t  w i th  one another.   So I  am sure ,  as  

the  Commiss ion ,  you know where  these emai ls  –  I  mean,  

do  no t  know where  these emai ls  a re  coming f rom.   And o f  

course ,  I  can on ly  conf i rm what  I  have done.   I  cannot  go  

beyond what  I  have done . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  have a l ready shared(?)  tha t  w i th  

you.  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.   So fo r  you  to  pu t  i t  to  me tha t  you 

cannot  f ind  an  emai l  tha t  conf i rm what  I  am say ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    As  i f  I  know where  these emai ls  a re  

coming f rom.   I  do  no t  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do not  wor ry  about  emai ls  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA :    I  am say ing . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . in  my mind.  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

MR MANTSHA :    I  am say ing  to  you,  Mr  Cha i r.   We can 

conf i rm what  I  am ta lk ing  about .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see .   Do  you have any  emai ls  o f  

your  own?  I  mean,  you must  have access to  your  own  

emai ls  and/or  phone messages?  You,  p resumable ,  have 

your  phone here?   I s  there  no  ev idence tha t  you can come 

up w i th ,  e i ther  r igh t  now or  e l se ,  perhaps a f te r  th is  hear ing  

is  ove r,  you can send i t  to  us  as  the  Lega l  Team to  say:   20 

Here  we are ,  Cha i rperson.    

 I  have ac tua l l y  go t  an  SMS or  Whatsapp  

message or  an  emai l  o r  whatever.   To  say:   Thank you fo r  

see ing  Mr  Abu l (? ) ,  yes terday.   I  con f i rm you to ld  me I  owe 

you R 28 000,00 odd fo r  th is  a i r  t i cke t .   Would  i t  su i t  fo r  
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you  fo r  me to  come around your  house on Sunday morn ing  

because I  have got  a  who le  lo t  o f  cash o r  whatever.  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja ,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Can you f ind  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Mr  Kennedy,  we can s i t  and assume.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    No,  I  am ask ing  you i f  you have  

anyth ing  l i ke  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA :    O f  course ,  I  was dea l ing  w i th  th is  person,  

more  o f ten  face- to - face.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  10 

MR MANTSHA :    I  wou ld  ta lk  to  h im.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.    

MR MANTSHA :    When I  pay h im,  I  wou ld  pay h im in te res t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  unders tand.  

MR MANTSHA :    So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The answer  i s  you do not  have?  

MR MANTSHA :    No,  bu t  aga in  Cha i rperson,  w i thou t  be ing  

accused o f  t ry ing  to  de lay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MANTSHA :    I f  a  person them assumes tha t  fo r  cer ta in  20 

th ings to  be  proved there  shou ld  be  an emai l ,  there  shou ld  

be  a  te lephone ca l l .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  gave you an  example  o f  wha t  we do 

every  day w i th  peop le  tha t  we know.   I  come to  you,  I  
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bor row money.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no .   I  unders tand tha t  and I  am sure  

he  unders tands i t .  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He unders tand tha t  pa r t .   You might  jus t  

have someth ing  and tha t  i s  why  he was ask ing ,  do  you  

have anyth ing .   So the  answer  i s :   No,  I  do  no t  have .  

MR MANTSHA :    No,  I  w i l l  no t  g ive  you l i ke  tha t .   We were  

no t  dea l ing  l i ke  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Mr  Kennedy.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   May I  now move 

on to  another  t ransact ion  f rom the  same bund le ,  page 428?  

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say 428? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Ja ,  428.   I t  i s  a  mun ic ipa l  account .   

You see by  the  C i ty  o f  Johannesburg  Mun ic ipa l i t y?    

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR MANTSHA :    Ja ,  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And tha t  i s  an  invo i ce  in  your  name.   

I s  tha t  cor rec t?   L D Mantsha,  P.O.  Box 1127,  Randburg .   I s  

tha t  you r  name and posta l  address  a t  the  f ron t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  re la tes ,  i t  seems i f  we look a t  

the  r igh t -hand po r t ion  near  the  top .   I t  re fe rs  to  an  address 

in . . .   I  am a f ra id  my eyes are  too  bad to  read i t .   I  th ink  i t  

i s . . .   I s  i t  Ma in  S t ree t  in  Bordeaux?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes,  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And the re  is  –  and th is  seems to  be  a  

mun ic ipa l  accoun t .   I t  says  p rev ious account ,  e t  ce te ra ,  

in te res t  on  ar rears ,  e t  ce tera .   And i t  comes to  R 14  000,00  

odd.   R 14 238,00 i t  seems.   Now d id  you own a t  tha t  t ime 

or  do  you s t i l l  own the  proper ty  in  Main  S t ree t ,  Bordeaux?  10 

MR MANTSHA :    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You do?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you d id  a t  th is  t ime.   And was  

th is  an  invo ice  issued by  the  mun ic ipa l i t y  fo r  your  persona l  

account  fo r  amounts  owing in  respect  o f  tha t  p roper ty?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  th ink  w i thout  an t ic ipa t ing  your  quest ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    These p roof  o f  res idence . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sor ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MANTSHA :    . . .was supp l ied . . .   Was supp l ied  fo r  the  

purposes o f  app ly ing  fo r  a  v isa .   So i t  was g iven  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    App ly ing  fo r  a  v isa?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see .   Thank you.   You have not  

expect (?)  my quest ion .   I  jus t  want  to  take  you to  the 

prev ious page 427.   There  is  an  emai l  f rom Yvonne  and he r  

emai l  address a t  the  top  is  

in fo@lung isan imantshaat to rneys.co .za .   That  i s  your  

o f f i c ia l  f i rm ’s  name,  no t  so?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Was she  a  l ega l  p ro fess iona l  o r  was 

she a  PA?  What  pos i t ion  d id  she ho ld?  

MR MANTSHA :    She is  a  PA.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    PA.   And tha t  then was sent .   I t  says  

mun ic ipa l  accoun t  as  the  a t tachment .    

I t  says :  

“P lease f ind  the  a t tached document  fo r  your  

u rgent  a t ten t ion . . . ”  

 So you are  say ing  tha t  was sent  on  your  beha l f  

by  your  PA to  –  you w i l l  see  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  go ing  to  Ashu.   

That  i s  Mr  Chawla .   For  purposes o f  ob ta in ing  a  v isa .  

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Not  fo r  payment  o f  the  mun ic ipa l  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA :    No,  no t  a t  a l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see .   Thank  you.   I  am sor ry,  Cha i r.   

I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  ge t  to  my next  top ic .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now I  jus t  want  to  dea l  b r ie f l y  

Mr  Mantsha,  i f  I  may,  w i th  the  meet ing  tha t  took p lace a t  

the  Saxonwold  res idence o f  Mr  Tony Gupta ,  tha t  

Mr  Sa loo jee  gave  ev idence on,  in  some deta i l .    

 And Mr  Sa loo jee  has to ld  the  Commiss ion  tha t  

he  had an impress ion ,  o f  course  an impress ion  does not  

necessar i l y  fac ts ,  bu t  h is  impress ion  was tha t  Mr  Gupta  

was unhappy about  h is  perce ived res i s tance.    

 That  i s  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  pe rce ived  res i s tance,  in  

par t i cu la r  re la t ing  to  the  As ia  jo in t  venture .   And you were  10 

present  a t  the  meet ing  in  Saxonwold .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  was present  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   What  was ou r  impress ion?  Do 

you have any comment  on  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  impress ion?   

Because Mr  Sa loo jee  has sa id ,  h is  impress ion  was,  f rom 

what  was sa id  and in  the  tone  in  wh ich  i t  was sa id ,  

Mr  Tony Gupta  was ve ry  unhappy about  Mr  Sa loo jee 

apparent ly  res is t ing  the  e f fo r ts  o f  the  Gupta ’s  to  pursue the  

As ia  jo in t  venture .    

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  Cha i rpe rson,  w i th  respect .   I t  was  20 

not  in  my impress ion  fo r  the  fo l low ing reason.   That  

meet ing  was no t  d iscuss ing  VR re la ted  issues.   That  

meet ing  was  d iscuss ing  the  ag reement  be tween  

Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Essa whereby  Mr  Sa loo jee  under took  

to  he lp  Mr  Essa to  acqu i re  a  company ca l led  LMT.    
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 LMT is  a  company wh ich  was –  I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  they s t i l l  owe 51% by Dene l  a t  the  t ime,  and 49% 

was owned by  pr iva te  shareho lders .   The agreement  

be tween the  two,  as  I  unders tood ,  was tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  

wou ld  ass is t  Mr  Essa by  ta lk ing  to  the  pr iva te  shareho lders  

o f  LMT to  t r y  to  secure  a  sa le  o f  the i r  shares to  Mr  Essa.    

 So tha t  meet ing  was a  fo l low-up to  some 

longstand ing  d iscuss ion  as  i t  appears  to  me. . .  And i t  i s  the  

same Mr  Essa and Mr  Sa loo jee  who togethe r  ass is ted  one 

another  to  ge t  Mr  Essa to  buy VR Laser.    10 

 What  was d iscussed in  tha t  meet ing .   Of  course ,  

Mr  Essa saw LMT as a  s t ra teg i c  acqu is i t ion  fo r  h imse l f  to  

be  a  ser ious p layer  in  the  de fence spaces.   And  he was 

ask ing  Mr  Sa loo jee :   How far  a re  you?  What  i s  the 

react ion  o f  the  p r iva te  shareho lde rs?   Mr  Tony Gupta  d id 

no t  rea l l y  say  much in  tha t  meet ing .   So the  person – the 

peop le  who were  ta lk ing  a  lo t  in  tha t  meet ing ,  i t  was  

Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Essa.    

 I  was then asked,  as  the  end:   What  i s  your  

v iew?  So because,  a t  tha t  po in t ,  I  d id  no t  even know what  20 

LMT s tood fo r.   I  was knew.   So I  d id  no t  want  to  embar rass  

myse l f .   I  then sa id :   No,  I  have got  no  comment .   And the  

meet ing  ended. . .   So in  shor t ,  I  d isagree tha t  tha t  meet ing  

had anyth ing  to  do  w i th  the  As ia  VR or  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t .   

I t  had eve ry th ing  to  do  w i th  LMT.    
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    R igh t .   Now you have sa id  tha t  in  

your  s ta tement .   I f  I  can  take  you to  i t ,  p lease?  I t  i s  in  the  

same bund le ,  page 331.    

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  page  number  aga in?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    331,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you have i t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now in  paragraph 7 ,  you r  head ing  is  10 

a t  parag raphs 97 to  99 .   That  i s  the  re ference,  as  I  

unders tand i t ,  to  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  in i t ia l  s ta tement .  

MR MANTSHA :    Indeed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Because he was spec i f i ca l l y  asked by  

the  invest iga tors  o f  th is  Commiss ion  to  comment  on 

par t i cu la r  fea tu res  o f  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  a f f idav i t .   Cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]  [Microphone not  

sw i tched on. ]  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Oh,  you w i l l  need to  d i rec t  your. . .   

A re  you ask ing  fo r  a  comfo r t  b reak? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you wou ld  l i ke  a  comfo r t  b reak?  

MR MANTSHA :    [Mic rophone not  sw i tched on. ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .    
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MR MANTSHA :    [Mic rophone not  sw i tched on. ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   We are  go ing  

to  b reak a t  four.   So le t  us  take  i t  now.   Ten minutes?  Le t  

us  say le t  us  resume a t  ten  to  four.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  be l ieve  I  10 

was a t  page 331 o f  bund le  8  and paragraph 7  i s  headed a t  

parag raph 97 to  99  and you have conf i rmed -  Mr  Mantsha,  

thank you fo r  tha t  -  tha t  th is  re la tes  to  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  

s ta tement ,  h is  in i t ia l  s ta tement .  

 Now I  jus t  want  fo r  the  reco rd  to  be  fa i r  to  you to  

jus t  reco rd  tha t  in  a  la te r  s ta tement  tha t  you gave you  

made a  s l igh t  cor rec t ion  o f  the  de ta i l  and we thank you fo r  

tha t ,  how your  t yped s ta tement  reads sub jec t  to  the  

amendment  tha t  I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  in  a  moment  i s :  

“ I  d id  no t  request  to  meet  Mr  Sa loo jee  and I  d id  no t  20 

d i rec t  h im tha t  the  meet ing  wou ld  take  p lace a t  the  

Gupta  res idence.   My reco l lec t ion  o f  the  event  i s  

tha t  Mr  Essa convened the  sa id  meet ing  and he 

requested me to  a t tend. ”  

E tce tera .   Now in  your  l a te r  s ta tement  you have changed 
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th is  to  say:  

“ I  do  no t  reca l l  who requested th is  meet ing . ”  

So thank you fo r  tha t  cor rec t .   But  you have conf i rmed o f  

course  now a l so  tha t  there  was  such a  meet ing  a t  the  

Saxonwold  res idence o f  Mr  Gupta .  

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now i f  we look –  and he re  I  am go ing  

to  ask  you jus t  to  pu t  to  one s ide  the  f i le  tha t  you are  

look ing  a t  now wi th  your  s ta tement ,  jus t  pu t  tha t  as ide  fo r  

a  moment  p lease and now can  I  jus t  take  you to  Mr  10 

Sa loo jee ’s  s ta tement  tha t  you are  comment ing  on?  I t  i s  

bund le  W4A and wh i le  tha t  i s  be ing  read ied  fo r  the  learned 

Cha i r  can I  jus t  g ive  you the  page number,  i t  i s  RS022.   

Sor ry,  Cha i r,  I  shou ld  have ind ica ted  to  your  reg is t ra r  a  

moment  ago.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  here  o f  course  the re  is  on ly  one 

se t  o f  page numbers ,  th is  t ime on the  r igh t  hand  s ide ,  i f  

you  look a t  RS022.   I  am jus t  go ing  to  g ive  you the  d ig i t s ,  

22 .   And i f  we look a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  i t  says  20 

paragraph 95,  have you got  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:     Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  says  th is  –  th is  i s  Mr  Sa loo jee  

speak ing :  

“On 24 Ju ly  2015,  Brown. . . ”  
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That  i s  Mrs  Lynne Brown –  Ms,  I  beg your  pa rdon,  Lynne  

Brown the  then Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises.  

“ . . . convened a  meet ing  w i th  the  incoming board  and  

presented her  s t ra teg ic  in ten t  s ta tement . ”  

And then he a t taches i t .    

“A t  th is  meet ing  Brown a lso  announced the  new 

members  o f  the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  namely  Ms  

Mpho Kgomongoe as  Cha i rpe rson,  Mr  Msomi ,  Mr  

Mahumapelo  and Ms Ntshaven i ”  

D id  you a t tend tha t  meet ing  where  the  incoming board  10 

inc lud ing  you,  as  Cha i rperson a t tended? 

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And then he says,  Mr  

Sa loo jee ,  parag raph 96:  

“Somet ime in  ear l y  September  2014,  Mantsha. . . ”  

That  i s  yourse l f .  

“ . . . requested a  br ie f ing  meet ing  w i th  me in  

Johannesburg . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t ,  you were  about  to  take  o f f i ce  or  you had 

jus t  taken o f f i ce  as  Cha i rperson  and you requested a 20 

meet ing  w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee  fo r  h im as Group CEO to  prov ide  

a  br ie f ing ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  Cha i rpe rson,  Mr  Sa loo jee  

approached me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see .  
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MR MANTSHA:     I  th ink  on  two or  th ree  occas ions be fore  I  

s ta r ted  the  work  and we met  I  th ink  a t  Park  Hyat t  o r  

wherever  the  case may …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry,  where?  

MR MANTSHA:     I  th ink  we met  a t  Park  Hyat t  o r  wherever.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Park  Hyat t ,  the  ho te l?  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes,  the  ho te l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes?  

MR MANTSHA:     And i t  was t r y ing  to  f ind  one another.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  bu t  p resumably  i t  made  sense,  10 

tha t  you needed to  ge t  to  know each o the r  and he  needed  

to  in fo rm you wha t  was go ing  on i n  Dene l  as  CEO to  you as  

Cha i rperson so  tha t  you cou ld  f ind  your  fee t ,  as  i t  were .  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes,  bu t  what  I  do  no t  remember,  i t  i s  

where  I  ca l led  i t  o r  he  ca l led  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .   But  do  you  reca l l  

i t  was ea r ly  September  2015?  Before  the  f i rs t  board  

meet ing?  

MR MANTSHA:     I  th ink  be fo re  the  f i rs t  board  mee t ing  we 

d id  meet  –  you see,  normal ly  the  CE wou ld  meet  the  Cha i r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    O f  course .  

MR MANTSHA:     And,  you know,  canvass ce r ta in  i ssues 

and say we l l ,  Cha i r,  I  need th i s  reso lu t ion ,  I  need tha t  

reso lu t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  
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MR MANTSHA:     To  be  made and,  you know,  I  th ink  we d id  

meet  in  p repara t i on  o f  the  board  meet ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  a l so  –  I  am sor ry,  Mr  Kennedy,  I  

th ink  a  few minutes  ago you sa id  be fore  you s ta r ted  work  

as  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  board .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA:     You d id  meet  w i th  h im about  th ree  or  so  

t imes,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  th ink  two t imes a lso .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   And tha t  obv ious l y  

makes sense because you want  to  ge t  some ins ide  

knowledge befo re  you s ta r t  shar ing  your  f i rs t  board  

meet ing  where  you might  no t  know what  i s  go ing  on  but  the 

impor tan t  b i t  i s  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  focus on  now is  how 

th is  came about  and where  the  meet ing  happened because  

Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  vers ion  is  tha t  you requested a  br ie f ing  

meet ing ,  you o f  course  have sa id  tha t  he  requested some 

o f  the  meet ing  and he says you ind ica ted  tha t  the  meet ing  20 

wou ld  probab ly  be  a t  your  o f f i ce ,  a t  h is  o f f i ce ,  tha t  i s  

yourse l f .   Where  was your  o f f i ce  a t  tha t  s tage,  was tha t  

when you had reopened your  a t to rney ’s  p rac t ice .  

MR MANTSHA:     Ja ,  my o f f i ce  has been a lways in  

Cra igha l l .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  Cra igha l l?  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   And then he says th is .  

“He sa id . . . ”  

That  i s  yourse l f  sa id .  

“ . . .he  wou ld  conf i rm the  venue when I  was on my  

way.   He d id  no t  spec i fy  the  na tu re  o f  the  meet ing  

and I  d id  no t  th ink  anyth ing  un toward  about  such a  

meet ing .   On my way to  the  meet ing . . . ”  

Th is  i s  parag raph  97,  wh ich  is  the  f i rs t  par t  o f  the  passage  10 

tha t  you have commented on in  your  s ta tement  tha t  we 

have jus t  looked a t .  

“On my way to  the  meet ing  he  ca l led  and d i rec ted  

me to  the  Gupta  res idence in  Saxonwold .   I  was no t  

surpr i sed. ”  

Now what  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  you  is  th is .   I s  tha t  cor rec t  

tha t  you phoned  h im or  you sa id  to  h im le t  us  have a  

meet ing  and I  w i l l  te l l  you  where  the  meet ing  w i l l  be  once 

you are  on  your  way and wh i le  you were  on  your  way he 

sa id  meet  me a t  the  Saxonwold  res idence o f  Guptas .  20 

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  my answer  to  th is ,  Cha i rperson,  as  

fa r  as  h i s  spec i f i c  meet ing  is  concerned,  the  answer  i s  no  

and i t  i s  no  because I  had no contac t  o f  what  was go ing  to  

be  d iscussed.   I  d id  no t  even know who LMT was but  I  had 

a  dea l  w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee  to  say wherever  there  is  p ressure  
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–  because when you ho ld  th is  pos i t ion ,  you know,  bus iness  

peop le  lobby the i r  bus iness in te res t  so  you a re  a lways 

under  constant  p ressure  as  the  CE.   I  sa id  I  w i l l  pu t  a  

cover   on  you so  tha t  you focus  on  what  you have to  do  

w i thout  in te r fe rence o f ,  you know,  a l l  th is  p ressure .   So  

th is  meet ing  I  wou ld  no t  have ca l led  fo r  i t  because I  had no  

knowledge o f  the  issues to  be  d iscussed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  bu t  you have conf i rmed tha t  one 

meet ing  wh ich  you and Mr  Sa loo jee  a t tended took p lace a t  

the  home o f  Mr  Tony Gupta  in  Saxonwold .  10 

MR MANTSHA:     Yes,  t rue .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now th is  was before  you had cha i red  

your  f i rs t  board  meet ing ,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  aga in ,  Cha i rperson,  I  cannot  te l l  

you  the  da te  o f  tha t  meet ing  a t  the  Gupta ’s  res idence.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     Bu t  a l l  I  can  say,  I  was very  new,  I  was 

t ry ing  to  read every th ing  about  Dene l .   I  had not  –  a t  tha t  

t ime came across the  subs id ia ry  o f  Dene l  tha t  is  ca l led  

LMT.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     So  I  was fa i r l y  very  new,  I  cannot  te l l  you  

when but  I  was [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  unders tand ,  I  have got  you.   Thank  

you.   Now but  how d id  i t  come about  then tha t  you  
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a t tended the  mee t ing  a t  the  Gupta  res idence in  Saxonwold ,  

was tha t  a r ranged by  Mr  Sa loo jee?  I s  tha t  what  you are  

te l l ing  me?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  a l l  I  am say ing ,  the  –  where  I  s i t  

now,  the  probab i l i t y  i s ,  as  much as  I  say  I  do  no t  reca l l ,  

whethe r  i t  was Mr  Sa loo jee  or  Mr  Essa.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:     Bu t  because the  issues where  be tween  

Mr  Essa and Mr  Sa loo jee ,  f rom where  I  s i t ,  one o f  them 

cou ld  have a r ranged i t .   I  do  no t  know who rea l l y  a r ranged 10 

i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And then what  he  says is  th is  in  

parag raph 98:  

“Tony and Essa were  a l so  p resent  a t  the  meet ing . ”  

You have conf i rmed tha t .  

MR MANTSHA:     Ja ,  ja ,  they were  present .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     

“A t  the  meet ing  Tony spec i f i ca l l y  addressed the  

issue o f  Dene l  Land Mobi l i t y  Techno log ies”  

That  i s  the  DLM.   Sor ry,  LMT.  20 

“…and sa id  tha t  were  in te res ted  in  acqu i r ing  the  

bus iness.   Dene l  had a  51% s take in  the  bus iness .   

Mantsha asked me…” 

That  i s  Sa loo jee .  

“…to  look in to  the  mat te r  and to  g ive  h im feedback 
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on  the  way fo rward .   I  ind ica ted  tha t  th is  wou ld  take  

t ime and tha t  such a  t ransact ion  wou ld  have to  go  

th rough severa l  p rocesses.   The meet ing  then 

ended.   I…”  

That  i s  Sa loo jee .  

“…le f t  the  mee t ing  knowing tha t  I  was be ing  

ins t ruc ted  to  rever t  on  how I  wou ld  fac i l i ta te  the  

sa le .   I  had no in ten t ion  o f  do ing  so .   I t  i s  a lso  

impor tan t  to  po in t  ou t  tha t  the  body language and  

tone o f  vo ice  o f  spec i f i ca l l y  Tony dur ing  th is  10 

meet ing  gave me the  impress ion  tha t  he  was 

ex t remely  f rus t ra ted  by  me.   I  rea l i sed tha t  my  

s t ra tegy o f  fobb ing  them o f f  was no  longer  work ing . ”  

He has exp la ined  tha t  e lsewhere  in  h is  s ta tement .   He kept  

res i s t ing  a t tempts  by  Essa and  o thers  to  be  pursu ing  

pro jec ts .  

“ I t  was c lear  to  me…” 

He says.  

“…that  my lack  o f  coopera t ion  was becoming  

prob lemat ic  w i th  h im. ”  20 

Now you have ind ica ted  ear l ie r  you have a  d i f fe ren t  

reco l lec t ion  o f  the  meet ing .  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  I  do ,  Cha i rpe rson,  fo r  th is  reason.   

Th is  meet ing ,  the  impress ion  I  go t ,  they  were  d i scuss ing  

about  longstand ing  ar rangement  tha t  they had in  t ry ing  to  – 
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fo r  Mr  Sa loo jee  to  ass is t  Mr  Essa to  acqu i re  the 

shareho ld ing  o f  LMT in  o rder  to  increase the  s t ra teg i c  

capac i ty  o f  VR Laser.   So there  was a  background to  tha t  

meet ing  wh ich  I  was not  p r ivy  to  and the  content  o f  that  

meet ing  I  was no t  p r ivy  to  un t i l  such t ime where  they were  

d iscuss ing  a l l  o f  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     And I  d id  no t  say  anyth ing  in  tha t  

meet ing .   I  was asked to  say bu t  I  no t  and I  have  a l ready 

d isagreed tha t  Mr  Tony Gupta  par t i c i pa ted  and  sa id  the  10 

th ings tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  a l leged ly  sa id .   I t  was  main ly  

be tween Mr  Essa  and Mr  Sa loo jee  and the  impress ion ,  tha t  

meet ing  happened in  a  very  f r iend ly  a tmosphere .   I  d id  no t  

hear  anybody ra is ing  vo i ce ,  I  d id  no t  hear  anyone shout ing  

a t  one another,  i t  m igh t  we l l  be  tha t  the re  are  i ssues  

between Mr  Essa  and Mr  Sa loo jee  tha t  I  am not  aware  o f  

and maybe the  h is to ry  tha t  I  am not  aware  o f  bu t  i t  was a  

very  cord ia l  mee t ing ,  there  was no shout ing ,  the re  was 

noth ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Can  I  jus t  ask  th i s .   You have 20 

ind ica ted  ear l ie r  you have a  d i f fe ren t  reco l lec t ion  as  to  who  

se t  up  the  mee t ing ,  you are  no t  sure  whether  i t  was  

Sa loo jee  or  Essa but  you are  sure  tha t  i t  was not  you.   You 

had not  even a t tended even a  s ing le  board  meet ing  ye t  and  

I  do  no t  mean tha t  c r i t i ca l l y,  tha t  i s  the  fac t ,  there  was an 
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o r ien ta t ion  type o f  meet ing  and so  fo r th  be fore  you cou ld 

have a  board  meet ing .  

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Even before  you have convened w i th  

your  new co l leagues o f  the  board  a t  the  f i rs t  fo rmal  board  

meet ing ,  you were  be ing  asked by  e i ther  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  who 

was Group CEO now repor t ing  to  you or  Mr  Essa f rom the  

Gupta  bus iness empi re  to  a t tend  a  meet ing  a t  Mr  Gupta ’s  

p r iva te  res idence in  Saxonwold  to  d iscuss a  par t i cu la r  

mat te r  tha t  on  your  own vers ion ,  you d id  no t  rea l l y  have 10 

any background on –  and aga in  I  do  no t  c r i t i c i se  you,  i t  

makes per fec t  sense because you  jus t  new on the  job  as  

Cha i rperson.   Why were  you inv i ted  to  the  meet ing  a t  a l l?   

D id  i t  no t  pu t  you in  a  b i t  o f  an  awkward  s i tua t ion?  There  

are  now deta i led  d iscuss ions about  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  a  

company ca l led  LMT,  you d id  no t  even know who LMT,  fo r  

good reason,  and now i t  i s  a l l  happen ing  in  somebody 

pr iva te  res idence  ta lk ing  about  acqu is i t ions  and so  fo r th  

tha t  you have no background on.   I t  seems s t range to  me.  

MR MANTSHA:    No rea l l y  s t range,  Cha i rpe rson.   In  the  20 

bus iness env i ronment ,  you know,  bus iness peop le  lobby 

the i r  in te res t  a l l  the  t ime and as  I  sa id  t o  you,  Cha i rperson,  

the  work ing  ar rangement  tha t  myse l f  and Mr  Sa loo jee  

opted fo r  was to  say because there  is  constant  po l i t i ca l  

p ressure ,  bus iness pressure  f rom,  you know,  bus iness 



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 168 of 301 
 

peop le  who are  push ing  the i r  own in te res t .    

So where  necessary,  when you need a  cover,  I  g ive  

you a  cover  and th is  was a  meet ing  where  I  went  w i th  h im  

in  te rms o f  my work ing  ar rangement  w i th  h im and my ro le  

there  was jus t  to  ensure  tha t  there  i s  no  undue pressure  on  

Mr  Sa loo jee  because bus iness peop le ,  they push the i r  

bus iness in te res t  and there  is  some t ime they push i t  very,  

very  ha rd .   So I  d id  no t  see anyth ing  ou t  o f  a t tend ing  tha t  

meet ing  because  here  is  Mr  Essa,  who has got  ex i s t ing  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Dene l  and Mr  Essa,  in  te rms  o f  my  10 

in fo rmat ion ,  was the  on ly  because  bus iness person  who i s  

b lack  who is  opera t ing  a t  the  main ,  the  ha rdcore  o f  the 

de fence indust ry.    

So,  I  sa id  to  you o f  cou rse  I  d id  no t  know what  they  

were  go ing  to  do  bu t  i t  was not  s t range to  me tha t  I  wou ld  

go  w i th  my CE to  a  meet ing  o f  tha t  na ture .   We were  no t  

go ing  to  do  anyth ing  tha t  we are  no t  supposed to  do  and  

fo r  su re ,  the  meet ing  ended,  we le f t  tha t  meet ing  and o f  

course  I  wou ld  assume tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  exp lore  the  

d iscuss ion  w i th  those pr i va te  shareho lders .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You know,  Mr  Mantsha,  you may –  you 

may have thought  on  your  vers ion  tha t  you were  go ing  

there  to  p ro tec t  Mr  Sa loo jee  aga ins t  p ressure  f rom Mr  

Sa l im Essa or  whoever  bu t  d id  you th ink  about  the  

poss ib i l i t y  tha t  you cou ld  be  –  you cou ld  have been 
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b rought  to  the  meet ing  fo r  you presence to  ac t  as  pressure  

on  Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR MANTSHA:     Not  a l l ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     Not  a t  a l l  because Mr  Sa loo jee  was  

ta lk ing  to  p r iva te  shareho lders  o f  LMT and there  was no 

pressure  I  cou ld  have asser ted  to  Mr  Sa loo jee  because h is  

a r rangement  was pu re ly  w i th  Mr  Essa and f rom the  

d iscuss ion  o f  tha t  meet ing  there  was no hard  fee l ing  

expressed to  Mr  Sa loo jee  by  Mr  Essa o r  by  anyone  in  tha t  10 

meet ing .   I t  was jus t  a  fo l low-up meet ing  what  i s  

happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Wel l ,  le t  me te l l  you  abou t  some 

ev idence tha t  I  have heard  wh ich  on  the  face  o f  i t  may we l l  

be  in te rpre ted  as  revea l ing  a  way  o f  do ing  bus iness tha t  

was adopted maybe by  the  Guptas  or  by  the  Guptas  and 

the i r  assoc ia tes  o r  par t i cu la r l y  by,  I  th ink ,  Mr  Tony Gupta .    

 The ev idence tha t  I  have had revea ls  tha t  in  the  

number  o f  mee t ings where  he  was ta lk ing  to  some 

government  person o r  SOE o f f i c ia l ,  they  wou ld  b r ing  –  he  20 

wou ld  br ing ,  fo r  example ,  Mr  Duduzane Zuma to  the  

meet ing  bu t  a lmost  everyone o f  those person who a t tended 

such meet ings w i th  Mr  Tony Gup tas  says Mr  Duduzane  

Zuma had noth ing  o f  substance to  cont r ibu te  to  the  

meet ing ,  he  was,  apar t  f rom the  p leasant r ies ,  he  wou ld  jus t  
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be  there .   Tony Gupta  wou ld  do  most  o f  the  ta lk ing .    

Mr  Jonas sa id  so  about  Mr  Zuma in  regard  to  the  

meet ing  tha t  he  had  w i th  a  Gupta  bro the r  who  may we l l  

have been Tony Gupta  on  the  23  October  2015 when he 

says he  was o f fe red  the  pos i t ion  o f  Min is te r  o f  F inance and  

some money.    

Mr  Dukwana sa id  the  same th ing  about  the  meet ing  

tha t  he  sa id  he  had a t  the  Gupta  res idence w i th  Mr  Tony  

Gupta  and he sa id  Mr  Duduzane Zuma was there  where ,  

acco rd ing  to  Mr  Dukwana he was  asked to  f i re  h is  own 10 

HOD in  the  Free S ta te  and appo in t  Mr  R ichard  Se leke and  

he says he  was o f fe red  money on tha t  occas ion .    

Mr,  I  th ink ,  Kona who was Cha i rperson o f  the  SAA 

Board  a t  some s tage and was Act ing  Group CEO of  SAA a t  

some s tage a lso  had a  meet ing  w i th  Tony Gupta  a t  the 

Gupta  res idence where  he  says he  was o f fe red  money,  i f  I  

reca l l  cor rec t l y.   I  cou ld  be  wrong on th is  occas ion ,  

Duduzane Zuma was there  too  bu t  he  d id  no t  say  much and  

I  th ink  I  cou ld  have another  two or  th ree  peop le ,  so  i t  i s  

qu i te  in te res t ing .    20 

 And then,  in  regard  to  Dene l ,  par t  o f  the  ev idence  

g iven by  Mr  Sa loo jee  is  tha t  a t  one o f  the  meet ings  tha t  he 

had a t  the  Gup ta  res idence w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa,  they 

brought  in  Duduzane Zuma and I  th ink  on  another  occas ion  

they brought  in  Min is te r  G igaba who was Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  
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En terp r ises a t  tha t  t ime.    

He says even w i th  regard  to  Min i s te r  G igaba there  

seem to  have been no par t i cu la r  obv ious reason why they 

wanted h im to  be  in  tha t  meet ing  because he d id  no t  have  

much to  say,  a lso  w i th  Duduzane  Zuma,  so  i t  g ives  the  

impress ion  as  i f  they  cou ld  br ing  ce r ta in  peop le  jus t  to  

show you these a re  ou r  connect ions.    

So I  am say ing  I  am wonder ing  whether  you thought  

tha t  they m ight  no t  have brought  you as  a  fu tu re  

Cha i rperson o f  the  board  to  say to  Mr  Sa loo jee  l ook,  you 10 

know,  we have in f luenced the  Cha i rperson o f  the  new 

board ,  he  is  somebody tha t  we know.  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  I  do  no t  th ink  so ,  fo r  these 

reasons,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  Essa and Mr  Sa loo jee  had 

longstand ing  re la t ionsh ip  and Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Essa had 

t ransacted before ,  long t ime when they ac tua l l y  acqu i red  

VR Laser .   Apparent ly  my in fo rmat ion  was the  propos i t ion  

fo r  Mr  Essa to  acqu i re  VR Laser  came f rom Mr  Sa loo jee  

and tha t  i s  the  propos i t ion  wh ich  Mr  Essa went  fo r  and they 

had a  longstand ing  re la t ionsh ip  o f  ass i s t ing  one another  in  20 

the  acqu is i t ion  o f  s t ra teg i c  bus iness in  de fence and I  had 

no in fo rmat ion  o f  any an imos i ty  be tween the  two and I  had 

no any i n fo rmat ion  o f  an imos i ty  be tween e i the r  Mr  Tony 

Gupta  and Mr  Sa loo jee  and the  meet ing  was not  Mr  Tony 

Gupta ’s  meet ing ,  the  meet ing  was  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  meet ing .   
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As  I  sa id ,  i t  was cord ia l ,  i t  was d iscussed ve ry  we l l ,  there  

was no pressure  rea l l y  tha t  I  cou ld  exe r t  to  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  Mr  

Sa loo jee  was ta l k ing  to  p r iva te  shareho lde rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:     We had no in f luence as  the  board  o f  

Dene l  to  ge t  those pr iva te  shareho lders  to  agree to  se l l  the  

shares to  Mr  Essa.   And Mr  Sa loo jee  h imse l f ,  he  had no 

author i t y  to  dec ide  fo r  those shareho lders .   A l l  he  was  

do ing  was to  hand le  those d i scuss ion  on  beha l f  o f  Mr  Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Kennedy?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   Now can I  take  

you back to  your  own s ta tement  where  you were  

respond ing  to  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  a f f idav i t  and – sor ry,  Cha i r,  

jus t  g ive  me a  moment?   So tha t  i s  bund le  8 .   Have you got  

tha t  back?  

MR MANTSHA:     I  do ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  i t  i s  a t  page 332.  

MR MANTSHA:     I  do  have.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now th is  i s  par t  o f  your  s ta tement  

and you re fer  in  your  s ta tement  to  –  in  some deta i l  to  the  20 

po in ts  tha t  you have a l ready re fer red  to  tha t  the  top ic  

d iscussed a t  the  Gupta  res idence was the  LMT,  the  

poss ib i l i t y  o f  acqu i r ing  the  shares  –  o f  a  shareho ld ing  o f  

LMT to  be  so ld  to  VR Laser  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you on  

page 332,  the  las t  th ree  paragraphs.   You see the  
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parag raph tha t  s ta r ts :  

“Mr  Sa loo jee  repor ted  to  Mr  Essa…” 

Do you see tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Mr  Sa loo jee?   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Repor ted  to  Mr  Essa,  page 332,  th i rd  

las t  parag raph.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  do  see i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  i f  I  can  jus t  remind you what  

you sa id  in  your  a f f idav i t .  

“Mr  Sa loo jee  repor ted  to  Mr  Essa  tha t  he  was s t i l l  10 

ta lk ing  to  them. . . ”  

That  i s  the  pr i va te  shareho lders  o f  LMT.  

“ . . .and wou ld  con t inue to  d iscuss w i th  the  sa id  LMT 

pr iva te  shareho lders  to  se l l  the i r  sha res to  VR 

Laser.   I  was asked a t  the  end o f  the  d i scuss ion  i f  I  

had any comment  and I  rep l ied  tha t  I  had none 

s ince  I  d id  no t  even a t  tha t  s tage know what  LMT 

s tood fo r  and what  i t  does,  and  fu r ther,  I  had no 

background o f  the  mat te r. ”  

Now tha t  seems to  bear  ou t  what  you to ld  the  Cha i rpe rson  20 

a  l i t t le  ear l ie r  tha t  you were  a  b i t  in  a  s i tua t ion  o f  some 

ignorance,  and I  do  no t  mean tha t  in  a  c r i t i ca l  way,  you 

were  so  new to  t he  pos i t ion ,  you d id  no t  even  know who 

LMT were  and anyth ing  about  the  t ransact ion .   Now what  

you then say is  th is :  
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“On my way out . . . ”  

That  i s  p resumab ly  ou t  f rom the  Gupta  res idence.  

“On my way out  w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  he  then sa id  to  

me Cha i r,  I  need  your  suppor t .   I  ind ica ted  to  h im 

tha t  we wou ld  d iscuss the  mat te r. ”  

What  d id  you unders tand h i s  request  to  mean?  Why  d id  he  

need your  suppor t?   Suppor t  fo r  what?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  we had a l ready d i scussed w i th  Mr  

Sa loo jee  how we  shou ld  work .   So th is  s ta tement  was o f  

course  based on our  ear l ie r  d iscuss ion  tha t  I  must  suppor t  10 

h im in  any ins tances where  there  is  p ressure .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     Or  any ins tances  where  there  is  lobby.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     Where  the re  is  po l i t i ca l  in te r fe rence and  

a l l  sor ts  o f  th ings .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MR MANTSHA:     So  o f  course  I  unders tood tha t  s ta tement  

in  the  contex t  o f  the  work ing  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  we were  

t ry ing  to  do  tha t  I  suppor t  my CE.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Try  and s i t  c lose r  to  the  m icrophone  

p lease?  

MR MANTSHA:     That  I  suppor t  my CE.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes and tha t  i s  an  admi rab le  purpose 

but  what  i t  seems to  suggest ,  I  am put t ing  i t  to  you,  i t  
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seems to  suggest  tha t  you are  in  a  way conf i rm ing  par t  o f  

Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  ev idence wh ich  was  he gets  to  a  meet ing  in  

Saxonwold ,  he  fee ls  he  is  be ing  pressur ised by  Mr  Gupta ,  

admi t ted l y  he  does not  ta lk  about  spec i f i c  used by  Mr  

Gupta ,  he  ta lks  about  vo i ce  tone and body language  and so  

fo r th  and the  Cha i rperson w i l l  assess what  we igh t  can be 

a t tached to  tha t  bu t  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  ev idence has been I  ge t  

b rought  to  a  meet ing  in  Saxonwo ld ,  I  am on ly  to ld  a t  the  

las t  m inute  where  I  am supposed to  go ,  I  land up in  a  

Gupta  res idence and I  am then dea l t  w i th  in  a  way by  Mr  10 

Gupta ,  Tony Gupta ,  where  he  seems to  be  aggress ive  and 

very  unhappy and pressur ing  h im -  Mr  Sa loo jee  –  because 

he is  obv ious l y  no t  p lay ing  the  game as i t  were  and so  

when you conf i rm  tha t  as  he  came out  o f  the  meet ing  w i th  

you he sa id  to  you I  need your  suppor t ,  Cha i r.   He was  

a l ready s igna l l ing  to  you there  was a  p rob lem o f  the  ve ry  

pressure  tha t  you fe l t  i t  was your  du ty  to  p ro tec t  h im 

aga ins t .  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  Cha i rpe rson,  ta lk ing  as  fa r  as  tha t  

meet ing  is  concerned,  I  d id  no t  see any undue p ressure ,  I  20 

d id  no t  see any pressure .   So h is  s ta tement ,  as  I  sa id ,  i t  i s  

re la t ing  to  what  we have done befo re .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.    

MR MANTSHA:     And as  I  am say ing  to  you,  these par t ies  

were  known to  each o ther  very  we l l .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:     And i t  was not  w i th in  the  power  o f  Mr  

Sa loo jee  to  fo rce  those peop le  to  se l l  the i r  sha res to  VR,  i t  

was jus t  fo r  h im to  ta lk  on  beha l f  o f  VR to  see i f  th is  can 

be [ ind i s t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .   So the  pressure  ou t  o f  i t ,  I  

d id  no t  see i t  and I  wonder  on  what  bas is  th is  cou ld  have  

resu l ted  i n  a  pressure  fo r  someth ing  tha t  was not  w i th in  

the  cont ro l  o f  e i ther  Dene l ,  myse l f  as  the  Cha i r  and Mr  

Sa loo jee  and even Mr  Essa h imse l f .   So I  wou ld  no t  

unders tand the  bas is  o f  any pressure  ou t  o f  what  was 10 

be ing  d iscussed a t  tha t  t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  was h i s  request  to  you,  Cha i r,  I  

need your  suppor t  as  someth ing  you d id  no t  unders tand?  

MR MANTSHA:     Wel l ,  I  unders tood th i s  in  the  contex t  o f  

the  work ing  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  we were  t ry ing  to  bu i ld  w i th  

Mr  Sa loo jee  tha t  I  have got  to  suppor t  a l l  the  way.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  you yourse l f ,  a  few minutes  ago,  

sa id  a  number  o f  t imes you saw i t  as  par t  o f  you r  ro le  as  

Cha i rperson to  p ro tec t  you r  CEO aga ins t  heavy p ressure  

f rom o the r  peop le .  20 

MR MANTSHA:     Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  do  no t  mean f rom wi th in  your  

o rgan isa t ion ,  I  mean f rom outs ide .  

MR MANTSHA:     You see,  Cha i rperson,  the  bus iness  

wor ld ,  i t  i s  cu t  th roa t  in  the  sense tha t  the  bus iness  peop le  
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a re  ou t  there  to  market  whatever  p roducts  they have and 

when you a re  se rv ing  i n  a  s ta te  o r  the  company where  the  

peop le  o f  th is  count ry  have your  respect ,  you have to 

adopt  a  par t i cu la r  approach,  you cannot  c lose  a  ga te  to  

peop le  who want  to  engage w i th  the  s ta te-owned and tha t  

. . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  a  lo t  o f  money.   There  have 

been many mee t ings myse l f  tha t  I  have a t tended w i th  

var ious bus iness  peop le  who a re  push ing  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  and unders tandab ly  so  because you know 

bus iness peop le  have to  look  a t  the i r  own in te res ts ,  bu t  10 

you need to  have as  the  Cha i rperson to  d raw the  l ine  

where  you go to  suppor t  and pro tec t  you r…[ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  f rom not  do ing  a  lo t  o f  those because i t ’s  

p r imary  respons ib i l i t y  i s  to  push…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  

vo i ce ] .   So,  th is  s ta tement  i s  w i th in  the  contex t  o f  what  we  

have been t ry ing  to  dev i se  as  work ing  together  and every  

pressure  on  h im ,  I  had to  suppor t .   Whether  h imse l f ,  

in te rna l l y  fee ls  the  pressure  or  I  don ’ t  see i t  as  a  pressure  

or  I  see i t  as  a  lobby,  o r  he  sees  i t  as  a  lobby bu t  in  th is  

contex t ,  I  wonder  what  the  pressure  was.   Un less  i f  Mr  20 

Sa loo jee  was not  –  d id  no t  te l l  me o the r  th ings tha t  were  

happen ing  between h im and Mr  Essa and any o ther  th ing  

probab ly  happen ing  between h im and o ther  peop le  bu t  the 

content  o f  th is ,  there  was no pressure  because everybody 

knew i t  was not  w i th in  h is  cont ro l  i t  was not  w i th in  my 
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con t ro l ,  there  was no p ressure  I  cou ld  g i ve  to  h im.   I f  the 

pr iva te  shareho lders  were  no t  in te res ted  to  se l l ,  they  were  

no t  in te res ted .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now,  you ’ve  ind ica ted  tha t  you had a  

number  o f  p r iva te  meet ings w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee  when you ’d  

jus t  been appo in ted  to  bas ica l l y  f i l l  you  in  on  some mat te rs  

and then we know tha t  you were  a t  the  meet ing  in  

Saxonwold ,  you ’ve  conf i rmed i t  was ea r ly  September  2015,  

bu t  you can ’ t  reca l l  exact ly  when,  I  accept  tha t  and then 

you ’ve  conf i rmed  tha t  the  very  f i r s t  Board  meet ing  wh ich  10 

you Cha i red  was the  10 t h  o f  September  2015.  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Accord ing  to  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  a f f idav i t ,  

i t  appears  tha t  be fore  you even had the  –  Cha i red  the  f i rs t  

Board  meet ing  you had a t tended the  meet ing  a t  Saxonwold ,  

you conf i rm tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    You mean th is  LMT d i scuss ions?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  d id .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  now what  shou ld  the  Cha i r  make 20 

about  th is  po in t .   Does i t  no t  seem,  perhaps,  odd to  you o r  

odd to  one tha t ,  you ’ve  jus t  been appo in ted  as  Cha i rperson  

and here  I ’m  in te res ted  in  …[ ind i s t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ] ,  

you have –  the  f i rs t  th ing  you do a f te r  be ing  in t roduced by  

the  Min is te r  tha t  you ’ re  the  new Board ,  tha t  you ’ re  the  new 
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Cha i rperson and so  fo r th ,  the  f i rs t  th ing  you do is  to  ho le  a  

ser ies  o f  meet ings w i th  the  Group  CEO,  now tha t ’s  no t  a t  

a l l  odd,  tha t  seems to  me to  make per fec t  sense but  then  

before  you even  Cha i r  your  very  f i rs t  Board  meet ing ,  

be fore  you ’ re  even in te rac t ing  w i th  your  co l leagues on the  

Board  in  a  fo rmal  Board  meet ing  you ’ re  o f f  to  somebody ’s  

p r iva te  res idence  in  a  res ident ia l  suburb  o f  Johannesburg  

to  ta lk  about  some t ransact ions  about  wh ich  you know 

noth ing ,  fo r  good  reason because you ’ re  jus t  t ry ing  to  f ind  

your  fee t  about  LMT.   Does tha t  no t ,  perhaps,  g ive  we igh t  10 

to  the  suggest ion  some peop le  have suggested l i ke  Mr  

Sa loo jee ,  wh ich  is  tha t ,  beh ind  the  scenes the  Gupta ’s  

were  hav ing  a  –  and Essa,  the i r  assoc ia te ,  were  hav ing  a  

mass ive  in f luence on Dene l ’s  a f fa i rs ,  in  fac t ,  in te r fe rence 

in  Dene l ’s  a f fa i r s .   So,  be fore  you ’ve  convened a  Board  

meet ing ,  you ’ re  now hav ing  a  p r iva te  meet ing  w i th  Mr  

Gupta  and Mr  Essa a t  h is  house,  Mr  Gupta ’s  house,  i sn ’ t  

tha t ,  perhaps,  a  b i t  s t range?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cha i rperson,  a l l  I  can  say is  the  Gupta ’s  

o r  Mr  Essa d id  no t  have in f luence in  my Board  o r  in  myse l f .  20 

Maybe the  Gupta ’s  o r  Mr  Essa  had in f luence on Mr  

Sa loo jee  because Mr  Sa loo jee  had a l ready acqu i red  – 

ass is ted  them to  –  ass is ted  Mr  Essa to  acqu i re  VR Laser  

and VR Laser  was a l ready do ing  work  w i th  Dene l  a t  the  

t ime.   So,  maybe  he can ta lk  o f  tha t  in f luence they had on 
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h im but  as  fa r  as  the  in f luence they had on myse l f  o r  my  

Board ,  there  was none whatsoever,  there  was no in f luence.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  now I ’d  l i ke  to  dea l  

fu r ther  w i th  the  issue o f  how i t  came about  tha t  the  As ian  

pro jec t ,  i f  I  can  ca l l  i t  tha t ,  the  As ian  ventu re  came before  

the  Board  and Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  invo lvement  in  i t .   Mr  Sa loo jee  

has g iven ev idence tha t  the  idea o f  the  As ian  jo in t  venture  

was ra ised f i rs t  by  Mr  Ntshepe who repor ted  to  Mr  Sa loo jee  

and he suggested i t  to  Mr  Sa loo jee  and tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  

f i rm ly  re jec ted  th is  p ropos i t ion  and  I ’m quot ing  here  f rom a 10 

s ta tement  as  prov ided to  the  Commiss ion .  Now presumably  

you weren ’ t  invo lved in  those d i scuss ions,  i t  seems tha t  

those took p lace  before  you took  o f f i ce  as  Cha i rperson o f  

the  Board ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I ’m  not  aware  o f  those d iscuss ions.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see ,  now what  Mr  Sa loo jee  says is  

tha t  the  next  t ime i t  was ra ised was a t  the  f i r s t  Board  

meet ing ,  by  you ,  Mr  Mantsha as  Cha i rperson and Mr  

Sa loo jee ’s  ev idence has been,  and  I ’m s imply  pu t t ing  i t  to  

you by  way o f  fa i rness so  tha t  you can be reminded o f  i t  20 

and comment  on  i t  and i f  you  d isagree w i th  i t ,  you ’ l l  have 

tha t  oppor tun i ty.   Mr  Sa loo jee  sa id  he  found i t  s t range tha t  

where  he ,  as  the  Group CEO,  had  re jec ted  the  propos i t ion  

o f  the  As ian  venture ,  i t  shou ld  be  the  brand-new 

Cha i rperson,  you rse l f ,  who ra i ses  i t  a t  the  Board  meet ing  
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and –  yes,  jus t  comment  on  tha t ,  d id  you ra ise  i t  a t  the 

Board  meet ing?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  th ink ,  aga in  w i th  respect  Cha i rperson,  I  

th ink  th is  morn ing  you fu rn i shed me wi th  some copy o f  the 

m inutes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    And I  th ink  i f  you  jus t  look  a t  the  

m inutes…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  th ink  le t ’s  do  tha t .  

MR MANTSHA:    That  you have fu rn ished to  me.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  le t ’s  do  tha t ,  I  can  take  you,  

r igh t  now to  the  m inutes .  

MR MANTSHA:    So  tha t  mat te r  was not  ra i sed by  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    By  you?  

MR MANTSHA:    And le t  me go back,  a round February  or  

so ,  there  was a  t r ip  by  Dene l  bus iness Execut ives  to  Ind ia  

to  t ry  to  exp lore  tha t  –  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  en ter ing  i n to  tha t  

market…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Poss ib i l i t y  o f?  

MR MANTSHA:    O f  se t t ing  up…[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    En ter ing  tha t  market .  

MR MANTSHA:    En ter ing  the  Ind ian  market  and o f  course  

a t  the  t ime Mr  Ntshepe was the  head o f  Bus iness  

Deve lopment  a t  Dene l ,  he  was an Execut ive  and th is  was  

the  gent leman a t  the  t ime o f  our  appo in tment  had ba i led  a  
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book –  an  order  book o f  round about  20  to  26mi l l ion .   So,  

Mr  Ntshepe was,  f rom the  ev idence we  had,  a  reputab le  

bus iness deve loper  who was,  a t  a l l  t imes,  exp lo r ing  new 

markets  w i th in  …[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ] .   So,  i f  tha t  

was ra ised by  h im,  i t  i s  i l l og ica l  tha t ,  Dene l ,  under  the  

leadersh ip  o f  Mr  Sa loo jee  wou ld  send a  team to  Ind ia  in  

February  to  someth ing  tha t  he ,  h imse l f  d isagreed w i th .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  may I  jus t  –  I  want  to  t ry  and 

ass is t ,  f i rs t l y  to  keep your  ev idence shor t  bu t  to  show tha t ,  

in  fac t  the  m inutes  is  a  good idea to  look  a t  the  m inutes  10 

and we have ac tua l l y  ob ta ined these minutes  fo r  the  10 t h  o f  

September  2015  and in  fac t  they seem to  bear  ou t  you r  

vers ion ,  obv ious ly  i t ’s  fo r  the  Cha i rperson to  make a  

dec is ion  in  tha t  regard  bu t  i f  I  may jus t  f ind  i t .  In  Bund le  8 ,  

do  you s t i l l  have Bund le  8  in  f ron t  o f  you?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  must  be  one o f  the  two in  f ron t  o f  you.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  so  i t ’s  Bund le  8  and  i f  I  can 

ask  you p lease,  to  tu rn  to  page 483.4 .  

MR MANTSHA:    483.4?  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That ’s  r igh t ,  do  you have i t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So ,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  page o f  the  se t  o f  

m inutes  tha t  we were  ab le  to  ob ta in  f rom Dene l ,  f ina l l y  fo r  

the  Board  meet ing  o f  the  10 t h  o f  September,  tha t ’s  t he  f i rs t  
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one tha t  you Cha i red  and ind ica tes  tha t  you were  present  

and tha t  you s igned,  do  you see your  name,  number  one on  

the  a t tendance reg is te r  a t  page 483.4 ,  Mr  Mantsha  do you  

have i t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Page?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I ’m  go ing  to  g ive  you the  page  

number  aga in ,  483.4 .  

MR MANTSHA:    483.4?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  top  le f t -hand numbers .  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  do .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you have i t ,  i s  tha t  headed 

a t tendance reg is te r  Board  meet ing  10  September  2015? 

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And I  asked you,  i s  tha t  your  name 

and s ignature ,  i tem number  one? 

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  then we have the  ac tua l  

m inutes  tha t  s ta r t  f rom the  fo l low ing page,  483.6 ,  you see 

tha t  Mr  Mantsha?  

MR MANTSHA:    Po in t?  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    483.6 .  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  do  have.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now th is  i s  a  lengthy  m inute  o f  

tha t  Board  meet ing  and i t  seems to  have had a  so r t  o f  open  

sess ion  as  i t  were ,  la te r  fo l lowed  by  a  c losed sess ion  in  
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wh ich  members  o f  the  Board  sa t  so-ca l led  in  commi t tee  i f  I  

can  take  you to  page 483.27,  do  you see tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  we shou ld  go  to  483.7 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    483.27 Cha i r.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  i s  headed minutes  o f  the  in -

commi t tee  Board  meet ing  and aga in  your  name is  one o f  

those present  as  Cha i rperson,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now I  want  to  take  you  to the  

passage wh ich ,  as  I ’ ve  ind i ca ted  –  in  fac t ,  i t  seems to  bear  

ou t  tha t  i t  wasn ’ t  you tha t  ra ised the  As ian  pro jec t .   I f  I  can  

ask  you  now to  t u rn  to  page 483.31 and i f  I  can  j us t  read  

tha t  to  you in  6 .2 ,  

“Par tnersh ip  in  South  East  As ia ,  under  d iscuss ion 

de l ibe ra t ion ,  the  Board  d iscussed the  

recommendat ion  f rom the  CEO to  g ive  the  Execut ive  

a  mandate  to  negot ia te  a  par tnersh ip  in  South  East  

As ia  to  exp lore  the  es tab l i shment  o f  a  s t ronger  20 

foo tho ld  in  the  reg ion .   In  summary,  the  Cha i rman 

ind ica ted  tha t  as  the  GCEO had exp la ined dur ing  

the  preced ing  Board  meet ing ,  the  bus iness o f  

de fence in  the  South  East  As ian  reg ion  was a  good 

market  and g i ven  the  geopo l i t i ca l  i ssues,  one wh ich  
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wou ld  be  pro f i tab le  to  exp lore .  The  Board  d iscussed  

the  fac t  tha t  a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  a  we l l  es tab l i shed 

par tner  was a  good mode l  to  fo l low and a lso 

re fer red  to  var ious issues re la t ing  to  Dene l ’s  IP in  

s im i la r  re la t ionsh ips  such as  in  the  UAE,  Malays ia  

e tce te ra ,  

 I  won ’ t  go  th rough the  res t  o f  tha t  co lumn,  the  next  

co lumn,  headed,  ac t ion  reso lu t ion ,  

“The Board  reso lved to  approve a  mandate  to  the 

Execut ive  to  exp lore  poss ib i l i t i es  to  es tab l i sh  a 10 

foo tpr in t  in  South  East  As ia  sub jec t  to  the 

cond i t ions  se t ” ,  

 So,  th is  appears  to  suppor t  your  ev idence tha t ,  in  

fac t ,  i t  was Mr  Sa loo jee  who was ra is ing  th is ,  no t  yourse l f ,  

in  the  Board  meet ing ,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now – bu t  Mr  Sa loo jee  has 

g iven ev idence tha t ,  in  fac t ,  wha t  happened was a  l i t t le  

more  compl ica ted  than the  m inutes  m ight  suggest ,  I  don ’ t  

th ink  the  m inutes  were  a t  tha t  s tage ava i lab le  to  h im but  20 

what  he ’s  ev idence has suggested is  th is ,  the  pe rson who  

f i rs t  ra ised i t  in  the  Board  meet ing  on  the  10 t h  o f  

September  was in  fac t  you not  h im and he found th is  

s t range and in  e f fec t  rea l l y  undermin ing ,  I  th ink ,  was h i s  

suggest ion .   He  seemed to  fee l  i t  was undermin ing  h i s  
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pos i t ion .   Mr  Ntshepe had come to  h im,  Sa loo jee ,  beh ind  

the  scenes and sa id ,  I  p ropose we  get  invo lved in  As ia .   Mr  

Sa loo jee  responded to  Ntshepe,  no  we don ’ t ,  I ’m  not  

impressed w i th  tha t ,  I  don ’ t  th ink  i t ’s  a  good pro jec t  a t  a l l  

and then he comes to  the  very  f i rs t  meet ing  tha t  you ’ re  

Cha i r ing  as  the  new Cha i rperson  and you ra i se  i t  and he  

says,  we l l  he  d idn ’ t  want  to  ra ise  i t ,  he  d idn ’ t  ra ise  i t ,  in  

fac t  he  fe l t  i t  was  inappropr ia te  bu t  you ra ised i t  there  was  

a  lengthy  d i scuss ion  and a t  the  end o f  i t ,  you ,  under  your  

leadersh ip ,  the  Board  sa id ,  g i ve  Mr  Sa loo jee  a  mandate  to  10 

pursue the  As ian  venture .   In  o ther  words,  over ru l ing  Mr  

Sa loo jee ’s  own v iew as CEO tha t  the  As ian  venture  

shou ldn ’ t  take  …[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ] ,  what  do  you  

say about  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    That  i s  cont rary  to  what  the  o f f i c ia l  

records  o f  company is  say ing ,  the  o f f i c ia l  records  o f  the 

company says,  we presented a  repor t ,  he  asked fo r  a  

spec i f i c  th ing  and the  Board  gave h im.   So,  whatever  he  

sa id ,  whether  Mr  Ntshepe,  whethe r  myse l f ,  i t ’s  no t  cor rec t  

in  te rms o f  the  records  o f  the  company i t  i s  no t ,  I  deny.   He 20 

gave a  repor t  he  presented a  d i scuss ion  and we d iscussed,  

and i t  made good bus iness sense to  us  to  do  i t  and we  

reso lved,  and we gave them the  mandate .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you remember  whethe r  mee t ings o f  

the  Board  o f  Dene l  were  a lso  e lec t ron i ca l l y  recorded? 
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MR MANTSHA:    Ja ,  they record  the…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The proceed ings.  

MR MANTSHA:    Ja ,  the  proceed ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now,  what  Mr  Sa loo jee  says aga in ,  

and aga in ,  i t ’s  jus t  h is  ve rs ion  and you must  be  g iven an  

oppor tun i ty  to  be  d i rec ted  to  h is  vers ion  and g iven an 

oppor tun i ty  to  respond to  i t .   He says,  tha t  he  was aga ins t  

the  idea,  he  was bas ica l l y,  over ru led ,  par t l y  by  yourse l f  

and a l so  par t l y  by  the  o ther  Board  members  and i t  was 10 

apparent  tha t  he  was not  happy w i th  th i s  and  i t  was 

because o f  tha t ,  in  o ther  words,  h is  res i s tance to  the  idea 

tha t  the  As ian  venture  shou ld  go  ahead tha t ,  lo  and beho ld ,  

jus t  two weeks la te r,  less  than two  weeks la te r,  on  the  23 r d  

o f  September  he  is  then suspended and i t  was because o f  

tha t ,  tha t  i s  h is  ev idence,  your  comment?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cha i rperson tha t  i s  abso lu te ly  no t  t rue  he  

presented and requested the  Board  to  approve fo r  the  

Execut ive  to  exp lore  to  go  to  tha t  market…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A re  you say ing  i t  was –  I ’m  sor ry  to  20 

have in te r rup ted ,  a re  you say ing  tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  was in  

suppor t  o f  the  As ian  pro jec t  o r  he  was uncer ta in ,  o r  he  was  

aga ins t  i t  bu t  sa id ,  look  I  accept  i t…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  he  was in  favour…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  don ’ t  in te r rup t  me,  bu t  Mr  
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Sa loo jee ’s  a t t i tude was,  we l l  I  know Mr  Ntshepe is  keen on  

i t  and i f  the  Board  is  keen on i t ,  I  w i l l  accept  tha t  mandate  

and car ry  i t  ou t .  

MR MANTSHA:   No,  he  was keen on i t ,  he  submi t ted  a  

repor t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He was keen? 

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And –  ja  –  and o f  course ,  once he 

was suspended,  Mr  Sa loo jee  was suspended on the  23 r d  o f  

September  he  was rep laced by  Mr  Ntshepe on an ac t ing  10 

CEO bas is ,  co r rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t  and the  ra t iona le  Cha i rperson,  

was the  fo l low ing,  Mr  Ntshepe was the  person  who led 

Dene l ,  marke t ing  dr ive  ove r  the  years  and he bu i l t  an 

impress ive  order  book.   Th i s  bus iness depended on  Dene l  

go ing  in to  the  fo re ign  market ,  fo r  these reasons tha t  a  

domest ic  consumpt ion  o f  de fence mater ia l  by  South  A f r i can 

Defence Force  has inc reased s ign i f i can t ly.   One can see a l l  

the  budget  vo te  o f  the  Depar tment  o f  Defence;  they keep  

on reduc ing  the  a l loca t ion  to  the  de fence fo r  var ious 20 

reasons.   So,  the  surv i va l  o f  the  company remains ,  ou ts ide  

the  board  o f  South  A f r i ca  Mr  Ntshepe was lead ing  tha t   and 

successfu l l y  managed to  bu i ld  a  very  impress ive  orde r  

book.   He was,  I  th ink  a t  tha t  s tage,  he  was a l ready a t  

Dene l  fo r,  c lose  to  20  years ,  he  was even a t  Dene l  be fore  
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Mr  Sa loo jee .   He knew the  market ing  o f  the  bus iness by  fa r  

more  than Sa loo jee  and my in fo rmat ion  was,  when  Mr  

Sa loo jee  was appo in ted  as  the  Group Ch ie f  Execu t ive ,  Mr  

Ntshepe was in  the  runn ing ,  he  was amongst  the  th ree  

names wh ich  was  submi t ted  to  the  Cab ine t  to  p i ck  who the  

Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i ce r.   So,  th is  was somebody who had 

a l ready a  very  impress ive  record  a t  Dene l  and  a  very  

sen ior  Execut ive  a t  the  t ime,  he  was even sen io r,  more  

than Mr  Sa loo jee  h imse l f .   So,  i t  was a  l og i ca l  cho ice  to  

pu t  somebody who has got  a  reputa t ion  in  the  in te rnat iona l  10 

market  as  the  marketer  because a l l  the  c l ien ts  o f  Dene l  

overseas,  they knew h im more  than anybody e lse  because  

he was the  one  in te rac t ing  w i th  them.  So,  tha t  was a  

log ica l  cho ice  to  make.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   Now,  wh i le  we  are  a t  

these minutes ,  I ’m  go ing  to  take  you to  anothe r  passage in  

a  moment ,  I  jus t  want  to  take  you back to  your  ear l ie r  

ev idence tha t  you were ,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y  and I ’m so r ry  

i t ’s  la te  in  the  day I  may be unsure  o f  the  exact  de ta i l  that  

you gave,  i f  I  unders tood your  ev idence co r rec t l y,  you sa id  20 

before  the  f i r s t  Board  meet ing  you happened to  be  in  

London and Mr  Sa loo jee  asked you p lease too  he lp  to  

make sure  tha t  he  d idn ’ t  lose  h i s  job ,  tha t  he  was fee l ing  

under  p ressure ,  i s   tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t ion  Cha i rperson,  i t  was a f te r  our  
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f i rs t  Board  meet ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  was a f te r  the  f i rs t  Board  meet ing?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    When was tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  th ink  the  London t r ip  was towards the  

end o f  September.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  tha t  must  have been before  he  

was suspended.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because he was suspended around 23  

September.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  i t  must  have been  between the  10 t h  

o f  September  and  the  23 r d  o f  September.  

MR MANTSHA:    The London t r ip  –  he  was not  ye t  

suspended because tha t  was the  t ime when I  ra ised the  

issue o f  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  no t  hav ing  access to  the  

commi t tee  room.   I  th ink  we depar ted  to  London  

immedia te ly  a f te r  the  f i rs t  Board  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The meet ing  o f  the  10 t h?  

MR MANTSHA:    The meet ing  o f  the  10 t h  bu t  the 20 

invest iga t ion  about  th is  t ransact ion  was go ing  on.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see ,  thank you and so  i t  was a f te r  

the  f i rs t  Board  meet ing  bu t  be fore  the  second Board  

meet ing  because  a t  the  second Board  meet ing ,  as  the  

Cha i r  po in ts  ou t  on  the  23 r d  o f  September,  tha t ’s  when  he  
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was suspended.  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Mhlont lo  and Ms A f r i ca .  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay now,  can I  jus t  ask  you to  

c la r i f y,  why was he ra i s ing  concern  tha t  he  m ight  be  fac ing  

d ismissa l ,  he  m ight  lose  h i s  job?   Had you to ld  h im tha t ,  

he ’s  job  is  now on the  l ine ,  tha t  you were  unhappy w i th  h im 

or  tha t  o ther  peop le  were  mak ing  a l legat ions aga ins t  h im or  

what?  10 

MR MANTSHA:    Wel l ,  I  d id  no t  te l l  h im h is  job  was  on the  

l ine ,  bu t  he  was  c lever  enough to  know tha t ,  fo r  h im to  

proceed w i th  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  LLSA cont rary  to  the  

approva ls  g i ven by  Min is te r  o f  F inance,  Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ise  and tha t  Aud i t  Commi t tee  was invest iga t ing  the  

mat te r  as  manda ted by  the  Board .   He ac tua l l y  saw tha t ,  

tha t  moment  was  bound to  happen fo r  h im to  be  taken out  

o f  Dene l ,  so  he  cou ld  see h imse l f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now tha t ,  o f  course ,  must  have taken 

p lace before  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  meet ing  o f  the  20 

22 n d  o f  September,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:    In  the  meet ing  o f  the  10 t h  o f  the  Board ,  

there  was a  very  ser ious debate  when the  Board  rea l i sed  

tha t  they ’ re  say ing  we must  pay four  hundred and  f i f t y  in  

two weeks are  you guys ser ious about  th is ,  how d id  i t  
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happen tha t  i t  comes to  th is ,  you know…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I ’m  not  ask ing  about  who sa id  what .  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I ’m  t ry ing  to  ge t  the  sequence,  

s imp ly  the  da tes  tha t  I ’m  ask ing  you.  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So ,  your  London d iscuss ion  w i th  

Mr…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  Mr  Kennedy,  I ’m  sor ry,  I  th ink  I  can  

ass is t .   In  h is  a f f idav i t  Mr  Sa loo jee  says he  ar r i ved back 10 

f rom London on Saturday 19 September  2015,  so  you must  

have gone there  around…[ in te rvenes] .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you and w i th  respect  tha t  

po in t  seems to  bear  ou t  the  bas is  o f  the  quest ion .   That  

must  –  your  d iscuss ion  in  London  must  have been  before  

the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  met  on  the  22n d  and then 

gave them an o rde r,  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  gave 

them an o rder  to  submi t  representa t ions  why they shou ldn ’ t  

be  suspended the  next  day,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Now,  i f  I  can reca l l  cor rec t l y,  the 20 

Execut ive  had a l ready met ,  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee ,  

I  th ink  even pr io r  to  the  f i rs t  Board  meet ing ,  i t ’s  normal ly  

the  case because  you need to  have sub-commi t tees  o f  the 

Board  to  meet  be fore  the  main  Board .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Don ’ t  you,  a t  your  f i rs t  Board  
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meet ing  dec ide  who ’s  go ing  to  be  appo in ted  to  the  sub-

commi t tees l i ke  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee?  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  the  sub-commi t tees are  appo in ted  

dur ing  the  induct ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see .  

MR MANTSHA:    So ,  when the re  was a  Board  induct ion ,  so  

the  commi t tee  was se t -up  and o f  course  the  Aud i t  and R isk  

Commi t tee  is  the  commi t tee  wh ich  in  te rms  o f  the  

shareho lder  …[ ind is t inc t ]  ge ts  appo in ted  by  the  Execut ive  

au thor i t y.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MR MANTSHA:    So  tha t  commi t tee  was…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  tha t  i s  the  Mins ter?  

MR MANTSHA:    The Min is te r,  tha t  commi t tee  was in  

ex i s tence.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MR MANTSHA:    And tha t  commi t tee  had met  the  Execut ive  

in  p repara t ion  o f  th is  spec i f i c  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    And tha t  commi t tee ,  a f te r  the  f i rs t  Board  20 

meet ing ,  was mandated to ,  by  a l l  means,  ensure  tha t  there  

is  no  de fau l t  by  Dene l  in  two weeks  t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    So ,  they  were  mak ing  a l l  the 

e f fo r ts…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  and in  the  p rocess to  
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invest iga te  the  conduct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    O f  Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR MANTSHA:    O f  Mr  Sa loo jee…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I ’m sor ry  to  in te r rup t ,  tha t ’s  where  

they came to  the  v iew tha t  he  had mis led  the  f i r s t  Board  

meet ing?  

MR MANTSHA:    Exact ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  so  we ’ve  go t  the  sequence  

c lea r.   Now,  a t  t he  meet ing  o f  the  10 t h  o f  September,  do  

you reca l l  i f  there  was any d iscuss ion  about  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  10 

per fo rmance thus  fa r,  was the re ,  a t  tha t  s tage,  your  very  

f i rs t  Board  meet ing ,  any d i scuss ion  tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  had  

been ac t ing  inappropr ia te ly?  

MR MANTSHA:    No,  o f  course  tha t  mat te r  never  a rose.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  now i f  I  can  take  you in  the  

same minutes  to  page –  and I ’m sor ry  the  numbers  are  a  

b i t  compl i ca ted ,  483.34,  do  you have tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Parag raph  8  in  the  second  co lumn 

under,  i tems,  says,  “Extens ion ,  cont rac t  o f  the  Group Ch ie f  20 

Execut ive  Off i cer ” ,  do  you have tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then under,  d iscuss ion  

de l ibe ra t ion  i t  says ,  

“The  Cha i rman,  tha t ’s  yourse l f ,  i t ’s  in  the  neut ra l  i n  
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the  m inutes  so  i t ’s  the  m inute  taker  who ’s  poss ib l y  

wor thy  o f  c r i t i c i sm here ,  the  Cha i rman ind ica ted 

tha t  the  GCEO’s  cont rac t  was se t  to  exp i re  in  2017” ,  

 Now tha t  i s  fac tua l l y  cor rec t ,  we know f rom our  

ear l ie r  ev idence tha t  you gave tha t ,  i t  in  fac t  ended 31s t  

January  2017.  

MR MANTSHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then i t  says ,  

“A l though th i s  was some t ime away,  because o f  

course  here  we ’ re  dea l ing  w i th  September  2015,  10 

g iven the  sen ior i t y  o f  the  pos i t ion  i t  was necessary  

to  commence w i th  the  process  now,  he ,  tha t ’s  

p resumably  yourse l f  Mr  Mantsha ,  ment ioned the  

fo l low ing in  th is  regard .   The GCEO had done we l l  

thus  fa r  and has tu rned the  company a round” ,  

 Do you reca l l ,  in  fac t ,  say ing  tha t?  

MR MANTSHA:    H ’m I  d id .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    How were  you ab le  –  I ’m  not  t ry ing  to  

be  cr i t i ca l  o r  funny but  how were  you ab le ,  a t  your  very  

f i rs t  Board  meet ing  tha t  you were  Cha i r ing ,  where  you ’d  20 

on ly  been appo in ted  jus t  a  few weeks before  and had on ly  

a  few meet ings w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  p r iva te l y  and a lso  the  

one a t  the  Gupta  res idence,  how were  you ab le  to  fo rm a  

v iew as to  how we l l  the  GCEO had  done thus fa r?  

MR MANTSHA:    As  I  sa id ,  I  had one on one ’s  w i th  Mr  
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Sa loo jee .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:    H im tak ing  me th rough the  m i les tone,  I  

th ink  I ’ ve  jus t  ind ica ted  here  tha t ,  a t  the  t ime o f  our  

appo in tment  the  order  book was in  the  reg ion  o f ,  e i ther  

twenty  f i ve  or  whatever  30b i l l i on  and th is  was a  group -  Mr  

Ntsep i  was the  head o f  market ing .   So o f  course  you have  

to  go  -  to  c red i t  them for  tha t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You go to?  

MR MANTSHA:   You go to  c red i t  them for  tha t .   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   

MR MANTSHA:   For  bu i ld ing  such  an orde r  book,  and the  

example  he re  Cha i r,  I  have a l ready ind ica ted  to  you tha t  

me and Mr  Sa loo jee  go togethe r  very  we l l .   We l i ked  one  

anothe r.   We agree on the  way o f  work ing .   When th is  

mat te r  was be ing  ra ised,  I  was t r y ing  to  save the  board  to  

see what  we are  t ry ing  to  ach ieve between myse l f  and Mr  

Sa loo jee .  

 So you can see these s ta tements  are  ver i f iab le  to  

h im.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  tha t  i s  why I  have ra i sed them.   

MR MANTSHA:   And i t  i s  exact ly  what  I  was t ry ing  to  say,  

to  say I  l i ked  th is  man.   I  wanted to  see th is  man cont inue 

to  work  w i th  h im  because I  th ink  we s t r i ked  a  ve ry  good  

note  o f  work ing  together.   I  rea l l y  l i ked  h im.   So,  and I  
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even to ld  you ear l ie r  today tha t  even when he cr ied  to  

[ ind is t inc t ] .  

 I  never  s lep t  a t  n igh t  because I  rea l l y  l i ked  h im and  

where  necessary,  I  p romised to  suppor t  h im and th is  

s ta tement  f rom me,  i s  in fo rmed o f  tha t  s t rong re la t ionsh ip  

tha t  we were  t ry ing  to  bu i ld  together  and the  d i scuss ions  

tha t  I  had had w i th  h im,  and a t  th i s  t ime you know,  f rom the  

induct ion  you are  g iven a  fu l l  pack o f  the  annua l  repor ts  

and a l l  the  o ther  ac t i v i t ies .   

 So by  th is  t ime,  be fore  we even go  to  the  f i rs t  board  10 

meet ing ,  we had a  p ic tu re  o f  what  was happen ing  and here  

I  am t ry ing  to  say look,  th is  i s  the  r igh t  guy.   So h is  

cont rac t  i s  go ing  to  exp i re .   So you know,  le t  us  t ry  to  in  a 

way ind i rec t l y,  le t  us  t ry  because  you see the  Cha i rman 

was to  fo l low up w i th  the  m in is te r  on  the  mat te r.   

 Because he had to ld  me tha t  there  was l i ke  some 

verba l  a r rangement  o f  some sor t  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  ex tended.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sor ry,  ve rba l  a r rangement  be tween  

h im and?  

MR MANTSHA:   And the  m in i s te r.   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  see .  

MR MANTSHA:   So  tha t  i s  why there  i s  a  s ta tement  to  say 

the  Cha i rpe rson is  go ing  to  fo l low up the  mat te r  w i th  the  

m in is te r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   
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MR MANTSHA:   So  th is  i s  jus t  an  ind i ca t ion  o f  how 

be l iev ing  I  was in  h im,  tha t  I  wou ld  have been the  las t  

person to  want  Mr  Sa loo jee  out  o f  Dene l .   I  t r ied  a l l  I  cou ld  

bu t  i t  was not  poss ib le ,  g iven the  fac t  o f  what  he  p res ided 

on before  we came in to  Dene l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   On the  LSSA t ransact ion?  

MR MANTSHA:   Indeed.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   I  am not  go ing  to  take  you 

th rough the  tex t  on  the  next  page.   I  am jus t  go ing  to  

summar ise  i t .   Page 483.35,  the  next  th ree  bu l l e t  po in ts .   10 

But  bas i ca l l y  wha t  you seem to  be  recorded as  say ing ,  and 

sor ry  i s  tha t  you r  s ignature  fu r ther  down? 

MR MANTSHA:   Ja ,  i t  i s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   To  conf i rm  the  approva l  o f  these 

minutes .   You conf i rm to  the  fac t  tha t  the  board  has  

su f f i c ien t  t ime.   You had about  16  months  le f t  be fore  the  

end o f  h i s  cont rac t ,  bu t  were  you re fer r i ng  to  the  fac t  tha t  

we have s t i l l  go t  t ime to  cons ider  i t ,  bu t  we must  ge t  the  

process go ing  ea r l ie r  ra the r  than la te r.   

 We do not  want  to  leave i t  too  la te ,  is  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MR MANTSHA:   Ja .   Th is  i s  one o f  the  mat te r  tha t  he  

[ ind is t inc t ]  as  h i s  Cha i rperson ind iv idua l l y  to  say look 

Cha i rperson,  I  need to  be  sure  about  my fu tu re  as  we work  

together  and he then asked me to  t ry  to  reso lve  th is  mat te r  

as  ear ly  as  poss ib le .   
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   And o f  course  I  d id  no t  see any reason not  

to  a t  the  t ime.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   I f  I  can  take  you back to  the  las t  

bu l le t  po in t  on  the  prev ious page,  you were  re fer r i ng  no t  so 

much necessar i l y  to  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  own des i re  to  have  

some cer ta in ty  i n  h is  l i fe ,  wh ich  wou ld  obv ious l y  make 

sense to  h im and  to  you.   That  i f  you  can get  some sor t  o f  

p lan  go ing  i t  wou ld  be  good to  have.   

 But  you a lso  made an add i t iona l  po in t  tha t  was 10 

incumbent  on  the  board  to  p revent  d is rup t ion  in  

management  and to  re ta in  the  sk i l l  se t  requ i red .   

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  may I  sum up my unders tand ing  o f  

what  you were  say ing  the re?  You were  say ing  he  on ly  has  

a  te rm inat ion  looming in  16  months ’ t ime,  end o f  January  

2017.   But  we do not  want  to  be  in  a  s i tua t ion  where  

sudden ly  h is  con t rac t  ends and we do not  know who i s  

go ing  to  be  appo in ted  and maybe we lose  the  cont inu i t y  

and h is  sk i l l  se t  and so  fo r th ,  wh ich  w i l l  have a  d is rup t ive  20 

e f fec t  on  the  management  o f  the  corpora t ion .  

 Par t i cu la r ly  a t  a  t ime where  i t  was under  some 

s t ress .   I s  tha t  a  fa i r  re f lec t ion  o f  what  you are  say ing?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l ,  what  i s  meant  here  is  tha t  the  

s tab i l i t y  o f  the  l eadersh ip  o f  the  company i s  impor tan t  to  
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investors ,  to  peop le  we do bus iness w i th ,  to  the  lenders .   I  

was ac tua l l y  mak ing  a  ca l l  here  tha t  th is  mat te r  needs to  

be  reso lved we l l  in  t ime.   

 In  te rms o f  my pr i va te  d iscuss ions w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  

I  was conv inced tha t  he  has to  be  suppor ted  to  cont inue to  

serve  beyond the  exp i ry  o f  the  con t rac t ,  mean ing  he  shou ld  

ge t  another  f i ve  years  or  so  a f te r  2017.   So ear l ie r  I  to ld  

the  commiss ion  tha t  f rom the  investor  po in t  o f  v iew and the  

lender  po in t  o f  v iew,  and the  market  tha t  a  company l i ke  

Dene l  opera ted ,  i t  i s  very  c r i t i ca l  tha t  you have got  th is  10 

k ind  o f  s t ra tegy,  and I  was ac tua l l y  t ry ing  to  p romote  what  

we had d i scussed  pr iva te ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you .   As  I  unders tand the  

m inute ,  e f fec t i ve l y  what  was dec ided was s imp ly  tha t  you  

wou ld  take  the  process fo rward  w i th  the  m in is te r.   You  

wou ld  se t  in  mot ion  th is  p rocess tha t  you  were  

recommending.   

 There  was no dec is ion  there  and then le t  us  appo in t  

Mr  Mantsha,  sor ry  Mr  Sa loo jee  fo r  another  te rm f rom 1  

February  2017.   You were  fa r  f rom tha t  da te  and you d id  20 

no t  need to  take  tha t  dec is ion  then .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA:   No,  what  was r igh t  i s  tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  

in fo rmed me and  in fo rmed us  because th is  i s  the  board ,  

tha t  there  was a  verba l  a r rangement .   I  th ink  he  a l l uded to  

i t  somewhere  in  these papers ,  tha t  he  wou ld  cont inue  
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beyond the  exp i ry  o f  h is  cont rac t ,  and tha t  verba l  

a r rangement  was  made between h im and the  execut ive  

au thor i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  bu t  I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t .   I  am 

not  ask ing  about  h is  a r rangement  w i th  the  m in is te r.   I  am 

ask ing  about  what  the  u l t imate  ou tcome o f  th is  board  

meet ing  was,  s imp ly  d id  you dec ide  we a re  de f in i te ly  

commi t t ing  to  hav ing  h im re -appo in ted  sub jec t  to  a 

m in is te r ’s  approva l  f rom 2017 or  d id  you dec ide  ins tead i t  

looks  l i ke  we a re  go ing  to  be  go ing  to  a  favourab le  10 

dec is ion  fo r  h im and but  le t  us  no t  leave i t  too  la te,  le t  us  

s ta r t  the  process  and you wou ld  then d i scuss i t  w i th  the  

m in is te r.   

MR MANTSHA:   That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  i t  the  la t te r?  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t ,  because the  very  las t  bu l le t  

po in t  on  page 483.35 in  th is  i tem,  says:  

 “The board  appo in ts  the  CEO sub jec t  to  the  

m in is te r ’s  approva l . ”  20 

 As I  unders tand  tha t ,  i t  was not  tha t  you were  

say ing  we a re  now appo in t ing  h im f rom February  2017,  i t  

was s imp ly  record ing  no  doubt  you must  have to ld  your  

co l leagues,  when  we appo in t  we do not  have the  f ina l  say.   

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  i s  a lways  sub jec t  to  the  m in is te r ’s  

approva l ,  and le t  us  s ta r t  the  process go ing  w i th  the  

m in is te r  to  see whether  he  w i l l  approve an ex tens ion  f rom 

February  2017.  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  tha t  w i l l  take  some t ime.   

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay,  thank you.   Now you have made 

the  po in t  to  the  Cha i r  a  moment  ago tha t  th is  bears  ou t  

tha t  you had no an imos i ty  to  Mr  Sa loo jee  a t  tha t  s tage.   In  10 

fac t  you spoke  h igh ly  o f  h im  based on your  l im i ted 

exposure  to  h im a l ready.  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t ,  and bu t  o f  course  we know tha t  

13  days la te r,  no t  even two weeks ,  a lmost  two weeks la te r  

you had a  ve ry  d i f fe ren t  v iew o f  h im.   In  fac t  you were  

sa t is f ied  by  the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  you had convened  

the  prev ious day  in  add i t ion  to  what  p rocess had been 

fo l lowed prev ious ly,  where  they recommended to  the  board  

and you accepted the  recommendat ion  to  suspend Mr  20 

Sa loo jee ,  co r rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And on top  o f  i t  what  you have  sa id  i n  

ev idence a  number  o f  t imes on the  prev ious occas ions and  

you ment ioned i t  aga in  today,  when the  Cha i rpe rson ra i sed 
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i t  w i th  you,  tha t  you sa id  in  fac t  on  the  23 r d  we cou ld  have 

ac tua l l y  f i red  the  th ree  inc lud ing  Mr  Sa loo jee  on the  spot ,  

because they had  done some te r r ib le  th ings.   

MR MANTSHA:   Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  what  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  comment  

on  is  what ,  why  d id  you change  your  v iew o f  h im qu i te  

rad i ca l l y  and I  am not  c r i t i c i s ing  you here ,  on  the  10 t h  o f  

September  you are  say ing  Sa loo jee  is  a  g reat  guy.   I t  rea l l y  

looks l i ke  we shou ld  appo in t  h im fo r  a  fu r ther  per iod  a f te r  

h is  te rm ends in  January  2017.  10 

 Two weeks la te r  on  the  23 r d  you were  say ing  w i th  

your  board  co l leagues he is  te r r i b le ,  we cou ld  have f i red  

h im on the  spot  bu t  le t  us  fo l low  a  process and suspend  

h im and sub jec t  h im to  a  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry.   What  was the  

rad i ca l  change in  v iew? 

MR MANTSHA:   So  Cha i rperson,  th is  shows the  ob jec t i v i t y  

tha t  the  Cha i rpe rson has and the  ob jec t i v i t y  wh ich  the  

board  has.   So the  quest ion  is  what  had changed f rom the  

10 t h  o f  September  to  the  t ime on the  23 r d ,  when we then  

suspend h im.  20 

 What  was changed o f  cou rse  was Mr  Sa loo jee  

pres ided on a  t ransact ion  wh ich  brought  Dene l  to  i t s  

f inanc ia l  means w i thout  fo l low ing  the  approva l  p ro toco l .   

He opted fo r  a  b raz ing  f inance fo r  s ix  months  w i thout  an 

approva l  and tha t  meant  tha t  myse l f  and my God we wi l l  
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then be b lamed fo r  t r igger ing  a  gross  de fau l t  ac ross  the  

s ta te  owned company because  we cou ld  no t  m ix  our  

f inanc ia l  ob l iga t ions in  t ru th .   

 That  was ca tas t roph ic .   That  o f  course  changed my 

pos i t ion  towards h im.   i t  d id  no t  mean I  ha ted  h im,  i t  on ly  

mean I  look  a t  the  mat te r  ob jec t i ve ly  and I  sa id  as  much as  

I  suppor t  th is  man,  bu t  fo r  h im to ge t  in to  th is  t ransact ion  

w i thout  au tho r isa t ion ,  to  a  po in t  where  we are  now on the  

f inanc ia l  b r ink ,  i t  was not  cor rec t  fo r  h im to  do  and 

there fo re  ac t ion  had to  be  taken aga ins t  h im.    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Mr  Mantsha,  and we  do not  

need you to  repeat  you r  ev idence ear l ie r.   I  jus t  want  to  

conf i rm i t  fo r  the  record ,  tha t  what  Mr  Sa loo jee  has  sa id  to  

the  commiss ion  was tha t  what  changed your  m ind to  ac t  

aga ins t  h im,  wha t  he  be l ieves was unfa i r l y  on  the  23 r d  o f  

September  was tha t   by  then i t  had become apparent  to  

you tha t  he  was res i s tan t  to  the  idea o f  the  agent  venture .   

 You have den ied  tha t  fac t ,  cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   I  deny i t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now in  the  same bund le  can I  ask  you  20 

p lease to  tu rn  back to  page 422?  Cha i r,  may I  jus t  ask  so  

tha t  I  do  no t  use  up too  much t ime or  whatever,  I  mean I  

am t ry ing  to  be  as  qu ick  as  I  can.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  I  am aware  tha t  you apparent ly  
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have schedu led  another  sess ion  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Once we a re  f in ished.   May I  jus t  

ind ica te  where  I  am.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  p lease.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  th ink  I  am very  c lose  to  the  end.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  i s  jus t  a  coup le  o f  b i t s  and p ieces 

tha t  I  am wrapp ing  up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am go ing  to  ask  you p lease to  a l low  

us  jus t  f i ve  m inutes  fo r  me and my learned jun io r  to  confer  

because I  wou ld  l i ke  he r  input  on  any po in t s  tha t  we may  

s t i l l  need to  wrap up.   So I  th ink  tha t  we shou ld  f in ish  

probab ly  by  abou t  quar te r  to  s i x .    

 Wi l l  tha t  then be in  o rder  fo r  you  w i th  your  o ther  

commi tment?    

CHAIRPERSON:   The o the r  work  s t ream is  he re  a l ready I  

th ink .   I  see  hands and I  th ink  I  have seen Mr  Ano j  S ingh ’s  

counse l  and a t to rney.   Can they hear  me where  they are?   20 

Are  they ou ts ide?   I  wou ld  l i ke  a lso  tha t  we f in ish  w i th  h im 

espec ia l l y  when we a re  le f t  w i th  so  l i t t le  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  wou ld  l i ke ,  I  th ink  le t  us  take  the  f i ve  

m inutes  break fo r  you to  confer  w i th  your  team.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And then when we come back,  they w i l l  

be  in  and then I  can a lso  jus t  ta lk  to  them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  th ink  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  f in i sh  w i th  

h im.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  jus t  suggest  I  take  h im to  th is  

page now because . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  f ine .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  seems to  fo l low on f rom the  ear l ie r  

d iscuss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  f ine ,  ja .   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And tha t  I  p romise  w i l l  jus t  be  a  

m inute  or  two and then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  f ine .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We can take  the  ad journment .   Thank 

you.   Mr  Mantsha ,  do  you have 422?   

MR MANTSHA:   422,  yes .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  and tha t  i s  on  the  South  A f r i can  

government  le t te rhead or  logo,  and  i t  in  fac t  seems to  be  a  

med ia  s ta tement .  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And tha t  i s  i ssued by  the  then 
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Min is te r  Lynne Brown.   I t  says :  

 “Min is te r  Lynne B rown appo in ts  the  new board 

o f  Dene l . ”  

 We see a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  fo l low ing page,  423 ,  

tha t  i t  was issued  by  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l i c  Enterpr ises ,  

f rom her  depar tment .   Now th i s  i s  the  no t ice  tha t  ac tua l l y  

announced to  the  pub l i c  the  conf i rmat ion  tha t  you had been 

appo in ted  as  par t  o f  the  new board .   

 You as  Cha i rperson and the  o thers  are  ment ioned  

as  we l l ,  and the i r  b iograph ies  are  summar ised  as  we l l  10 

there .   

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now what  I  am in te res ted  in ,  pursuant  

to  what  we . . .  I  am sor ry,  I  shou ld  have ment ioned under  

the  head ing  i t  i s  da ted  the  24 t h  o f  Ju ly  2015.   What  I  am 

in te res ted  i n  jus t  to  conc lude the  l ine  tha t  we took you  

th rough ea r l ie r,  about  the  per fo rmance pr io r  to  your  a r r i va l ,  

you see tha t  the  four th  pa ragraph o f  the  tex t  on  page 422  

s tar ts  w i th  the  quota t ion  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  thank.   

 You see tha t?  20 

MR MANTSHA:   “ I  wou ld  l i ke  to  thank the  ou tgo ing  fo r  . . . ”   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  you do not  need to  read the  res t ,  

I  w i l l  do  tha t .   

MR MANTSHA:   Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Have you got  tha t  paragraph?  
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MR MANTSHA:   Yes,  I  do .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  read i t  to  you:  

 “ I  wou ld  l i ke  to  t hank the  ou tgo ing  board  led  

by  ac t ing  Cha i rperson Mar t ie  Janse Rensburg  

fo r  an  ou ts tand ing  job .   They handed over  a  

company tha t  i s  t ru ly  on  a  pa th  to  pos i t i ve  

susta inab i l i t y.   I  commend them for  the i r  

p ro fess iona l i sm and ensur ing  the  handover  

repor t  was o f  such a  qua l i t y  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  a 

c r i t i ca l  gu ide  to  the  new board .   I  encourage  10 

the  new board  to  cont inue work ing  c lose ly  w i th  

the  execut ive  team,  to  so l id i f y  the  company ’s  

opera t ions w i th  a  s t rong emphas is  on  issues 

re la t ing  to  t ransformat ion  w i th in  t he  company,  

sk i l l s  deve lopment  and s t ra teg i c  par tnersh ips  

in  South  A f r i ca . ”  

 Now there  are  a  coup le  o f  po in ts  I  jus t  want  to  

ex t rac t  f rom tha t .   The one is  i t  bears  ou t  your  ve ry  po in t  

tha t  i t  was government  po l i cy  to  t ry  and improve the  leve l  

o f  t ransformat ion  in  the  a rms indust ry  w i th in  the  count ry,  20 

cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And,  bu t  what  I  am par t i cu la r ly  

in te res ted  in ,  i s  tha t  the  m in is te r  gave in  g lowing te rms a 

t r ibu te  to  the  ou tgo ing  board  be fo re  you then took over  as  
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Cha i rperson and commended them for  the i r  p ro fess iona l i sm  

and  then asked you as  the  new board  to  work  c lose ly  w i th  

tha t  same,  w i th  the  execut ive  team tha t  o f  course  remained 

once the  board ’s  compos i t ion  was changed.   

 Cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Ja ,  i t  appears  so  Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t ,  thank you and then we have  

heard ,  the  commiss ion  has heard  the  ev idence o f  Mr  

Sa loo jee  as  to  why Dene l  than in  the  fo l low ing two years  

reached a  pos i t ion  o f  d i f f i cu l t y.   You have g iven a  10 

comple te l y  d i f fe ren t  vers ion  and  no doubt  you s tand by  

tha t .  

MR MANTSHA:   Can I  jus t  exp la in  th is  Cha i rpe rson? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MANTSHA:   The min is te r  was  not  even aware  o f  these 

c i rcumstances a round th is  t ransact ion ,  because she was  

never  to ld  tha t  the  te rms o f  f i ve  years  were  changed and  

now we have to  pay in ,  so  she d id  no t  know.   So I  th ink  

w i th  the  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  she had ,  and less  I  am say ing  to  20 

you w i th  the  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  I  have,  every th ing  appeared  

okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cha i r,  may  th is  be  an  appropr ia te  

t ime to  take  the  f i ve  m inute  ad journment?  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  maybe befo re  we do I  see they are  

in ,  tha t  i s  counse l  fo r  Mr  S ingh and the  ev idence leader,  Mr  

Se leka.   I  jus t  want  to  share  th is  w i th  you,  bo th  o f  you and 

you,  and o f  course  your  c l ien t  and your  ins t ruc t ing  

a t to rney.  

 We wish  to  f in ish  w i th  Mr  Mantsha .   He has been to  

the  commiss ion  to  g ive  ev idence I  th ink  on  a t  leas t  no  less  

than two p rev ious occas ions i f  I  am not  m is taken  or  i s  i t  

one?  I  th ink  i t  i s  more  than one.   Th is  i s  the  th i rd  

occas ion .   10 

 We wou ld  l i ke  to  f in ish  w i th  h im.   Mr  Kennedy th inks  

tha t  he  m ight  need up to  quar te r  to  s ix  to  be  ab le  to  f in ish ,  

because we have  your  work  s t ream coming up I  thought  I  

must  consu l t  you.   I s  i t  f ine  i f  we f in ish  be fore  we s tar t  w i th  

your  s ide ,  w i th  your  work  s t ream?   

 Yes.   Mr  Se leka,  i t  i s  f ine  w i th  you?  Okay,  a l r igh t .   

No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   So le t  me jus t  ad journ  fo r  f i ve  m inu tes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  we ad jou rn .    

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chair  may I  thank you for the 

opportuni ty  to confer wi th my learned col league Ms Mokoene 

I  want to pay t r ibute to her for al l  the – what she has given 
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and part icular ly wi th the last  two issues that  he is prompt ing 

me qui te r ight ly to raise wi th the wi tness.   I  a lso want to  

thank my learned col leagues for the next  hearing for thei r  

pat ience.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  st i l l  th ink that  quarter to six wi l l  

hopeful ly suff ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Subject  to how long the wi tness wants 

to ta lk.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Matsha I  want to  deal  now with the 

topic of  the PFMA process for get t ing approval  f rom the 

re levant  Min ister or Ministers for the – the t ransact ion that  

was aimed at  generat ing business In  Asia which you 

obviously required speci f ic approval .  

 And i f  I  can start  p lease wi th the same bundle 8 that  

we were looking at  just  a moment ago at  page 468.    

CHAIRPERSON:   468.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now Mr Mantsha do you have 20 

468? 

MR MANTSHA:   Ja I  am get t ing there – 468.   Yes 

Chairperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now that  is a let ter on the Denel  

let terhead sent  – addressed to the then Minister  of  F inance 
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Mr Nene, is that  r ight? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then i f  we go for  a moment  to page 

473,  the last  page of  the let ter  we see your name as the 

Chairperson of  the Denel  board and is that  again your 

signature and i t  seems to have been dated on the 30t h I  

bel ieve i t  is of  October 2015,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes i t  seems so 30t h.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you recal l  sending this let ter  to the 

Minister of  Finance requi r ing speci f ic approval  or giv ing her  10 

pre-not i f icat ion for purposes ul t imately of  get t ing approval  

under Sect ion 54.2 of  the PFMA? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now I  just  want to draw your at tent ion 

to a couple of  paragraphs that  you have given.   Presumably 

you would have g iven – sent  th is not ice benef i t ing f rom the 

input  of  – of  senior execut ives at  the t ime.  Correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And at  that  stage of  course by then 

October 2015 Mr Saloojee as CEO, Mr Mhlont lo as CFO for 20 

the group were on suspension.   

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Correct .   Now you give the – at  page 

469 you give a rat ionale as we see at  the foot  of  the page 

469 the rat ionale for the format ion of  Denel  Asia and this 
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includes on the fol lowing page 470 a reference to operat ion 

access to operat ional  funding.   The very top bul le t  point .   

You see that? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And that  was an important  point  that  

you fe l t  needed to be stressed as one of  the reasons why i t  

was – made sense for Denel  to be forming the venture for 

the Asian project ,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Ja I  th ink the topic where you reading.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  10 

MR MANTSHA:   Is actual ly the mot ivat ion of  the … 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry could you just  s i t  c loser  to the 

microphone.  

MR MANTSHA:   00:04:19 wi th VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   Ja so I  th ink i t  is f lows f rom that  heading.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Indeed. 

MR MANTSHA:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So where – thank you for that  

c lar i f icat ion and in fact  when one sees that  bul let  point  that  I  20 

have just  taken you to access to operat ional  funding there 

you were referr ing to VR Laser Asia being able to  provide 

some operat ional  funding which would mean that  Denel  i tsel f  

would not  have to  fund at  least  the in i t ia l  part  of  the project  

you had the assis tance,  the input  o f  VR Laser in  that  regard.   
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Is that  r ight? 

MR MANTSHA:   In terms of  the agreement VR Laser was 

put t ing R100 mi l l ion on the deal .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   Denel  was put t ing i ts manpower,  i ts 

scient ists,  i ts engineers and the intel lectual  capaci ty to 

bui ld.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   Whatever would be requi red yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And in fact  you seem to make 10 

those points that  you have just  referred to under the heading 

a few l ines down Financing.  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You see that? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  see Chai rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what you have said to the Minister 

Nene in the f i rst  bul let  point :  

“VR Laser Asia wi l l  be responsib le for al l  

operat ional  costs for  a  per iod of  f ive years 

est imated at  R100 mi l l ion.”  20 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    

“Pro ject  funding as and when requi red wi l l  be 

provided by shareholders."  

Am I  r ight  in saying that  you were submit t ing to  the 
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Minister a just i f icat ion for why this Asian venture made 

sense operat ional ly and f inancial ly and one of  the important  

points was that  the operat ional  costs – the ent i re  operat ional  

costs for  the per iod of  f ive years was al ready commit ted by – 

to by VR Laser Asia,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then of  course project  funding 

would be provided by shareholders which would include 

Denel  as and when requi red,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes I  th ink af ter f ive years.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR MANTSHA:   Of  the in i t ia l  per iod.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then you deal  in  th is – on the same 

page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Kennedy I  just  want to  

understand the dist inct ion between project  funding and the 

R100 mi l l ion.   I  assume in the execut ion of  any project  there 

would be operat ional  costs and those would not  be borne by 

VR Laser  Asia.  

MR MANTSHA:   No those – Denel… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Those would be borne by… 

MR MANTSHA:   Denel  wi l l  not  pay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MANTSHA:   The pro ject  – the execut ion of  the project  

for the f i rst  f ive years.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So those operat ional  costs that  fe l l  out  by 

the execut ion of  that  part icular project  would be borne by VR 

Laser Asia – those that  fe l l  w i th in the execut ion of  the 

project  then by the shareholders which included Denel .  

MR MANTSHA:   No Chairperson i t  is not  correct .   What th is 

is t ry ing to explain is that  for  the per iod of  f ive years there is  

R100 mi l l ion commit ted by VR and thereaf ter the – the 

project  f inancing wi l l  be done by shareholders which of  

course included Denel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So does that  mean that  VR Laser  would be 10 

responsible for al l  operat ional  costs for the f i rst  f ive years? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And af ter f ive years the shareholders 

which included Denel  would be responsib le then for al l  

operat ional  costs? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes the – the understanding to inform this is  

af ter f ive years because every t ime when we entered into 

this we were chasing some you know big deals which were 

happening and in  terms of  our assessment done within the 

Indian market  the intel l igence were there was wi thin th is f ive 20 

years.   Denel  Asia would have been a success story on i ts  

own and i t  would be able to fund i ts  own operat ional  costs.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   And can I  take you 

on the same page 470 to the next  paragraph which is  headed 
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F inancial  Viabi l i ty  you say:  

“ In l ight  of  the R100 mi l l ion investment by VR 

Laser Asia and Denel  Asia over a f ive year  

per iod for  operat ing costs the operat ion 

f inancial  – operat ional  f inancial  r isks to  

Denel  are minimal ,  correct?”  

MR MANTSHA:   (no answer).  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then you say i t  wi l l  – can I  just  ask 

on that  point  – would i t  be safe for us to assume that  wi thout  

the investment f rom Denel  – sorry f rom VR Laser your  10 

operat ional  f inances would have been at  r isk? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  wi thout  f inance f rom VR Asia Denel  

was not  even going to go to contemplate to have Denel  Asia.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   We did not  have money to do so.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Indeed.  But  what seems to be the 

other side of  that  very coin is that  i f  i t  had not  been for VR 

Laser ’s input  Denel ’s operat ional  f inances would have been 

impacted ser iously.  

MR MANTSHA:   Look i f  VR Asia not  VR Laser.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Denel  f inances would never have been 

impacted because Denel  would not  have made a decision.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   To go there wi thout  f inancial .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Because i f  you did not  have thei r  

f inancial  sponsorship Denel  would then be commit t ing i tsel f  

to operat ional  costs that  i t  d id not  have avai lable.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  am saying to you Denel  was under my 

leadership.   The board was never going to make a decision 

to go to India wi thout  having a f inancial  partner.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   There is no money to do that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry can you just  indicate whether the 

answer is yes or no to the proposi t ion I  had put .   I f  i t  was not  10 

for  VR Laser ’s  commitment for th is R100 mi l l ion funding 

Denel  would have been exposed to f inancial  r isk.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no.   I  th ink – I  th ink you 

misunderstanding Mr… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Maybe I  do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Kennedy yes.   I f  VR Laser did not  – VR 

Laser Asia did not  come on board the – you would – Denel  

would not  have gone into this market .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And therefore i t  would not  have exposed 20 

i tsel f  to any costs.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Indeed – precisely -   precisely because 

i t  could not  have exposed i tsel f  to more costs because i t  was 

f inancial  const rain t ,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And was i t  not  necessary to f i rst  

ensure that  the f inancial  investment was secured? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Chai rperson in the business wor ld  how 

you t ransact  you si t  down, negot iate t ransact ion,  every party  

is there to support  their  own interest  in the t ransact ion,  then 

said look I  am commit t ing R100 mi l l ion,  we sign,  you defaul t  

to put  R100 mi l l ion,  there is no deal .   So that  is how i t  is  

done.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Was there in fact  provision for  

the f inancial  investment to be secured? 10 

MR MANTSHA:   Of  course yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR MANTSHA:   The whole process of  Denel  Asia was based 

on the fact  that  there must  be that  R100 mi l l ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Exact ly.  

MR MANTSHA:   That  would enable us to f ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And was that  secured in terms of  the 

agreement that  you were – that  you had made provisional ly 

subject  to the statutory approval? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes there were in agreement to that .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Okay thank you and then the 

next  point  that  you make in under f inancial  v iabi l i t ies:  

“Overal l  there is current ly potent ia l  business 

amount ing to US Dol lars R9.2 bi l l ion – US 

Dol lars   9.2 bi l l ion over the next  f ive years 
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that  offers Denel  lucrat ive opportuni t ies 

wi thin th is region. ”  

Now do you again wi th benef i t  of  h indsight  stand by the 

indicat ion that  you gave to the Minister of  Finance at  that  

stage that  in fact  there was… 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   There was potent ia l  business of  almost  

10 bi l l ion US Dol lars.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct  Chai rperson.  You see how this – 

this submission of  course i t  is craf ted by the 00:13:32.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   They craf t  these submissions af ter  a proper  

due di l igence is made – af ter they have discussed in  thei r  

management commit tees the business development has 

made input  and as you know business you take a chance.    

 At  that  t ime that  market  was the most  growing market  

in the world.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The Asian arm market .  

MR MANTSHA:   The Asian market  speci f ical ly the Indian 

market .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR MANTSHA:   They were spending and their  requests for 

informat ion in terms of  lot  of  the equipment that  Denel  

produced.  So we – there was a business case to say th is is 

going to happen I  stand by i t  what  is  wri t ten.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Now what I  would l ike you 

to turn to now please is page 445.   Have you got  that? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is a  let ter we see f rom the Minist ry  

of  Publ ic Enterpr ises and in fact  s igned on page 446 by 

Minister Lynne Brown.  

MR MANTSHA:   4426? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   446 ja that  is where you f ind the 

signature.    

MR MANTSHA:   You said 445? 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   No I  asked you to start  wi th the let ter.   

The let ter is two pages long i t  starts  at  445.  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes I  have i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you conf i rmed you had that  and 

then I  took you to  446 the next  page of  the let ter where i t  is 

concluded with a signature apparent ly f rom Min ister  Lynne 

Brown.  Correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And so this was a let ter addressed to 

you by the Minister of  Publ ic Enterpr ises because you are 20 

the addressee on page 445,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now I  just  want to  take you to  – so i t  is 

headed PFMA Sect ion 54.2 Pre-not i f icat ion on the Proposed 

Format ion of  Denel  Asia.   This is part  of  the process leading 
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up to the pursui t  of  a project  which wi l l  involve a jo int  

venture wi th the company which wi l l  involve overseas 

t ransact ions and possible f inancial  impl icat ions.   Is that  

r ight? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And now the Minister you wi l l  see at  the 

foot  of  the page there is  a  paragraph that  starts just  before 

abcd,  you see that? 

MR MANTSHA:   Before abcd? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   445 last  paragraph there is some sub-10 

paragraphs abcd,  do you see that? 

MR MANTSHA:   Ja.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Just  above that  the preamble reads 

this:  

“ In  order  to  protect  Denel ’s  status as the holding 

company the appl icat ion should inc lude amongst  

other th ings  

a.  A comprehensive deta i led business case to 

enable the Minister  to  express an opinion on 

the jo int  venture t ransact ion.  20 

b.  A comprehensive due di l igence report  on the 

f inancial  regulatory legal  requi rement and 

regulatory laws governing foreign owned 

ent i t ies in Hong Kong. ”  

Let  us just  stop for a moment.   That  is of  course is  
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because the corporate vehicle that  was to be used for th is  

jo int  venture must  be registered in Hong Kong, correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    

“  c.  Funding plans al l  the t ransact ion documents 

including the MOU and cooperat ion agreements.  

d.  The process fol lowed to select  VR Laser as a 

partner of  choice.”  

And then there are a whole number of  other requests that  the 

Minister is made to you as Chai rperson.   Do you recal l  10 

receiving this request? 

MR MANTSHA:   I  d id.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And was this  ser ies of  informat ion that  

is requested in those paragraphs that  I  have just  read to you 

was this in fact  provided?  Was – was… 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The addi t ional  informat ion… 

MR MANTSHA:   I t  was provided.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  was provided by you or who? 

MR MANTSHA:   By the board.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   By the board.   Fine.   Now p lease turn 

to page 391.    

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   This is a further let ter f rom Denel  and 

you seem to be the person who signs i t  at  the foot  of  the 
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page,  correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And that  is  dated the 11t h December 

2015.  

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And that  is addressed to the Minister of  

Finance who by that  stage was Mr Des Van Rooyen, correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And we say the dates of  the let ter at  

the top typed 10 December but  you signed i t  on the 11t h of  10 

December and you say in paragraph – sorry and that  is  

accompanied by the formal appl icat ion that  we see f rom 

page 392.   Correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   This is a summary.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  is a summary r ight .  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes i t  is  not  the formal appl icat ion.   The 

formal appl icat ion included.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR MANTSHA:   A lot  of  documents.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   And then in paragraph 2.1 on 20 

page 392 this is  what you say you give reasons why the 

t ransact ion was not  proposed in the 2015/16 corporate plan 

and these include Denel ’s previous back – blackl ist ing in 

India.   Correct? 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now in l ight  of  the f inancial  r isks that  

were prevalent  and in the absence of  the f inancia l 

investment promise in other words a VR Laser Asia not  come 

up wi th the money that  i t  has promised where this 

opportuni ty has suff iced for concluding the t ransact ion in  

ci rcumstances where i t  was not  budgeted.  

MR MANTSHA:   No I  have – I  repeat  my answer.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  

MR MANTSHA:   I f  there was no money f rom VR Asia.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  10 

MR MANTSHA:   We were not  even going to propose this.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now where there was no provision 

in the corporate plan for th is t ransact ion would i t  not  have 

been more reasonable to  ensure that  a proper  f inancial  due 

di l igence was conducted? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Chai rperson a proper f inancial  due 

di l igence was conducted.   The Minister  of  Finance and the 

Minister of  Publ ic  Enterpr ises they were given due di l igence 

reports which would 00:20:18 by part ies here and part ies in 

that  jur isdict ion.   But  let  me repeat what I  said in my opening 20 

Chairperson.    

 We deal ing wi th a business that  has to survive on i ts  

own.  I t  has got  no guarantee of  s tate work so i t  is not  l ike 

we a l l  pay Eskom for elect r ic i ty so there wi l l  be revenue 

coming f rom al l  o f  us.   No not  even South Af r ican Defence 
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Force is obl iged to buy mater ia l  f rom this company.    

So these are some of  the things that  I  have 

highl ighted to say the regulatory envi ronment  in  which a 

business l ike this  operates where i t  has to go and f ight  wi th  

many di fferent  companies wi th big budgets.    

The regulatory envi ronment is also cont r ibut ing to  

00:21:18 the company development.   So what we t ry ing to 

explain here is to give a rat ionale why this was not  in the 

previous corporate plan and the rat ionale was we were 

banned so we could not  have gone to a market  where we 10 

were blackl isted because we were declared that  we were 

corrupt .   We were using corrupt  means to enter into that 

market .    

So we were banned we t r ied to get  into that  market  

for  be – I  mean 20 – 25 years before I  even came there.   And 

that  ban was just  resolved.   As I  indicated on my evidence 

ear l ier so that  is why there was this decision.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you say the due di l igence repor t  was – 

I  mean due di l igence was conducted and a report  was 

furnished to the two Ministers? 20 

MR MANTSHA:   Yes Chai rperson when you do the PFMA 

process i t  is a very elaborat ive process.   So you have to 

sat isfy the two execut ive author i t ies because you are asking 

a permission.   So al l  the documents and things that  the 

Minister requested to have she had al l  of  i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  let  me just  ask at  some stage you 

made an – your board made an appl icat ion to the High Court  

would that  report  have been included in those papers there 

by any chance?   Do you remember or is that  someth ing you 

do not  remember? 

MR MANTSHA:   No I  th ink – I  th ink some of  the reports of  

due di l igence reports I  th ink the – in the evidence of  Mr 

00:22:59 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MANTSHA:   I  th ink some of  i t  is  included.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MANTSHA:   But  again Chairperson this is – th is is  the 

informat ion wi thin the company and with respect  to the 

process Chairperson I  am not  here to make judgments on 

anything.   I  expect  that  th is informat ion wi l l  be before here 

and we talk on the basis of  the document.   That  is  why in 

some of  my repl ies I  at tempted to at tach some documents 

which I  had.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MANTSHA:   So in short  what I  am saying to you this is  a 20 

very elaborat ive process where you have to sat isfy the 

execut ive author i ty wi th documentat ion.  The technocrats in  

the Treasury and then the Department of  Publ ic Enterpr ises 

to go through i t  and sat isfy themselves that  yes you make a 

case or not .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is f ine i t  is just  that  I  was 

under the impression that  one or other wi tness had said the 

– they had no such due di l igence conducted.   I  may have 

been mistaken but  I  was under that  impression.  

MR MANTSHA:   No thorough due di l igence was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Which was done.  

MR MANTSHA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Why was the then l i t igat ion?  I f  you 

sat isf ied al l  of  these requi rements to the sat isfact ion of  the 10 

then Ministers of  Publ ic Enterpr ises and Finance why did you 

– why did you f ind i t  necessary to l i t igate? 

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  the basis of  the l i t igat ion Chai rperson 

was wi th respect  to Nat ional  Treasury and the basis of  that  

l i t igat ion was that  i f  you read the PFMA Sect ion 54 I  th ink 

the last  prov ision i t  then says to you i f  you submit  th is  

document – the request  and 30 days expires and you do not  

have the answer you must  assume that  permiss ion is given.   

But  as a di l igent  board because Treasury was not  coming 

back.    20 

We then decided to have a declaratory order to say in  

terms of  that  Sect ion there is fu l l  compl iance because there 

was just  no engagement f rom Nat ional  Treasury.   And as I  s i t  

here today I  now know why there were no engagements just  

l istening to the evidence which was given to this  
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commission.    

This was the t ime of  in terms of  the evidence before 

this commission offers to certain people,  changes of  

Ministers and al l  of  that  and unfortunately  we were viewed 

within that  context  because of  thei r  associat ion wi th the 

part ies who are impl icated in those kind of  act iv i t ies.   I  now 

understand why there was just  a dead si lence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe something – I  th ink something 

that  may have been ment ioned by one or other wi tness or  is  

that  – i t  was interest ing that  Min ister Nene was dismissed on 10 

the 9t h of  December 2015 and on the 10t h you wrote that  

let ter to the new Minister – Minister Mr Van Rooyen the let ter  

that  we were looking at  dated the 10t h of  December 2015.   I  

th ink some witness qui te of  – kind of  f ind – found that  

interest ing because – oh Nene is dismissed the fol lowing – 

the previous day and then the f i rst  day of  the new Minister 

here is a let ter sent .   But… 

MR MANTSHA:    But… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  say nothing more than just  that .  

MR MANTSHA:   Ja.   Chai r  wi th  respect  I  suppose that 20 

thinking is not  ob ject ively made because this chronology of  

th is history of  th is t ransact ion when i t  is  done so i t  d id not  

start  when Min ister Van Rooyen was appointed and as you 

know you know the work of  these companies,  the work of  

government has to go on whoever the Minister is.   So i t  had 
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nothing to do wi th  Min ister Van Rooyen.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Then i f  we can turn 

please to page 391 – sorry I  th ink we have al ready done that  

– yes sorry i t  is 413.   Just  a point  of  c lar i f icat ion this is  part  

of  the submission that  you made to the Minister and you 

provide an income statement in 12.4.   Now what  we would 

just  l ike clar i f icat ion on p lease is whose income statement is 

that?  Is that  Denel ’s income statement?  Is i t  VR Laser  

South Af r ica’s?  Is i t  of  VR Laser Asia?  Is i t  something for  10 

the – ref lect ing an income statement on income and 

expendi ture in the past  or projected for the future?  What is 

i t?  

MR MANTSHA:   Wel l  Chairperson I  th ink i f  you read this  

page start  by saying Denel  Asia forecast  probabi l i t ies and 

market  interests are promising.   The business opportuni ty in  

deduce r isk via partnership const i tute a logical  next  step to  

them for ent ry in to a new market .   See Appendix F which 

sets out  market  end of  the 00:29:24.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes 20 

MR MANTSHA:   So when you read in terms of  the norm I  am 

speaking under correct ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR MANTSHA:   I t  seems these were probably the project ion 

of  income.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR MANTSHA:   That  the business was going to happen.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Because normal ly an income statement 

is a statement ref lect ing income that  you have received and 

expendi ture that  you have incurred for a part icular per iod in  

a past  but  th is you are explaining is in fact  what would be 

projected as the expected or l ikely  income and expendi ture 

of  the Asian Joint  Venture.   Is that  what you are saying? 

MR MANTSHA:   Chairperson I  am not  – yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.  10 

MR MANTSHA :    As  we speak,  I  am t ry ing  to  read what  i s  

here  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR MANTSHA :    . . . to  make what  i t  i s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Fa i r  enough.   We jus t  want  your  

c la r i f i ca t ion  on  tha t .  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then on th is  submiss ion  tha t  you 

made to  the  Min i s te r.   I t  does not  appear  tha t  there  i s  any 

c lea r  ind ica t ion  o f  the  po in t  a t  wh ich  VR Laser  wou ld  make 20 

i t s  investment  o r  f i rs t  in jec t ion  o f  the  opera t iona l  cos ts ,  

money.   Can you reca l l  i f  tha t  was in  fac t  submi t ted? 

MR MANTSHA :    Wi th  respect ,  Cha i rperson.   The  

agreements  be tween  Dene l  and VR As ia  was submi t ted  to  

the  respect ive  au thor i t y  and those agreements  spe l l  ou t  
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how tha t  investment  wou ld  be  made by  VR and the  

ob l iga t ion  tha t  Dene l  had towards Dene l  As ia .   So a l l  o f  

those documents  were  submi t ted .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   The  Commiss ion ,  o f  cou rse ,  

has heard  ev idence in  re la t ion  to  o ther  cont rovers ia l  

t ransact ion  on  wh ich  you,  no  doubt ,  have no persona l  

knowledge but  fo r  example  the  –  the  example  tha t  has 

been g i ven to  me,  i t  re la tes  to  Est ina  where  assurances  

were  g iven to  the  Min i s te r  there  tha t  there  wou ld  be  huge 

benef i t s  to  be  der i ved but  u l t imate ly,  o f  course ,  the  10 

outcome may have been very  d i f fe ren t .    

 I s  tha t  no t  someth ing  tha t  i s  a  ma t te r  o f  concern  

to  you here  tha t  assurances were  g iven in  very  broad te rms 

in  the  submiss ion  to  the  Min is te r  and u l t imate l y  you  d id  no t  

persuade the  Min is te r  to  approve the  t ransact ion  based on  

those assurances? 

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  we are  

ventur ing  in to  a  very  dangerous area.   What  was  sa id  by  

o ther  peop le  about  cer ta in . . .   has  go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  

the  dec is ion  we have made.   We have made the  dec is ion  20 

based on thorough work  tha t  was done and we were  

conv inced tha t  th is  was the  best  way to  go  and we 

conc luded on tha t .   So ask  me about  Est ina .   I  have no  

deta i l  o f  Es t ina .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    No,  I  am not  ask ing  you about  the  
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fac ts  o f  Est ina .    

MR MANTSHA :    I  do  no t  know what  was agreed w i th  

Est ina .   And Mr  Sa l im Essa,  as  fa r  as  I  hear,  he  is  no t  par t  

o f  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .   And Mr  Sa l im Essa was the  on ly  

shareho lder  o f  VR Laser.    So,  to  ask  me,  to  say :   Look,  

cer ta in  p romises  were  made in  cer ta in  p ro jec ts  and in  

cer ta in  t ransact ions and was not  made.   I  th ink  – I  cannot  

dea l  w i th  those mat te rs .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr  Mantsha,  I  th ink  you may have 

misunders tood my quest ion  o r  pe rhaps I  pu t  i t  bad ly  bu t  10 

what  I  ind ica ted  was tha t  you presumable  cou ld  no t  dea l  

w i th  tha t .    

 The reason why  I  ra ised i t  i s  s imp ly  tha t  the  

Commiss ion  in  i ts  w ide r  sc ru t iny  o f  var ious a l lega t ions,  i t   

seems to  us  to  have a  concern ,  a  poss ib le  concern ,  as  to  

o r  wou ld  l i ke  to  have sa t is fac tory  ev idence  as  to  

assu rances tha t  were  g iven to  the  m in is te rs  a t  the  t ime in  

re la t ion  to  p ro jec ts  on  the  bas is  tha t  they looked incred ib le  

p romis ing  bu t  u l t imate ly  they never  mater ia l i sed .    

 Your  ev idence,  as  I  unders tand i t  i s .   When you 20 

gave pro jec t ions ,  assu rances or  –  yes,  p ro jec t ions or  

assu rances to  the  Min is te r  in  re la t ion  to  the  As ian  venture ,  

you be l ieved tha t  they were  proper ly  mot iva ted  and  wou ld  

have been v ind i ca ted  in  due course ,  wou ld  have been 

ach ieved la te r  i f  the  t ransact ions had been approved and  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 234 of 301 
 

then imp lemented .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  i t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.  

MR MANTSHA :    I  s i t  here .   I  am ta lk ing  to  the  Cha i rpe rson  

o f  the  Commiss ion .   As  I  have ind ica ted  a  number  o f  t imes,  

the  Cha i rperson is  exper ienced in  mat te rs  l i ke  th is .   The  

Cha i rperson w i l l  l i s ten  to  the  ev idence and w i l l  fo l low tha t  

ev idence.    

 The mere  fac t  tha t  cer ta in  th ings  were  sa id  by  

o ther  peop le ,  I  do  no t  see i t  as  a  bas is  o f  mak ing  10 

conc lus ion  w i thout  look ing  a t  th is  spec i f i c  ev idence tha t  I  

am ta lk ing  about .   So I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  be  unfo r tuna te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  no ,  I . . .   That  i s . . .   There  i s  

no th ing  wrong w i th  what  you say  bu t  I  th ink  Mr  Kennedy 

may be say ing  what  he  says about  Est ina ,  knowing tha t  you  

might  no t  be  ab le  to  comment  bu t  s imp ly  because,  fo r  

example ,  the  Commiss ion  might  be  hear ing  tha t  suggests  

tha t  ce r ta in  persons seem to  have fea tu red i n  var ious 

t ransact ions under  d i f fe ren t  work  s t reams and somet imes i t  

m igh t  appear  as  i f  a  pa t te rn  can be  seen.    20 

 To  say:   Oh,  th is  i s  what  happened and how i t  

happened the re .   Here ,  maybe  i t  looks  l i ke  there  are  

s im i la r  fea tures  and you can see cer ta in  persona l i t ies  tha t  

a re  common.  But  you yourse l f  m ight  be  ab le  to  say :   Look,  

I  do  no t  know anyth ing  about  tha t .   We made our  dec is ion  
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based on what  was before  us .  

MR MANTSHA :    Indeed,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA :    I  made a  po in t  tha t  Mr  Sa l im Essa ,  as  fa r  

as  I  know,  i s  no t  re la ted  to  the  Est ina  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA :    And th is  i s  the  pe rson we are  dea l i ng  w i th  

here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Mantsha ,  jus t  a  10 

coup le  o f  fu r ther  po in ts  in  the  papers .   Can I  ask  you to  

tu rn ,  p lease,  to  page 443?   

MR MANTSHA :    Indeed,  Cha i rperson, .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now th is ,  ha l fway down is  an  emai l  

f rom Keromomong(? )  Umshlongo(?)  [ spe l t  phonet ica l l y ] ,  

parag raph –  and  some fa i r  jus t i ce  to  the  pronunc ia t ion  o f  

her  f i rs t  name,  and tha t ,  accord ing  to  he r  emai l  address,  

shows tha t  she is  f rom – in  fac t ,  fu r ther  down,  i t  says  she 

is  f rom the  Reg is t ry  –  her  o r  she  is  f rom the  Reg is t ry  fo r  

the  Min is t r y  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises .   Do you see tha t?  20 

MR MANTSHA :    Yes,  I  do .   A re  you on 44?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    443,  second ha l f  o f  the  page.  

MR MANTSHA :    443,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  i s  an  emai l  sent  by  Mr  o r  

Ms Msh longo on  the  23 r d  o f  November  2015 and i t  i s  
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add ressed to  yourse l f .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In  fac t ,  a t  your  a t to rney ’s  f i rm emai l  

addresses as  we l l  as  an  emai l  address a t  Dene l  and there 

are  cop ies  to  Dene l  o f f i c ia ls  such  as  Mr  Ntshepe.   Do you  

see tha t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what  she  says is :  

“On beha l f  o f  Min is te r  Lynne Brown,  Min i s te r  

o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises ,  k ind ly  f ind  a t tached 10 

le t te r  on  the  above-ment ioned sub jec t  fo r  your  

a t ten t ion . . . ”  

 And the  sub jec t  we see in  the  head ing ,  sub jec t ,  

FMA Sect ion  54(2 ) ,  p re-not i f i ca t ion  on  a  proposed  

fo rmat ion  o f  Dene l  As ia .   So tha t  was the  process tha t  we  

were  look ing  a t  a  moment  ago,  no t  so?  

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    When you were  mak ing  a  submiss ion ,  

the  Min i s te r  Brown then sent  a  le t te r  back to  you  say ing  I  

need the  fo l low ing in fo rmat ion .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MR MANTSHA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R igh t .   Now the  quest ion  is .   Look,  

p lease,  a t  page –  the  prev ious page 442.  

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The ve ry  top  emai l  in  th is  cha in .   You 
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appear  to  have fo rwarded the  Min is te r ’s  cor respondence  

w i th  yourse l f  wh ich  was cop ied  to  var ious Dene l  o f f i c ia ls .   

You appeared to  have fo rwarded a  copy.   You see the  top  

emai l?   I t  i s  f rom Dan,  

in fo@lung isan imantshaat to rneys.co .za ,  e t  ce tera .   That  i s  

f rom yourse l f .  

MR MANTSHA :    I  see  Cha i rperson ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  appears  f rom th i s ,  tha t  you 

fo rwarded the  Min is te r ’s  le t te r  to  you,  wh ich  was a  le t te r  

f rom the  m in i s t ry  respons ib le  fo r  Dene l  as  a  s ta te -owned  10 

enterpr i se ,  concern ing  your  app l i ca t ion  to  the  m in is t ry  fo r  

approva l  au thor i t y  o r  p re-not i f i ca t ion  as  a  pre l im ina ry  s tep  

under  Sect ion  54 (2)  o f  the  PFMA.   You fo rwarded tha t  to ,  

aga in ,  the  ve ry  same Mr  Ashu  Chwala  tha t  we were  

d iscuss ing  ear l ie r.    

 And o f  course ,  we have seen f rom the  ear l i e r  

ev idence was pa r t  o f  the  Gupta  bus iness en terp r ise .   Can 

you exp la in  why you fo rwarded a  Min is te r ’s  o f f i c ia l  le t te r  to  

you in  our  o f f i c ia l  capac i ty  as  Cha i rperson o f  a  s ta te-

owned enterp r ise ,  Dene l ,  to  a  sen ior  o f f i c ia l  o f  the  Gupta  20 

bus iness empi re?  

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  th is  le t te r  was 

fo rwarded as  per  the  ins t ruc t ion  o f  Mr  Essa,  who  a t  the  

po in t ,  he  was w i th  th is  ind iv idua l .   So he asked  us  to  

fo rward  to  tha t  address because he was a t  tha t  address.   
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And the  reason  why i t  was fo rwarded to  Mr  Essa v ia  

Mr  Chwala ’s  emai l  address.    

 I t  was s imp ly  because th is  mat te r  re la tes  to  the  

par tnersh ip  tha t  as  Dene l  we were  mak ing(?)  w i t h  h im.   

There  are  d i rec t  quest ions f rom th is  le t te r  f rom the  Min is te r  

wh ich  requ i re  h is  input  to  us  in  o rde r  to  sa t is fy  the  

Min is te r.    

 He had in te res t  in  the  mat te r.   He  was a  pa r tner  

in  the  mat te r   So he had every  r igh t  to  see what  was  

happen ing  and to  ass is t  in  rep ly.   So i t  was fo rwarded to  10 

tha t  address as  per  h is  ins t ruc t ion  fo r  h is  a t ten t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see .   Was i t  no t  the  Gupta  bus iness  

o f  –  invo lv ing  pa r t i cu la r l y  Mr  Essa?  That  was not  par t  o f  

the  process to  g ive  pre-autho r isa t ion  no t i f i ca t ion  to  the  

Min is te r  under  the  PFMA.   The PFMA p laces the  ob l iga t ion  

on  a  s ta te  en t i t y  concerned,  in  th is  case Dene l .  

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  the  –  i f  you  look a t  the  p rov i s ion  

tha t  we are  ta l k ing  about .   When you enter  in to  a  

par tnersh ip  you must  request  fo r  a  permiss ion  f rom the  

Execut ive  Author i t y.   And what  i s  happen ing  here?  You 20 

have got  Dene l  and you have got  VR As ia  en ter ing  in to  the  

par tnersh ip .    

 So Dene l  had every  r igh t  to  know what  the  

Min is te r  was say ing  as  much as  the  po tent ia l  par tner  had 

every  r igh t  to  know what  the  Min is te r  was say ing  a t  the  
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t ime.   And to  t ry  to  do  every th ing  poss ib le  to  sa t is fy  the  

Min is te r ’s  reques t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  I  can  take  you now,  f ina l l y,  to  page 

468.   That  i s  you r  le t te r  to  Min is te r  Nene,  the  then Min is te r  

o f  F inance tha t  we looked a t  ear l ie r.   Cor rec t?  

MR MANTSHA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you reca l l  we dea l t  w i th  tha t  

ear l ie r?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And tha t  was da ted the  10 

29 t h  o f  October  2015.   That  appears  a l so  to  have been 

fo rwarded to  Mr  Chwala  i f  one looks a t  the  emai l s  tha t  you  

sent  on  pages 466 and 467.   Would  your  exp lanat ion  be  the  

same tha t  th is  was a l l  par t  o f  co r respondence tha t  they 

shou ld  have been  pr ivy  to?  

MR MANTSHA :    Yes,  Mr  Essa.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So  you wou ld  deny any suggest ion  

tha t  th is  i s  an  ind ica t ion  tha t  Mr  Essa par t  o f  the  Gupta  

empi re  was unusua l ly  invo l ved and p lay  d  a  very  ac t i ve  

par t  in  what  shou ld  have been,  in  one pe rspec t ive ,  a  20 

mat te r  jus t  be tween the  s ta te  en t i t y  concerned and the  

depar tment  and the  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises?  

MR MANTSHA :    No,  i t  i s  no t  cor rec t .   Th i s  mat te r  re la ted  

to  Mr  Essa,  Dene l  As ia .   So he had every  r igh t  to  know 

about  th is  mat te r.    
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   May I  jus t  have a  

moment?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   And I  thank  

Mr  Mantsha fo r  g iv ing  ev idence and a lso  fo r  h is  lega l  team 

for  the i r  ro le  in  th is .   Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Thank you very  much 

Mr  Mantsha fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f .   And to  your  a t to rney as  

we l l  fo r  be ing  ab le  to  come and to  be  here  un t i l  th is  t ime.   

Thank you ve ry  much.   You are  now excused.  10 

MR MANTSHA :    Wel l ,  thank you very  much Cha i rpe rson.   I  

wou ld  have loved  to ,  p robab ly,  do  a  re -examinat ion  on  one 

or  two issues  but  I  unders tand Cha i rperson tha t  the  peop le  

are  wa i t ing  ou ts ide .   But  I  th ink  I  have made the  po in t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    . . . re la t ing  to ,  you know,  the  payments  o f  

the  se t t lement  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    . . .what  was cons idered.   I  th ink  i t  is  up  to  20 

the  Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  no .   I f  you  wou ld  l i ke  tha t ,  I  

am su re  tha t  wou ld  no t  take  long and then and tha t  we  

cou ld  ar range maybe fo r  a  very  br ie f  t ime.   Do you have  

any idea how long you may be?  
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MR MANTSHA :    No,  I  –  i t  was jus t  spec i f i ca l l y  one issue 

when I  sa id ,  the  po tent ia l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR MANTSHA :    We are  a lso  t ry ing  to . . .  po ten t ia l l y   

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Do you want  me to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

tha t  jus t  now? 

MR MANTSHA :    . . .wh ich  cou ld  have pa id  a  lo t  o f  money  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  10 

MR MANTSHA :    . . .wh ich  cou ld  have pa id  a  lo t  o f  money.  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA :    And what  I  ra ise  la te r  was,  as  exp la ined  

in  the  board  m inutes  o f  de ta i l ,  was the  so-ca l led  verba l  

under tak ing  by  the  Min is te r  to  renew the  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  one.  

MR MANTSHA :    So  there  were  a  lo t  o f  th ings tha t  we have 

taken.   Unfor tunate ly,  the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  record  is  no t  

here  bu t  le t  me take th is  oppor tun i ty  Cha i rperson to  thank 20 

you and thank you Mr  Kennedy.    

 You see,  un for tunate ly,  we cou ld  have sa id  a  lo t  

here .   And o f  course ,  to  the  d is t inc t  board  members  tha t  I  

served w i th  who  have done ex t remely  very  we l l  under  

d i f f i cu l t  c i rcumstances and the  Execut ive .   But  I  thank you  
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fo r  the  oppor tun i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MANTSHA :    And thank you ve ry  much Cha i rperson and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  my . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA :    . . .a l l  the  best .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   What  I  wan t  to  do  is .   I f  you  do fee l  

tha t  there  are  some mat te rs  you wou ld  have l i ke  to  c la r i f y,  

I  wou ld  l i ke  to  make somet ime fo r  you to  ge t  tha t  

oppor tun i ty.   So I  am check ing  maybe on another  day  10 

because my sense is  tha t  i t  wou ld  no t  take  long.   I s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja ,  thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe an hour  o r  someth ing?  

MR MANTSHA :    I  w i l l  consu l t  w i th  the  lega l  team.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You w i l l  consu l t .   Okay a l r igh t .  

MR MANTSHA :    And i f  there  i s  any need Cha i rperson  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MANTSHA :    . . .we w i l l  ask  fo r  you indu lgence.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    Bu t  thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  be  in  touch w i th  the  lega l  team.   

Obv ious ly,  there  is  no t  much t ime le f t .   So you wou ld  have  

to  come to  them qu i te  qu ick ly.   I  have a  sense tha t  i t  wou ld  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 243 of 301 
 

no t  be  a  lo t  o f  t ime.   Maybe we wou ld  no t  need more  than 

hour.   I s  tha t  more  or  less . . .  

MR MANTSHA :    No,  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You w i l l  con f i rm tha t .  

MR MANTSHA :    I  am a  crea ture  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   [ laughs]  

MR MANTSHA :    . . .ge t t ing  adv ice  f rom my lega l  team.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MANTSHA :    So .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay you w i l l  adv ise  the  lega l  team o f  10 

the  Commiss ion  and ind ica te  how much t ime you th ink  

m ight  be  needed,  what  i ssues,  i f  necessary.  

MR MANTSHA :    Ja ,  they m ight  we l l  say :   Look,  you  do not  

need . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You might  say  you are  f ind ,  you know? 

MR MANTSHA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  jus t  do  no t  want  you to  fee l  tha t  in  the 

rush to  f in ish  every th ing ,  someth ing  you wanted to  c la r i f y,  

you were  no t  g iven a  chance . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MANTSHA :    No,  Cha i rperson ,  I  am not  th ink ing  l i ke  20 

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.  

MR MANTSHA :    Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Thank you very  much  

Mr  Mantsha.   And  thank you to  your  a t to rney.   You a re  now 
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bo th  excused.  

MR MANTSHA :    Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you Mr  Kennedy and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you Cha i r.   That  comple tes  the  

ev idence fo r  today fo r  the  Dene l  s t ream.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    There  is  an  i nd ica t ion  tha t  the  Cha i r  

may want  one fu r ther  w i tness to  be  ca l led  in  due course .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Bu t  sub jec t  to  tha t ,  tha t  i s  the  

ev idence tha t  we –  the  Dene l  team wou ld  want  to  lead 

before  you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  thank you very  much .   And 

thank you ve ry  much to  your  team.   The invest iga tors  as  

we l l  who have been in  Dene l .   Thank you very  much.   But  

as  you say,  there  is  a  poss ib i l i t y  o f  another  w i tness  bu t  fo r  

now th is  i s  go ing  to  be  Dene l  ev idence.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay thank you  very  much.   You  w i l l  be  20 

excused.   I  w i l l  take  a  shor t  ad journment  to  enab le  the  next  

work  s t ream to  se t  up  and then we w i l l  con t inue w i th  the  

Eskom work  s t ream.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   We ad journ .  
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good even ing ,  Mr  Se leka,  good even ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Even ing ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you ready?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We are  ready,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good even ing ,  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:    Good even ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The oath  or  a f f i rmat ion  you took  10 

yesterday w i l l  con t inue to  app ly  today.  

MR SINGH:    Noted.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Yes,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.    

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MR SINGH:    I  am not  sure  wha t  Mr  Se leka is  go ing  to  

lead.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  I  thought  we needed to  s ta r t  w i th  the  20 

a f f idav i t  tha t  we promised to  dea l  w i th  yesterday.   Mr  

Yeboah Amankwah ’s  a f f idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  yes ,  tha t  i s  a lso  …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    We promised to  Cha i r  tha t  we had  re fer red  

th is  a f f idav i t  f rom yeste rday.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  remember  the  name but  I  

remember  the re  was some re ference to  some a f f idav i t ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   I t  i s  a  very  name,  Cha i r.   But  

what  I  wanted to  do ,  Cha i rpe rson ,  jus t  be fore  we  get  to  

tha t  a f f idav i t  was  to  exp la in  –  wha t  my learned f r iend was  

say ing ,  i t  i s  a  redacted s ta tement  o f  Dr  Weiss  tha t  they  

go t .   I  have ascer ta ined tha t  tha t  was a  d i f fe ren t  work  

s t ream.   When Dr  Weiss  ca l led  las t  year  he  was ca l led  by  a  

d i f fe ren t  work  s t ream.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The money f low work  s t ream,  ja .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  cor rec t .  And I  know tha t  the  

prac t ice  i s  tha t  you g ive  a  w i tness e i ther  the  a f f idav i t  

inso fa r  as  he  is  imp l ica ted  or  you re fe r  them to  the  

re levant  parag raphs where  they are  imp l ica ted ,  so  they  

wou ld  have fo l lowed tha t  p rac t ice .   As  I  ind ica ted  to  the  

Cha i rperson,  I  do  i t  d i f fe ren t ly,  I  g ive  the  en t i re  a f f idav i t  to  

the  w i tness to  avo id  these type o f  th ings.    

 So s im i la r ly  w i th  the  a f f idav i t  wh ich  Mr  Ano j  S ingh 

is  re fe r r ing  to ,  the  a f f idav i t  does not  imp l ica te  Mr  S ingh but  

there  is  ev idence  in  i t  tha t  I  th ink  i s  re levant  to  p lace  on 20 

record  as  par t  o f  the  ev idence tha t  the  Commiss ion  has  

ob ta ined and my  in ten t ion  was to  read cer ta in  pa ragraphs  

f rom tha t  a f f idav i t  tha t  shows cer ta in  in fo rmat ion .   Whether  

Mr  S ingh i s  ab le  to  comment  on  tha t  o r  no t ,  i t  rea l l y  

depends on h im and i f  he  w ish  to  dea l  w i th  i t  he  can do so  
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in  wr i t ing  by  way o f  an  a f f idav i t .   I  see  tha t  he  has i t  

opened and he wou ld  l i ke  to  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  re fe rence  to  i t  must  come a t  the  

r igh t  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  the  contex t  o f  what  the  s to ry  i s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  i s  impor tan t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  do  no t  know what  the  r igh t  t ime is  10 

bu t  i f  now i f  the  r igh t  t ime,  a l l  I  am say ing  is ,  m ight  no t  

have much to  re fer  to  i t  now outs ide  o f  the  contex t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  wh ich  i t  shou ld  be  re fer red  to .   Or  i f  

you  se t  ou t  what  the  contex t  i s ,  then re fer  to  i t ,  tha t  w i l l  

happen.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   I  wou ld  pre fer  to  do  i t  in  due  

course .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because,  you know,  we have a  l im i ted 20 

t ime th is  even ing  and we …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  th ink  because o f  the  

l im i ted  t ime,  i f  you  are  ab le  to  do  i t  th is  even ing ,  do  i t .   A l l  

I  say ing  i t  must  be  –  you must  have the  contex t  when you  

get  to  i t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  i t  i s  no  poss ib le  to  do  i t  today  w i th in  

the  contex t  in  wh ich  i t  must  be  done,  obv ious ly  i t  must  be  

done as  soon as  poss ib le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sure  tha t  shou ld  be  f ine  w i th  you,  

Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  contex t  o f  the  a f f idav i t ,  as  

I  unders tood Adv Se leka ’s  l ine  o f  th ink ing  yeste rday  was to  

c lose  o f f  the  co rpora te  p lan  por t ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  by  the  way,  yes terday you wanted to  

c lose  o f f  a  ce r ta in  i ssue.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    Th i s  re la tes  to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  in  a  pos i t ion  to  do  tha t  now 

today?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Wel l ,  Mr  Se leka,  he  has jus t  

reminded me tha t  you had asked  h im a  quest ion  and he  20 

was keen to  respond to  i t  and,  as  he  put  i t ,  c lose  o f f  tha t  

i ssue but  h is  counse l  p re fe r red  we shou ld  no t  do  tha t ,  so  

he  seems rar ing  to  go  bu t  I  am not  say ing  do  tha t  now,  I  

am jus t  say ing  remember  tha t  you had asked h im a  

quest ion ,  he  was  keen to  answer  i t ,  i t  was not  answered 
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because h is  counse l  sa id  they needed t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  in  te rms o f  the  t ransc r ip t ,  whoever  

reads,  we come to  the  po in t  and  then they see tha t  now 

today we go on to  someth ing  e l se  i t  w i l l  l ook  s t range.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Mr  S ingh you can re fe r  us  to  the 

page number  there .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  have …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have i t  loose ly?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have i t  loose ly?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  in  the  bund le?  

MR SINGH:    No,  no ,  no t  in  the  bund le .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  th ink  what  Mr  

S ingh has done is  taken the  copy tha t  we got  and jus t  have  

regard  to  tha t ,  so  maybe w i th  your  permiss ion  i f  you  can  

keep h i s  copy next  to  h im because  I  th ink  he  made h is  own 

[ ind is t inc t ]  on  i t  and then make re ference to  the  bund le .   I f  

we can work  w i th  i t  in  tha t  way.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  do  no t  have i t  here  in  my  bund le ,  

Mr  Se leka,  i s  i t  no t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  in  the  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  in  the  bund le?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Eskom bund le  14(c) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Eskom bund le  14? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    14(c) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 702.174.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Saf roadu Yeboah-Amankwah,  nè?  Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ ind is t inc t ] ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cha l leng ing .   Okay.   I  guess we s tar t  

w i th  the  quest ion  you had put  to  h im tha t  he  wanted to  10 

answer  and c lose  o f f  the  issue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   There  was not  a  spec i f i c  quest ion  

in  re la t ion  to  the  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.   What  I  d id  fo r  Mr  S ingh 

was to  pu t  ve rs ions coming f rom th is  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  then he  cou ld  comment  on  them 

i f  he  had someth ing  to  say because the  a f f idav i t  does not  

necessar i l y  imp l ica te  h im.   So the  a f f idav i t  wou ld  show,  i f  I  

may,  Mr  Amankwah wou ld  ind i ca te  –  le t  us  go  to  pa rag raph  

5 .2 .   So Cha i r,  le t  me s tar t ,  jus t  fo r  contex t  purposes.   20 

Paragraph 1 .4  o f  Mr  Amankwah’s  a f f idav i t .   He says:  

“ I  am a  sen ior  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  page  number?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 702.176.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  S ingh you are  the re?  

MR SINGH:    Paragraph 5 .2?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Paragraph 1 .4 .  

MR SINGH:    1 .4?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So Mr  Amankwah te l l s  the  reader  

who he is :  

“A sen ior  par tne r  a t  McK insey company cur ren t ly  

based in  Wash ing ton.   From November  2011 to  

August  2018 I  was a  sen ior  par tner  in  the  South  

A f r i can o f f i ce .   From September  2014 to  August  10 

2018 I  was the  loca t ion  manager  o f  McK insey ’s  

South  A f r i ca  o f f i ce . ”  

And then he goes on,  ment ions cer ta in  th ings about  

h imse l f .  Then  on page 702.185,  parag raph 5 .2 ,  

Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  under  pa ragraph  5  w i th  the  head ing :  

“The Corpora te  P lan  Pro jec t ”  

And 5 .1  says:  

“ In  m id-2015 Eskom faced opera t iona l  and f inanc ia l  

cha l lenges tha t  were  negat ive ly  impact ing  the  South  

A f r i can economy. ”  20 

And he g ives  the  examples .   And 5 .2  says:  

“H is to r ica l l y  McK insey had been  less  i nvo lved in  

d ra f t ing  Eskom’s  corpora te  p lan  and annua l l y  

compi led  document  tha t  Eskom is  requ i red  to  submi t  

to  Nat iona l  Treasury  in  compl iance w i th  i t s  
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leg is la t i ve  du t ies  because Eskom had in te rna l  

resources and personne l  who were  exper ienced in  

such mat te rs . ”  

So these were  some o f  the  th ings I  was drawing to  Mr  

S ingh ’s  a t ten t ion ,  then he car r i es  on  to  say,  Mr  Amankwah:  

“However,  McK insey was asked to  become more  

invo l ved in  d ra f t ing  Eskom’s  co rpo ra te  p lan  fo r  

f inanc ia l  years  2016/2017 and 2017/2018,  yes ,  

when Eskom had a  new management  team wi th  less  

exper ience and  ins t i tu t iona l  knowledge about  10 

Eskom.   The new management  team there fore  

sought  ou t  McK insey ’s  ob jec t iv i t y  and years  o f  

exper ience suppor t ing  Eskom to  ass is t  them. ”  

And Cha i r,  when one reads th is  po r t ion  w i th  the  a f f idav i t  of  

Dr  Weiss ,  you see tha t  the  new management  in  pa r t i cu la r  

i s  be ing  re fer r ing  to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh  and Mr  Br ian  Mole fe .  

 So the  one po in t  f rom here  was tha t  there  is  

acknowledgement  on  the  par t  o f  a  sen ior  o f f i c ia l  o f  

McK insey tha t  Eskom in  fac t  had in te rna l  resources and  

personne l  who were  exper ienced  in  these mat te r  o f  the  20 

corpo ra te  p lan  and so  Mr  S ingh cou ld  then comment  on  th is  

because th is  does not  rea l l y  imp l ica te  h im.   Shou ld  we take 

i t  s tep-by-s tep  l i ke  th is ,  Mr  S ingh?  Can I  do  so?  

MR SINGH:    Maybe i t  wou ld  be t te r  i f  you… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Shou ld  I  comple te  i t?  
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MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay because  –  le t  us  go  to  pa rag raph 

5 .8  on  the  next  page,  page 702.187.  

MR SINGH:    What  paragraph,  S i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    5 .8 .   So there  he  says:  

“The corpora te  p lan  was f ina l i sed  on 26 February  

2016.   As  pa r t  o f  ins t i l l i ng  the  p lan  fo r  approva l ,  

McK insey he lped dra f t  a  p resenta t ion  about  a  

corpo ra te  p lan  fo r  submiss ion  to  the  Depar tment  o f  

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses. ”  10 

Now hear  Mr  S ingh,  tha t  da te  i s  s ign i f i can t  and i t  i s  

s ign i f i can t  fo r  the  reason  o f  the  documenta t ion  wh ich  i s  a  

cor respondence between you and  McKinsey wh ich  I  shared 

w i th  you jus t  be fo re  we s tar ted .  

 Cha i r,  may I  in t roduce the  documenta t ion?  I  had 

sa id  I  may not  re fe r  to  i t  today but  now tha t  we are  dea l ing  

w i th  th is ,  maybe  i t  i s  s ign i f i can t  tha t  I  do  so .   I  have 

shared w i th  my learned f r iend and Mr  S ingh a  le t te r  wh ich  

Mr  S ingh had addressed to  McK insey on the  19  February  

2016 and McKinsey ’s  response to  h is  le t te r.   I  w i l l  re fe r  to  20 

i t  now fo r  a  d i f fe ren t  purpose because o f  the  s ign i f i cance  

o f  tha t  da te  o f  the  26 t h  and I  beg leave to  hand i t  up .   I  see  

the  order l y  i s  no t  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  le t  me g ive  approva l  fo r  your  jun io r  

to  b r ing  i t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  sa id  your  jun io r  can br ing  i t .   Ja .  He  

cou ld  come s t ra igh t  –  oh ,  she,  here  she is .   That  i s  what  

happens –  jus t  the  who le  day whenever  you are  needed  

you are  he re  and  you are  ou t  fo r  one minute  then you are  

needed.   Okay,  now what  i s  th is ,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   The f i rs t  page o f  

th is  document  i s  a  le t te r  on  Eskom’s  logo o r  le t te rhead,  i t  

i s  a  le t te r  da ted  19 February  2016 ,  i t  comes f rom Mr  S ingh.   

I t  i s  addressed to  Dr  A lexander  Weiss  o f  McK insey and  10 

company.   In  th is  le t te r,  Cha i rperson,  the  sub jec t  l ine  i s :  

“Top Consu l tan ts  Programme,  R isk-Based Cont rac t  

P roposa l  and Negot ia t ions . ”  

Now tha t  spec i f i ca l l y  re la tes  to  t h is  MSA tha t  we  s tar ted  

go ing  in to  las t  n igh t .   The le t te r  reads:  

“Eskom unders tands tha t  the  in tended BEE par tne r  

to  McK insey an Co is  Reg iments  Group.   We a lso  

fu r ther  no te  tha t  Reg iments  Group  is  in  the  process  

o f  t rans i t ion  and tha t  the  u l t imate  BEE par tner  

wou ld  be  Tr i l l i an  Group.   Eskom wou ld  l i ke  20 

McKinsey to  p rov ide  a  response re la t ing  to  an  

ar t i c le  pub l i shed  on page 9  o f  the  F inanc ia l  Ma i l  

regard ing  a l legat ions assoc ia ted  w i th  Mr 

Mohammed Bogar t ,  a  fo rmer  employee o f  

Reg iments .   Fu r ther  to  the  above ,  Eskom seeks a  
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response to  key  issues ra ised by  myse l f  a t  a  

meet ing  w i th  McK insey tha t  took p lace on 9  

February  206 re la t ing  to  the  ob jec t i ves  o f  the  

abovement ioned proposed cont rac t .   The issues are  

as  fo l lows. ”  

Now you wou ld  see Cha i r  tha t  p roposed proposa l  a re  used  

in  th is  le t te r  wh ich  is  the  on  the  19  February  2016.   I  have 

to ld  Mr  Ano j  S ingh tha t  on  the  face  o f  th is  le t te r  –  I  am 

say ing  th is  jus t  to  ge t  i t  ou t  o f  the  way and Mr  S ingh w i l l  

dea l  w i th  i t ,  on  the  face  o f  the  le t te r  da ted  19 February  10 

2016 i t  shows tha t  he  wou ld  have  known tha t  the  MSA was 

not  ye t  s igned,  on  the  face  o f  the  le t te r.   And then he dea ls  

w i th  –  he  se ts  ou t  the  issues tha t  he  w ishes to  have 

addressed,  they are  number  1  to  5  and then on the  next  

page he says:  

“Your  u rgent  response w i th in  7  days on  the  above  

issues w i l l  be  apprec ia ted .   The s ign ing  o f  the  

proposed cont rac t…”  

There  is  the  word  aga in .  

“…is  cont ingent  upon the  rece ip t  o f  sa t i s fac tory  20 

responses to  the  above request  and he s igns tha t  

le t te r. ”  

On the  next  page,  Cha i r,  i s  a  response f rom McKinsey.   

That  response i s  da ted  25 February  2016.   The le t te r  

addressed to  Mr  Ano j  rep l ies  spec i f i ca l l y  to  h is  le t te r  o f  the 
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19  February  2016.   Now th is  da te  then i s  what  i s  

s ign i f i can t  fo r  what  we have jus t  read in  Mr  Amankwah’s  

a f f idav i t  because  one,  Mr  Amankwah’s  ve rs ion ,  by  the  26  

February  2016 the  corpo ra te  p lan  is  f ina l i sed and he wou ld  

go  on to  say in  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  by  the  end o f  the  month  i t  

was approved by  the  Eskom board  and Nat iona l  Treasury.   

Here  in  th is  le t te r  o f  rep ly  on  the  25 t h ,  the  day be fore  the  

f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the  corpora te  p lan  the  Cha i rpe rson  wou ld  

see tha t  McK insey is  s t i l l  say ing  we are  no t  p repared to  

subcont rac t  w i th  Tr i l l i an  un t i l  we have ce r ta in  c r i te r ia  met  10 

because they a re  s t i l l  sub jec ted  to  a g loba l  rev iew 

assessment ,  they  cannot  dea l  w i th  us  ye t  and tha t  what  

you see in  th is  le t te r.   So i t  says :  

“Dear  Mr  S ingh,  Top Consu l tan ts  P rog ramme.   Many  

thanks to  you le t te r  da ted  19 February  regard ing  

our  p roposa l  to  se rve  Eskom on th i s  c r i t i ca l  

p rogramme and your  request  tha t  we respond to  the  

F inanc ia l  Ma i l  a r t i c le  re fe r r i ng  to  Reg imen ts  

Cap i ta l . ”  

And tha t  i s  impor tan t  aga in  because tha t  s ta te  en t i t y  they 20 

were  dea l ing  w i th  a t  the  t ime.  

“We have a lso  desc r ibed ou r  overa l l  th ink ing  on  

invo l v ing  BEE f i rms in  ou r  suppor t  to  you on the  Top 

Consu l tan ts  P rog ramme.   Our  approach to  invo lv ing  

supp ly  deve lopment  par tners  on  our  suppor t  to  
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you. ”  

I s  says:  

“As d i scussed w i th  you and se t  ou t  in  our  p roposa l  

to  you we are  commi t ted  to  work ing  w i th  s i te  

deve lopment  pa r tners  on  the  Top Consu l tan ts  

Prog ramme.   Our  par tner ing  approach wh ich  is  

g rounded in  our  p ro fess iona l  p rac t ices  and r i sk  

management  ph i losophy is  des igned to  ensure  

tha t…”  

The he g ives  th ree  bu l l e t  po in ts .   In  the  in te res t  o f  t ime I  10 

want  to  move on,  Cha i r.   The las t  paragraph on th is  page  

says:  

“We wi l l  pu t  in  p lace  checks tha t  ensure  tha t  

assu rance on each o f  these  d imens ions was  

main ta ined th rough the  imp lementa t ion  o f  the  

programme wi th  an  op t ion  to  mod i fy  o r  te rm inate  

ar rangements  o f  mater ia l  i ssues a rose. ”  

Then you tu rn  the  page:  

“Ref lec t ions on  issues ra ised in  F inanc ia l  Ma i l  

a r t i c le . ”  20 

I  w i l l  sk ip  tha t  because tha t  dea ls  w i th  –  we l l ,  le t  me read  

i t ,  Cha i r,  le t  me read i t .   I t  says :  

“We have been  in fo rmed by  Mr  Er ic  Wood tha t  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  Management  adv isory  bus iness 

is  t rans i t ion ing  ownersh ip  to  Tr i l l i an  Cap i ta l  
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Par tne rs .   Our  d i l igence processes fo r  par tne r ing  

and subcont rac t ing  inc lude,  amongst  o thers ,  tha t  we 

are  fu l l y  appr i sed  o f  the  compos i t ion  o f  our  par tne rs  

inc lud ing  w i th  respect  to . ”  

Now,  Cha i r,  tha t  s ta tement  i s  impor tan t ,  wr i t ten  on  the  25  

February  2016.   They are  on ly  then be ing  in fo rmed tha t  

there  i s  a  t rans i t i on  to  take  p lace.   Then he says:  

“Par tner  inc lud ing  w i th  respect  to  shareho ld ing  o f  

ho ld ing  compan ies ,  u l t imate  benef ic ia l  

shareho lders ,  re la ted  par t ies  and …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  I  am sor ry.   Wel l ,  they  do  not  

say  who the  –  they on ly  reco rd  tha t  they have been  

in fo rmed but  they  do  not  say  when they were  in fo rmed,  i s  i t  

no t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   No,  they do  not  say  exact ly  

when.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The have been  in fo rmed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They are  wr i t ing  th is  on  the  25 t h  bu t  20 

you w i l l  see  how they dea l  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  wou ld  be  t rue… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  they pu t  the  ac tua l  t rans i t ion ing  

in  the  present  tense.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  one cou ld  jus t i f iab ly  unders tand  

tha t  i r respect ive  o f  when they had been in fo rmed a t  the  

t ime o f  wr i t ing  the  le t te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Th is  le t te r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    They unders tood the  t rans i t ion ing  to  be  

s t i l l  i n  the  process and not  to  be  comple ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  i s  an  aspect  wh ich  becomes 10 

even more  s ign i f i can t ,  Cha i r,  i f  we car ry  on .   I t  says :  

“Th is  i s  to  p rov ide  assurance tha t…”  

Oh,  I  was read ing :  

“…that  we are  fu l l y  appr ised o f  the  compos i t ion  o f  

our  par tners  inc lud ing  w i th  respect  to  shareho ld ing  

o f  ho ld ing  compan ies  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  are  you read ing  now? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  am now on the  f i rs t  bu l le t  po in ts  on  

the  second page.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Under  the  head ing :  

“Ref lec t ions on  issues ra ised in  F inanc ia l  Ma i l  

a r t i c le . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     
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“… shareho ld ing  o f  ho ld ing  compan ies ,  u l t imate  

benef ic ia l  shareho lde rs ,  re la ted  par t ies  and group 

compan ies ,  fu tu re  s ign i f i can t  lenders ,  execut ive  

management  team and o ther  key  main 

dependenc ies  fo r  bo th  the  company and group 

compan ies .   Th i s  i s  to  p rov ide  assurance that  

among o ther  cons idera t ions ne i ther  Eskom nor  

McK insey have  exposure  to  po l i t i ca l l y  exposed 

persons.   In  the  case o f  supp ly  deve lopment  

re la t ions  in  South  A f r i ca  we  are  add i t iona l l y  10 

requ i red  to  ensure  tha t  par tne rs /subcont rac tors  

meet  th ree  add i t iona l  c r i te r ia ,  ma jor i t y  b lack 

ownersh ip ,  ma jor i t y  b lack  management  and s ta f f  o r  

a  c lea r  and commi t ted  p lan  to  de l i ver  th is  ou tcome,  

capab i l i t y  and capac i ty  to  execute  work  and de l i ver  

benef i t s  tha t  commensura te  w i th  the  share  o f  the 

fees earned.   We can conf i rm tha t  we w i l l  no t  be 

ab le  to  commence…” 

Not  to  cont inue,  bu t  to  commence.  

“…a re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Tr i l l i an  or  any o the r  20 

par tner /subcont rac tor  un t i l  these c r i te r ia  have been  

met  and approved by  our  g loba l  r i sk  and lega l  

teams.   We have  requested the  above in fo rmat ion  

f rom Tr i l l i an  and have been assured tha t  th is  w i l l  be  

made ava i lab le  to  us  be fo re  1  March 2016.   We 
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have a l so  expressed ou r  concern  to  Mr  Wood about  

the  ar t i c le  and he has assured us  tha t  he  w i l l  i ssue  

a  sa t is fac tory  response to  the  above date . ”  

Now the  impor tan t  par t  aga in ,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  tha t  s ta tement  

wh ich  they made:  

“We can conf i rm tha t  we w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  

commence a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Tr i l l i an  or  any o the r  

par tners  un t i l  these c r i te r ia  have been met  and  

approved by  G loba l  R isk  and Lega l  teams. ”  

And u l t imate ly  the  le t te r  wh ich  we  read las t  n igh t ,  the  one  10 

o f  the  30  March 2016,  makes  re ference to  th is  too ,  

cor respondence.   And then they  f ina l l y  in fo rmed  Eskom 

tha t  they are  te rm inat ing  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Tr i l l i an .   So 

when –  on  the  face  o f  th is  documenta t ion  and spec i f i ca l l y  

the  da tes ,  w i th  the  da te  o f  the  26  February  2016 wh ich  Mr  

Amankwah says was the  f ina l  da te  or  the  da te  when the 

corpo ra te  p lan  was f ina l i sed,  the  p ic tu re  emerges qu i te  

c lea r ly  tha t  one cannot  make the  conc lus ion  tha t  Tr i l l i an  

was invo lved in  the  corpora te  p lan  when McKinsey was 

wr i t ing  a t  th is  s tage say ing  we cannot  commence a  20 

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them unt i l  they  have met  th is  c r i te r ia  and  

Mr  S ingh o f  cou rse  can comment  on  tha t .   Le t  me car ry  on .   

Back to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  S ingh,  a re  you s t i l l  f i ne  w i th  h im 

car ry ing  on  befo re  you comment?  
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MR SINGH:    No,  no ,  i t  i s  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You want  h im to  f in ish?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    I  am mak ing  notes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then,  Cha i r,  we go to  page 702.212.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  when McKinsey says in  th is  le t te r  

tha t  they w i l l  no t  have par tnersh ip  or  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

…[ in tervenes]  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Tr i l l i an .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do they say Tr i l l i an  or  Reg iments?   Oh,  

i t  i s  Tr i l l i an .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :     

“We can conf i rm tha t  we w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  

commence a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Tr i l l i an  or  any o the r  

par tners  un t i l  these c r i te r ia  have been met  and  

approved by  G loba l  R isk  and Lega l  teams. ”  

I s  th is  meant  to  say they wou ld  no t  have tha t  re la t ionsh ip  20 

w i th  them under  the  MSA or  does th is  a lso  re fe r  to  the 

corpo ra te  p lan?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Th is  re fe rs  to  the  MSA,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  the  MSA.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And i f  you tu rn  the  las t  page you w i l l  

see  tha t  the  le t te r  i s  s igned a t  the  very  las t  page by 

A lexander  Weiss  and another  gent leman who  is  the  

Manag ing  Par tne r,  be ing  A f r i ca .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  but  Cha i r,  and Mr  S ingh w i l l  exp la in  

th is  Cha i r  because we have gathered the  ev idence f rom 

var ious a f f idav i t s  tha t  show tha t  there  was no pa r tnersh ip  

be tween the  two compan ies ,  McK insey and Tr i l l i an ,  wh i le  10 

McKinsey was sub jec t ing  Tr i l l i an  to  th is  g loba l  rev iew 

assessment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And tha t  a lso  w i l l  impact  on  the 

Corpora te  P lan  as  sa id  by  o ther  w i tnesses.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then I  was go ing  back to  the  a f f idav i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you go ing  to  go  there  be fore  Mr  

S ingh comments ,  o r  . . .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  he  was say ing  I  shou ld  proceed.  

MR SINGH:    P lease proceed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  –  ja  you w i l l  have a  mou th fu l  to  

de l i ver.   A re  you –  i t  i s  be t te r  you do i t  as  and when  I  ra ise  
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a  po in t ,  no t  ra ise  a  po in t  bu t  pu t  a  vers ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  a l l  tha t  wh ich  you want  to  read i s  

in  suppor t  o f  a  pa r t i cu la r  po in t  bus iness,  i s  i t  no t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  one po in t  o r  maybe two?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  fo r  ins tance,  he re  we have seen  

two po in ts .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    One is  tha t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  maybe Mr  S ingh comment  now i f  he  10 

la te r  on  read someth ing  e lse  then we can take  i t  f rom 

there .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Amankwah i s  

s t ruc tured in  such a  way tha t  he  dea ls  w i th  s tu f f  in  the  

back,  so  i f  we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t  I  wou ld  suggest  we  

take Mr  –  sor ry  Advocate  Se leka ’s  po in t s  and then I  dea l  

w i th  i t  ho l i s t i ca l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay cont inue then Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then I  wou ld  re fer  Mr  S ingh to  -  shou ld  

we …[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    We need to ,  you  need to  me whether  you  

want  me to  admi t  th is  and be s lo t ted  in  somewhere  or  you 

want  to  do  tha t  la te r  about  the  submiss ion?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Can I  do  so  la te r  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  due course .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  due course ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do not  fo rge t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  t rus t  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You caut ion ing  me? 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  she assures  us  she w i l l  no t  fo rge t .   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l  I  w i l l  no t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then a t  pa rag raph and I  am t ry ing  my 

best  to  go  to  the  most  re levant  ones.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The on ly  th ing  bad about  no t  adm i t t ing  i t  

now is  tha t  somebody w i l l  read the  t ranscr ip ts  and  w i l l  say  

tha t  you are  quo t ing  wr i t ten  f rom my document  bu t  i t  i s  

they do  not  know how to  ident i f y  tha t  document  and where  

i t  i s  to  be  found.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Indeed Cha i r,  indeed.  Le t  us  admi t  i t ,  20 

le t  me do i t  now Cha i rperson and I  w i l l  make i t  par t  o r  beg  

leave to  have i t  made pa r t  o f  th is  Eskom bund le  14 [c ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  -  because  i f  i t  i s  

two le t te rs ,  i sn ' t  i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  two le t te rs .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    So i t  i s  go ing  to  be  two exh ib i t s?   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Let  me see,  and ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  poss ib le  to  a r range fo r  the  top  one 

w i l l  a lso  be  l i ke  the  bo t tom one.  You see i t  i s  hor izonta l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  wou ld  be  ver t i ca l  then i t  w i l l  be  

eas ie r,  when one is  pag ing  th rough  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  w i l l  do  so .  I  w i l l  beg leave to  have 10 

them admi t ted  as  two separa te  exh ib i t s  fo r  p resent  

purposes to  be  marked the  f i r s t  one Exh ib i t  33 .1  wh ich  i s  

the  le t te r  da ted  19,  February  2016 f rom Mr  Ano j ,  Mr  S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  r igh t  and the  second one?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The second one is  exh ib i t  U33.2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    U30?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   33.2  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  so  the  o ther  one is  U33.1?  

ADV SELEKA SC:  You are  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  thought  you sa id  Exh ib i t  33 .1 ,  and I  20 

was not  sure  whether  the re  shou ldn ’ t  be  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  Exh ib i t  U33,  and we w i l l  pag ina te  

them accord ing ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   We wi l l  pag ina te  them f rom the  las t  

document  in  th is  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  they,  we l l  where  we a re  go ing  to  s lo t  

them we shou ld  be  ab le  to  say what  pages tha t  w i l l  so  tha t  

w i l l  he lp  the  whoever  reads,  so  the  le t te r  o f  Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  

Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer  o f  Eskom to  Dr  A lexander  Weiss  o f  

McK insey and Company dated 19 February  2016  w i l l  be 

admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and marked Exh ib i t  U33.1  and the 

le t te r  f rom Dr  A lexander  Weiss ,  D i rec tor  o f  McK insey as  

we l l  as  Mr  Georges . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Manag ing  Par tner   o f  10 

McK insey and Company dated  25 February  2016 and 

addressed to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  Group CFO,  Eskom wi l l  be  

admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and marked as  Exh ib i t  U33.2 .  

 Okay,  and where  shou ld  they be  s lo t ted?  

ADV SELEKE SC:   Thank you.   They w i l l  go  i n to  –  or  they  

w i l l  go  S  pages . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    My reg is t ra r  w i l l  no te  and then she w i l l  

s lo t  them in ,  bu t  fo r  the  reco rd  you  can jus t  say  where  they  

wou ld  go .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    As  pages 877.156.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  f i rs t  le t te r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  the  f i rs t  le t te r  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  has . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Two pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Two pages.   
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ADV SELEKA SC:   So is  po in t  156  and po in t  157.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:  And then the  next  le t te r  w i l l  s ta r t  f rom 

page 877.158 to  877.163.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  tha t  we a re  a t  near l y  twen ty  past  

seven befo re  Mr  S ingh answers  one quest ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sorry.   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Cha i rpe rson I  th ink  we must  t ry  10 

and push as  fa r  as  we can a t  th is  po in t  w i th  th is  par t i cu la r  

i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  i t  w i l l  depend on the  s i tua t ion ,  

we don ’ t  want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:  No,  I  th ink  we must  t ry  and dea l  

w i th  th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then,  back to  the  a f f idav i t  

Cha i rperson,  page 702 went  to  12 ,  paragraph 20.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now paragraph 20.1 ,  oh  on  20 the  

head ing  is  Tr i l l i an ,  20 .1  reads there  has been s ign i f i can t  

pub l i c  confus ion  sur round ing  the  in te rac t ions be tween  

McKinsey and Tr i l l i an  a t  Eskom.   Th is  i s  someth ing  I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  pu t  r igh t  in  the  in te rac t i on  se t  ou t  be low.  A t  the 
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ou tse t  however,  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  no te  the  fo l low ing 

genera l  observa t ions re la t ing  to  Tr i l l i an .   F i rs t  Tr i l l i an  he ld  

i t se l f  ou t  in  cor respondence w i th  McK insey as  the  

successor  to  the  consu l t ing  bus iness o f  Reg iments ,  wh ich  

had a l ready under taken work  a t  Eskom.   

Second,  McK insey never  made any payments  t o  

Tr i l l i an  and never  had a  cont rac t  w i th  Tr i l l i an .  The  reason 

why McKinsey never  cont rac ted  w i th  Tr i l l i an  as  a  supp l ie r  

deve lopment  pa r tner  i s  d iscussed fu r ther  be low,  i s  tha t  

Tr i l l i an  fa i led  McK insey ’s  due d i l igence in  February  -   10 

March 2016.  

And tha t  i s  tha t  i s  one s ign i f i can t  po in t ,  emerg ing  

aga in  Cha i r  f rom -  we l l  the  ou tcome o f  what  they say was  

the  g loba l  rev iew,  r i sk  assessment  they were  do ing  in  

respect  o f  Tr i l l i an .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sha l l  I  p roceed?  Th i rd ,  on  the  next  

page?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  here  the  you made f i rs t  be fore  

now,  what  d id  you say.   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The second -  i t  re la tes  to  the  second 

po in t  he 's  mak ing  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Where?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I f  you  go back to  702 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    20 .2?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Poin t  two,  tha t  i s  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Whereas the  second,  McK insey never  

made any payments  to  Tr i l l i an  and never  had a  cont rac t  

w i th  Tr i l l i an  .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The reason why McKinsey never  

cont rac ted  w i th  Tr i l l i an  as  a  supp l ie r  deve lopment  par tner  

i s  d iscussed fu r the r,  i s  tha t  Tr i l l i an  fa i led  McK insey 's  due  

d i l igence p rocess  in  February,  March 2016.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  on  the  face  o f  i t  wou ld  suggest  tha t  

they d idn ’ t  have a  cont rac t  w i th  Tr i l l i an  even in  regard  to  

the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  p lan .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And he goes to  say o ther  th ings,  the  

next  page,  th i rd ,  the  th i rd  po in t ,  a  compar ison between 

what  Tr i l l i an  pe rsonne l  adv ised McKinsey a t  the  t ime,  and  

what  has now emerged years  la te r,  ind ica tes  tha t  Tr i l l i an  a t  

the  t ime repeated ly  w i thhe ld  f rom McKinsey in fo rmat ion  20 

about  Tr i l l i an  th rough ownersh ip  s t ruc ture ,  and i t s  

connect ions to  a  Gupta  fami ly  assoc ia te ,  Mr  Sa l im Essa.  

Then the  four th  po in t ,  the  McK insey d id  no t  

au thor ise  any payments  made by  Eskom to  Tr i l l i an .  Any  

payments  by  Eskom to  Tr i l l i an  were  made by  Eskom af te r  
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McK insey in fo rmed Eskom tha t  Tr i l l i an  had  fa i led  

McK insey ’s  due d i l igence,  and he re fers  to  a  le t te r  tha t  tha t  

we have t rave rsed las t  n igh t ,  a  le t te r  o f  the  9 t h  o f  February  

2016,  w i th  cond i t ions  tha t  were  no t  met .   

Wel l ,  I  can  read tha t  because he does say tha t ,  in  

b rackets  he  says:  

“As d iscussed fu r ther  be low,  McK insey 's  9  February  

2016 le t te r  d id  no t  p rov ide  au thor isa t ion  fo r  Eskom 

to  pay Tr i l l i an  as  the  cond i t ions  se t  ou t  in  the  le t te r  

had not  been  met .   Th is  fac t  has been  10 

acknowledged by  Eskom and i t s  Counse l . ”  

And there  they  are  re fe r r ing  to  the  l i t iga t ion  tha t  

subsequent ly  was  ins t i tu ted  be tween McKinsey and  Eskom.  

So the  takeaway home -  the  takeaway po in t  there  Cha i r  i s  

rea l l y  on  the  second po in t  Mr  Amankwah is  mak ing ,  tha t  

there  was never  an  agreement  be tween McKinsey and  

Tr i l l i an .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  in  the  next  parag raph  in  20 .1  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The ta lk  about  hav ing  worked w i th  

Tr i l l i an .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In i t ia l l y  i t  was ant ic ipa ted  tha t  

Reg iments  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  they m ight  no t  have had a  fo rmal  
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con t rac t ,  bu t  they  seem to  have worked togethe r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Accord ing  to  paragraph 20.1 .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So one does no t  know exact ly  what  th is  

person is  ta l k ing  about  because on the  one hand  he says 

they have never  had a  cont rac t  bu t  then now he says we -  

they worked together  Tr i l l i an  a t  Eskom.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r  you  w i l l  bear  in  mind the  

ev idence o f  Miss  Goodson in  respect  o f  wh ich  Tr i l l i an  had  

sub-cont rac tors  on  the  1s t  o f  March 2016.  And they go t  

invo l ved in  cer ta in  o f  the  pro jec ts  tha t  a re  env i saged under  

the  NSA tha t  was  to  be  cont inued,  and he ta lked about  sub 

E-gateway,  another  sub-cont rac to r,  bu t  she a l so  ment ioned 

employees o r  some –  some independent  cont rac tors  were  

brought  f rom Ind ia  and Arab Emi ra tes ,  serv ing  in  cer ta in  20 

pro jec ts  o f  -  env i saged in  the  MSA.   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So,  bu t  what  i s  c lear  i s  tha t  there  was 

no fo rmal  cont rac t  be tween the  two  ent i t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  I  cou ld  s top  there  because the 

fu r ther  paragraphs he goes in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  what  he  has 

summar ised.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH:  Mr Cha i r,  thank you.  Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  in  

address ing  the  f i rs t  po in t ,  we have to  go  back to  page  

702.185.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Poin t?  

MR SINGH:  Poin t  185,  and I  w i l l  a lso  dea l  w i th  po in t  186,  

a t  the  same t ime .   Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  the  f i rs t  po in t  to  the  10 

note  here  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  d id  you say we must  go  to  page  

702.185?  

MR SINGH:   Poin t  185.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  page? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:   And  I  have been –  advocate  Se leka re fer red  

us  to  pa ragraph 5 .2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

MR SINGH:   As be ing  the  f i rs t  i ssue tha t  he  wou ld  l i ke  us  

to  respond to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  postpone?  

MR SINGH:    No,  to  respond to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  to  respond to  ja ,  jus t  speak up a  b i t .  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 274 of 301 
 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  the  f i r s t  po in t  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

ra ise  is  tha t  Mr  Amankwah a lbe i t  has g iven us  h i s  b r ie f  

resume regard ing  h is  exper ience in  the  McK insey o f f i ce  in  -

in  Johannesburg ,  I  must  record  tha t  he  ac tua l l y  d id  no t  

have any hands-on exper ience a t  Eskom,  because I  never  -  

I  ac tua l l y  th ink  he  may have ac tua l l y  come to  Eskom once  

i f  I  reca l l ,  bu t  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  po in t  to  be  made Mr  Cha i r.  

In  te rms o f  5 .2  Mr  Cha i r,  the  contex t  w i th in  wh ich  

the  po in t  was led  by  Advocate  Se leka I  th ink ,  loses i t s  

mer i t ,  because i t  i s  read in  w i thout  the  fu l l  con tex t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Can I  say  th i s ,  Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH:  Yes s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  are  ab le  to  say th is  i s  the  po in t  I  

am mak ing ,  and I  am go ing  to  the  page o r  pa ragraph to  

show suppor t  fo r  tha t  po in t  tha t  wou ld  he lp .  

MR SINGH:   Okay s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i f  you  are  ab le  to  do  i t  tha t  way.  Fo r  

example  l i ke  say ing  i t  i s  no t  t rue  tha t  there  was no  

agreement  be tween -  there  be tween McKinsey and  Tr i l l i an ,  

here  i s  what  I  want  to  re fe r  to  i n  regard  to  tha t  k ind  o f  20 

th ing .  I  ment ioned tha t  because  in  tha t  le t te r  they as  

McK insey,  McK insey in  the i r  le t ter  to  you repeated the  -  

they g ive  the  impress ion  or  say  so  express ly  tha t  there  was  

no agreement  w i th  them and Tr i l l i an .   So i f  you  say no ,  you  

don ’ t  accept  tha t ,  and you want  to  re fe r  somewhere  to  
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suppor t  tha t ,  tha t  wou ld  he lp .   

So i f  we know the  po in t  f i rs t ,  then we go to  the  

mater ia l ,  tha t  w i l l  he lp .  

MR SINGH:   Sure  s i r.   The po in t  tha t ,  in  tak ing  your  

gu idance Cha i r,  the  po in t  tha t  Advocate  Se leka t r ied  to  

make was tha t  Eskom had in te rna l  resources to  deve lop  

the  co rpora te  p lan .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR SINGH:  And I  am bas ica l l y  say ing  I  do  no t  agree w i th  

tha t  Mr  Cha i r  because the  comment  tha t  has been made,  i s  10 

no t  read in  the  contex t  o f  the  res t  o f  the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SINGH:  So i f  you look a t  fo r  example  the  res t  o f  the  

parag raph 5 .5  po in t  5 .2 ,  bas ica l l y  you see tha t  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    [ ta lk ing  over  one another ] .  

MR SINGH:  Eskom was fac ing  -  i f  I  jus t  read Mr  Cha i r  i t  

s ta r ts  w i th  in  add i t ion ,  Eskom was  fac ing  a  dua l  cha l lenge  

o f  r i s ing  costs  and load shedd ing  a f fec t ing  the  economy 

and requ i red a  comprehens ive  s t ra tegy on  how to  dea l  w i th  20 

these cha l lenges  in  a  way tha t  wou ld  suppor t  the  South  

A f r i can economy.   

The corpora te  p lan  deve loped  w i th  McK insey  

crea ted a  fundamenta l  sh i f t  in  approach fo r  Eskom moving  

to ,  f rom a  cost  e f fec t i ve  pa th  to  a  des igned cost  s t ra tegy  
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w i th  a  ta r i f f  pa th  tha t  wou ld  be  more  suppor t i ve  o f  the  

South  A f r i can economy.   

Th is  requ i red  p rov id ing  g loba l  exper t i se  on  energy  

markets ,  s ince  shar ing  levers  fo r  improvement  based on  

in te rnat iona l  u t i l i t y  exper ience,  ongo ing  change  

management  w i th in  the  organ isa t ion  and exper t i se  on  

imp lement ing  the  p lan  tu rnaround.  

5 .3 ,  McK insey 's  mandate  under  the  corpo ra te  p lan  

was to  deve lop  a  s t ra tegy tha t  wou ld  he lp  Eskom recover  

f rom i t s  cha l leng ing  f inanc ia l  c r i s i s ,  cos t  ra tes  and revenue 10 

and i t s  p recar ious opera t iona l  s i tua t ion  prevent ing  load 

shedd ing .   McK insey s ta r ted  work  on  the  corpora te  p lan  in  

October  2015,  in  c lose  co l labo ra t ion  w i th  the  Eskom team,  

and then Mr  Cha i r  in  5 .4 ,  paragraph 5 .4 ,  1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  5  and 

6 ,  wh ich  goes onto  the  next  page he dea ls  w i th  the  

e lements  o f  the  corpora te  p lan .    

The Corpora te  P lan  Pro jec t  served as  a  v iab le  

s t ra teg ic  p lan  to  char t  a  pa th  fo r  Eskom’s re tu rn  to  suppor t  

o f  economic  growth .   

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you read ing  f rom paragraph  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH:  This  i s  paragraph 5 .5 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  jus t  so  tha t  I  have got ,  ja .   Cont inue.  

MR SINGH:  Because i t  was  in fo rmed by  i ndust ry  

benchmarks  and suppor ted  by  Eskom management ,  
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Eskom’s  Board  and key s takeho lders  such as  Depar tment  

o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses .   

5 .6  he  goes on fu r ther  to  say tha t  there  were  47  

McKinsey consu l tan ts  and exper ts  devoted to  ove r  8  300 

hours  to  the  pro jec t ,  and he goes on to  exp la in  tha t  he  

in te rac ted  w i th  ce r ta in  key s takeho lders  w i th in  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wi th in?  

MR SINGH:    Wi th in  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So Mr  S ingh le t  me ask you be fore  you 

go fu r the r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR SINGH:   Can I  comple te?   I  have got  two more  

paragraphs.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  bu t  I  need -  you can take  your  

po in t  on  po in t  ze ro ,  I  don ’ t  fo rge t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because you had yours  ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  yes ,  a l r igh t ,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  are  you say ing  you are  deny ing  Mr  

Amankwah a l legat ion  tha t  Eskom had in te rna l  resources 

and personne l  who were  exper ienced in  such mat te rs?   20 

MR SINGH:   Yes,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Are you deny ing  the  a l legat ion  tha t  

McK insey s ta r ted  work  on  the  corpo ra te  p lan  i n  c lose  

co l labora t ion  w i th  Eskom’s  teams?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r.    Mr  Cha i r  the  reason why I  den ied  
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these a l legat ions,  Mr  Cha i r  f i r s t l y  i s  because  o f  the  

ev idence tha t  I  have led  be fore  the  commiss ion  regard ing  

the  qua l i t y  o f  the  prev ious year 's  corpora te  p lan ,  wh ich  I  

have led  ex tens i ve ly  be fore  the  Commiss ion .    

Second ly,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  read -  have regard  fo r  

parag raph 5 .9  wh ich  s ta tes  Eskom has a lso  argued in  the  

Eskom rev iew p roceed ing ,  tha t  the  corpo ra te  p lan  work  was  

done in te rna l l y  a t  Eskom and tha t  the  cont rac t  was not  

en tered in to  lawfu l l y.   

Le t  us  leave the  par t  a round the  lawfu l  par t  bu t  then  10 

i t  goes on to  say McK insey d i sputes  these asser t ions .  

Whi l s t  McK insey worked c lose ly  w i th  Eskom personne l  on  

a l l  par ts  o f  the  Corpora te  P lan ,  McKenz ie  was respons ib le  

fo r  the  in tegra t ing  o f  these inputs  and ensur ing  the  p lan  

was comple ted  accord ing  to  the  suggest ions  o f  the  

. . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] ,  as  we l l  as  the  board  as  we l l  

as  the  pub l i c  en terp r ise .   

So Mr  Cha i rman,  the  contex t  o f  the  a l legat ion  tha t  

Eskom had the  resources to  conduct  o r  compi le  the  

corpo ra te  p lan ,  versus what  you see a t  5 .9 ,  i s  a t  odds w i th  20 

each o the r,  as  we l l  as  the  way Mr  Amankwah se ts  ou t  the  

ex ten t  to  wh ich  McK insey had  dep loyed resources to  

comple te  the  Corpora te  P lan .   

So tha t  i s  the  po in t  in  te rms o f  where  we dea l  w i t h  

the  issue o f  pa ragraph 5 .2 .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   May I  ask  you as  you proceed where  do  

you -  a re  you go ing  to  answer  i t?  Where  do  you put  Tr i l l i an  

in  tha t  scenar io?  

MR SINGH:  Mr Cha i r  the  a l legat ion  was,  Eskom had 

in te rna l  personne l  to  do  the  work so  I  address tha t  per  the  

parag raphs I  have re fe r red  to .   The issue o f  Tr i l l i an  I  th ink  

we w i l l  now p i ck  up .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:   Then I  th ink  you wen t  w i th  parag raph 5 .8 .  Mr  

Cha i r.   Mr  Cha i r  th is  re la ted  to  the  corpora te  p lan  be ing  10 

f ina l i sed on the  26 th  o f  February  2016,  and th is  i ssue  

re la tes  the  le t te r  tha t  Mr  Se leka had read in to  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    The le t te rs  tha t  we have jus t  dea l t  w i th? 

MR SINGH:   Tha t  we have jus t  dea l t  w i th  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:  Mr Cha i r  in  te rms o f  the  le t te r  i t se l f ,  and the  

imp l ica t ions there ,  I  have been adv ised tha t  we  shou ld  

request  tha t  we shou ld  dea l  w i th  th is  la te r,  once we have 

had an oppor tun i ty  to  look  a t  the  le t te r  in  the  contex t  o f  the  20 

res t  o f  the  i n fo rmat ion  tha t  tha t  we have been ab le  to  ask .  

But  hav ing  sa id  t ha t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  can  dea l  w i th ,  very  br ie f l y,  

the  issue o f  the  l e t te r,  I  th ink  the  l e t te r  makes i t  qu i te  c lea r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    The le t te r  be ing  the  McK insey l e t te r  to  
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you  or  your  le t te r  to  them? 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink ,  bo th  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:   Tha t  i t  was an obv ious po in t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Th i s  i s  why I  want  to  spec i fy  so  tha t  

whoever  reads i f  they  want  to  go  and look a t  the  le t te r  you  

ta lk  about  they know which  one,  

MR SINGH:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:  An obv ious po in t  i s ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  the  le t te rs  10 

obv ious ly  re fe r red  to  the  MSA.  And we w i l l ,  I  w i l l  dea l  la te r  

w i th  the  fac t  tha t  there  i s  a  d i s t inc t ion  be tween the  MSA 

and the  Corpora te  P lan .    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SINGH:    So  tha t  i s  in  te rms o f  5 .8  and then Mr  Cha i r,  

then we needed to  go  th rough pa ragraph 20.1  and  I  jus t  

want  to  check  i f  I  have any  add i t iona l  no tes  be tween 5 .8  

and 2 .1  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  b r ing  to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  

Cha i rperson.   Mr  Amankwah does  dea l  w i th  the  MSA Mr  

Cha i r,  and in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  and g iven the  fac t  tha t  20 

we wanted to  c lose  the  corpo ra te  p lan ,  and I  th ink  we w i l l  

dea l  w i th  the  corpora te  name issues now and i f  there  is  a  

need to  come back to  the  a f f idav i t  re la t ing  to  the  MSA we 

wi l l  come back.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  Se leka is  the  one who knows 
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exact ly  what  po in ts  he  wanted you  to  dea l  w i th ,  so  he  –  Mr  

S ingh is  say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He wou ld  l i ke  to  dea l  w i th  the  Corpora te  

P lan  and close that  off  and again but  to the extent  that  he 

needs to  deal  wi th the MSA that  can be deal t  wi th later.   I t  

th ink he – that  is what – that  is  what you are saying Mr 

Singh? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct  Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.   I  th ink he must  be saying that  10 

because of  the issue we discussed in chambers about  the 

need to do only an hour.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes.   I  am not  sure whether that  is the 

reason Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe i t  is not  the reason.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chair  i f  I  do deal  wi th the issues of  a  

MSA 

CHAIRPERSON:   MSA 

MR SINGH:   As i t  is al leged to this.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR SINGH:   Then i t  would be contrary to the fact  that  you 

wanted i t  to be in context .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR SINGH:   Of  how we – how we deal ing wi th i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So i t  is a d i fferent  reason.  
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MR SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So Mr Seleka is  r ight?  I t  is  a  d i fferent  

reason.   Okay.   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you are now going to deal  wi th the 

corporate plan.  

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   In  terms of  paragraph 20.1 Mr Chai r.   I  th ink 10 

that  was the next  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   20.1 at  page 702.213.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   And that  is the – and that  was the next  one that  

Mr – Advocate Seleka wanted me to deal  wi th.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr Seleka the point  about  the 

corporate plan are s imply about who rendered the serv ices 

Tr i l l ian or Regiments? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the real  po int .  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes and who was paid.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja what is common cause was paid th is.   

Ja.   So you – okay I  just  wanted to  make sure we are – that  

we are al l  on the same page as to what point  you are – you 
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seek to deal  wi th under the corporate p lan issue.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   As i t  re lates to the paragraphs that  I  was 

referred to by Advocate Seleka 20.1.1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  have 20.1.1.  

MR SINGH:   20.1 and then I  th ink in  bracket  (1) Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.    

MR SINGH:   R ight .   Fi rst  Tr i l l ian held i tsel f  out  in 

correspondence with McKinsey as a successor  to the 10 

consul t ing business of  Regiments.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   I  do not  th ink you reading f rom 

the same paragraph that  I  have as 20.1 at  page 702.213.  

MR SINGH:   Sorry Chair  I  th ink i t  is 702.212.  

CHAIRPERSON:   212.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink there is two 20’s – two paragraphs 20.1.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Oh.  

MR SINGH:   And then the… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay so that  is  just  –  let  us cont inue.   

So the f i rst  20.  

MR SINGH:   The f i rst  20.1 

CHAIRPERSON:   20.1.  

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chai r.  



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 284 of 301 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink in terms of  the 20.1(1)  I  th ink again here 

Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  do not  say bracket  1  because 

whoever reads the t ranscr ipt  wi l l  not  f ind bracket  1.  

MR SINGH:   1 in brackets.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Except  for your convenience.   The 

paragraph 20.1 that  is at  page 702.212.  

MR SINGH:   Thank you Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  10 

MR SINGH:    

“Fi rst  Tr i l l ian held i tsel f  out  in  

correspondence with  McKinsey as a 

successor to the consul t ing business of  

Regiments which had already untaken work 

at  Eskom.”  

 Mr Chair  th is paragraph – this paragraph basical ly is  

consistent  wi th the let ter that  we had admit ted into evidence 

ear l ier.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us break this up.   What – what is said 20 

here – one of  the things that  is said here is that  Regiments 

had undertaken consul t ing – or had undertaken work al ready 

at  Eskom and not  Tr i l l ian.   That  –  they do not  say Tr i l l ian 

they say Regiments but  they say Tr i l l ian – they understood 

that  Tr i l l ian – or  Tr i l l ian held i tse l f  out  in correspondence 



26 MARCH 2021 – DAY 369 
 

Page 285 of 301 
 

wi th McKinsey as the successor to the consul t ing business of 

Regiments which had al ready taken work at  Eskom. 

 As I  understand i t  they are saying i t  is Regiments 

who had done the work at  Eskom. 

MR SINGH:   A i  – Mr Chai r  that  part  I  agree wi th.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You agree wi th that  part .  

MR SINGH:   I  am just  saying that  the suc. . .  – the issue of  

Tr i l l ian being a successor to Regiments.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Is consistent  wi th my let ter.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay so… 

MR SINGH:   In terms of  why i t  was constructed the way i t  

was const ructed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .   Okay.   Ja.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Sorry in terms of?  Sorry I  missed that .   In 

terms of? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink he is ta lk ing about the what  he has 

referred to as the secondment.  

MR SINGH:   No,  no Si r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh no that  is – okay.  20 

MR SINGH:   No the let ter that  we just  admit ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh the one that  … 

MR SINGH:   Into evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Oh okay.    
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MR SINGH:   Advocate Seleka referred to Regiments Group.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me have a look at  those let ters – that  

let ter? 

MR SELEKA SC:   Ja.   Ja and Mr Singh’s… 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you accept  – you would accept  Mr 

Singh wi l l  you not  that  the second part  is not  consistent  wi th  

at  least  your evidence at  some stage namely that  is 

Regiments which had done the work? 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  th is is – i t  basical ly th is  is at  a 

point  in t ime.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR SINGH:   I  am saying the way that  I  understand Mr 

Amankwah’s aff idavi t  is that  th is at  a point  in t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   So he is giv ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course.  

MR SINGH:   So he is giv ing – he is obviously giv ing you a 

sequence of  events as i t  how – as how i t  unfolded.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   The second point  is… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  want  to look at  the – at  your  let ter.   

You said the f i rst  part .  

MR SINGH:   Oh sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is consistent  wi th your let ter.   I  want  to see 

where in your let ter you – you say something that  you say is 
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consistent  wi th th is.    

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  there i t  is a – i f  you look at  the f i rst  

bul let  point .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm the f i rst  one? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.   The f i rst  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    

“ In re lat ion to the above Eskom requests a 

formal response on the fol lowing i tems.”  

MR SINGH:   Narrow.  

CHAIRPERSON:   F i rst  bul let  point :  10 

“Eskom understands that  the intended 

BBEEE partnered to McKinsey and Company 

is Regiments – Regiments Group.   They a lso 

further note that  Regiments Group is in a 

process of  t ransi t ion and that  the ul t imate 

BBEEE partner  would be Tr i l l ian – Tr i l l ian 

Group.”  

MR SINGH:   So that  is the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the part  you say.  

MR SINGH:   That  is what I  am saying to be consistent .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Is consistent .   Okay I  understand.   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Thank you Mr Chai r.    

“Second McKinsey never made any payments 

to Tr i l l ian and never had a cont ract  wi th  

Tr i l l ian. ”  
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I  do not  th ink anyone disputes that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:    

“The reason why McKinsey never contracted 

wi th Tr i l l ian as a suppl iers development 

partner  as discussed further  be low is that  

Tr i l l ian fai led McKinsey’s due di l igence 

process in February/March 2016.”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  Okay I  am sorry.   I  am saying I  am 

sorry.   The f i rst  sentence of  paragraph 20.1.2 okay maybe I  10 

was wrong when I  said do not  say bracket  (1) I  th ink I  

misunderstood.   I  th ink you – I  thought  you were – you had 

put  your own (1) for your convenience but  now I  understand 

what you are referr ing to.  Okay 20.1(2)  you say the f i rst  

sentence nobody disputes that?  Is that  r ight? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay and that  sentence has two points.  

“One is McKinsey never make any payments 

to Tr i l l ian.  

2.  McKinsey never had a cont ract  wi th 20 

Tr i l l ian. ”  

Okay that  is not  in  dispute.   Ja cont inue.  

MR SINGH:    

“The reason why McKinsey never contracted 

wi th Tr i l l ian as a suppl ier development  
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partner  as discussed further  be low is that  

Tr i l l ian fai led McKinsey’s due di l igence 

process in February/March 2016.”  

Mr Chai r  I  th ink the wording of  February/March 2016 

is a convenient  way for – to be put  because the let ter that  

we just  read and admit ted into evidence suggests that  at  25 

March they were st i l l  – 25 February they were st i l l  going 

through a due di l igence process which ul t imately led to them 

informing Tr i l l ian at  the 16 March that  they would not  be able 

to cont inue as thei r  BEE partner any longer and informed 10 

Eskom on the 31s t  of  that  – so February/March Mr Chair  in 

my view is very convenient  in the way i t  is formatted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  

MR SINGH:   And that  is formatted in  that  manner Mr Chair  to  

include the corporate plan.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To include? 

MR SINGH:   The corporate plan.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Corporate plan.  

MR SINGH:   Because the corporate plan was f inal ised in 

February.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm. Yes.    

MR SINGH:   So there was no due di l igence outcome in the 

month of  February.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  So are you saying factual ly you 

dispute that  Tr i l l ian fa i led the McKinsey due d i l igence 
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process in February/March 2016?  Do you go that  far or you 

simply say look I  do not  know factual ly whether that  is t rue 

but  i t  does seem qui te convenient .  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  th ink I  am – I  th ink I  am put t ing i t  

more stronger than that  Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are (speaking over one another)  

MR SINGH:   I  am saying factual ly i t  is that  based on the 

let ter that  we have just  admit ted on the 25t h McKinsey admits 

that  they st i l l  conduct ing a due di l igence process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us go to that  – let ter is dated 25 10 

February 2016.   

MR SELEKA SC:   Chair  may I  help? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is assigned where they say that  are st i l l  

– okay – on.  

MR SINGH:   I t  is the one that  says… 

CHAIRPERSON:   They say on the second page  

“We can conf i rm that  we wi l l  not  be able to  

commence our relat ionship wi th Tr i l l ian or  

any other partner or sub-cont ractor unt i l  

these cr i ter ia have been met and approved 20 

by our global  r isk and legal  team.  We have 

requested the above informat ion f rom Tri l l ian 

and have been ensured that  th is wi l l  be made 

avai lab le to us before 1 March 2016.  We 

have also expressed our  concern to  Mr Wood 
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about  00:12:01 and he has assured us that  

he wi l l  issue a supplementary form.  Based 

on this our relat ionship wi th Tr i l l ian remains 

under review by our commit tees. ”  

So the point  you are making is that  as at  25 February 

McKinsey is saying we are st i l l  reviewing or consider ing the 

issue of  whether we should have a relat ionship wi th  Tr i l l ian 

and we have asked for some informat ion that  is 25 February.   

That  is -   that  point  might  be f ine but  only up to 25 February 

is i t  not?  I f  we talk ing about March i t  does not  cover much 10 

because you – we would not  know whether  they got  al l  of  

th is informat ion in  the next  few weeks.    

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  of  course there might  be another part  

somewhere which tel ls us.  

MR SINGH:   Ja but  i t  – I  th ink Mr Chair  by now i t  is  common 

cause.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   That  McKinsey informed Tr i l l ian.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR SINGH:   That  they had – that  they had fai led.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   And they wi l l  no longer partner.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Off ic ia l ly on the 16t h March.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   On the 16t h – oh so about three weeks 

later.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   And off ic ia l ly then informed Eskom al ternat ive ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   On the 31s t  of  March.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay so therefore … 

MR SINGH:   From February you wi l l  not  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There was on their  version by 31s t  of  10 

March they had no relat ionship wi th… 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  15t h of  March.  

CHAIRPERSON:   With Tr i l l ian.  

CHAIRPERSON:   By 16t h of  March ja.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They had no relat ionship wi th – and they 

had decided that  they were not  going to cont inue.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Because at  – per th is let ter Mr Chai r  they were 

st i l l  expect ing informat ion f rom Tri l l ian on the 1s t  of  March.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja.  

MR SINGH:   So they could not  have made a decision in 

February.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja they made i t  af ter.  

MR SINGH:   They made i t  af ter.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   And the point  that  I  am making is that  I  am 

factual ly disput ing February because February is  

convenient ly inserted to give the impression that  they had 

fai led in February to cast  doubt  on the corporate plan work.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the corporate plan – the corporate 

plan – this  let ter is about  the MSA is i t  not?  Or is i t  about  

both the corporate plan and the – and the MSA let ter ( ta lk ing 

over one another) .  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  the let ter both mine and McKinsey’s 10 

let ter refers to the MSA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes okay.   Now insofar as the MSA is  

concerned there is – what you are saying is on the ir  let ter  

and whatever other  correspondence by 16 March they said 

they had no re lat ionship wi th Tr i l l ian and end of  March they 

informed Eskom.  But  your – you used that  not  in relat ion to 

MSA for present  purposes you use i t  in relat ion to the 

corporate plan.  

MR SINGH:   Yes Si r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Seleka.  20 

MR SELEKA SC:   Ja thank you Chai r.   Mr Amankwah does 

speci fy the dates later in h is aff idavi t  and Mr Singh I  just  

want to ment ion those dates.   They addressed a let ter for  

McKinsey he says:   15 March 2016 and then the let ter to you 

was 30 March – remember the one we looked at .  
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 I  know the 31s t  is the meet ing – a steer ing commit tee 

meet ing you have.  

MR SINGH:   Steer ing commit tee wi l l  have i t .  

MR SELEKA SC:   Ja so the let ter  had al ready been given.   

So i t  is 15 March and 30 March and then there is a meet ing 

on the 31s t  of  March.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the – what is the point  you make about  

the absence of  the relat ionship between McKinsey and 

Tr i l l ian under the MSA that  rela tes the corporate plan?  

Remember we are talk ing about the corporate plan now but  10 

you are rely ing on a let ter that  ta lks about  the MSA, what is  

that  point  that  you want to make because under the 

corporate plan remember somet ime maybe 30 minutes ago I  

asked Mr Seleka what was the point  about  the corporate plan 

and he conf i rmed that  the point  was who had provided 

serv ices.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  McKinsey rel ies on the fact  they had 

that  Tr i l l ian had fai led thei r  due di l igence process and 

therefore they were never – the – suppl ier development  

partner.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   But  I  am saying for the corporate plan they were 

never subjected to a due di l igence process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You mean? 

MR SINGH:   Tr i l l ian.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Tr i l l ian.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Right .  

MR SINGH:   A lbei t  that  they were work ing together.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  they say in – they say or maybe 

some of  the aff idavi ts that  they never had any cont racts wi th  

– wi th Tr i l l ian.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  we wi l l  deal  wi th that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Because you see I  th ink I  want to  

keep my focus on the issue and that  is the issue of  whether 10 

there was a cont ract  and who the contract  was wi th,  whether 

serv ices were provided and who provided the serv ices.   I  

want  to keep my focus on that  as we deal  wi th the corporate 

plan.  

MR SINGH:   I  wi l l  certainly deal  wi th that  in that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Okay.   Cont inue.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  in terms of  (3) which is on the next  

page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which is 20.1 sub 2.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Chair  before – I  know Mr S ingh wi l l  not  20 

lose the point  because he knows where i t  is but  I  th ink the 

statement he made th is requires some clar i f icat ion Mr Singh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.    

MR SELEKA SC:   Ja.  Insofar – because insofar as you say 

Tr i l l ian was never subjected to review under the corporate 
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p lan.   Then you go on to say a l l  the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  the due di l igence process.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink that  is what he sa id.   When you say 

under review you are talk ing about the same th ing.  

MR SELEKA SC:   The same thing Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SELEKA SC:   So they were not  subjected to that  r isk – 

global  r isk assessment review in respect  of  the corporate 

plan.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SELEKA SC:   But  then he adds something to  do the 

effect  that  even though McKinsey worked with Tr i l l ian.  

MR SINGH:   Yes Si r.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Is that  what you are saying Mr Singh? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

MR SELEKA SC:   But  that  is not  correct .   Then we can leave 

i t  on record l ike that .  

MR SINGH:   Why would… 

MR SELEKA SC:   Because – because we have establ ished 20 

f rom your own aff idavi t  that  you approached Eric Wood of  

Regiments who was working on the corporate plan.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  remember Mr Seleka this aff idavi t  by 

Mr Amankwah.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Amankwah.  
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MR SINGH:   Amankwah 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you remember there was a part  where I  

said wel l  he now talks on the basis on the basis that  in effect  

al though there was no – they did not  have contracts that  is 

McKinsey.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   With  

MR SINGH:   Tr i l l ian.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  cannot remember whether Tr i l l ian or  

Regiments but  some work – they worked together at  Eskom.  10 

Do you remember there was that  paragraph.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Si r.  

MR SELEKA SC:   But  that  – that  is  Chair  – that  is under Mr 

Singh should explain to you that  is under the MSA. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  is under the S – MSA.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh not  under the corporate plan.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Not  the corporate plan Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   That  is. .  20 

MR SINGH:   That  is – Mr Chair  that  is not  someth ing for me 

to explain that  is Ms Seleka’s view – Advocate Seleka’s view.  

MR SELEKA SC:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i f  i t  – i f  you do not  te l l  h im you do 

not  agree I  wi l l  th ink you – you are agree wi th h im.  
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MR SINGH:   Hence I  am saying Mr Chai r  I  d isagree wi th Mr 

Seleka’s point .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.   Okay cont inue.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  in terms of  (3) Mr Amankwah ra ises a 

concern regard ing Tr i l l ian employees who had withheld 

informat ion about  the t rue shareholding and st ructure of  

Tr i l l ian in their  interact ion wi th McKinsey.   And later in thei r  

aff idavi t  Mr Chai r  we can - we can– go to that  but  you wi l l  

see that  that  is actual ly give the f i rst  to  Ms Goodson.  So 

that  is the comment in terms of  paragraph 3.  10 

 In terms of  paragraph… 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  – but  how – I  would expect  you to have 

nothing to do wi th sub 3 because is that  not  an internal  

matter or not  a matter just  between Tr i l l ian and McKinsey.  

MR SINGH:   Not  as Chai r  raise i t  because i t  is an issue for 

the commission in  terms of  the fact  that  you placing rel iance 

on Ms Goodson’s test imony and Ms Goodson’s aff idavi t .   And 

Mr Amankwah is ra is ing a concern regarding her  knowledge 

of  the shareholding and the manner in which she e i ther did 

or did not  disclose that  to McKinsey at  the t ime.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  what – what comment did you give? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  am saying that  Mr Amankwah is 

ra is ing a concern regarding Tr i l l ian employees who 

repeatedly wi thheld informat ion f rom McKinsey about 

Tr i l l ian ’s t rue ownership structure.   So he is saying that  they 
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have now discovered years later that  Tr i l l ian employees at  

the t ime had knowledge of  the t rue ownership structure of  

Tr i l l ian.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Which they did not  disclose to them and my 

comment Mr Chai r  is to add to th is paragraph is that  the 

person that  Mr Amankwah has – is referr ing to  is Ms 

Goodson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR SINGH:   Okay and he further names her in the aff idavi t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:    Okay I  can take you to that  paragraph.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja. :    

MR SELEKA SC:   Ja that  – the t iming is – the t ime is not  

going to. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I .  

MR SELEKA SC:   I  th ink Mr Singh should deal  wi th what 

pertains to him.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No just  hang on one second.   Your 20 

si tuat ion … 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chairperson I  would prefer  i t  i f  we 

adjourn at  th is point .  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no,  no.  no that  is f ine.   That  – let  us 
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adjourn ja okay.   Let  us adjourn.   But  can we talk about  next  

– next  week Monday and Tuesday can we use those 

evenings?  Your – Monday and Tuesday are your days is i t  

not? 

MR SELEKA SC:   They are Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Except  that  Monday we have a wi tness 

equal ly heavyweight  as Mr Anoj  Singh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh so you think you wi l l  take – you wi l l  

take – but  we need to have – we need i f  we can to  t ry and 10 

f in ish wi th somebody.   I  – we would l ike you to  f in ish wi th  

that  one.  

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes.   That  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   With Monday’s one.  

MR SELEKA SC:   That  is what we aim to do so that  i f  we 

need to go into t ime – more t ime in the evening we could do 

so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay al r ight .   

MR SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then on Tuesday you are supposed to 20 

have who? 

MR SELEKA SC:   Min ister – Mr Zwane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja Mr Zwane.   Okay al r ight .   Can we talk in  

chambers for one minute before we let  you go about  next  

week?  I  th ink let  us do that .   Thank you very much we wi l l  
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adjourn now and next  week we on Monday we wi l l  deal  wi th 

Eskom and Mr Koko wi l l  g ive evidence.   Tuesday is 

supposed to be Mr Mosebenzi  Zwane and ja – we adjourn.   

Thank you to  everybody for staying unt i l  th is t ime.  We 

appreciate everybody’s cooperat ion.   Thank you.    

We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 29 MARCH 2021 

 


